

The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please contact the 
Village Clerk’s Office, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 


 
 


AGENDA 
VILLAGE BOARD 


Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 – 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 
October 7, 2019 


6:00 p.m. 
 
 


1. Call to Order 
 


2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 


3. Roll Call 
 


4. Presentation of Resolution #19-36 of Appreciation and Recognition to Mason Kieman for 
the completion of an Eagle Scout project known as Brookside Gardens Bridge.  
 


5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 
from the public on items not on the agenda; however, no discussion is allowed and no action will be taken 
under citizen comments.) 


 
6. Administrator’s Report 


 
7. New Business 


A. Presentation and Receive McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. Fire & Rescue Department 
Review and Assessment.  


B. Consider approval of the request of Haribo of America Manufacturing, LLC for a one 
(1) year time extension of the Master Conceptual Plan for their proposed Corporate 
Campus within the Prairie Highlands Corporate Park. 


C. Consider award of contract to Rinka for Village Green Center Mixed-Use 
Development.  


D. Consider and approve HAS Acquisitions Inc. 2nd Amendment to the Purchase Sale 
Agreement. 


E. Consider and approve Resolution #19-35 for Public Improvements for The Gateway 
at Lakeview Corporate Park. 


F. Consider and approve Resolution #19-37 and Ordinance #19-37 relating to solid 
waste collection fees. 


8. Consent Agenda (All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by 
one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board member so requests, in which 
event the item will be removed from the General Ordinances of Business and considered at this point on the 
agenda.) 


1) Minutes of Meeting for September 16, 2019 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Agenda – October 7, 2019 
Page | 2 
 
 
 


I hereby certify that I posted a true and correct copy of this Agenda in three (3) public locations: Village Hall, Roger Prange Municipal 
Building and RecPlex.  Additionally, this Agenda was posted on the Village of Pleasant Prairie’s website at www.pleasantprairiewi.gov.  
 
Dated 4th day of October, 2019.  Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk 
 
 


2) Disallowance of claim for Rosalyn Knoth 
 


9. Village Board Comments 


10. Adjournment 







 


 Resolution No. 19-36 
  


Resolution of Appreciation and Recognition 
to Mason Kiernan  


for completion of an Eagle Scout project 
 Brookside Gardens Bridge 


 Park Commission 
 


 
WHEREAS, on November 7, 2018 Mason Kiernan presented to the 


Pleasant Prairie Park Commission his Eagle Scout project to build a bridge that covers 
the Brookside Gardens Park Creek; and  
 


WHEREAS, on August 6, 2019 Mason Kiernan presented to the Pleasant 
Prairie Park Commission his completed Eagle Scout project; and  
 


WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie would like to acknowledge and 
express its gratitude to Mason Kiernan for his contributions made while building a bridge 
at the Brookside Gardens Park Creek; and 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village of Pleasant Prairie 
does hereby extend its sincere appreciation and gratitude to Mason Kiernan for his time 
and effort of commitment and attentive service to the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  


Considered and adopted this 7th day of October, 2019. 


 


________________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink, President 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk 







MEMORANDUM 
To:        Village President and Trustees 


From:   Nathan R. Thiel 


Date:    October 7, 2019 


Re:        Fire and Rescue Department Review and Assessment   
 


 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6721 • Fax 262.694.4734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 
 


Office of the Village Administrator 


Earlier this year the Village contracted McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. to evaluate our Fire and Rescue operations. 
Provided with the packet is McGrath’s final report with recommendations. Tim McGrath will be present at the meeting 
to summarize the findings and answer questions.      







 


 


Fire & Rescue  
   Department  
      Review & Assessment 


                                                       


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


 
 
 


For The 


Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 
 


                                  
 


 


Conducted by 


 


September 2019 


 



https://pleasantprairiewi.gov/





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 2 
 
 


 


 


 


 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. 


P.O. Box 190 


Wonder Lake, IL 60097 


Office (815) 728-9111 


Fax (815) 331-0215 


Email tim@mcgrathconsulting.com 


www.mcgrathconsulting.com 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


©Copyright 2019 McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. All rights reserved. 
No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or 
by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopy, recording or otherwise without the expressed written 


permission of McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  
 


  



mailto:tim@mcgrathconsulting.com

mailto:tim@mcgrathconsulting.com





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 3 
 
 


Table of Contents 
Introduction ......................................................................................................................................9 


Consultants Organization Chart .......................................................................................................... 10 
Project Consulting Team Members ................................................................................................... 10 


Fire/EMS/1st Responder Consulting Team ......................................................................................... 10 
Dr. Tim McGrath – Project Manager .............................................................................................. 10 
Chief Don Markowski – Lead Fire/EMS Consultant ....................................................................... 11 
BC. Larry Pieniazek – Fire/EMS Consultant .................................................................................... 12 
Mr. Robert Harrison – Fiscal Analysis/Administration ................................................................... 13 
Dr. Victoria McGrath – Human Resources ..................................................................................... 13 
Ms. Malayna Halvorson Maes – Human Resources Consultant .................................................... 14 


Gratitude to the Village of Pleasant Prairie ....................................................................................... 15 
Study Methodology ......................................................................................................................... 15 


Quantitative ........................................................................................................................................ 16 
Qualitative ........................................................................................................................................... 16 


Executive Report .............................................................................................................................. 18 
Leadership Collaboration .................................................................................................................... 18 
Staffing ................................................................................................................................................ 18 
Stations................................................................................................................................................ 19 
Apparatus ............................................................................................................................................ 20 
Training ............................................................................................................................................... 21 


Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department History ........................................................................... 23 
Governance ..................................................................................................................................... 24 


Kenosha County ................................................................................................................................... 24 
Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin ................................................................................................. 25 


Village of Pleasant Prairie Way of Life ........................................................................................... 26 
Village of Pleasant Prairie Governance .......................................................................................... 27 
Pleasant Prairie Recognized by the League of Wisconsin Municipalities ...................................... 27 


Village of Pleasant Prairie 2035 Land Use Plan ................................................................................... 27 
United States Census Bureau Information ......................................................................................... 28 
Demographics .................................................................................................................................. 29 


Pleasant Prairie RecPlex ...................................................................................................................... 29 
Schools ................................................................................................................................................ 30 
Energy.................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Transportation .................................................................................................................................... 31 
Business ............................................................................................................................................... 31 


National Standards .......................................................................................................................... 33 
National Fire Protection Association ................................................................................................... 34 
Why The Need For Standards ............................................................................................................. 35 


EMS Incidents .................................................................................................................................. 38 
National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) EMS Field Study ........................................... 40 
Primary Findings .................................................................................................................................. 40 
Patient Access and Removal ............................................................................................................... 41 


Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) .................................................................... 43 
Insurance Service Offices, Inc (ISO) ................................................................................................... 44 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 4 
 
 


Public Protection Classification Number ............................................................................................. 45 
Pleasant Prairie ISO PPC Scores .......................................................................................................... 47 


Center for Public Safety Excellence ................................................................................................... 49 
CPSE – Standard of Response Coverage (SORC) ................................................................................. 49 


Statistical Data from the U.S. Fire Administration ............................................................................. 51 
Recommendations – National Standards ...................................................................................... 53 


Statistical Information for the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department ......................................... 53 
Pleasant Prairie Fire Station locations ................................................................................................ 54 
Surrounding Mutual Aid Departments ................................................................................................ 54 


Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department Response Districts .................................................... 55 
Incident by Station .............................................................................................................................. 56 


Emergency Activities - National Fire Incident Reporting System......................................................... 59 
Emergency Response Data ............................................................................................................... 60 


Pleasant Prairie Data ........................................................................................................................... 61 
Why Retrieve Emergency Response Data? ......................................................................................... 61 
10-Year Emergency Activities .............................................................................................................. 62 
Incidents by Nature ............................................................................................................................. 63 


NFIRS Sub-Categories ..................................................................................................................... 63 
Identifying Emergency Service Trends ................................................................................................ 65 


Incidents by Month ........................................................................................................................ 65 
Incidents by Day of the Week ........................................................................................................ 66 
Incidents by Time of Day ................................................................................................................ 67 
Calls by Station/District .................................................................................................................. 68 
Simultaneous Incidents .................................................................................................................. 69 


Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) ............................................................................................. 70 
Mutual/Automatic Aid ........................................................................................................................ 71 


Recommendations – Emergency Activities .................................................................................... 72 
Incidents by Shift ................................................................................................................................. 72 


Emergency Medical Services .......................................................................................................... 73 
Fire Based EMS vs. Third-service and/or Private Based EMS .............................................................. 75 


Third Service EMS ................................................................................................................................ 75 
Why Consider a Third Service ........................................................................................................ 76 
Challenges of Third Services .......................................................................................................... 77 
Private Provider ............................................................................................................................. 78 
Recommendation – Fire Based EMS .............................................................................................. 79 


Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP – aka: Dispatch) ....................................................................... 80 
Pleasant Prairie PSAP .......................................................................................................................... 81 
PSAP Staffing ....................................................................................................................................... 81 
Components Of PSAP Times................................................................................................................ 82 


The Primary PSAP (County) components: ...................................................................................... 82 
The Secondary PSAP Components: ................................................................................................ 83 


Pleasant Prairie PSAP Data .................................................................................................................. 83 
Pleasant Prairie 911 Call ...................................................................................................................... 83 
Secondary PSAPs ................................................................................................................................. 84 


Recommendation – Dispatch ......................................................................................................... 85 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 5 
 
 


Types of Fire Service Staffing ............................................................................................................ 86 
Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department Staffing .......................................................................... 88 


Chief Officer Staffing ........................................................................................................................... 89 
Full Time Staffing ................................................................................................................................. 89 
Part-Time Staffing ............................................................................................................................... 90 
Employee Reimbursement for Initial Hiring Costs .............................................................................. 91 


Organizational Chart for the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department ........................................... 92 
Station 1 Current Staffing .................................................................................................................... 92 
Station 2 Current Staffing .................................................................................................................... 92 


Staffing Recommendation ................................................................................................................ 93 
Proposed Staffing for Immediate Consideration ................................................................................ 93 
Proposed Staffing for Future Consideration ....................................................................................... 94 


Human Resources ............................................................................................................................ 95 
Recruitment ........................................................................................................................................ 95 


Applicant Tracking System ............................................................................................................. 96 
Application ..................................................................................................................................... 96 
Recruitment Sources and Locations .............................................................................................. 97 
Recommendation – Recruitment ................................................................................................... 97 


Screening, Testing, Interview and Pre-employment Process ............................................................. 97 
Screening Applications ................................................................................................................... 97 
Testing ............................................................................................................................................ 98 
Candidate Physical Ability Test ...................................................................................................... 98 
National Firefighter Selection Test ................................................................................................ 99 
Interviewing ................................................................................................................................... 99 
Post-Offer / Background / Pre-Employment Testing ................................................................... 100 
Recommendation - Screening, Testing and Interviewing............................................................. 101 
Applicant Communication ........................................................................................................... 101 
Offer Letter .................................................................................................................................. 101 
Recovery of Expenses .................................................................................................................. 102 
Recommendation - Applicant Communication ............................................................................ 102 


Part-Time Personnel ...................................................................................................................... 103 
Recommendation - Part-time Personnel ...................................................................................... 104 


Compensation ............................................................................................................................... 105 
Fair Labor Standards Act ................................................................................................................... 105 


What is an employee? ................................................................................................................. 105 
FLSA Work Period ......................................................................................................................... 108 
Overtime Calculations .................................................................................................................. 109 
Recommendation - Compensation/FLSA ..................................................................................... 109 


Payroll Processing and Recordkeeping ............................................................................................. 109 
Recommendation - Payroll Processing and Recordkeeping ......................................................... 110 
Orientation (On-boarding) ........................................................................................................... 111 
Recommendation – Onboarding .................................................................................................. 111 


Job Descriptions ................................................................................................................................ 112 
Recommendation - Job Descriptions ............................................................................................ 112 


Performance Evaluations .................................................................................................................. 112 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 6 
 
 


Recommendation - Performance Evaluations .............................................................................. 114 
Promotion ......................................................................................................................................... 114 
Discipline ........................................................................................................................................... 115 


Recommendation – Promotion .................................................................................................... 115 
HR/Management Training ................................................................................................................. 116 


Recommendation - HR/Management Training ............................................................................ 117 
Personnel Policies ............................................................................................................................. 117 


Recommendation - Personnel Policies ......................................................................................... 118 
Personnel Records ............................................................................................................................. 118 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) ................................................................................................ 121 


Recommendation - Employee Assistance .................................................................................... 121 
Training ......................................................................................................................................... 122 
Pleasant Prairie Fire Station Facilities .......................................................................................... 124 


Fire Station #1 ................................................................................................................................... 124 
Apparatus Floor ................................................................................................................................. 124 


Recommendation - Station 1 Apparatus Floor ............................................................................. 125 
Living quarters ................................................................................................................................... 126 


Fire Station 2 ................................................................................................................................. 126 
Recommendation – Station 2 ....................................................................................................... 127 


Administration .................................................................................................................................. 127 
Living Quarters .................................................................................................................................. 127 


Recommendation – Station 2 Living Quarters ............................................................................. 128 
Apparatus Floor ................................................................................................................................. 128 


Recommendation – Station #2 Remodel ...................................................................................... 129 
Location Of A Third Fire Station ...................................................................................................... 130 


Fire Station 3 – Located on the RecPlex Property ............................................................................. 130 
Fire Station 3 – Alternate Located at 11509 Old Green Bay Road .................................................... 131 


Apparatus ...................................................................................................................................... 133 
Apparatus condition .......................................................................................................................... 135 
Odometers vs. Engine Hour Meters .................................................................................................. 135 
Sufficiency of Apparatus ................................................................................................................... 135 
Apparatus Replacement .................................................................................................................... 136 
Summary of Vehicles Needing Replacement .................................................................................... 137 


Recommendation – Vehicle Replacement.................................................................................... 138 
Financial ........................................................................................................................................ 139 


Fiscal Analysis .................................................................................................................................... 139 
Fire and Ambulance Fund Revenues ................................................................................................. 140 


Recommendation - Fire Revenue ................................................................................................. 141 
Fire Operating Expenditures ............................................................................................................. 142 


Fire Department Capital Budget ..................................................................................................... 142 
Recommendation - Fire Capital Expenditure ............................................................................... 143 


Fire Service Health and Safety ...................................................................................................... 144 
Firefighter Life Safety Initiatives ....................................................................................................... 144 
National Fallen Fire Fighters - Courage to Be Safe Program ............................................................. 145 
Firefighter Cancers ............................................................................................................................ 146 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 7 
 
 


Recommendation – Cancer Prevention ........................................................................................ 147 
Firefighter Suicides ............................................................................................................................ 147 


Recommendation – Suicide Prevention ........................................................................................ 148 
Previous Consultant Report Follow Up ......................................................................................... 149 


Review of the BSB Consulting Report from 9/7/2011. ..................................................................... 149 
Summary of Recommendations ...................................................................................................... 150 
Appendix A – Data Request ............................................................................................................ 155 
 


List of Figures 


Figure 1: Map of Kenosha County Wisconsin ............................................................................................. 24 
Figure 2: Map of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County .................................................................................... 25 
Figure 3: 2035 Land Use Map ..................................................................................................................... 28 
Figure 4: Map location of RecPlex .............................................................................................................. 30 
Figure 5: Illustration source: IAFF NFPA 1710 Implementation Guide (2002) ............................................ 37 
Figure 6: Illustration Source: IAFF NFPA 1710 Implementation Guideline (2002) ..................................... 38 
Figure 7: Illustration Source IAFF NFPA 1710 Implementation Guideline (2002)....................................... 39 
Figure 8: Source ISO - Countrywide ISO Classifications .............................................................................. 46 
Figure 9: US Fire Administration - Incident Types Wisconsin vs National Averages .................................. 52 
Figure 10: Village Streets and Water/Hydrant System ............................................................................... 53 
Figure 11: Map of Fire Station Surrounding Pleasant Prairie ..................................................................... 54 
Figure 12: Current Response Areas for Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department ................................. 56 
Figure 13: Proposed 3 Fire Station Response Area ..................................................................................... 58 
Figure 14: Causes of FF Line of Duty Deaths ............................................................................................... 65 
Figure 15: Dispatch Time with Transfer ...................................................................................................... 84 
Figure 16: Fire Department Organization Chart ......................................................................................... 92 
Figure 17: Fire Statin #1 - 3801 Springbrook Road ................................................................................... 124 
Figure 18: Fire Station #2 - 8044- 88th Avenue ......................................................................................... 126 
Figure 19: Escape door & ladder from 2nd floor ...................................................................................... 128 
Figure 20: Proposed site for Station #3 on RecPlex property ................................................................... 130 
Figure 21: Recommended location for Fire Station #3 on the RecPlex Property ..................................... 131 
Figure 22: Proposed third fire station location on Green Bay Road ......................................................... 132 
Figure 23: Source Firefighter Cancer Support Network ............................................................................ 146 


 


List of Tables 


Table 1: Source VOPP - 20 Largest Employers in Pleasant Prairie .............................................................. 33 
Table 2:  Source ISO - Public Protection Classification Numbering............................................................. 45 
Table 3 Source ISO: PCCN Point Values ...................................................................................................... 45 
Table 4: ISO Classification for the Village of Pleasant Prairie ..................................................................... 48 
Table 5: Source US Fire Administration - Fire Department Types .............................................................. 51 
Table 6: Source US Fire Administration - Wisconsin Fire Departments Specialized Services ..................... 52 
Table 7: Table/Figure: 10-Year Call Totals .................................................................................................. 62 
Table 8: NFIRS Pleasant Prairie FD .............................................................................................................. 63 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 8 
 
 


Table 9:  Table and Figure Incidents by Station .......................................................................................... 68 
Table 10: Aid Received & Given .................................................................................................................. 72 
Table 11: PPFD Billable Patients ................................................................................................................. 74 
Table 12: Incident Types that PPFD Responded to for the last 2 Years ...................................................... 74 
Table 13: EMS Providers In U.S. .................................................................................................................. 76 
Table 14: Pleasant Prairie PSAP Staffing & Shifts........................................................................................ 81 
Table 15: Single vs. Two PSAP ..................................................................................................................... 85 
Table 16: Employee Classifications ........................................................................................................... 107 
Table 17: FLSA 207K Exception Work Period Chart .................................................................................. 108 
Table 18: Employee File Example ............................................................................................................. 119 
Table 19: Payroll File Example .................................................................................................................. 120 
Table 20: Medical File Example ................................................................................................................. 120 
Table 21: Separation Best Practice Example ............................................................................................. 120 
Table 22: PPFD Full-Time Minimum Training Requirements .................................................................... 122 
Table 23: EMT/Paramedic Minimum Training Requirements .................................................................. 122 
Table 24: 2016 PPFD Training Records ..................................................................................................... 123 
Table 25: 2017 PPFD Training Records ..................................................................................................... 123 
Table 26: 2018 PPFD Training Records ..................................................................................................... 123 
Table 27: PPFD Apparatus Details ............................................................................................................. 133 
Table 28: NFPA Vehicle Replacement Schedule ....................................................................................... 137 
Table 29: PPFD Vehicles Per NFPA Replacement Schedule ...................................................................... 138 
Table 30: Fiscal Year 2019 Fire Department Budget Revenues ................................................................ 140 
Table 31: Current Ambulance Service fee Schedule ................................................................................. 141 
Table 32: Current Fire Recovery Fee Schedule ......................................................................................... 141 
Table 33: Fiscal Year 2019 Fire Department Operations Budgeted Expenditures.................................... 142 
Table 34: Three Year Fire Department Budgeted Capital ......................................................................... 143 


 


List of Charts 


Chart 1: Consultants Organization Chart .................................................................................................... 10 
Chart 2 Recommendation Priority Level Hierarchy .................................................................................... 17 
Chart 3: Population of Pleasant Prairie ....................................................................................................... 29 
Chart 4: Source VOPP -2018 Breakdown of Commercial/Industrial Development .................................... 32 
Chart 5: Illustration Source: NIST Patient Removal Experiments (2010) .................................................... 42 
Chart 6: Incidents by Station for the last 3 years ........................................................................................ 56 
Chart 7: Bar Graph showing the Incidents by Station for the last 3 years .................................................. 57 
Chart 8: Proposed 3 Fire Station incident Distribution ............................................................................... 58 
Chart 9: Bar Chart of Proposed 3 Fire Station Incident Distribution .......................................................... 59 
Chart 10: Incidents by Month ..................................................................................................................... 66 
Chart 11: Incidents by Day of the Week ..................................................................................................... 67 
Chart 12: Incidents by Time of Day ............................................................................................................. 68 
Chart 13: Incidents by District ..................................................................................................................... 69 
Chart 14: Simultaneous Incidents ............................................................................................................... 70 
Chart 15: Incident by Shift .......................................................................................................................... 73 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 9 
 
 


Introduction 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. was commissioned by the Village of Pleasant Prairie to conduct an audit 


(assessment) of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department. The purpose of this study is to 


present to the Village Board and Fire Department leadership a booklet of opportunities to provide 


services in the most cost-effective manner. Although the Consultants will identify opportunities for 


improvement within the Department, it needs to acknowledge the high level of professionalism and 


dedication of the Fire Department members who provide an excellent service to the community of 


Pleasant Prairie.  


 


To complete this Study, the Consultants conducted a series of interviews with Village Board Members, 


Village Police & Fire Commissioners, Village Officials, Fire Department leadership, Department Union 


leadership, Department members, and other identified stakeholders. In additional to the site surveys 


conducted, past documentation pertaining to the Fire Department services were reviewed.   


 


The Village and Fire Department cooperated with the Consultants in obtaining copious amounts of 


documentation that was needed for a Study of this magnitude. The Consultants acknowledge that the 


findings and recommendations made in the report are based on the best attempt by the Village and Fire 


Department to provide accurate data.   


 


Six Consultants were assigned to this Study. Each handled topics that were appropriate to their specific 


skills and expertise: 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 10 
 
 


Consultants Organization Chart 


Chart 1: Consultants Organization Chart    


Dr. Tim McGrath
Project Manager


Don Markowski
Lead Fire/EMS 


Consultant


Mr. Robert Harrison
Fiscal/Admin
Consultant


Dr. Victoria 
McGrath


Human Resources


BC Pieniazek
Fire/EMS 


Consultant


Chief Berousek
Fire/EMS
Advisor


Ms. Malayna 
Halvorson-Maes


Human Resources


 


 


Project Consulting Team Members 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. employs approximately twenty-seven staff members (principals, 


consultants, and clerical).  The following Consultants will be assigned throughout the duration of this 


project.  


 


Fire/EMS/1st Responder Consulting Team                                                                                             


 


Dr. Tim McGrath – Project Manager  


As CEO of McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. Dr. Tim McGrath is the visionary of the organization.  His 33 
years of experience in Fire and EMS as well as his ability to develop innovative solutions makes McGrath 
Consulting different than other firms.  Dr. McGrath started his career as a volunteer firefighter and went 
through the transition of an informal group of civic minded individuals to an integral department within 
the Village of Gurnee, IL.  During his tenure with Gurnee, the Village rapidly grew from a small bedroom 
community to one that hosts a Six Flags Great America, and at the time, the world’s largest shopping 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 11 
 
 


center – 2.2 million square feet under one roof.  Dr. McGrath was in administrative positions during 
both of the ventures, so he understands the opportunities and challenges growth brings to the fire 
service. 
 
Dr. McGrath was part of the first paramedic pilot program in the State of Illinois.  Through his 
leadership, he brought in the first non-education-based paramedic training program in the City of 
Brookfield Fire Department.  Thus, the City of Brookfield Fire Department became a profit center 
training all paramedic personnel for Waukesha County, WI. 
 
Dr. McGrath’s passion is in consolidation of services.  This can entail a wide range of relationships from 
simply sharing resources to full consolidation and integration of services.  Thus, conducting an analysis 
of each department, Dr. McGrath is able to identify the areas for greater cooperative efforts that 
continue to provide quality services in a cost-efficient manner. 
 
Through his experience and innovative mind set, Dr. McGrath is able to identify and address key issues – 
current and future.  It is through this combination of education and work experience, as well as working 
with over 170 organizations in 21 states, he brings a vast amount of first-hand knowledge to the 
assessment of emergency services.   
 
Education Background 
Walden University 
  Doctorate – Administrative Management 
 Dissertation:  Attitudes on Consolidation in the Fire Service 
Webster University 
 Master of Arts – Public Administration & Management 
University of Wisconsin – Stout 
 Bachelor of Science – Industrial Education 
College of Lake County 
 Associate Degree – Fire Science Technology 
 


Chief Don Markowski – Lead Fire/EMS Consultant 


Chief Don Markowski is a Senior Consultant with McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. he has forty years of 
fire and EMS service experience and was Fire Chief of two large Fire Protection Districts in the suburbs 
of Chicago.  He has moved through the ranks from firefighter/EMT to Fire Chief/Administrator having 
experienced numerous service growth challenges.  
 
Chief Markowski, has worked with volunteer, paid-on-call and career firefighters/paramedics during his 
tenue with the fire districts.  He has developed and managed budgets in excess of 13 million dollars.  He 
has been very successful with organized labor having completed union contracts on-time and without 
mitigation or arbitration.  Prior to joining McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. he has served as a consultant 
with another firm which conducted fire/EMS studies and executive searches.  
 
Chief Markowski, was a founding member and president of an Insurance COOP, a self-insurance pooling 
group for fire districts: medical, dental, prescription, vision, and life insurance for 18 area fire districts 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 12 
 
 


representing 15 million dollars in annual premiums.  


 
Chief Markowski has been successful in obtaining several FEMA, state, and private grants.  He has 
developed fire/EMS training curriculums including competency documentation.  In addition, he has 
been involved in all stages of facility renovation and new satellite facilities.  Chief Markowski has been 
very active on the board of the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS).  The Chief continues to present 
programs related to fire/EMS issues nationwide and was awarded Fire Chief of the Year in 2016.  He 
remains active with the National Fallen Fire Fighters Foundation and other civic groups. 
 
Educational Background: 


National-Louis University   
Master’s degree in business management 


Southern Illinois University 
Bachelor’s degree in Fire Science Management 


College of DuPage  
Associates Degree in Fire Science 


Center for Public Safety Excellence 
Accredited Chief Fire Officer (2013, 2016) 


 


BC. Larry Pieniazek – Fire/EMS Consultant 


Battalion Chief Pieniazek has been with McGrath Consulting Group almost since its inception.  He has 
been a critical component to all of our studies, specializing in the development and analyzing of data; 
station and apparatus evaluation, and assessment of the department’s training program.  Battalion Chief 
Pieniazek has spent over 33 years in the fire service starting as a paid-on-call firefighter and working up 
the ranks to a career Battalion Chief.  Thus, Battalion Chief Pieniazek brings the perspective of a 
volunteer/combination department as well as a career, unionized department. 
 
Battalion Chief Pieniazek specialized in fire prevention, instructing and ensuring compliance with 
inspections, pre-plans and all associated records; and was instrumental in achieving an ISO review and 
ISO class 2 rating, as well as preparing for accreditation through the International Fire Chief Certification 
Program.  Thus, he brings a unique perspective in understanding all of the fundamentals of sound 
policies, procedures, and best practices. 
 
Battalion Chief Pieniazek was actively involved in the training division for 30 years being the training 
coordinator for six years.  This included training with career, paid on call, and combination departments.  
He was responsible to ensure appropriate training to auto aid departments.  Battalion Chief Pieniazek 
has been the coordinator of EMS disaster drills; coordinator of interdepartmental training at O’Hare 
International Airport regarding fuselage spill firefighting and passenger rescue. 
 
He was also a team of three which oversaw maintenance of apparatus and equipment in the 
department; ISO preparation consultant; and coordinator of a multi departmental high-rise firefighting 
scenario.  He is also an active member of the Illinois Firefighters Association and the Metropolitan Fire 
Chiefs Association of Illinois. 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 13 
 
 


 
Educational Background: 


National Louis University 
Masters of Business Administration 


Southern Illinois University 
Bachelor of Fire Science 


College of DuPage 
Associate in Applied Science 


 


Mr. Robert Harrison – Fiscal Analysis/Administration 


Mr. Harrison is a Consultant with McGrath Consulting that brings an Administrator/Fiscal perspective to 
our studies.  Mr. Harrison has over 20 years of experience in municipal management.  Mr. Harrison is 
currently the City Administrator of Issaquah, WA which is a full service City that has grown from 4,000 
population 15 years ago to 31,500 today.  He served as City Manager of Wyoming, Ohio for 12 years, 
which is a full service residential suburban city on the border of Cincinnati, Ohio.  In addition, he has 
served in City management positions with the City of Mosinee, WI and City of Wauwatosa, WI. 
 
Through introduction of the Balanced Score Card evaluation, Mr. Harrison has effectively developed 
strategic plans that have resulted in economic growth to the community, as well as accountability within 
the organization.  He has received GFOA awards as well as the State Auditors Award for excellence in 
financial reporting.  He has implemented a successful LEAN initiative in the City of Issaquah directed at 
improving service and reducing costs. 
 
Education 
University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee 
 Master of Arts – Public Administration 
Marquette University 
 Bachelors of Arts 
 


Dr. Victoria McGrath – Human Resources  


Dr. Victoria McGrath serves as CEO of this subsidiary organization of McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  
She brings over 29 years of experience in all phases of human resources.  Dr. McGrath has an extensive 
background in the field of human resources predominately in the public sector; but also has extensive 
experience in the private sector having worked in health care, banking, and education.  Recognizing a 
need and ability to serve organizations beyond public safety, McGrath Human Resources Group was 
formed in 2012 to great success.   
  
Dr. Victoria McGrath’s professional experience includes serving as the Human Resources Director for the 
City of Brookfield, WI, which had more than 500 employees, including 5 labor unions; the Elmbrook 
School District, WI – the 2nd largest school district in Wisconsin, also with 5 labor unions; and Citicorp 
Bank.  As such, she has specialized in labor/employee relations; policy, procedure and labor compliance; 
benefits and compensation; and recruitment and staff development in addition to other human 
resources elements. 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 14 
 
 


 
As a labor negotiator, Dr. McGrath has represented management while utilizing consensus style 
bargaining for a variety of public sector unions. Due to consensus style bargaining approach this allowed 
for the entire re-write of the Fire IAFF union contract; which lead to the successful establishment of the 
first paramedic training center located outside an educational institution in the State of Wisconsin. 
 
Through her education and experience working in and consulting for human resources, Dr. McGrath has 
developed an extensive skillset in the analysis and development of compensation systems, overtime 
analysis and FLSA compliance, labor contract analysis, and development of integrated human resource 
systems – recruitment, compensation, policies & procedures, and performance management.  In 
addition to evaluating all aspects of a department/organization’s personnel systems, she has also 
worked with department supervisory personnel to ensure efficiency in job responsibilities either within 
a single department or across organizational departments.  When requested, she has integrated these 
recommended position changes within the organization’s compensation system to quickly facilitate 
critically effective change. 
 
In addition to her role as CEO of McGrath Human Resources Group, Dr. McGrath is an adjunct professor 
at Northwestern University teaching in the Masters of Public Policy program.  She is also a member of 
the Society for Human Resource Management; Wisconsin City/County Management Association; 
International Public Management Association for Human Resources; and World at Work. 
 
Education 
University of Wisconsin – Milwaukee 
 Ph.D. Administrative Leadership 


Dissertation:  The Learning Organization:  Lessons and implications for municipal government 
Cardinal Stritch College 
 Masters of Management 
University of Wisconsin – Milwaukee 
 Bachelor of Science – Industrial Relations/ Finance 
Federal Labor Relations Administration – Labor/Management Relations Training 
 
 


Ms. Malayna Halvorson Maes – Human Resources Consultant 


Malayna Halvorson Maes is a full-time Consultant for our subsidiary company McGrath Human 
Resources Group.  She previously has served as a human resource professional, in both the private and 
public sectors, having worked in health care, and most currently as the Human Resources Director for a 
large county in northern Wisconsin.  Thus, she has dealt with the many challenges facing municipal 
employers, including challenges by former unions as to their negotiation status.   
 
Over the past year, Ms. Maes has completed a complete evaluation of the compensation system for the 
County which included a rewrite of all job descriptions, and the implementation of a pay for 
performance evaluation system.  This system was created through the work of a combined employee – 
manager committee and included the implementation of a performance management software system 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 15 
 
 


to streamline the 360-evaluation process.  She therefore brings a practical understanding to the 
development and implementation of compensation systems. 
 
As a Human Resources Director, she is knowledgeable of all facts of local government, including 
fire/EMS, police, public works, engineering, health services, etc.  She is active in a number of 
professional organizations including SHRM, Chippewa Valley Society of Human Resource Management; 
WIPFLE Senior HR Forum; Wisconsin Association of County Personnel Directors, and the National Public 
Employer Labor Relations Association.  In addition, she serves on the WACPD training Committee, Chair 
of the Legislative Affairs, a Board of Director and member of the Services Committee for WPELRA; thus, 
she takes an active role in defining the profession. 
 
Education 
Luther College, Iowa 
    Bachelors of Science - Psychology 
 


Gratitude to the Village of Pleasant Prairie 


The McGrath Consulting Group team members who worked on this project would like to thank the 


Village of Pleasant Prairie elected and administrative personnel, along with members of the Pleasant 


Prairie Fire & Rescue Department, for their willingness to cooperate and participate in this Study.  A 


special thank you to all the village personnel who provided the requested data for the Consultants to 


complete this report.  


 


Although the perspectives of those interviewed were diverse, the Consultants at no time were restricted 


or influenced by any appointed or elected officials, Village official or their agent, fire department 


officers, or firefighters to change a recommendation or insist that a certain perspective be adopted in 


the Study.  Rather, the Consultants took a non-biased professional assessment of the organization, 


which has produced these study findings.  


 


Study Methodology  


The Consultants utilized both quantitative and qualitative analysis in conducting the assessment of the 


Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department.  


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 16 
 
 


Quantitative  


Quantitative methods emphasize objective measurements and the statistical, mathematical, or 


numerical analysis of data collected.  Quantitative data is any data that is in numerical form such as 


statistics, percentages, etc.; allowing the Consulting Team to analyze the data to yield an unbiased result 


that will validate the information gathered by the Consulting Team.  


 


Quantitative research using statistical methods starts with the collection of data, based on the 


objectives of the study.   Usually a big sample of data is collected – this would require verification, 


validation and recording before the analysis can take place.  It is this validation of the data submitted 


that yields the best portrayal of how services are actually provided.  


 


Prior to the Consulting Team’s first site visit the Village Manager and Fire Chiefs were sent a 


comprehensive list of data requests (see Appendix A).  The on-site interviews with stakeholders, and 


data requests were the primary method utilized by the Consulting Team.  


 


Qualitative  


Qualitative methodology is a method of observation to gather non-numerical data e.g. thoughts, 


opinions, key issues.  Qualitative methods used include observations by the Consulting Team, in-depth 


interviews with stakeholders both external and internal Fire Department members.  All organizations 


have a culture which is comprised of beliefs and behaviors that determine how members behave in the 


department; often a fire department’s culture is implied, not expressly defined, and develops over time 


resulting in “How we do it in Pleasant Prairie”.  


 


Qualitative research allows the Consulting Team to understand the opinions, attitudes, behavior, 


feelings, beliefs, values, perceptions, and underlying assumptions that comprise the Department’s 


culture; in the case of this Study the culture of the Department was very cohesive.   


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 17 
 
 


Recommendations found in this report are prioritized using the Chart below: 


Chart 2 Recommendation Priority Level Hierarchy 


Priority Level Definition Example 


1 Urgent/Immediate 
Potential threat to life, legal and regulatory compliance 
violations; physiological needs; essential preventative action 
needed 


2 Pressing < Priority  
Significant impact on organization; action needed as soon as 
possible 


3 Important < Priority  
Organization will benefit by addressing soon; items that should 
be accomplished 


4 Future Consideration 
Items need to be addressed; develop future plan of action; low 
consequences of delay-action 


5 Information Only Organization should be aware; take under consideration 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 18 
 
 


Executive Report 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc. was commissioned by the Village of Pleasant Prairie to conduct an audit 


of the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department.  This document is an audit of the current operations, 


staffing, and fiscal resources of the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department.  A number of major 


issues are highlighted within the report.  Staffing, a new fire station, and a new fire suppression vehicle 


is the overwhelming issues for the Village of Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department.  


 


Leadership Collaboration 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department is a well-run, highly trained, organized department.  The 


overall morale of the Fire Department is well.  Members contribute the high morale to the quality of the 


Fire Chief and his administration; as well as the former Fire Chiefs.  The teamwork exhibited throughout 


the Fire Department is not always exhibited to other departments within the village.  The Village has 


grown steadily over the years. The Fire Department has strived to keep up with the growth of the 


community.  


 


Staffing 


There are many standards that could be used to determine the adequate staffing for the Pleasant Prairie 


Fire & Rescue Department.  Each of them would exceed the amount of daily staffing that is currently in 


place today.  When examining the different staffing methodologies, the Village could utilize a travel 


distance (road miles) method, the number of personnel on a scene within given time method, or the 


four-minute sustainable life method.  In any case, there is a financial cost associated with each method 


as additional personnel would be required. 


 


In making the determination of what adequate staffing should be, you must first analyze what the actual 


workload is.  Although this starts with using the aggregate incident totals reported by the Fire 


Department software, it then requires looking deeper into all of the Fire Department activities which 


would include training, apparatus checks and maintenance, public education assignments, pre-planning, 


fire inspections and any other scheduled activities.  Although Fire Department personnel plan for worst 


case scenarios, staffing for that worst-case event is generally cost prohibitive.  In most cases 


departments utilize mutual aid agreements for such extreme worst-case emergencies.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 19 
 
 


 


the community. Information from the community risk profile will need to be incorporated into the 


ultimate fire department operations and staffing. It is very rare that fire departments have staffing that 


exceeds their needs. The consultants believe increasing the minimum staffing for each station from 


three (3) to five (5) would be beneficial to the community and the fire department personnel that 


protect them. To calculate this increase in personnel, the formula for station #1 is an easy calculation 


since the current minimum and maximum staffing  (3 personnel) is the same, therefore the 


recommendation is for two (2) personnel a day for each of the three (3) shifts for a total of six (6) new 


personnel.  The calculation for station #2 is not as simple since the current minimum personnel is three 


(3) personnel but the current maximum is five (5) personnel. The difference between the minimum and 


maximum personnel on duty is based upon the time off from the personnel assigned to the shift. 


Vacancies from the personnel on the shift may be filled in by part time members. Therefore, a more 


complete analysis of the time off schedule and shifts covered by part time personnel for Station #2 


would be necessary to determine how many additional personnel would be needed to be hired to 


obtain the recommended five (5) personnel minimum at the station.  Fire Department’s administrators 


need to keep an open mind to different staffing models and methods to meet the community needs and 


keep within the allowable budgets. This would include the usage of part-time or private contract 


personnel to offset staffing minimums and to further examine the effectiveness/necessity of three 


paramedics assigned to an ambulance for all medical/ambulance calls.  


 


Stations 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department operates out of two fire stations.  Station 1 is just a 


couple of years old and contains all the latest technology for a fire station.  It currently is staffed with 


three personnel daily but has the capabilities of expanding the number of personnel assigned to it in the 


future. One of the two Assistant Chiefs offices is located at Station #1.  


 


Station 2 serves as the headquarters for the Department.  It contains the administrative offices for the 


Fire Chief, one Assistant Fire Chiefs and the Administrative Assistant.  Space is limited within the office 


area and has very limited potential for expansion.  Future expansion needs would be for a Fire 


Prevention office, Public Education office and a small conference room to meet with 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 20 
 
 


contractors/vendors. The Village should consider moving the administrative offices to Station #1. 


Although modifications may be necessary,  the station has ample square footage to accommodate the 


administrative offices. It is also in close proximity to the Village Hall so contractors and vendors have 


easy access to it.  


 


Station 2 also houses daily operational staff.  It has a minimum of three and up to six personnel assigned 


to it 24 hours a day.  It was not originally built to house full time personnel.  Although it has had 


modifications to accommodate the full-time staff it still lacks adequate space for them.  The station 


could be renovated to include the full-time member’s needs. The station has ample room for all the 


firefighters needs if the administrative offices were relocated from the station.  


 


A third fire station has been considered for the Village for many years.  Several potential fire station sites 


were presented to the consulting team to review. After a complete review of the incident data, 


mapping, and current fire stations, the consulting team agrees a third fire station is needed to ensure 


the same service level is provided to the western areas of the village. Of the sites given to the 


consultants, the site which would be located on the Prairie Springs Park grounds of the RecPlex (9900 


Terwall Terrace, Pleasant Prairie, WS 53158) is recommended because of its quick access to the western 


areas of the village and many thoroughfare streets in the village.  The new fire station would also spread 


the call volume over the two existing fire stations. It is further recommended that the new fire station 


be a satellite station.  The staffing for the satellite station would be three (3) personnel. They personnel 


would jump between an ambulance and a fire suppression vehicle depending on the nature of the 


emergency call.  


 


Apparatus 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department apparatus overall is in good shape.  All the Department’s 


Advanced Life Support (Paramedic) ambulances are state of the art and contain all the necessary 


lifesaving equipment.  The Department recently replaced an aged aerial fire truck with a new 


ladder/tower in 2017.  


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 21 
 
 


Over the past years the community has changed from having little to no fire hydrants to almost fully 


supplied by a water distribution system with fire hydrants.  The Fire Department reports that 90% of the 


community is now fully supplied with fire hydrants throughout it.  The lack of fire hydrants in the past 


precipitated having fire engines that also contained large water tanks commonly known as Tenders in 


today’s terminology.  These vehicles are oversized to ensure proper weight distribution from the extra 


water.  Because the Village has adequate water supply with fire hydrants, future vehicle replacements 


will not need to contain the large oversized chassis.  This will allow for vehicles that have greater 


maneuverability and will be more versatile to the response needs of the community.  Currently, Station 


1 has three pumper/tenders that are aged and in need of replacement.  Unit 5614 and 5615 are overdue 


for replacement as they are outside the NFPA standard for usable life.  Unit 5611 was purchased in 2005 


and is currently utilized as a first due apparatus.  NFPA recommends this apparatus be replaced as a first 


due apparatus at fifteen (15) years old.  It may continue to serve the community as a reserve apparatus 


for an additional five (5) years after it is retired from first due responses; however, replacement of 


apparatus involves many factors and a one-size fits all standard can be problematic.  The consultants 


recommend the purchase of a quint ladder truck with a single rear axle to be placed at station #1. A 


quint ladder truck is both a fire engine as well as a ladder truck. This type of vehicle is very versatile and 


maneuverable and can also be the backup to the ladder/tower at station #2 when it is down for 


maintenance. The Consultants also recommend the purchase of a Rescue Pumper. This type of vehicle 


will carry all of the specialized equipment  and still function as an engine/pumper.  


 


 


Training 


Members of the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department are very well trained. All the career 


members are crossed trained as Firefighter and Paramedics.  Three out of the seven part time 


employees are equally crossed trained as Firefighters and Paramedics.  The remaining part time 


members are trained as Firefighters and Emergency Medical Technicians- Basic level.  


 


Pleasant Prairie is well balanced with residential, commercial and industrial property.  There are 


inherent dangers associated with each of these types of structures.  Due to these inherent dangers, the 


Fire Chief requires all members to be fully trained to handle any type of emergency that may occur 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 22 
 
 


within the community. All career personnel are certified in fire suppression, driving/pumping fire 


apparatus, hazardous materials, technical rescue, confined space operations, trench rescues, structural 


collapse, rope rescue and certified/licensed as paramedics.  The members of the Fire & Rescue 


Department should be commended as the minimum educational requirement surpasses all the 


surrounding communities’ requirements.  


 


Training is the key to an effective safe emergency incident.  The Department’s approach to fire and 


emergency medical services training are to be commended.  Dr. Benjamin Feinzimer, the Project 


Medical Director under which all the paramedics operate under, highly applauds the Department’s 


aggressive approach to paramedicine training.  He believes their strong desire to do the best starts with 


their aggressive training.  


 


Training of personnel is equally important to a quick response time to citizens request for help.  The 


Department utilizes “GoToMeeting” as a video conferencing system in the fire stations which allows the 


on-duty personnel to stay in their respective fire stations while participating in fire and EMS training.  


This system of training personnel is affective with academic training.  However, it cannot replace the 


practical application of training in multiple company operations.  


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 23 
 
 


Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department History 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department has been serving the community since 1935.  The Fire 


Department was formed after a house fire served as the motivation to form the Volunteer Fire 


Department.  Shortly after forming the Volunteer Fire Department, the Town Board approved the 


purchase of a pumper from Peter Pirsch & Sons Fire Engine Company located in Kenosha, Wisconsin.  


The initial Fire Department consisted of 69 volunteers and one (1) full-time driver. 


 


In the mid 1970’s sixteen Fire Department members were recruited to become medically trained to start 


a Rescue Squad.  Prior to this, the Kenosha Sheriff’s Department used a patrol station wagon to 


transport injured or sick person to a hospital.  On May 5, 1978, the newly formed rescue Squad officially 


started providing pre-hospital care in a used 1974 Chevrolet ambulance.  By 1985, Emergency Medical 


Technicians on the Rescue Squad were trained and allowed to use defibrillators on patients suffering 


from ventricular fibrillation.  The Rescue Squad members continued to advance their education and 


skills.  On October 31, 1986, they were trained to administer Intravenous (IV) therapy on patients.  The 


Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department continued to advance their emergency medical education 


training and skills.  On October 1, 1991, they became the smallest community in Wisconsin to provide 


Advanced Life Support / Paramedic level service.  Through the years leading up to the current time, 


Pleasant Prairie has been an industry leader providing the best quality emergency medical pre-hospital 


care.  They continue to provide the best quality care by using the latest equipment and advanced skills.  


 


Over the years the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department’s apparatus has changed based upon the 


needs of the community.  In 1994, the Department operated with two pumpers and two tankers.  The 


tankers were needed in areas that did not have available fire hydrants.  Today ninety (90) percent of the 


community has fire hydrants throughout thus reducing the need for water tankers.  The Pleasant Prairie 


brush/grass trucks have changed over the years as well.  The newer versions of brush/grass trucks now 


allow for them to be converted into EMS quick response vehicles used at events at the RecPlex.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 24 
 
 


Governance 


Kenosha County  


 
Figure 1: Map of Kenosha County Wisconsin 


Kenosha County is a county in the southeastern corner of 


the U.S. State of Wisconsin.  Wikipedia reports its 


population in 2018 was estimated to be 169,290, making it 


the eighth most populous county in Wisconsin.  The county 


is named after the county seat, Kenosha, the fourth largest 


city in Wisconsin. Kenosha County is on the west shore of 


Lake Michigan. The County has traditionally attracted newcomers from suburban Chicago, and in March 


2008 the demographers of the Wisconsin Department of Administration reported that Kenosha County's 


improvements in roads, business's need for personnel, and quality-of-life factors had contributed to a 


decade-long influx of Illinois transplants, along with the direct rail link to Chicago via Metra's Union 


Pacific / North Line.  According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the County has a total area of 754 square 


miles, of which 272 square miles is land and 482 square miles  (64%) is water. Although the county 


contains area from Lake Michigan, it is the fourth-smallest county in Wisconsin by land area. 


As of the U S. Census Bureau of 2000, there were 149,577 people, 56,057 households, and 38,455 


families residing in the County.  The population density was 548 people per square mile.  There were 


59,989 housing units at an average density of 220 per square mile.  The racial makeup of the County was 


88.38% White, 5.08% Black or African American, 0.38% Native American, 0.92% Asian, 0.04% Pacific 


Islander, 3.29% from other races, and 1.91% from two or more races.  


There were 56,057 households out of which 34.80% had children under the age of 18 living with them, 


52.70% were married couples living together, 11.50% had a female householder with no husband 


present, and 31.40% were non-families.  25.50% of all households were made up of individuals and 


9.10% had someone living alone who was 65 years of age or older.  The average household size was 2.60 


and the average family size was 3.13.  


In the County, the population was spread out with 27.10% under the age of 18, 9.40% from 18 to 24, 


31.30% from 25 to 44, 20.70% from 45 to 64, and 11.50% who were 65 years of age or older. The 


median age was 35 years. For every 100 females, there were 98.30 males.  



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/County_(United_States)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/U.S._state

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wisconsin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenosha,_Wisconsin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lake_Michigan

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Demographer

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wisconsin_Department_of_Administration

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenosha_station

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Metra

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Union_Pacific_/_North_Line

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Union_Pacific_/_North_Line

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/U.S._Census_Bureau

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lake_Michigan

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Population_density

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(United_States_Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(United_States_Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(United_States_Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(United_States_Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(United_States_Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(United_States_Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(United_States_Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(United_States_Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Marriage





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 25 
 
 


 


Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  


Figure 2: Map of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County 
 


Pleasant Prairie is a village in Kenosha County, 


Wisconsin situated between Milwaukee and Chicago. 


The population was 19,719 at the 2010 census.  The 


neighborhoods of Carol Beach, Dexter's Corner, 


Ranney, and Tobin are located within the village. 


 


The Pleasant Prairie area was the center of Native American activity in pre-pioneer Wisconsin.  There is 


evidence of Native American life in the Pleasant Prairie area.  These early Native American campsites 


were located along what was once the shoreline of Lake Michigan.  Pleasant Prairie also saw pioneers 


arrive in Wisconsin on the Jambeau Trail (now known as Green Bay Road).  In addition, several natural 


historic sites such as the Chiwaukee Prairie and the Kenosha Sand Dunes lie undisturbed in Pleasant 


Prairie.  


Pleasant Prairie had its beginnings as a political entity in April 1842 when the first town meeting was 


held, and the first election of town officials took place.  The early town officials met in the Williams 


Congregational Church located at 93rd Street and Green Bay Road. Later the old church became the 


town hall.  Pleasant Prairie originally was a town nearly 42 square miles in size.  


Over the next 150 years, the City of Kenosha began to annex lands south of 60th Street and west from 


Lake Michigan.  The Town of Pleasant Prairie was slowly reduced in size as Kenosha grew.  


In 1984, the Village of Pleasant Prairie and the City of Kenosha agreed upon a plan for the orderly 


development and fixed boundaries for the Town in exchange for an acknowledged right of property 


owners in various locations along the Village/City border to be annexed into the City of Kenosha. A 


significant provision of this agreement gave Kenosha the ability to annex lands north of State Highway 


50 from Green Bay Road to I-94, where the Southport Plaza shopping center, White Caps subdivision, 


River Crossing subdivision and the Aurora Hospital are located.  In exchange, Pleasant Prairie was 



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenosha_County,_Wisconsin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wisconsin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Milwaukee

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chicago

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/2010_United_States_Census

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pleasant_Prairie,_Wisconsin#Carol_Beach

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pleasant_Prairie,_Wisconsin#Dexter's_Corner

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pleasant_Prairie,_Wisconsin#Ranney

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pleasant_Prairie,_Wisconsin#Tobin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chiwaukee_Prairie

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenosha,_Wisconsin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wisconsin_Highway_50

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wisconsin_Highway_50

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Interstate_94





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 26 
 
 


granted the ability to protect the rest of its area from annexations and to purchase sewer and water 


from Kenosha.  


In 1989, the Town of Pleasant Prairie was incorporated as a village by a referendum of more than 3,000 


citizens in favor and 300 against.  The new boundaries were fixed and the new village, along with the 


WisPark Corporation, began the development of LakeView Corporate Park, a center of employment for 


more than 8,000 people.  


In 1997, eight years after the incorporation of the town into a village, the Municipal Building was 


updated and increased in size to accommodate village operations.  


Pleasant Prairie ranks as the fifth largest manufacturing municipality in the state of Wisconsin, exceeded 


only by Milwaukee, Green Bay, Madison, and Menomonee Falls.  


Village of Pleasant Prairie Way of Life 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie’s website reports, the Village offers an array of residential, recreational, 


commercial, and industrial opportunities.  “The Village strives to provide the best quality of life for our 


citizens at the most affordable tax rate possible”.  


 


The Village is committed to preserving its beauty by maintaining natural conservancy areas such as 


Chiwaukee Prairie, wildflower preserves, and the Des Plaines River Floodplain.  Of the 33.64 square 


miles that make up the Village of Pleasant Prairie, more than 25% is held in conservancy land uses.  


  



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Village





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 27 
 
 


Village of Pleasant Prairie Governance 


The State of Wisconsin has classified the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie as a municipal government.  The 


Village is a "Home Rule" municipality, meaning that 


the Village can exercise all powers necessary for the 


protection of public welfare and property within the 


corporate limits.  


 


A five-member board, consisting of the Village President and Trustees govern the Village.  The  


Village Board meets bi-weekly on Mondays starting at 6:00 PM.  The Plan Commission meets on the 


opposite Mondays.  The Board of Police and Fire Commission meets on a “as need” basis.  


The Village Hall for Pleasant Prairie is located at 9915 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158.  The 


Village Hall contains the administrative offices for the Village Administration, Assessing, Community 


Development, Finance, Human Resources, Inspection and the Municipal court. The Police and Fire 


Chief’s offices are at their respective headquarters’ stations.  


Pleasant Prairie Recognized by the League of Wisconsin Municipalities  


The Village of Pleasant Prairie has been awarded the Wisconsin 


Award for Municipal Excellence (WAME) by the League of Wisconsin 


Municipalities.  The WAME program criteria are divided into four 


Sections: 1) Municipal Organization and Administration, 2) 


Municipal Services, 3) Municipal Facilities, and 4) Community Development.  Within each Section are six 


or seven Categories, and within each Category is a series of three to eight Standards.  To qualify for a 


WAME award, a municipality must meet all the required Standards and Sections.  Qualification for each 


Standard is based on written documentation and visual inspection specified by WAME.  


 


Village of Pleasant Prairie 2035 Land Use Plan 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie has adopted a 2035 Land Use map and plan.  It is reviewed and updated 


as development occurs.   







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 28 
 
 


Figure 3: 2035 Land Use Map 


 


 


United States Census Bureau Information 


According to the United States Census Bureau, the village of Pleasant Prairie has a total area of 33.64 


square miles, of which, 33.33 square miles of it is land and 0.31 square miles is water.  


  



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States_Census_Bureau





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 29 
 
 


Demographics 


Chart 3: Population of Pleasant Prairie        


As of the census of 2010, there were 19,719 people, 7,272 


households, and 5,372 families residing in the Village.  The 


population density was 591.6 inhabitants per square mile.  There 


were 7,753 housing units at an average density of 232.6 per square 


mile.  The racial makeup of the Village was 91.1% White, 2.5% 


African American, 0.4% Native American, 1.7% Asian, 0.1% Pacific 


Islander, 2.4% from other races, and 1.9% from two or more races.  


 


There were 7,272 households of which 35.8% had children under the age of 18 living with them, 62.0% 


were married couples living together, 7.9% had a female householder with no husband present, 4.0% 


had a male householder with no wife present, and 26.1% were non-families. 21.3% of all households 


were made up of individuals and 8.8% had someone living alone who was 65 years of age or older.  The 


average household size was 2.68 and the average family size was 3.14.  


 


The median age in the Village was 41.3 years. 25.5% of residents were under the age of 18; 6.8% were 


between the ages of 18 and 24; 24.3% were from 25 to 44; 30.6% were from 45 to 64; and 12.8% were 


65 years of age or older. The gender makeup of the village was 49.1% male and 50.9% female.  


 


Pleasant Prairie RecPlex 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie owns 


and operates the largest municipally 


owned recreational facility in the USA.  


The RecPlex is located on Lake Andrea 


in the Pleasant Springs Park, (9900 Terwall Terrace) Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin.  The initial phase of 


construction included a 425-acre park with $1.6 million donated from WisPark.  On August 5, 1995, the 


park was officially dedicated to the people of the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  Planning for RecPlex began 


in 1998.  WisPark graciously donated $4 million for its development.  RecPlex officially opened its doors 


to the public on October 1, 2000.  In 2004, the village built an IcePlex addition. They continued to 


Historical population  


Census Pop.  %±  


1990 11,961  — 


2000 16,136  34.9% 


2010 19,719  22.2% 


Est. 2017 20,762 [4]
 5.3% 


U.S. Decennial Census 



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Census

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Population_density

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/White_(U.S._Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/African_American_(U.S._Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Native_American_(U.S._Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Asian_(U.S._Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(U.S._Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(U.S._Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Race_(U.S._Census)

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Marriage

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/1990_United_States_Census

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/2000_United_States_Census

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/2010_United_States_Census

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pleasant_Prairie,_Wisconsin#cite_note-USCensusEst2017-4





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 30 
 
 


expand in 2008 when the RecPlex received an expansion which included a 50-meter Olympic sized 


competition pool.  The expansion was in partnership with ULINE, Inc. and included a 42,000 sq. ft. 


expansion with pool and seating for 600 spectators.  The total size 


of the RecPlex now exceeds 302,000 sq. ft.  The RecPlex addition 


was dedicated to the citizens of the Village of Pleasant Prairie on 


June 10, 2010.  The RecPlex operates as an Enterprise Fund within 


the Village. 


 


Figure 4: Map location of RecPlex 


 


Schools 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie is part of the Kenosha Unified School 


District (KUSD).  Kenosha Unified School District serves the City of 


Kenosha, the Town of Somers and the Village of Pleasant Prairie. 


KUSD has 24 elementary schools, five middle schools, five high 


schools, and five charter schools.  The Kenosha Unified School 


District is the third largest school district in Wisconsin. 


Energy 


The WE Energies Power plant is a 1.2-gigawatt 


(1,210 MW) coal power plant located in Pleasant 


Prairie.  In 2009, it was listed by the U.S. Energy 


Information Administration (EIA) as the largest 


generating station in Wisconsin and generated 


roughly 13% of Wisconsin's electricity, burning 


around 13,000 tons of coal daily. The plant stopped 


production in 2018.  The Village of Pleasant Prairie Finance Director reported the Village received over 


$1.4 million dollars in revenue during the last fiscal year of its operation.  The plant is anticipated to file 



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kenosha,_Wisconsin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Somers,_Wisconsin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Pleasant_Prairie,_Wisconsin

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Megawatt

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fossil_fuel_power_station#Coal

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/U.S._Energy_Information_Administration

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/U.S._Energy_Information_Administration





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 31 
 
 


for decommission in the very near future.  Once decommissioned, the Village will receive a decreasing 


revenue stream over a five (5) year period.  The Village is anticipated to receive 100% of the 1.4 million 


in revenue the first year after decommissioning.  Every year after that they will receive twenty (20) 


percent less per year until the five-year process is completed.  The future of the power plant, its land 


and revenue remain uncertain for the Village.  


Transportation 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie’s website 


indicates it is “the Village’s goal to provide 


an accessible interconnected network of 


highways, streets, bicycle and pedestrian 


trails in order to present a safe, affordable, 


and efficient transportation system that 


meets the needs of multiple users.” The 


Village is conveniently located along 


Interstate 94 and has easy access to 


Kenosha regional airport, Milwaukee Mitchell airport and O’Hare International Airport.  Metra trains 


allow for convenient access to the Illinois suburbs and the City of Chicago.  Pleasant Prairie is on a major 


north/south transportation corridor.  31 STH (Green Bay Road) and 32 STH (Sheridan Road) which both 


run through the Village.  


Business 


 There are numerous benefits to conducting business in the Village including the geographical location. 


The Village reports having the lowest taxing rate per capita of all the State of Wisconsin 


communities.  Village officials and staff take pride in offering friendly and responsive assistance to all the 


businesses.  


The Village is home to the LakeView Corporate Park which is located between Chicago and Milwaukee 


along Interstate -94.  The Corporate Park has industrial, office and retail property.  The 2,400 acre park 


has natural surroundings and landscaping that includes access to the 425 – acre Des Plaines River Nature 


Conservancy, numerous ponds and abundant green space.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 32 
 
 


The information below is from a 2018 report for the Village of Pleasant Prairie.   


 


Chart 4: Source VOPP -2018 Breakdown of Commercial/Industrial Development 
 


SUMMARY 


COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE VILLAGE 
Revised Sept 2018 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie continues to experience commercial and industrial growth 


within the existing LakeView Corporate Park, PrairieWood Corporate Park, the Prairie Ridge 


Commercial Development area and other commercial and industrial areas of the Village as 


specifically discussed in separate sections of this report. However, as of September 2018 


there is a total of 17.9 million square feet occupied by commercial and industrial uses, 


providing employment for 14,465 people in the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  


 


Village-wide, 


Warehouse/Distribution and 


Manufacturing occupy over 75% of 


the total building square footage 


area providing over 6,500 jobs. 


Retail/Service, Office and Health 


Services occupy over 15% of the 


building square foot area, providing 


for over 6,000 jobs. 


Restaurants/Lodging, Recreational 


Facilities (buildings) and 


Educational uses occupy the 


remaining 5% of the building 


square foot area and provide for 


1,700 jobs.  


 


 


 


The following chart provided by the Village shows the 20 largest employers in the Village in 2018 which 


account for 8,154 of the 14,465 employees in the Village. 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 33 
 
 


Table 1: Source VOPP - 20 Largest Employers in Pleasant Prairie 


  


 


National Standards 


Prior to consideration of future staffing and resources needed by the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 


Department, it is prudent to discuss national standards that impact the fire and EMS service.  


Consideration as to the implications of these standards to the fire department can only be determined 


by those that govern, inasmuch as most of the standards are not mandatory.  This report contains 


pertinent information from the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), National Institute of 


Standards and Technology (NIST), Insurance Service Office (ISO), Occupational Safety and Health 


Administration (OSHA) and Center of Public safety Excellence (CPSE).  


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 34 
 
 


National Fire Protection Association  


(Not Mandatory) 
 
The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) uses consensus standard rule making.  The 


NFPA was formed in 1896 by a group of insurance firm representatives with the stated 


purpose of standardizing the new and burgeoning market of fire sprinkler systems.  The 


scope of the NFPA's influence grew from sprinklers to include building electrical systems 


(another new and fast-growing technology), and then all aspects of building design and 


construction. 


 


Its original membership consisted of, and was limited to, insurance underwriting firms.  NFPA 


did not allow representation from the industries it sought to regulate.  This changed in 1904 


to allow other industries and individuals to participate actively in the development of the 


standards promulgated by the NFPA.  The first fire department to be represented in the NFPA 


was the New York City Fire Department in 1905.  Today, the NFPA includes representatives 


from the Wisconsin Fire Chiefs Association, many fire departments, insurance companies, 


manufacturing associations, unions, trade organizations, and average people. 


 


NFPA consensus standards establish widely accepted standards of care and requirements for 


certain practices.  Standards are an attempt by an industry or profession to self-regulate by 


establishing minimal operating, performance, and/or safety standards, which establish a 


recognized “standard of care.”  Committees composed of industry representatives, fire 


service representatives, and other affected parties, who seek consensus in their final rule, 


write these standards.  The outcome is a “minimum” that everyone can agree on, rather than 


an “optimum” that is the best case. 


 


The NFPA has many standards that affect fire departments.  These standards should be 


followed by fire departments to protect fire and rescue personnel from unnecessary 


workplace hazards.  The NFPA standards establish the standard of care that may be used to 


evaluate fire department performance in civil lawsuits against fire and rescue departments 


(NFPA, 1995).  In most cases, compliance with NFPA standards is voluntary.  However, in some 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 35 
 
 


cases, federal or state OSHA agencies have incorporated wording from NFPA standards into 


regulations.  In these cases, compliance with the standards is mandatory.  Regardless of whether 


compliance with an NFPA standard is voluntary or mandatory, fire and rescue departments must 


consider the impact of “voluntary” standards on private litigation.  In some states, a department may be 


liable for the negligent performance of its duties.  Even in states that protect rescue workers under an 


immunity statute, most state laws do not protect fire or rescue departments for grossly negligent or 


willful and wanton acts.  Essentially, negligence involves the violation of a standard of care that results in 


injury or loss to some other individual or organization. 


 


In establishing the standard of care for fire and rescue operations, the courts will frequently 


look to the “voluntary” standards issued by NFPA and other organizations.  Although 


“voluntary” in name, these standards can be utilized as evidence of the existence of a 


standard of care that fire or rescue departments may be responsible to comply with. 


Accordingly, fire and rescue departments should pay close attention to applicable standards. 


The mission of the NFPA, established in 1896, is to reduce the worldwide burden of fire and 


other hazards on the quality of life by providing and advocating consensus codes and 


standards, research, training, and education. 


 


The world's leading advocate of fire prevention and an authoritative source on public safety, 


NFPA develops, publishes, and disseminates more than 300 consensus codes and standards 


intended to minimize the possibility and effects of fire and other risks. 


 These codes and standards are developed by technical committees staffed by over 6,000 


volunteers, and are adopted and enforced throughout the world (NFPA, 2012).  Therefore, 


applicable NFPA standards and codes will be applied within this study.  


 


Why The Need For Standards 


Fire growth and its behavior are now scientifically measurable, as are the expected outcomes associated 


with untreated cardiac arrest, and the specific resource requirements to control fires and to prevent 


deaths.  Despite studies with overwhelming facts, many communities approach fire/rescue organization 


and deployment based solely on budgetary needs and not the potential for life savings.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 36 
 
 


 


NFPA 1710 Standard is important because it applies the documented and proven science of fire behavior 


and emergency medicine to the basic resource requirements for effective fire and emergency service 


deployment.  This application allows a community to determine if the resources allocated for the 


different types of fires, emergencies, medical calls and other incidents are sufficient to effectively 


control the incident and protect lives and property. 


 


NFPA 1710 Standard sets forth in concise terms the recommended resource requirements for fires, 


emergencies and other incidents. The benchmark requirements in 1710 are based on a fire involving a 


2,000-square-foot detached single-family occupancy.  Fire departments should deploy additional 


resources according to the occupancies and hazards in their jurisdiction.  The total number of on-duty 


personnel is established by means of a task analysis that evaluates expected firefighting deployment, 


using the following factors:  


• Life hazards in the jurisdiction; 


• Safety and efficiency of fire fighters; 


• Potential property loss; 


• Nature, configuration, hazards and internal protection of properties in the response area; and 


• The department’s standard tactics and evolutions, apparatus deployed and expected results. 


 


The NFPA 1710 standard says, “the fire department shall establish a time objective of four minutes (240 


seconds) or less for the arrival of the first arriving engine company at a fire suppression incident and/or 


eight minutes (480 seconds) or less for the deployment of the full first alarm assignment at a fire 


suppression incident.” The fire department is allowed an addition one minute (60 seconds) for turnout 


time.  Turn out time is the time allowed for the firefighters to get to the apparatus and start responding 


to the incident.  


 


   







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 37 
 
 


Figure 5: Illustration source: IAFF NFPA 1710 Implementation Guide (2002) 


 


 


The figure above illustrates the amount of personnel needed to arrive on the scene of a reported 


structure fire within the first four minutes (240 seconds).  This should be completed 90% for of all these 


incident types.  The standard does not dictate how many personnel must be on any given apparatus to 


meet the standard.  In theory, two apparatus with two personnel on each would satisfy the number of 


personnel.  It is also important to note that the OSHA standard of 2 in 2 out is applicable on these types 


of incidents.  More information about the “2 In 2 Out” standard can be found under the OSHA section of 


this report. 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 38 
 
 


Figure 6: Illustration Source: IAFF NFPA 1710 Implementation Guideline (2002) 


 


 
The figure above (Figure 6) illustrates the amount of personnel needed on a reported structure fire 


within the eight-minute (480 seconds) response time and assigns the personnel to the critical tasks 


needed to mitigate the event safely.  This should be completely 90% of all these incident types.  


 


EMS Incidents 


The NFPA 1710 Standard requires all fire departments to have a basic level of EMS.  


At minimum the First Responder should be available with an Automatic External Defibrillator  


(AED). The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department has been providing Paramedic level EMS for  


many years.  NFPA requires each fire department should establish minimum arrival time  


expectancies based upon the needs of the community.  


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 39 
 
 


Figure 7: Illustration Source IAFF NFPA 1710 Implementation 
Guideline (2002) 


It is important to recognize the American                   


Heart Association has recognized the 


survivor percentage of someone who is not 


breathing and has no pulse diminishes 


quickly after four minutes.  As we recognize 


the value of the four-minute arrival time for 


a fire crew to a structure fire we can also 


apply the four-minute response time goal 


for our first responding EMS crew.  Figure 7 


Is an example of an illustration of a 


community to help demonstrate the effect 


of the four-minute response and the 


survival percentage outcome.  


 


The American Heart Association has 


published the following effects to a patient 


relating to CPR and EMS intervention: 


• When EMS intervention or citizen 
Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation 
(CPR) is performed within the first 4 
minutes patient survival rate is 45 percent; however, that number drops to 10.6 percent of patient 
discharge from hospital. 
 


• Every minute without patient intervention for a non-breathing, non-heartbeat patient, the chances 
of survival decreases by 10 percent. Brain damage occurs within 4 to 6 minutes without patient 
intervention.  
 


• If patient treatment (citizen CPR or EMS) in not provided within 10 minutes, the survival rate is 
close to zero.   
 


• Citizen performing CPR prior arrival of EMS is the most critical component to patient survival. 
  


• Few resuscitation attempts are successful after 10 minutes without patient intervention.   


• Currently, about 9 in 10 people who have cardiac arrest outside the hospital die without patient 
intervention 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 40 
 
 


 


In addition to the standards and guidelines developed by ISO, NFPA and CPSE, the McGrath Consulting 


Team analyzed two recent studies (September 2010) published by the United States Department of 


Commerce National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) to provide the policymakers of 


Pleasant Prairie with quantitative scientific data for response force deployment when developing and 


finalizing fire and emergency medical response policies and operating guidelines for their organizations.  


 


National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) EMS Field Study 


The NIST EMS portion of the Firefighter Safety and Deployment of Resources Study was designed solely 


to assess the personnel number and configuration aspect of an EMS incident for 


responder safety, effectiveness, and efficiency.  This study does not address the efficacy of 


any patient care intervention.  This study does, however, quantify first responder crew size, 


i.e., the number and placement of ALS trained personnel resources on the time-to-task 


measures for EMS interventions.  Upon recommendation of technical experts, the 


investigators selected trauma and cardiac scenarios to be used in the experiments as these 


events are resource intensive and will likely reveal relevant differences regarding the 


research questions.  


 


 


Primary Findings 


The objective of the experiments was to determine how first responder crew size, ALS 


provider placement, and the number of ALS providers is associated with the effectiveness of 


patient care.  EMS crew effectiveness was measured by task intervention times in three 


scenarios, including patient access and removal, trauma, and cardiac arrest.  The results were 


evaluated from the perspective of firefighter and paramedic safety and scene efficiency 


rather than as a series of distinct tasks.  More than 100 full-scale EMS experiments were 


conducted for this Study. 


 


Hundreds of firefighters and paramedics are injured annually on EMS responses.  Most 


injuries occur during tasks that require lifting or abnormal movement by rescuers.  Such tasks 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 41 
 
 


include lifting heavy objects (including human bodies − both conscious and unconscious), 


manipulating injured body parts and carrying heavy equipment.  Several tasks included in 


the experiments fall into this category, including splinting extremities, spinal immobilization 


(back boarding) and patient packaging.  Like the lifting of heavy workload tasks, larger 


crews were able to complete the labor-intensive tasks using multiple crew members on a 


single task to assure safe procedures were used reducing the likelihood of injury or 


exposure. 


 


Many of these tasks that are labor intensive are also time sensitive. These tasks can be completed more 


efficiently when handled by multiple responders.  Several tasks in the experiments are in this category. 


These include checking vital signs, splinting extremities, intubation with spinal restriction, establishing 


I.V. access, spinal immobilization, and patient packaging.  During the 


experiments, larger crews completed these tasks more efficiently by distributing the 


workload among more people thereby reducing the likelihood of injury. 


 


Finally, there are opportunities on an EMS scene to reduce scene time by completing tasks 


simultaneously rather than sequentially, thus increasing operational efficiency.  For the 


experiments, crews were required to complete all tasks in each scenario regardless of their 


crew size or configuration.  Therefore, patterns in task start times and overall scene times 


reveal operational efficiencies.  When enough hands are available at the scene to complete 


tasks simultaneously, this leads to overall time reductions relative to smaller crews that are 


forced to complete tasks sequentially. 


 


Patient Access and Removal 


Patient access is an important component of the time sequence.  It is defined as the time 


segment between apparatus/vehicle arrival on the scene and the responder’s first contact 


with the patient.  With regard to accessing the patient, crews with three or four first 


responders reached the patient around half a minute faster than smaller crews with two first 


responders.  Regarding completing patient removal, larger first responder crews in 


conjunction with a two-person ambulance were more time efficient.  The removal tasks 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 42 
 
 


require heavy lifting and are labor intensive.  The tasks also involve descending stairs while 


carrying a patient, carrying all equipment downstairs, and getting patient and equipment 


out multiple doors, onto a stretcher and into an ambulance.  The patient removal results 


show substantial differences associated with crew size.  Crews with three- or four-person 


first responders completed removal 1.2 – 1.5 minutes faster than smaller crews with two 


first responders.  All crews with first responder’s complete removal substantially faster (by 


2.6 - 4.1 minutes) than the ambulance-only crew.  


 


Chart 5: Illustration Source: NIST Patient Removal Experiments (2010) 


 


These results suggest that time efficiency in access and removal can be achieved by 


deploying three- or four-person crews on the first responding engine (relative to a first 


responder crew of two).  To the extent that each second counts in an EMS response, these 


staffing features deserve consideration.  The NIST study did not compare a three-person EMS crew as 


part of their study.  Currently the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department EMS response is with a 


three person EMS crew.  Three-person ambulance staffing is not found in many geographic areas; 


however, the Milwaukee area is the exception.  More commonly in our studies, a five personnel per 


station is deployed as a three-person fire suppression vehicle with a two-person ambulance. The five-


person response strategy is more efficient and effective than a three-person ambulance. The results 


from the NIST study supports this concept.  It is important to recognize the following factor when 


utilizing the five-person response guide: 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 43 
 
 


• The department working with their EMS system should predetermine response levels for call 


types.  Potential critical patients that might require ALS capabilities such as cardiac, stroke, or 


traumatic injury should have the 3-person fire suppression vehicle dispatched at the same time 


as the 2-person ambulance to the incident. Thus, giving the critical ALS patients access to five 


paramedics to initiate patient care and safely remove the patient to the ambulance for 


transportation to the hospital in the quickest possible way.   However, calls that are 


predetermined to be a minor classification call type such as a broken bone, nose bleed, or check 


on a wellbeing call would only have the 2-person ambulance dispatched by themselves which 


would leave the three-person fire suppression vehicle available for another call be it a fire or 


EMS type. Critical patient care might require both the engine and ambulance responding as a 


team.  


• Most transports to the hospital only require two paramedics. One paramedic is needed to drive 


the ambulance and the second paramedic is needed to attend to the patient in the back of the 


ambulance. In some cases, such as a cardiac or traumatic arrest, the patient requires more 


paramedics in the back of the ambulance. In these cases, paramedics from the three-person fire 


suppression vehicle can be reassigned to the ambulance to ensure the best patient care 


possible. It is not practical to have all  three of the additional paramedics in the back of the 


ambulance due to size limitation in the back of the ambulance.  After the ambulance clears the 


call, the paramedics from the fire suppression vehicle returns back to their original assignment.  


• Pleasant Prairie has experienced multiple calls which has necessitated mutual aid from the 


surrounding fire departments. The five person station concept allows for a quick response by 


the fire suppression vehicle with three personnel even when all the staffed ambulances with 


two personnel is on another call.  


 


Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 
(Mandatory) 
 
Before fire mitigation can begin, the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulation 


29 CFR 1910.134 paragraph (g) (4) which is enforced in Wisconsin through DSPS 330.14 (3)(a) must be 


considered:  This regulation outlines the “Procedures for Interior Structural Fire Fighting”, which dictate 


the number of firefighting personnel required to be assembled on the fire ground prior to any interior 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 44 
 
 


firefighting efforts.  This regulation requires two stand-by back up personnel and two fire suppression 


personnel on-scene prior to the commencement of interior fire suppression activities.  


 


This rule is commonly known in the industry as the 2 In/2 Out rule.  There is an exception to this rule 


noting that if a victim is known to be trapped and there is a chance for a lifesaving rescue, such action 


can be taken; but this exception must be recorded in the incident report.  This is a mandatory rule that 


applies to all career, paid-on-call, and volunteer departments.  Staffing of fire apparatus has an 


important effect on implementing the 2 in 2 out rule.  It is important to recognize that the current 


minimum staffing of three (3) personnel in a fire station does not meet this standard.  To comply with 


this mandatory standard, personnel from another responding station would have to arrive on the scene 


before the first stations personnel enter the building.  


 


Insurance Service Offices, Inc (ISO)  
(Not Mandatory) 
 
Insurance Service Office (ISO) – ISO is a leading source of information about property casualty insurance 


risk that provides risk information to many industries, including government.  The ISO Public Protection 


Classification (PPC) program is designed to help establish fire insurance premiums for residential and 


commercial properties based in part on community’s fire protection services. 


 


By itself, ISO ratings do not provide comprehensive assessment of staffing, deployment and service 


delivery.  Keep in mind that ISO is not an industry standard, it is only an index developed through a 


standardized data pool that is used by insurers to set rates.  


 


The Insurance Services Office, Inc. publishes and utilizes the Fire Suppression Rating Schedule (FSRS) to 


“review available public fire suppression facilities, and to develop a Public Protection Classification for 


insurance purposes”.  Once a fire department’s capability is determined and classified, the information 


is communicated to and might be used by insurers to set rates for homeowners and commercial 


properties in local communities. 


 


Although the primary purpose of this tool is to rate fire protection from which insurance rates can be 


established, ISO ratings have been one of the few benchmarks to compare community fire protection.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 45 
 
 


Realizing the true intent of the ISO classification, it should not be the sole determining factor in 


establishing public fire protection.  Rather, the schedule should be considered an instrument for 


comparison and an additional factor from which to make a decision.  


 


Public Protection Classification Number 


The Public Protection Classification Numbering system utilized by ISO is as follows: 


Table 2:  Source ISO - Public Protection Classification Numbering 


PPC POINTS 


1 90.00 or more 


2 80.00 to 89.99 


3 70.00 to 79.99 


4 60.00 to 69.99 


5 50.00 to 59.99 


6 40.00 to 49.99 


7 30.00 to 39.99 


8 20.00 to 29.99 


9 10.00 to 19.99 


10 0 to 9.99 


In obtaining an ISO Classification, the grading is broken down into three major categories. They are: 


Table 3 Source ISO: PCCN Point Values 


Receiving and Handling of Fire Alarms - 10% = 10 points 


Fire Department - 50% = 50 points 


Water Supply -  40% = 40 points 


 TOTAL POINTS ALLOWED 100 % = 100 points 
 


In 2014, 49,010 communities nationwide were classified by ISO.  Of those departments, 750 had a Class 


2 rating of which Pleasant Prairie was one of them.  This class includes career departments, combination 


departments, paid-on-call departments, private corporations, and volunteer organizations.  The National 


ISO classifications are illustrated in table 4: 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 46 
 
 


Figure 8: Source ISO - Countrywide ISO Classifications 


 


 


 


It is important to note what the ISO rating means to the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  The ISO purpose is to 


determine a fire insurance classification, which may be used in the calculation of property insurance 


premiums.  An ISO rating is not conducted for property loss prevention or life safety purposes, and there 


is no life safety or property loss prevention recommendations by the ISO.  The ISO classification system 


was primarily designed to figure property insurance premiums for commercial property, not residential 


properties.  Most insurance companies use the ISO rating as a benchmark and then use market data to 


establish competitive rates for residential properties.  


 


Moreover, about 90% of the insurance companies will group Classes 1 – 4 together, and then look 


separately at Class 5, Class 6, Class 7, and so on.  In essence, the ISO rating is only one factor in 


establishing premiums and certainly not the primary one.  It is this perceived link to insurance rates that 


for years has driven communities to base their decisions on the level of fire protection appropriate for 


their community, based upon ISO standards.  


 
The value of the ISO rating continues to be questionable as a determining factor in a community’s level 


of fire protection.  The ISO survey is not a complete assessment of a community’s fire protection 


program, defenses, or performance.  The ISO does not rate the quality of the fire prevention program, 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 47 
 
 


built-in fire suppression systems, fire loss and property saved, or the actual competence and 


performance of the fire suppression personnel and operations.  The ISO only rates those pieces of the 


fire protection program they feel are important to assign insurance rates.  


 


Pleasant Prairie ISO PPC Scores 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie and its Fire Department was evaluated in February of 2015 and the 


assigned ISO Classification was a 2/10. The classification of the fire protection assigned to a community 


is based on four categories:  


• Fire Department (50 percent)  


• Water Supply (40 percent)  


• Emergency Communication (10 percent)  


• Community Risk Reduction (up to 5.5-point reduction) 


 


The Community Risk Reduction section of the FSRS offers a maximum of 5.5 points, resulting in 105.5 


total points available in the FSRS.  The inclusion of this section for “extra points” allows recognition for 


those communities that employ effective fire prevention practices, without unduly affecting those who 


have not yet adopted such measures.  The addition of Community Risk Reduction gives incentives to 


those communities who strive proactively to reduce fire severity through a structured program of fire 


prevention activities. 


 


The Table below illustrates the PPC scores for the Village of Pleasant Prairie:  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 48 
 
 


Table 4: ISO Classification for the Village of Pleasant Prairie 


 


The value of the ISO rating to a community continues to be questionable as a determining factor in a 


community’s level of fire protection.  The ISO purpose is to determine a fire insurance classification, 


which may or may not be used by insurance companies in the calculation of property insurance 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 49 
 
 


premiums for an area.  ISO only rates those pieces of the fire protection program they feel are important 


to assign insurance rates.  There is limited value in attempting to assess a fire department by solely 


utilizing the community’s ISO rating; rather, the Center for Public Safety Excellence (CPSE) accreditation 


process far exceeds any other type of instrument in measuring a service provider against defined 


benchmarks.  


 


 Center for Public Safety Excellence  
(Not Mandatory) 
 
A better evaluation tool exists today.  The Center for Public Safety Excellence (CPSE) measures the 


quality and performance of a particular fire service agency and will award national accreditation to 


those departments that pass the stringent criteria.  Any future effort by the Pleasant Prairie Fire & 


Rescue Department to demonstrate competencies should be channeled towards the CPSE accreditation 


process.  The Consultants do not recommend that the Department, at this time, attempt to become 


accredited; rather, they should use the CPSE standards as the benchmark of quality.  With that said 


however, the Consultants suggest future consideration to obtaining national CPSE certification would be 


beneficial and should consider it in the Village’s long range planning.   


 


CPSE – Standard of Response Coverage (SORC) 


(Not Mandatory) 
 
The lack of national criteria by which a community can judge the level and quality of fire, EMS, and other 


services has been increasingly problematic for community leaders as well as Fire Chiefs who are faced 


with increased public pressure to provide more for less money.  These same governing officials are hard-


pressed to justify any increase in expenditures unless it can be attributed directly to improved service 


delivery in the community.  


 


Many community and/or district’s governing officials have rejected the standards presented in NFPA 


1710 as a “one size fits all” approach to measuring service performance.  The CPSE program is a method 


of measuring performance based on the community’s expectations and serves as the benchmark for 


evaluating department performance.  The CPSE process used is called the Standard of Response 


Coverage (SORC) and requires self-examination to quantify the department.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 50 
 
 


The Standard of Response Coverage (SORC) is determined by the community absent any non-mandatory 


requirements and consists of analysis of the following seven components: 


• Existing Deployment 


• Community Outcome Expectations 


• Community Risk Assessment 


• Distribution Study 


• Concentration Study 


• Historical Reliability (addresses simultaneous calls) 


• Overall Evaluation 


 


What is particularly difficult for those that administer fire/EMS organizations is the absence of the 


second component: community outcome expectations.  In most cases, those that govern and provide 


funding for fire departments concentrate on the fiscal aspects of providing that service.  Although this is 


an essential responsibility for those that govern, many do not articulate exactly what level of service 


they expect.  What are acceptable response times?  What level of EMS service do they want to provide 


to the citizens?  What non-emergency services can the fire department provide to the community?  


Thus, in many cases, the Fire Chiefs, not a unified team of governing officials and fire department 


leadership, determine the SORC for the community.  


 


Governing community/department officials are constantly faced with the issue that there are more good 


village causes than tax dollars to provide those services.  Therefore, they strive to provide as many 


services at the highest level with available dollars.  Absent “citizen outcry”, governing officials have little 


incentive or motivation to suddenly change service levels.  Thus, fire and EMS services are a “quality of 


life” issue that must be determined by community/district leaders. 


 


CPSE accreditation is a structured process for documenting the levels of fire safety, prevention, fire 


safety education, suppression services currently provided, and for determining the future level of 


service the department should provide.  CPSE accreditation asks the village fire department to 


determine and document if its fire protection services are appropriate, adequate, and effective. 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 51 
 
 


The advantage to the CPSE program lies in the process of completing it.  The department must literally 


examine every aspect of its existence and determine the most cost-effective means of providing service. 


This program requires a time commitment and effort on the part of the fire administration.  It is 


recommended that a single individual be assigned full-time for the completion of this project.  


 


Critics of the program emphasize the cost and time commitment needed for completion.  These critics 


miss the point that the process of compliance with CPSE standards may keep the department and village 


from catastrophic failure in the system of service delivery.  Other critics claim it is nothing more than 


bragging rights, similar to an improved ISO classification.  Again, the point is missed that a department 


that develops pride can often translate that pride into better performance and morale, which is 


priceless.  


 


Statistical Data from the U.S. Fire Administration 


The U.S Fire Administration website indicates that 776 Fire Departments located in Wisconsin have 


reported their NFIRS statistical data in 2017.  The fire departments registered were further categorized 


as:  


Table 5: Source US Fire Administration - Fire Department Types 


 
Volunteer Mostly volunteer Mostly career Career 


Wisconsin 79.4% 13.1% 1.7% 5.8% 


National average 70.6% 15.9% 4.6% 8.8% 


 


Of the fire departments registered in Wisconsin reporting NFIRS Data the following table indicates the 


services provided by them to their communities.  Listed in Red is the services provided by the Pleasant 


Prairie Fire & Rescue Department:  


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 52 
 
 


Table 6: Source US Fire Administration - Wisconsin Fire Departments Specialized Services 


Advanced Life Support – PPFD  17.4% 


Airport/Aviation 9.3% 


Basic Life Support– PPFD does BLS and ALS Care 51.6% 


Departmental (in-house) training academy – PPFD 18.1% 


Emergency Medical Services (EMS) ambulance transport PPFD 24.5% 


EMS non-transport response 34.2% 


Fireboat 4.5% 


Fire/Injury prevention/Public education– PPFD 86.6% 


Fire inspection/Code enforcement– PPFD 90.3% 


Fire investigation/Fire cause determination– PPFD 50.9% 


Hazardous materials team– PPFD 15.3% 


Juvenile fire setter intervention program 16.3% 


Technical/Specialized rescue– PPFD 39.8% 


Vehicle extrication– PPFD 84.7% 


Wildfire/Wildland Urban Interface -PPFD 72.7% 


 


When comparing the Wisconsin fire departments reporting NFIRS data verses the National fire 


departments NFIRS data the U.S Fire Administration, NFIRS data indicates the following Incident Types 


comparison: 


 


Figure 9: US Fire Administration - Incident Types Wisconsin vs National Averages 


 


 


 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 53 
 
 


Recommendations – National Standards 
• The Fire Department should not adopt NFPA 1710.  Adoption would include the adoption of all 


OSHA, DSPS and NFPA standards by reference.  However, a plan should be developed to meet as 
many standards as possible in the future.  Priority Level 2 
 


• The Fire Department should start collecting data as suggested in the CPSE Self-Study Guide.  
After good data has been collected for three years, they should seek international accreditation 
(CPSE).  Priority Level 4 


 


 


Statistical Information for the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 


Department 


 
Figure 10: Village Streets and Water/Hydrant System 


 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 54 
 
 


Pleasant Prairie Fire Station locations: 
Station #1 – 3801 Springbrook Rd. 
Station #2 – 8044 88th Avenue (Headquarters/ Administration) 
 
Figure 11: Map of Fire Station Surrounding Pleasant Prairie 


 
 


Surrounding Mutual Aid Departments: 
Kenosha Fire 
Station #2 – 8530 30th Avenue 
Station #3 – 2121 63rd Street 
Station #4 – 4810 60th Street 
Station #5 – 2125 Washington Avenue 
Station #6 – 2615 14th Place 
Station #7 – 9700 52nd Street 


 


Bristol Fire 
Station #1 – 8312 198th Avenue, Bristol, WI  
 
Somers Fire 
Station #1 – 7511 12th Street, Kenosha WI  
Station #2 – 818 12th Street 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 55 
 
 


Winthrop Harbor (IL) Fire 
Station #1- 830 Sheridan Rd. Winthrop Harbor, IL 60096 
Newport Fire Protection District (IL) 
Station #1 – 39010 N. Caroline Avenue, Wadsworth, IL  
Station #2 - 43320 N. Highway 41 


 


 
Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department Response Districts 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department has divided its response districts into two (2) areas.  


Station 1 is first due for incidents in the pink highlighted areas indicated in the map in figure 11.  Station 


2 is first due for incidents in the teal colored area indicated below.  Some incidents require both stations 


to respond to on the initial call for help.  If a second incident happens in a given response area the other 


station covers the assignment while the initial crew is on another incident.  When both stations are 


unavailable for another incident because they are already on another incident Mutual Aid is utilized 


from another town to answer the call for service.  


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 56 
 
 


Figure 12: Current Response Areas for Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department 


 


 


Incident by Station  


The chart indicates that Station 1 responds to less incidents per year than Station 2.  In 2016, Station 2 


responded to 436 or 49% more incidents than Station 1.  In 2017, Station 2 responded to 469 or 45% 


more incidents than Station 1.  In 2018, Station 2 responded to 439 or 40% more incidents than Station 


1.  Over the last three years Station 2 responded to 1344 or 44% more incidents than Station 1.  


 


Chart 6: Incidents by Station for the last 3 years 


 2016 2017 2018 
1 878 1041 1105 
2 1314 1510 1544 


Total 2192 2551 2649 
 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 57 
 
 


Chart 7: Bar Graph showing the Incidents by Station for the last 3 years 


 


 


In anticipation of a third fire station.  The fire department administration has proposed the following 


response areas based upon a three (3) fire station response area.  These response areas can be modified 


in the future for a fourth fire station.  


 


  


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


1,600


Station #1 Station #2 Station #1 Station #2 Station #1 Station #2


2016 2017 2018


878


1,314


1,041


1,510


1,105


1,544







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 58 
 
 


Figure 13: Proposed 3 Fire Station Response Area 


 


 


The following data has been supplied by the Fire Chief. The table and bar chart reflect how the call 


distribution would have been distributed if there was a third fire station in place for the last three years. 


 
Chart 8: Proposed 3 Fire Station incident Distribution 


Year District Calls 
 


2016 Station #1 723 
 


Station #2 1,005 
 


Station #3 464 2,192 


2017 Station #1 845 
 


Station #2 1,157 
 


Station #3 549 2,551 


2018 Station #1 985 
 


Station #2 1,302 
 


Station #3 519 2,806 
 
  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 59 
 
 


Chart 9: Bar Chart of Proposed 3 Fire Station Incident Distribution 


 


 


Emergency Activities - National Fire Incident Reporting System 


The National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) is a system established by the National Fire Data 


Center of the United States Fire Administration, a division of the Federal Emergency Management 


Agency.  The System was established after the 1973 National Commission on Fire Prevention and 


Control report, America Burning, led to passage of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of 1974, 


which authorizes the USFA to gather and analyze information on the magnitude of the Nation's fire 


problem, as well as its detailed characteristics and trends.  The Act further authorizes the USFA to 


develop uniform data reporting methods, and to encourage and assist state agencies in developing and 


reporting data.  


 


The NFIRS has two objectives: to help state and local governments develop fire reporting and analysis 


capability for their own use, and to obtain data that can be used to more accurately assess and 


subsequently combat the fire problem at a national level.  To meet these objectives, the USFA has 


developed a standard NFIRS package that includes incident and casualty forms, a coding structure for 


data processing purposes, manuals, computer software and procedures, documentation and a National 


Fire Academy training course for utilizing the system.  


 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


Station
#1


Station
#2


Station
#3


Station
#1


Station
#2


Station
#3


Station
#1


Station
#2


Station
#3


2016 2017 2018


723


1,005


464


845


1,157


549


985


1,302


519



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/State_governments_of_the_United_States

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Local_government_in_the_United_States

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/National_Fire_Academy

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/National_Fire_Academy





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 60 
 
 


The NFIRS system is divided into nine (9) Groups of incidents.  Each group is then further defined within 


the group to gather more specific information.  


The following is the NFIRS Groups: 


NFIRS Group 100 - Fire 


NFIRS Group 200 - Overpressure, Explosion, Overheat (No Fire) 


NFIRS Group 300 - Rescue and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) 


NFIRS Group 400 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 


NFIRS Group 500 - Service Call 


NFIRS Group 600 - Good Intent Call 


NFIRS Group 700 - False Alarm 


NFIRS Group 800 - Sever Weather and Natural Disaster 


NFIRS Group 900 - Special Incident Type 


The NFIRS represents the world's largest, national, annual database of fire incident information. 


Although participation in NFIRS is voluntary, 50 states and the District of Columbia report NFIRS data.  


37 fire departments with a population protected of over 500,000 participate in the NFIRS.  Nationally, 


over 23,000 fire departments report in the NFIRS each year.  Participating departments report an 


average of twenty-three million incidents each year.  Participating departments report an average of 


one million fires each year.  The NFIRS database comprises roughly 75% of all reported fires that occur 


annually. 


 


Emergency Response Data 


This section highlights the emergency response data for the Department for the period of 2016 – 2018. 


The prime function of a fire department is to respond to and mitigate emergencies that arise within 


their jurisdiction.  Although this activity only takes up a small percentage of the department’s overall 


time, its state of readiness must always be at maximum levels in order to optimally provide an efficient 


and safe level of service.  Relevant, detailed, and concise data pertaining to the fire department is 


essential in providing archival documentation of the department’s preparedness for, and response to, 


emergency situations.  As in any report of this nature, the recommendations are based on data provided 


by the client, interviews, and on-site observations; in the case of the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 61 
 
 


Department the Consultants believe the data submitted is an accurate representation of the 


Department’s emergency incident activities.  


 


Pleasant Prairie Data 


The Fire Department’s data management system is Firehouse™ from which the Consultants divided the 


data into ten subcategories (further defined in this report); this data was submitted to the Fire Chief for 


review.  To the credit of the Fire Chief he discovered a very minor inconsistency in the data and 


therefore, discovered that “querying” data from Firehouse™ into Excel spreadsheets also pulled the raw 


data.  It was discovered that some duplicate incident records within the CAD system were added to 


Firehouse™ without Firehouse™ error checking.  


 


Although the revised data required the Consultants to rewrite this section of the report it did indicate 


that the Fire Chief took the effort to ensure the correct data was submitted although the change in any 


category was less than four incidents.  Upon discovering the root cause of the conflicting data, the Fire 


Chief has implemented an additional quality assurance step.  


 


Why Retrieve Emergency Response Data? 


One of the main challenges Fire/EMS leadership face is to identify the need for resources that will 


provide the highest level of service and safety for those who receive and provide such service, as well as 


to justify the fiscal resources needed.  Good data is essential in accomplishing this mission.  Fire 


department leadership must utilize data on their daily management including, but not limited to: 


• Fiscal management 


• Staffing  


• Resource deployment 


• Budgeting 


• Purchasing 


• Strategic planning 


• Program development/implementation  


• Program oversight/assessment 


• Assuring competency 


• Assuring cost-effective/efficient services 


• Communication with governing board(s) 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 62 
 
 


 


Leadership can quantify the above objectives through good data.  The International Association of Fire Chiefs (IAFC) 
defines good data as data that meets three (3) components: 


 


Good Data is Relevant – you are collecting information on the things that matter, like response 


times and number of calls for service. 


 


Good Data is Accurate – your processes for data collection must be consistent and trustworthy. 


 


Good Data is Reliable – a measurement from one company is equivalent to the same 


measurement from another company.  You don’t have to “adjust your data to accommodate 


known distortions”. 


Source: International Association of Fire Chiefs: Weathering the Economic Storm, December 2008 


 


In the case of the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department they meet the definition by the IAFC of 


good data.  


 


10-Year Emergency Activities   


The table and figure below illustrate the total emergency incidents from 2009 to 2018 along with the 


yearly percentage of change.  The average change in the 10-year call totals is an increase of 4.11%. 


 


Table 7: Table/Figure: 10-Year Call Totals   


 


Year Total Calls % Change


2009 1,662 -7.80%


2010 1,682 1.20%


2011 1,760 4.64%


2012 1,881 6.88%


2013 1,906 1.33%


2014 2,091 9.71%


2015 2,126 1.68%


2016 2,193 3.15%


2017 2,554 16.46%


2018 2,653 3.88%


4.11%10 Yr. Average Change  


2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


10 Years 1,662 1,682 1,760 1,881 1,906 2,091 2,126 2,193 2,554 2,653


1,500


1,700


1,900


2,100


2,300


2,500


2,700


2,900







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 63 
 
 


             The dotted line illustrates the Trendline in figure above 


 


Incidents by Nature 


The Department participates in the National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) Fire/EMS program in 


reporting all incidents, under authority of the United States Fire Administration (USFA).   


 


NFIRS categorizes incident types into nine (9) categories with each category having a series number with 


multiple sub-categories under each main series number.  The USFA collects and analyzes NFIRS data 


from participating states to provide a legal record of fact, assist fire department administrations in 


evaluating their fire and EMS effectiveness, and to collect data for use at the state and national levels. 


 


The following table reflects the 2016 – 2018 emergency activities of the department utilizing the NFIRS 


series categories: 


 


Table 8: NFIRS Pleasant Prairie FD 


 


 


NFIRS Sub-Categories 


Series 100 – Fire 


This category includes all incidents which include any type of fire.  The sub-categories are: 


• Structure fire 


• Fire in mobile property used as a fixed structure 


• Mobile property (vehicle) fire 


• Natural vegetation fire 


NFIRS Series 2016 2017 2018 3 Yr. Avg 3 Yr. % National %


100 - Fire 69 94 80 81.0 3.3% 4.7%


200 - Overpressure/Explosion 4 1 3 2.7 0.1% 0.2%


300 - Rescue/EMS 1,486 1,784 1,783 1,684.3 68.3% 64.1%


400 - Haz. Condition 50 55 57 54.0 2.2% 3.7%


500 - Service Call 128 133 173 144.7 5.9% 7.1%


600 - Good Intent 154 176 214 181.3 7.4% 10.5%


700 - False Alarm 300 310 342 317.3 12.9% 8.7%


800 - Severe Weather 2 1 0 1.0 0.0% 0.1%


900 - Special Incident 0 0 1 0.3 0.0% 0.7%


Total 2,193 2,554 2,653 100.0% 100.0%







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 64 
 
 


• Outside rubbish fire 


• Special outside fire 


• Cultivated vegetation, crop fire 


• Fire, other 


 


Series 300 – Rescue/Emergency Medical Services 


This category includes any type of rescue or EMS related emergency response.  The sub-categories are: 


• Medical assist 


• Emergency medical service incident 


• Lock-in 


• Search for lost person 


• Extrication, rescue 


• Water and ice-related rescue 


• Electrical rescue 


• Rescue or EMS standby 


• Rescue, emergency medical service (EMS) incident, other 


 


Series 700 – False Alarms/Calls 


This category includes any type of reported emergency which ultimately was determined to be a false 


call.  The sub-categories are: 


• Malicious, mischievous false alarm 


• Bomb scare 


• System or detector malfunction 


• Unintentional system or detector operation (no fire) 


• Biohazard scare 


• False alarm and false call, other 


 


Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department’s percentage of false alarms (12.9%) is elevated over the 


National average of (8.7%).  False alarms are a drain on a department’s resources, prevent personnel 


from responding to actual emergencies, and increase the chances for vehicle accidents.  Not only does 


the resolution of false alarms reduce unnecessary emergency responses, it also is a significant safety 


factor for the community as well as the service providers overall.  The Pleasant Prairie Fire Chief has 


indicated the Village has a false alarm ordinance.  Vehicle accidents (responding to or returning from) 


are the second leading cause of firefighter/EMT line-of-duty deaths as illustrated in the figure below: 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 65 
 
 


Figure 14: Causes of FF Line of Duty Deaths 


 


Source: NFPA Firefighter Deaths by Cause of Injury – 2018 


 


Identifying Emergency Service Trends 


When determining the Department’s efficiency and/or addressing future resource needs, it is prudent to 


examine the historical occurrences of emergencies.  The following factors are of significant importance 


to the PPFD when examining call data: 


• Calls by month  


• Calls by day of the week 


• Calls by time of day 


• Calls distribution by Station/District 


• Simultaneous incidents 


• Distribution by shift 


• Mutual aid/Automatic aid 


• Mutual aid box alarm system 


 


Incidents by Month 


Fire department leadership should be particularly interested in data which indicates when the 


department is at its busiest for month, day of the week, and time of day.  When a significant pattern is 


discovered, it indicates the probability that emergency incidents will occur at a certain time and allows 


the department to anticipate staffing levels and make contingency plans for adequate personnel or 


other resources needed for emergency response.   


 


Medical, 44%


Crashes, 19%


Falls, 3%


Struck by 
Object, 5%


Trapped, 8%


Structure 
Collapse, 9%


Struck by 
Vehicle, 5%


Other, 8%







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 66 
 
 


Wisconsin has a diverse range of climates, influenced by Lake Michigan and Superior; resulting in cold 


snowy winters which favor a variety of winter sports, and the warm summers appeal to thousands of 


vacationers each year.  The incidents by month are illustrated in the figure below: 


 
Chart 10: Incidents by Month 


 


 


The heavier black line represents the average of the three years of calls by month submitted by the 


Department.  There appears to be a consistent pattern of calls best illustrated by the black (three-year) 


average.  


 


Incidents by Day of the Week   


Incidents reviewed by day of the week is another metric utilized by leadership to manage the resources 


of the organization.  Coupled with time of day and perhaps incidents by month, this information could 


be of value if a pattern emerges suggesting staffing or resource deployment might change.  The figure 


below illustrates calls by day of the week for PPFD: 


 


  


Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec


2016 194 142 160 166 188 183 192 185 178 196 202 207


2017 205 188 177 151 213 229 233 254 228 209 226 241


2018 253 191 212 204 233 226 232 220 216 227 233 206


average 217.3 173.7 183.0 173.7 211.3 212.7 219.0 219.7 207.3 210.7 220.3 218.0


120


140


160


180


200


220


240


260







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 67 
 
 


Chart 11: Incidents by Day of the Week 


 


 


Incidents by Time of Day   


In most departments, incidents charted by time of day follow a pattern similar to a “bell curve.”  The 


least busy time of day is from midnight to early morning, peaking in the mid to late afternoon, and 


decreasing in the later evening hours.  Although the least busy time of day is from mid-night to early 


morning, it is also when the highest number of civilian fire deaths occurs, due to the occupants sleeping.  


Those most at risk are the very young and old, who often are less able to escape and protect 


themselves. When call volumes significantly peak during daytime hours, some departments use a power 


shift to handle the peak in call volume. This is typically done by staffing an extra ambulance as most of 


the calls are EMS in nature.  


 


  


Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday


2016 295 318 326 298 309 334 313


2017 343 399 410 325 376 364 337


2018 333 421 372 391 375 382 379


Average 323.7 379.3 369.3 338.0 353.3 360.0 343.0


270


290


310


330


350


370


390


410


430







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 68 
 
 


The chart below illustrates the time of day for calls for 2016 – 2018: 


Chart 12: Incidents by Time of Day 


 


 


Calls by Station/District  


The Fire Department provides protection to the entire Village from two fire stations; however, they 


divide the Village into three response districts which would correspond to the distribution of calls if 


Station #3 was in-service.  Therefore, illustrated below will be tables and figures that first documents 


emergency incidents by response from the two existing stations: 


 


Table 9:  Table and Figure Incidents by Station    


 


 


  


 


The distribution of emergency responses by district is illustrated below and represents which station 


would be the first to respond to the emergency incident if there was a third station in service.  The chart 


does not represent incidents in which both stations respond. 


 


Mid 1A 2A 3A 4A 5A 6A 7A 8A 9A 10A 11A 12P 1P 2P 3P 4P 5P 6P 7P 8P 9P 10P 11P


2016 44 41 49 51 42 56 72 82 90 126 128 105 109 128 137 153 122 142 119 96 94 79 67 61


2017 61 70 41 51 38 67 71 85 111 129 132 149 124 142 148 161 174 180 138 106 116 109 87 64


2018 62 70 51 56 59 55 80 116 117 154 149 143 144 150 133 152 155 158 134 138 113 100 95 69


AVG 56 60 47 53 46 59 74 94 106 136 136 132 126 140 139 155 150 160 130 113 108 96 83 65


10
30
50
70
90


110
130
150
170
190


Year Station Calls Totals


Station #1 878


Station #2 1,315 2,193


Station #1 1,041


Station #2 1,513 2,554


Station #1 1,107


Station #2 1,546 2,653


2016


2017


2018


 


0


500


1,000


1,500


2,000


Station
#1


Station
#2


Station
#1


Station
#2


Station
#1


Station
#2


2016 2017 2018


878


1,315
1,041


1,513


1,107


1,546







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 69 
 
 


Chart 13: Incidents by District 


  
 


Simultaneous Incidents 


The collection and review of data regarding simultaneous calls is advantageous to fire department 


leadership in determining resource deployment, staffing, budgeting, and planning.  The term 


simultaneous incident is a term utilized by Firehouse™® that refers to times when the Fire Department is 


handling an emergency situation and another unrelated emergency incident occurs, requiring 


immediate Department response.   


 


Fire departments do not have the ability to “stack calls” as do police agencies who routinely prioritize 


calls and dispatch accordingly.  With few exceptions, when 9-1-1 requests the fire department it is for an 


emergency – at least in the opinion of the caller. 


 


If every piece of fire or EMS apparatus were available at its assigned location, every time a call for 


service was received, the fire department’s reliability would be 100%.  If, however, a call is received for a 


particular station/unit, but that station/unit is already committed to another incident, the next closest 


unit must respond from a different station or source.  In this case, the substitute company may exceed 


the maximum prescribed response time.  As the number of emergency calls per day increase, the 


probability increases that the primary unit needed for response is already committed and a backup or 


mutual aid unit will need to be dispatched.   


 


The significance of the amount and frequency of simultaneous incidents can result in increased response 


times or greater usage of mutual aid.  There is no consensus in the industry as to an exact number when 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


Station
#1


Station
#2


Station
#3


Station
#1


Station
#2


Station
#3


Station
#1


Station
#2


Station
#3


2016 2017 2018


723


1,005


464


845


1,157


549


985


1,302


519







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 70 
 
 


simultaneous incidents require additional resources.  The Consultants have found that in most studies 


when simultaneous incidents reach between 18% - 20% of total incidents, greater emphasis must be 


placed on additional staffing.  


 


Chart 14: Simultaneous Incidents 


 


 


Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) 


The Mutual Aid Box Alarm System currently includes six Midwest states: Illinois, Wisconsin, Indiana, 


Michigan, Missouri, and Iowa.  The following states are considering joining the MABAS system: 


Minnesota and Ohio.  


 


The MABAS system has been recognized as the “best practice” by the Department of Homeland Security 


and is currently being considered as the model for inter-state mutual aid agreements.  The concept 


behind MABAS is that a fire department develops an alarm card, which will indicate what 


apparatus/equipment and/or personnel they are requesting, who they are requesting it from, and what 


level (how much/many resources) is desired prior to the actual emergency.  The MABAS cards are 


designed to cover a generic situation and/or area of response district.  Different cards are designed for 


situations such as tender box (requiring large amounts of water to be trucked in), mass casualty box, 


confined space box, hazardous material box, grass/brush fire box, etc.  


 


2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018


Overlap % 29.0% 23.0% 22.9% 26.1% 25.0% 29.0% 47.9%


Total Calls 1,881 1,906 2,091 2,126 2,193 2,544 2,653


29.0%


23.0% 22.9%
26.1% 25.0%


29.0%


47.9%
1,881 


1,906 
2,091 2,126 2,193 


2,544 
2,653 


0


500


1,000


1,500


2,000


2,500


3,000


0.0%


10.0%


20.0%


30.0%


40.0%


50.0%


60.0%







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 71 
 
 


Mutual/Automatic Aid 


In some studies, the Consultants have found that governing officials believe that requesting assistance 


from other service providers on a routine basis will preclude them from having to add additional 


personnel, pay overtime, or provide more apparatus.  This thinking is greatly flawed as the foundation of 


mutual and automatic aid is the reciprocity of services. 


 


Mutual Aid:  The philosophical concept is to offer assistance to a fire department upon a request made 


by a host district.  The sole purpose is to give or receive assistance when all available resources—


equipment or personnel—are depleted; and then on a limited basis.  Generally, mutual aid is drawn 


upon during an emergency incident where a particular or specialized need arises on a small to medium 


size incident that would not be expected as a lengthy or long-term incident. 


 


Automatic Aid: Differs from mutual aid in that it is a pre-determined agreement with another 


department to respond automatically when the host department receives a reported emergency or an 


alarm at a given location or area.  This type of aid is utilized on a regular basis to supplement the host 


agency’s initial response to the emergency with pre-determined apparatus, manpower, and chief 


officers, and is done so automatically.  


 


Pleasant Prairie utilizes (receives and provides) both mutual aid and automatic aid as illustrated in the 


tables below: 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 72 
 
 


Table 10: Aid Received & Given 


Aid Received 


Department 2016 2017 2018 Total  


Beach Park Fire Dept.                       1 4 8 13 


Bristol Fire and Rescue                            1 7 16 24 


Kenosha Fire Department                            14 18 41 73 


Newport Fire Dept.                                 1 8 14 23 


Salem Lakes Fire Rescue                            0 1 3 4 


Somers Fire and Rescue                             1 1 2 4 


Winthrop Harbor Fire Dept.                         6 8 24 38 


Zion Fire/Rescue Dept.                             0 3 12 15 


Total 24 50 120 194 


 


Pleasant Prairie received mutual aid 120 times in 2018 and only gave mutual aid 57 times.  Mutual aid 


was never intended to replace a community’s responsibilities to provide adequate staffing for daily 


incidents.  


 


Recommendations – Emergency Activities  
• Simultaneous (overlapping) emergency incidents numbers should continually be assessed and 


when the total percentage of simultaneous to total calls reaches and maintains an average of 
20%, additional staffing resources should be discussed. Priority Level 2 


 


• Although the analysis of data by time of day, day of the week, and incident by month did not 
indicate a different staffing methodology, it could definitely indicate service trends – information 
valuable for strategic planning and budget purposes. Priority Level 5 


 


• Mutual aid calls both received and given need to be categorized as such in Firehouse™ software, 
and agreements with neighboring departments developed. Priority Level 1 
 


 


Incidents by Shift 


Leadership, utilizing the metric of incidents by shift, initially might appear to be of little value other than 


bragging rights for the busiest shift.  However, there is value if the leadership utilizes the data for quality 


control.  If a particular shift’s yearly incident total data conflicts with other data, the leadership can 


review total incident responses for each shift and identify if the inconsistency is department-wide or 


problematic to a single shift.  In either case, examining incidents by shift primarily is a quality control 


measurement. 


 


Aid Received 


Department 2016 2017 2018 Total  


Beach Park Fire Dept.                        1 4 8 13 


Bristol Fire and Rescue                            1 7 16 24 


Kenosha Fire Department                            14 18 41 73 


Newport Fire Dept.                                 1 8 14 23 


Salem Lakes Fire Rescue                            0 1 3 4 


Somers Fire and Rescue                             1 1 2 4 


Winthrop Harbor Fire Dept.                         6 8 24 38 


Zion Fire/Rescue Dept.                             0 3 12 15 


Total 24 50 120 194 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 73 
 
 


Chart 15: Incident by Shift 


 


 


Emergency Medical Services 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department has been providing Emergency Medical Services since 


the mid 1960’s when over a dozen members became trained and started a Rescue Squad.  Since that 


time, they have been a leader in providing high quality emergency medical services.  Dr. Ben Feinzimer 


serves as the Project Medical Director under which all the paramedics operate.  He is very 


complimentary of the quality of all the paramedics and their equipment.  The Pleasant Prairie Fire & 


Rescue Department’s ambulances are staffed with three licensed paramedics daily.  This staffing is more 


than the traditional two paramedics which is typical throughout the country.  The members of the Fire 


Department are very complimentary to the three-paramedic concept.  


 


The following two years of data has been provided by the Fire Chief.  The Department switched to a new 


records management system (Image Trend) for their EMS reports two years ago so this was all the data 


available at this time.  There are typically two categories of EMS incidents.  The highest-level service is 


referred to Advance Life Support (ALS).  All of ALS types of incidents require at least two licensed 


Paramedics to be on the ambulance before performing ALS procedures.  Typically, ALS incidents include 


cardiac defibrillation and pacing, IV Drug intervention, and advanced life saving techniques.  The next 


level of service is Basic Life Support (BLS).  All other incidents other than ALS fall into the BLS category.  


Typically, these incidents are not life threatening but would still require treatment at the scene and may 


require transportation to the hospital.  


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


900


1000


Shift 1 Shift 2 Shift 3 Shift 1 Shift 2 Shift 3 Shift 1 Shift 2 Shift 3


2016 2017 2018


785
723


685


922
831 801


954


836 863







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 74 
 
 


 


Pleasant Prairie like many other municipalities bill for ambulance transports to the hospital.  The 


Pleasant Prairie’s medical billing contractor (Andres Medical Billing) has provided the following 


breakdown of calls billed for relating to transports to the hospital.  


 


Table 11: PPFD Billable Patients 


 2016  2017 *2018 


ALS 822  851 *548 


BLS 323  410 *276 


No Transport 18  24 *11 


Total 1,163  1,285 *836 


*Contains only billable data for the first four months of 2018 


 


The following data reflects the types of EMS calls that the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department 


responded to for the last two years.  


 


Table 12: Incident Types that PPFD Responded to for the last 2 Years 


Year 2017 2018   


Situation Provider* Count Count % Change 


Allergic Reaction 18 17 -5.6% 


Behavioral - All 99 101 2.0% 


Burn 2 1 -50.0% 


Cancer - All 10 9 -10.0% 


Cardiac Arrest 28 46 64.3% 


Cardiac (not arrest) 74 120 62.2% 


Epistaxis 2 5 150.0% 


Eye Pain 0 1 ∞ 


Endocrine 24 35 45.8% 


Environmental 27 53 96.3% 


GI/GU 86 123 43.0% 


Infectious 18 50 177.8% 


Injury 330 406 23.0% 


Maltreatment 2 5 150.0% 


Metabolic Disorder 3 0 -100.0% 


Mobility Issues 18 33 83.3% 


Neuro 230 247 7.4% 


OB 6 4 -33.3% 


Pain 46 139 202.2% 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 75 
 
 


Year 2017 2018   


Situation Provider* Count Count % Change 


Patient Assist 24 17 -29.2% 


Respiratory 75 128 70.7% 


Substance Use 27 39 44.4% 


Denial of Injury 544 566 4.0% 


Total         1,693          2,145  26.7% 


 


Fire Based EMS vs. Third-service and/or Private Based EMS 


Public officials are faced from time to time with a decision regarding the most appropriate provider of 


prehospital emergency medical services (EMS) in their community.  The options for emergency medical 


service providers may include the public fire department, a third-service, or private ambulance provider.  


 


As communities evaluate their emergency medical care needs, they may focus exclusively on patient 


transportation since third party payers for emergency medical services reimburse only for transport 


from the patient.  Research on patient survival, however, has demonstrated that rapid, on-scene 


medical intervention produces the best patient outcomes.  Therefore, designing a community’s EMS 


system should be approached from a global perspective.  Though each component (dispatch, initial 


response, medical treatment, transport, etc.) must be considered individually, the system must function 


as a single entity with all the elements fully integrated.  


 


Third Service EMS 


The third-service model is one of the least prominent models of emergency ambulance service but held 


in the highest regards as EMS is the only focus of the service provider.  This concept sounds wonderful; 


however, it becomes cost prohibitive in most municipalities.  A third service EMS would involve a stand-


alone department within a city or county government, similar to the fire and police departments; 


however, it is dedicated only to emergency ambulance service.  


 


It is important to distinguish the difference between private ambulance service and municipal third-


service model: Private ambulance services historically took over services that were previously offered by 


funeral homes.  As a privately owned profit driven business, they do not receive taxpayer funding; and 


patients are only billed when they use the services.  Private ambulance providers are dependent on all 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 76 
 
 


types of non-emergency medical services.  In short, a private ambulance must have a patient in the 


ambulance to maximize their profit.  To do this, service involves emergency and non-emergency 


interfacility transports.  Therefore, private ambulance providers are not able to dedicate an ambulance 


to stand-by within the municipality waiting for an emergency call.  Due to the dedication to only one 


function – advocates for this form of service perceive this method as the better course of action. 


 


Third-service ambulance service operates separately (although alongside) the fire and police providers. 


Whereas, fire departments across the country have been merging with emergency medical services for 


decades and providing efficiencies by providing a whole host of emergency services. 


  


The table below illustrated how EMS is provided in the U. S: 


Table 13: EMS Providers In U.S.               


EMS Providers  In The U.S. 


FD/EMS Cross-trained 40.0% 


Private Companies 18.0% 


Government 3rd Services 14.5% 


FD /EMS Separate Employees 9.0% 


Other 8.0% 


Hospital-based 7.0% 


Public Utility Model 2.0% 


Police/EMS Separate Employees 1.0% 


Police/EMS Cross-trained 0.5% 
Source: National Association of EMT - 2017 


 


Why Consider a Third Service 


Single Purpose: Third service municipal services have a single purpose, that is to provide medical care to 


the patient; thereby, drawing the conclusion that as fire departments are handling a greater variety of 


emergency calls (e.g. hazardous material, wildland firefighting, technical rescue, vehicle extrication, 


water rescue, and to suppression and prevention activities normally provided by a fire department), it is 


diminishing the level of care as fire personnel become “jacks of all trades, and master of none.”   


 


There are copious amounts of conflicting data on the above premise; however, based on observation 


and cursory research previously done, fire-based EMS systems are less effective than EMS agencies that 


are fully dedicated to emergency medical response.  Historically, fire-based EMS accounts for ≥70% of 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 77 
 
 


services provided in a fire-based EMS department.  Although EMS is becoming a fire department’s 


primary service, firefighting takes precedence in funding, training, personnel, apparatus, and 


equipment, resulting in an EMS department that happens to do fire suppression/prevention.  Fire-based 


firefighter/paramedic departments can be quite successful, but only if they make EMS their primary 


focus; which is rarely the case.  


 


Mandated: It seems that many firefighters who are crossed trained in EMS hold those licenses because 


it is a requirement of the job.  Many fire departments place the newest employee on the ambulance and 


with tenure they can be moved part-time or full-time from the ambulance.  Whereas, sole EMS 


personnel desire EMS work and dedicate greater effort to improving medical skills.  


 


Fewer Fires: Fires in the U.S. are declining significantly; whereas, EMS incidents are consistently rising 


due in part of the aging community.  Therefore, if the basic purpose of fire departments is to fight fires 


and there are less fires, conventional wisdom would suggest there is a need for less firefighters.  Many 


feel that the reason the fire service embraces EMS at all is that it maintains firefighters’ jobs.  


 


Diversity: Third-service models most often utilize a civilian workforce allowing for more diversity in the 


workforce and more competitive wages.  However, the cost of employees increases as EMS only 


employees are not eligible for the 7k FLSA exemption.  Thus, all hours worked over 40 must be counted 


as overtime. 


 


Flexible Scheduling: The municipality is able to match working hours more closely to those that might fit 


into some minority’s lifestyle (family); 10/14 hour shifts, 12 hour shifts, or even 8 hour shifts.  Although 


this might involve more employees it allows for part-time employees and scheduling of employees to 


match peak-demand times, verse on size shift for a 24 hour shift.  


 


Challenges of Third Services 


Costs: Hiring a third set of public safety personnel is expensive.  Although, municipal leaders might 


believe that much of a firefighter’s time is non-productive and fire department staffing could be 


reduced, they overlook the fact that a certain number of staff is required to provide fire suppression.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 78 
 
 


Relying on mutual aid for these events overlook that mutual aid works on the premise of reciprocity; 


few municipal leaders support providing fire services routinely to another municipality because that 


municipality chooses not to provide self-adequate services.  


 


Public Perception: Most EMS activities are done out of sight of the general public, compounded by 


confidentiality requirements; whereas, firefighting is a very public activity that draws media coverage 


and large groups of onlookers.  Therefore, transitioning from a two public safety model (police and fire) 


to a three public safety model (police, fire, and EMS) is difficult for the public to accept inasmuch as 


most citizens would like to downsize government not increase it.   


 


Versatility: Training safety personnel as both EMS providers and firefighters enhances the versatility of 


the workforce, offers people variety in their duties, and provides flexibility for management.  Cross-


trained personnel have the lowest attrition rate in the industry.  


 


Reality vs. Perception: The perception that a separate department would provide similar service is not 


often the reality.  Third-services are frequently assigned less value than their public-safety peers, and 


their leadership shares many of the same struggles for recognition as other models.  


 


Private Provider 


It is no secret that in some cases, a private ambulance provider could provide the transport component 


of an EMS system more inexpensively than a publicly provided system.  It is also known, however, that a 


private provider cannot optimally provide an entire EMS system more efficiently nor more effectively 


than a fire department.  The infrastructure of the local fire department can be exploited to provide 


optimal response for emergency medical calls.  Village decision makers should consider not only the cost 


associated with EMS provision, but also response time, quality of service, associated revenue, and 


patient outcome in selecting a provider and designing an effective, cost-efficient EMS system.  


 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department has been providing high quality EMS for decades.  They 


have state of the art vehicles and equipment.  All the full-time personnel are cross trained in firefighting 


and EMS at the paramedic level.  Because they are cross trained, they are available for all emergencies 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 79 
 
 


(fire or EMS) regardless of when the service is needed.  


 


Recommendation – Fire Based EMS 
• The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department should continue to provide fire-based EMS to the 


community.  If this recommendation is cost challenging, consideration could be given to the 
utilization of contractual EMS personnel within the department to offset the cost of full-time 
wages and benefits. Priority Level 1  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 80 
 
 


Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP – aka: Dispatch) 


The Pleasant Prairie PSAP is located within the Police Department located at 8600 Green Bay Road 


Pleasant Prairie, WI.  The PSAP is a secondary answering point meaning that the initial 911 hard line and 


cellular calls are answered at the Kenosha County – Joint Services Communications Department (aka 


County PSAP); which, answers all emergency calls and non-emergency calls in Kenosha County, ascertain 


the problem, and dispatch an appropriate response.  


 


The County PSAP serves a population of approximately 168,000 answering over 320,000 phone calls 


(emergency and non-emergency) annually.  The PSAP also serves as the Wisconsin Mutual Aid Box Alarm 


System (MABAS) for Wisconsin Division 101.  MABAS is a multi-state mutual/automatic aid system that 


allows multiple agencies within and outside of Wisconsin to respond to large emergency incidents for 


fire, EMS, hazardous materials, and special emergency events.  


 


Emergency calls arrive at County PSAP (primary) who also provides emergency medical dispatch (EMD): 


 


Emergency Medical Dispatch is a systematic program of handling medical calls.  Trained 


telecommunicators, using locally approved EMD Guidecards, quickly and properly determine the nature 


and Priority Level of the call, give the caller instructions to help treat the patient until the responding EMS 


unit arrives.  A comprehensive EMD program can reduce agency liability by providing thorough and 


consistent dispatch instructions and can help meet the growing public expectation that when citizens call 


911, appropriate medical care will be provided as quickly as possible. 


 


Therefore, a secondary PSAP does not provide EMD; however, there are still emergency call takers and 


dispatchers in a secondary PSAP, they aren't the first voices you'll hear when 911 is called.  Primary 


PSAPs often handle law enforcement duties and sometimes other types of emergencies.  In many cases, 


secondary PSAPs handle fires or medical emergencies.  In the case of Pleasant Prairie this means that a 


911 call originating within the Village will be answered by the County PSAP and transferred to the PSAP 


within the Pleasant Prairie Police Department.  The County PSAP would be the primary PSAP and the 


Pleasant Prairie PSAP is the secondary PSAP. 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 81 
 
 


Pleasant Prairie PSAP 


This section will address the global picture of when a call to 911 is placed in the Village until the Fire 


Department is notified.  This section is not about nice people, or if they are doing a good job; rather, it 


illustrates the time loss in responding when a call goes through two PSAP before dispatch.  Pleasant 


Prairie PSAP dispatches for one police agency and one fire/EMS agency.  The PSAP does answer non-


emergency calls for the entire Village after hours.  There are 6 dedicated 911 lines into Pleasant Prairie 


PSAP.  Staffing and dispatchers’ shifts are illustrated in the table below: 


 


PSAP Staffing 


The PSAP has the following employees (telecommunication operators/dispatchers) as illustrated in the 


table below: 


 
Table 14: Pleasant Prairie PSAP Staffing & Shifts 


PSAP Employees  Number 
 


Director/Supervisor 1 
 


Part-time/Full-time 7 
 


Clerical 0 
 


Shifts Maximum Minimum 


7 AM to 3 PM 3 1 


3 PM to 11 PM 3 1 


11 PM to 7 AM  2 1 


 


All telecommunication operators/dispatchers are trained by the curriculum of Association of Public-


Safety Communications Officials – International (APCO).  The emergency back-up PSAP for Pleasant 


Prairie is Kenosha County PSAP; meaning that the County PSAP could perform the same functions for 


dispatching as does the Pleasant Prairie PSAP.  


 


When County PSAP receives a 911 call (land or cell) the call displays the following: 


• Automatic number identification (ANI) is a service that provides the receiver of a telephone call with the 
number of the calling phone.  ANI is commonly used by emergency center dispatchers to save the caller 
having to report the information and, when necessary, to help locate callers.  A telephone company's 911 
service to a public safety point usually includes the ANI feature. 
 


• Automatic location identification (ALI) is an enhanced electronic location system that automatically relays 
a caller's address when they call an emergency responder service such as 911, whether they call from a 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 82 
 
 


mobile phone or a land line.  Telephone companies have subscriber databases that a consumer's phone 
number with a primary home address, but more recent technology such as ALI makes it easier for 
emergency responders such as the fire departments, law enforcement and paramedics to locate the 
caller's exact address in a timelier fashion.  In fact, responders can locate someone who dials 911 even if 
they don't say a word. 


 


Unfortunately, although both ANI and ALI are received at the primary PSAP these features do not 


transfer automatically to the secondary PSAP, which could require the secondary PSAP to inquire in 


order to obtain this information.  Radio frequency for PPFD is VHF.  The PSAP has emergency power 


generator and uninterrupted power supply (UPS).  The PSAP does an informal quality assurance review 


of incidents on a daily basis but no formal quality assurance program is formalized.  


 


PSAP Fiscal  


The operational and capital budget for the Pleasant Prairie PSAP was $617,000 for 2018.  


 


Components Of PSAP Times 


 


The Primary PSAP (County) components: 


The most current edition of NFPA 1221 standard has grouped times into an easier format.  Under NFPA 


1221 – 2019 edition the following times are outlined in the figure below: 


 


7.4 Operating Procedures 


 


• 7.4.1 90% of events received on emergency lines shall be answered within 15 seconds             
95% of the calls answered in 20 seconds. 


 


• 7.4.3.1 Emergency alarm processing for the highest prioritization level emergency events listed 
in 7.4.3.1 through 7.4.3.2 shall be completed within 60 seconds 90% of the time.  


 
Call processing time shall include the time from call answered to initial notification of the 
responding; allowing for 75 seconds total.  


 


• Alarm Transfer time (primary PSAP to secondary PSAP must be completed in <30 seconds 90% of 
the time); therefore, the total County PSAP time should not exceed 105 seconds.  


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 83 
 
 


The Secondary PSAP Components: 


• PSAP Answering Time – the time it takes the Village PSAP to answer the emergency call and 
establish communication with the Primary PSAP.  National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA) 1221 
requires answering within 15 seconds 95% of the calls.  
 


• Alarm Processing – the time it takes from answering to entering the caller’s information into 
their PSAP data management/CAD system.  NFPA 1221 requires this time not to exceed 60 
seconds 95% of the time. 
 


Pleasant Prairie PSAP Data 


The Pleasant Prairie PSAP provided an excel spreadsheet for the time period of January 1, 2019, through 


June 16, 2019, totaling 1,314 incidents.  The time included when the call was received, time call entered 


into CAD, time fire department was notified.  The average time for these calls was 63 seconds (1 minute 


3 seconds). 


 


Therefore, the Pleasant Prairie PSAP is meeting and slightly exceeding the NFPA 1221 – 2019 edition for 


time standards.  


 


Pleasant Prairie 911 Call  


The figure below illustrates the flow of a 911 (land or mobile) call before actual dispatch of the fire 


department: 


 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 84 
 
 


Figure 15: Dispatch Time with Transfer 
  


NFPA 1221 – 2019 edition  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Secondary PSAPs 


Public safety answering points act as the hub for communications for the agencies they serve.  


Consolidations of PSAP are increasing most often to reduce costs, avoid duplication of resources, 


provide greater depth of services, and increase interoperability.  


 
Interoperability refers to the ability of emergency responders to work seamlessly 
with other systems or products without any special effort.  Wireless 
communications interoperability specifically refers to the ability of emergency 
response officials to share information via voice and data signals on demand, in 
real time, when needed, and as authorized.  Communications interoperability also 
makes it possible for emergency response agencies responding to catastrophic 
accidents or disasters to work effectively together. 
 


Some states are already requiring Emergency Telephone System Boards to consolidate if they are 


serving less than a defined number of people for the preparation for a statewide conversion to a “Next 


Generation” 911 system.  


 
Next Generation 911 (NG911) refers to an initiative aimed at updating 
the 911 service infrastructure in the United States and Canada to improve public 
emergency communications services in a growingly wireless mobile society.  In 
addition to calling 9-1-1 from a phone, it intends to enable the public to transmit 


911 Call 


Placed 


911 Call 


Routed 


Call Arrives 


Primary PSAP 


Call 


Answered  


Call 


Transferred 


Call Arrives 


Secondary PSAP 


Call Answered 


Secondary 


Call 


Processed 


FD 


Notified 


4 sec 15 sec 30 sec 4 sec 


15 sec   60 sec 
 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 85 
 
 


text, images, video and data to the 911 PSAP center.  The initiative also envisions 
additional types of emergency communications and data transfer.  


 


Need For A Secondary PSAP 


The elimination of a local PSAP into a consolidation of a larger PSAP is at best a very controversial topic; 


inasmuch as many local (secondary) PSAP perform multiple tasks outside the duties of a PSAP 


telecommunicator.  The issue is further exacerbated by separating needs from wants and traditional 


means of operation.     


 


Reference to the figure above the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department could be notified as much 


as 45 seconds sooner if the call processing of transferring the call could be eliminated.  


 
Table 15: Single vs. Two PSAP 


 


 
The Consultants acknowledge that the numbers represented above are requirements of NFPA 1221 


based on a 90% compliance; whereas, a secondary PSAP will argue their transfer and processing call 


times are shorter.  Conventional wisdom would suggest that if a 911 call did not need to be transferred 


and handled by the primary PSAP it would save valuable time from a 911 call that required two PSAP 


(primary and secondary) in order to notify emergency responders.  


 


Recommendation – Dispatch 
• The Village should assess the need for its secondary PSAP inasmuch as it delays notification of 


emergency responses by the fire department and consider having Kenosha County PSAP dispatch 
for Pleasant Prairie. Priority Level 1 
 


  


PSAP Total to Notification


Pleasant Prairie 2 minutes 0 seconds


Kenosha County 1 minute 15 seconds


Difference 45 seconds







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 86 
 
 


Types of Fire Service Staffing 


Volunteer Firefighters have been around for centuries.  They consist of local community members being 


summoned to help another community member in need.  They typically were funded by donations in 


the early years.  As time progressed, they received financial revenues from the community’s governing 


agency.  When the fire department had financial resources, they started paying their members by the 


call.  Paid on Call (POC) members gave a financial incentive to their members to respond to calls.  Having 


a financial incentive helped retain members for the local agency.  When call volumes increased and POC 


members availability became short because they were working their own full-time jobs, departments 


started staffing during their vulnerable hours (usually during daytime work hours) with Part-Time 


members.  The utilization of Part-Time personnel was a cost-efficient way to address staffing in lieu of 


hiring more expensive Full-Time personnel.  


 


This evolution of staffing was common in many career departments operating today.  Many 


departments today still utilize a combination of Full-Time and Part-Time personnel to staff their fire 


departments.  The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department has progressed from an all-volunteer 


department, to a paid-on-call department, to a combination department with both full-time and part-


time members. Currently the Department has twenty-eight (28) full-time members (including Chief 


Officers, Lieutenants, and Firefighter/Paramedics) and seven (7) part-time members.  


 


Today’s fire service has changed relating to the expectations of the community.  It is important to 


recognize that fire departments are response models and not production models.  The definition of 


efficiency poses a problem for the fire service instantly if one considers the equation of maximizing 


Output vs Input.  The input of the fire service is easy to quantify; the annual budget.  But how is the 


output of the fire service quantified?  Could it be lives saved, property saved, catastrophes mitigated?  In 


fact, the challenge of quantifying the output of the fire service has a validated methodology.  Most 


recognized leading fire departments today are accredited agencies with the CPSE and have low ISO 


ratings.  They typically are very effective in their delivery of service and are accountable to the citizens 


they serve.  However, there is a financial cost to this excellence.  


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 87 
 
 


There are several types of fire service staffing models utilized throughout the fire service.  There is not 


one model that fits all departments.  There are many factors that determine which staffing model is 


used by the local fire department.  Career/Full-Time members are the costliest staffing option for local 


fire departments, but they are also the most reliable.  They tend to be trained better and have more 


experience.  The management of these employees are the most difficult as all applicable employment 


laws apply to them and generally are not “at will” employees.  Full-Time members may be affiliated with 


a union which would require employers to negotiate their wages, benefits and working conditions.  Full-


time fire service members typically participate in a pension system.  


 


Part-time members are a cost-efficient method to fire department staffing.  In many cases they are 


utilized to supplement staffing levels.  Salaries and benefits are typically lower than full-time salaries.  


Departments need to control the number of hours worked by part-time personnel to avoid the 


Affordable Care Acts requirement to provide health insurance to employees that work over the 


allowable hours.  Part-time fire service personnel are not typically organized by a union but can be in 


some areas.  Many career firefighters from other departments work part-time for municipalities similar 


to Pleasant Prairie and work shifts of usually 12 hours and their total hours are maintained below the 


limit in which benefits and/or part-time is required.  


 


Privatization in the fire service has been around for decades.  Some communities have contracted with 


private companies to completely run their fire departments.  In some cases, the private company will 


provide all personnel, apparatus and equipment as part of their contracted obligation.  In other cases, 


the private company will provide just the personnel needed for the fire department.  The private 


company could provide all personnel needed for the fire department or they could provide some of the 


personnel only.  The process of supplementing some personnel allows for the department to have the 


positive effects of full-time personnel at a more cost-efficient way.  Contracted employees are the 


easiest to budget for as they have a contracted/agreed amount to pay and the private company is 


responsible for their wages, insurance, time off, overtime, workers compensation and any other working 


conditions.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 88 
 
 


 


Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department Staffing 


As with most fire departments nationwide, staffing is typically a significant concern with the need to 


achieve a balance between necessary resources (personnel, equipment, and facilities) and the 


community’s ability to fund these resources.  Without question the major issue that prompted this study 


involved staffing of the fire department.  Perhaps a challenging recommendation for the department’s 


leadership will be the recommendation to deploy a two-person ambulance verses a three-person 


ambulance on an EMS call; thereby allowing the engine to remain in service unless needed for a critical 


patient.  As previously noted in the report, three-person ambulance staffing is found in few geographic 


areas; however, the Milwaukee area is the exception.  More commonly five personnel per station, is 


deployed as a three-person engine and two-person ambulance.  Critical patient care might require both 


the engine and ambulance responding as a team.  


 


Many of the elected and administrative officials for the Village were aware of the staffing issue for the 


Fire Department due to the recent request by the Fire Chief to hire fourteen (14) additional full-time 


members.  There were no elected and Village officials interviewed that believe the daily staffing of the 


Fire Department should be decreased. However, many Board and Administration members believe the 


Department should continue to use Part-Time personnel to offset the need for Full-Time personnel.  The 


Fire Chief has reported that interest in part-time employment has declined over the years for many 


reasons.  He noted that the required amount of time to become certified as a firefighter, an Emergency 


Medical Technician, and other training requirements pushes away many interested individuals.  He 


further noted that there is a general lack of interest in giving back or participating in civic groups across 


the country as well as within the village. 


 


 It is well known throughout the fire service nationally there is a shortage of volunteer/POC/part-time 


firefighters.  According to a report published by the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), the 


number of volunteer firefighters has reached an all-time low.  The NFPA data shows that there were 


814,850 volunteer firefighters in 2015.  That number dipped to 729,000 in 2016 and decreased again 


to 682,600 in 2017.  


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 89 
 
 


The use of Part-Time personnel has its financial benefits as well as losses.  It is very costly to take a 


civilian and train them to a level that they could be used for firefighting and or emergency medical 


services.  Once trained, there is a need to provide uniforms, custom fit bunker gear and benefits for the 


Part-time position.  Unfortunately, many of these members are ultimately looking for a career in the fire 


service and their newly acquired certifications/experience will greatly help them acquire a full-time 


position outside your fire department.  As they leave your department for a full-time position the fire 


department more than likely has not recoupled the cost for the initial hiring and training.  


 


Chief Officer Staffing 


Currently there is three (3) Administrative Fire Chiefs (1- Fire Chief & 2- Assistant Chiefs) assigned to 


work the traditional forty (40) hour week schedule.  In addition to their regular duties, each Chief Officer 


is on call one week out of three and responds to incidents and supervises the on-duty crews.  Over fifty 


percent (50%) of the work for both Assistant Fire Chiefs involves fire prevention duties.  This is due in 


part to the significant amount of new construction underway.  


 


Full Time Staffing 


The full-time members of the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department are members of the 


International Association of Fire fighters Local 3785.  They currently have a contract in place which 


covers their wages, benefits and working conditions.  Each of the full-time members work the traditional 


twenty-four (24) hours on duty followed by forty-eight (48) hours off duty.  This is the most common 


schedule utilized in career departments.  The schedule allows the maximum number of hours to be 


covered with the minimal number of employees.  With that said however, it also yields the least 


productivity due to meal and sleep time.  There are other schedules that provide greater productivity; 


however, to change a firefighter schedule is difficult and would need to be negotiated with the 


firefighter’s union.  The Department operates in a twenty-seven (27) day FLSA cycle.  Full-time 


firefighters are scheduled to work 2,912 hours of work per year which is an average 56-hour work week.  


The firefighters time worked can be reduced by their allowable vacation, sick, training time and other 


allowable benefits resulting in time off.  There is a general rule of thumb that in order to staff with three 


individuals per day without incurring any significant overtime, four individuals are needed, commonly 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 90 
 
 


referred to as the “four for three” rule.  The fourth individual covers time off such as, sick, vacation, 


training, etc. days off of the three employees, thereby minimizing the amount of overtime.  


 


Part-Time Staffing 


Over the past three years on average, there has been seven (7) part-time members on the Pleasant 


Prairie Fire & Rescue Department roster.  Each member is required to make regularly scheduled training.  


There is no set schedule for Part time members to work as they are encouraged to work on shift but are 


not currently mandated to.   


 


National Standards do not reduce the minimum training requirements for firefighters because they are 


Part-Time, Paid-On-Call or Volunteer.  It is imperative that all firefighters regardless of their employment 


classification know the dangers of firefighting before they respond to emergency incidents.  


 


Currently Part-Time members are only required to attend weekly training sessions.  The Pleasant Prairie 


Fire Chief is proposing a change to the Part-Time members hiring requirements as well as their general 


employment requirements.  The following list of Hiring and General Requirements has been provided by 


the Fire Chief as suggested minimum requirements for Part-Time Members.  


 


Hiring Requirements 


• Successfully completion CPAT no older than one year at time of conditional offer of employment 


letter 


• WI Firefighter I 


• WI EMT-Basic or higher 


• Paramedics are required to maintain the Kenosha County Medical System certifications 


• Current American Heart BLS CPR 


• Successful pass written exam 


• Successful Physical 


• Successful Psychological exam 


• Successful approval by Police & Fire Commission 


• Must be a non-tobacco user and sign an agreement for non-use 


• Must pass a background investigation 


• Possess a high school diploma or GED equivalent 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 91 
 
 


General Requirements 


• Probationary period of one year 


• The employee is expected to work at least 44 hours per month and up to 112 hours per month 


• Must work a designated holiday within the calendar year – selection process to be determined 


• Must work full scheduled shift (6p-7a, 7a-6p, or 24Hr, No getting off early i.e.: at 5A for other 


job) 


• Must complete position task book in time periods as outlined 


• Must manage and be responsible for self’s licensing and Continuing Education requirements 


• Department will fund Firefighter II class & certification 


• Funding of other certification courses is at the Chief’s discretion 


• Must Maintain at least 75% required weekly training attendance calculated every six months 


• Maintain a valid driver’s license 


• Must obtain NIMS 100, 200, and 700 within three (3) months of hire date. 


• Ability to understand the basic principles relevant to the major duties of the position after 


completing entry level training. 


 


Recommendation – Part Time Employee Employment Requirements 


• The Consultants recommend that the fire department leadership make recruitment and retention 
of Part-Time members as a high priority. Priority Level 1  
 


• Review and implement new rules for Part Time Firefighters, while recognizing further 
requirements may diminish available Part-Time applicants or current members and should be 
reassessed by the department’s leadership. Priority Level 2 


 


Employee Reimbursement for Initial Hiring Costs 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire Chief reports that the Village recently started having new employees agree to a 


three (3) year new hire employment contract.  The contract is designed to recoup the initial hiring costs 


which includes the initial medical screening, training and costs for uniforms and turn-out gear. This 


process is discussed further in the Human Resource section of this report.  


 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 92 
 
 


Organizational Chart for the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 


Department  


Figure 16: Fire Department Organization Chart 


 


 


Station 1 Current Staffing 


The daily staffing assignment has three (3) personnel at station 1 at all times.  Of the three (3) personnel 


one will be a Lieutenant and two (2) will be Fire Medics.  They jump between an ambulance and an 


Engine/Tender depending on the call nature.  There is always three (3) paramedics assigned to the 


ambulance.  In a station that has only three persons assigned the Consultants support the jump 


company apparatus staffing methodology; leaving one person behind in the station on an ambulance 


call limits what the individual is capable for any type of additional emergency incident.     


 


Station 2 Current Staffing 


The daily staffing assignment has five (5) personnel at station 2, the minimum staffing for this station is 


always three (3) personnel.  Of the five (5) personnel one will be a Lieutenant and four (4) will be Fire 


Medics.  When at full staff, personnel will staff an ambulance and Ladder Tower and or Engine/Tender.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 93 
 
 


When at minimum staffing the three (3) personnel jump between and ambulance and fire apparatus 


depending on the call nature.  There is always three (3) paramedic personnel assigned to the ambulance 


although only two (2) are required.  Part time staff that may be assigned to the shift (or part of the shift) 


will be assigned to this station.  The part time personnel supplement the full-time personnel.  


 


Staffing Recommendation 


After a complete review of the Department’s supplied data and comparing them to the national 


standards utilized today, it is the Consultant’s opinion the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department is 


understaffed.  The Consultants recognize the financial costs associated with increasing personnel.  


However, the safety of the community and the fire department personnel should be a priority in future 


staffing considerations for the Village.  


 


The first staffing priority that is recommended is to staff the current fire stations at an efficient level.  


Adding a third fire station without addressing the staffing of the current two stations would only further 


understaff the community.  This report breaks down several phases to increase the Fire Department’s 


staff.  It is recommended that the increased staffing be phased in depending on the financial ability of 


the Village.  The Consultants recognize there may be a need for community support through a 


referendum to expand the capabilities of the Fire Department.  The expansion of the capabilities of the 


Fire Department could include a third fire station on the west side of the community.  


 


Proposed Staffing for Immediate Consideration 


The current minimum staffing is three (3) personnel per fire station.  The personnel in the station jump 


between and ambulance, fire engine/tender or ladder tower dictated by the nature of the incident.  The 


data indicates that over 70% of the Department’s incidents are EMS in nature which has three 


firefighter/paramedics staffing an ambulance most of the time.  Although the department personnel are 


very favorable for this staffing model, it is not the typical staffing across the country.  It is typical in a 


satellite fire station that does not have the call volume as the Pleasant Prairie.   


 


 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 94 
 
 


Recommendation – Level 1 (Immediate) Staffing Increase 


• The Consultants recommend increasing the minimum staffing at Station 1 and Station 2 to five 
(5) personnel which would increase the ability to serve the community with more staffed 
apparatus.  Each station should have three personnel on a fire suppression vehicle (engine or 
tower/ladder) and two (2) personnel on an ambulance. Priority Level 1 
 
The proposed staffing model will: 


➢ Double the minimum number of staffed vehicles on duty daily (from 2 to 4).  
➢ Having the two extra staffed vehicles daily would significantly reduce the amount of 


times that mutual aid would be needed for the community.  
➢ It would further protect the community by having a staffed fire suppression vehicle 


remaining available when both ambulances are out of service (on other calls or at the 
hospital).  


➢ A fire suppression vehicle should be dispatched along with the ambulance on all medical 
calls that could be ALS in nature.  The fire suppression vehicle will assist the ambulance 
personnel with patient care and patient removal to the ambulance.  When patient care 
necessitates more personnel, some of the fire suppression personnel can go along with 
the ambulance to the hospital.  


➢ Having the additional staffed fire suppression vehicles will improve response times as 
they can respond to an incident and start ALS care while waiting for an ambulance to 
come from another station or another town mutual aid.  


➢ Comply with the 2 in 2 out OSHA mandated rule. 
 


Proposed Staffing for Future Consideration 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie has considered a third fire station for their community for years.  The size 


of the Village warrants a third fire station on the west side to ensure on scene times equal to the rest of 


the community.  The Consultants recommend the staffing at the third station would be a jump company 


consisting of three (3) personnel.  The personnel would jump between an ambulance or a fire 


suppression vehicle depending on the nature of the call.  


 


Recommendation – Level 2 (Future) Staffing 


• The Village should consider how to staff a future fire station and the costs attributed along with 
it prior to building it. Priority Level 2 
 


• The collection of data (consistent with the CPSE Standards of Coverage) should be utilized for 
future consideration of additional personnel and fire stations. Priority Level 2 
 


• The staffing for the proposed new fire station should be a minimum of three (3) personnel.  The 
staff should jump between an ambulance and a fire suppression vehicle depending on the call 
they are dispatched to. Priority Level 2 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 95 
 
 


Human Resources  


The Human Resource function is one of the major components of any organization.  Its policies impact 


every member of the organization and can be an area of major litigation.  Since the Civil Rights Act of 


1991 in which the burden of proof for discrimination changed from the employee to the employer, and 


the introduction of a jury trial, as well as punitive and compensatory damages, the human resource 


landscape has changed. 


 


The purpose of a Human Resources (HR) Department is to be a strategic business partner to an 


organization to ensure that managing the ‘human capital’ of the organization is done in an objective and 


lawful manner, is consistent with the mission of the organization, and fosters a positive work 


environment.  Employees should be considered an organization’s most valuable resource. 


 


There are several disciplines of HR, so the focus of an HR department varies based upon the 


organizational structure of an organization, the organization’s understanding and acceptance of the role 


of HR, and the strengths of the staff.  The Village has a qualified HR Department, which is highly 


recommended to continue.  The benefits of a centralized system include streamlined processes, legal 


compliance, reduces the amount of time command staff must spend on HR functions so they may focus 


more on their respective operations, and places the responsibility of HR functions with the staff who are 


trained in human resources.    


 


In order for a centralized HR system to be most effective, there needs to be sufficient HR staffing, well 


developed processes and systems, and an acceptance to relinquish control of these processes over to 


HR.  It was observed during the course of the Study that the communication and working relationship 


between the departments exist so future communications related to recruitment/other HR related 


processes and strategy should be seamless. 


 


Recruitment 


Recruitment is a critical part to ensure proper staffing.  It is the potential employee’s first contact with 


the employer, so it is an employer’s first opportunity to make a positive impression for the applicant.  


Right or wrong, first impressions can influence decisions.  The recruitment process should be easy to 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 96 
 
 


follow, transparent, and timely, so the applicant has a positive experience; so even if they are not 


selected, they may be drawn to apply again in the future. 


 


Applicant Tracking System 


The Village has an electronic applicant tracking system (ATS), allowing candidates to apply online.  Both 


HR and the Fire Department have instant access to applicants.  HR should be the only department with 


instant access.  This will allow the HR team to track all applications, and forward in a defined manner.  It 


is standard for HR to review applications for completion and minimum qualifications; and only forward 


qualified applications to a department to be considered further.  HR can then communicate with 


rejected applicants immediately.  This also saves time for Command Staff.  Having up to date job 


descriptions outlining the minimum qualifications will allow HR to screen consistently.  This process also 


lowers the risk of discrimination claims or unfair hiring practices. 


 


Application 


In reviewing the Village’s application, it was noted the Village’s application for a Firemedic asks if the 


applicant is a US Citizen, and separately, if the applicant is legally eligible for employment in the United 


States.  Although U.S. citizenship may be a requirement for some licensed positions in the Village, it is 


not a requirement for Fire/EMS, so should be removed from this application for discrimination 


purposes.  The applicant is required to submit a copy of their valid driver’s license, and auto insurance 


coverage.  Personal auto coverage is not a requirement of the position, so the Village has no need for 


this information, and should be dropped from the application.  The Driver’s license questions are 


combined with questions related to Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) holders, which should also be 


removed, since they are not relevant to fire/EMS.  Although a valid driver’s license is a requirement, it 


also introduces the age of the applicant.  The Village can simply ask if the candidate has a valid driver’s 


license and indicate applicants will be required to supply a copy of the license further into the 


application process, or if the ATS can allow HR to maintain this information in the system separate from 


the hiring authority (Fire Chief or designee), this may be an alternative solution.   


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 97 
 
 


Recruitment Sources and Locations 


From the interviews conducted, it was found that advertising for the Fire Department relies on fire/EMS 


based employment websites, Village website, and Village social media sites.  The Village’s website and 


Department web page expound as to why there is a benefit to overall employment with Pleasant Prairie, 


and the Village understands the use of social media sites for recruitment can assist to go beyond the 


traditional borders and help bring a diverse workforce.  However, there does not appear to be a 


targeted recruitment plan for ongoing part-time recruitment, which will be necessary to help support 


the Department long term.  The Village is recommended to develop a recruitment strategy and identify 


meaningful aspects of the Department that can be marketed to make the Village of Pleasant Prairie a 


viable employer for not only full time, but also part time opportunities. 


 


Recommendation – Recruitment 
• HR should screen all applicants for minimum qualification and maintain all documentation.  


Priority Level 2 
 


• Remove the U.S. Citizenship question from the employment application.  Priority Level 1 
 


• Remove the requirement to provide proof of automobile insurance from the employment 
application.  Priority Level 2 
 


• Remove the CDL questions from the employment application.  Priority Level 2 
 


• Do not require a copy of the Driver’s License until the candidate is going through the background 
process.  Priority Level 1 
 


• Develop a targeted recruitment plan for fire/EMS employment opportunities.  Priority Level 3 
 


Screening, Testing, Interview and Pre-employment Process 


Screening Applications 


Currently all applications are screened by the Fire Department, but documentation on this screening 


process is not maintained, so the Village has no contemporaneous documents to help defend its 


screening decisions.  All screening for minimum qualifications should occur in HR, and only applicants 


who meet the minimum qualifications should be forwarded to the Department for consideration.  All 


communications to candidates should occur from HR via the ATS, using template communications so the 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 98 
 
 


message is screened, consistent, and timely.  All screening processes should then be documented and 


retained in the ATS for future reference. 


 


Testing  


Employers may use tests and other selection procedures to screen applicants for hire.  There are many 


different types of tests and selection procedures.  The use of tests and other selection procedures can 


be a very effective means of determining which applicants or employees are most qualified or have the 


aptitude for a particular job.  However, use of these tools can violate the federal anti-discrimination laws 


if an employer uses them to discriminate based on a protected class.  Use of tests and other selection 


procedures can also violate the federal anti-discrimination laws if they disproportionately exclude 


people in a particular group by race, sex, or another protected basis, unless the employer can justify the 


test or procedure under the law. 


 


Candidate Physical Ability Test  


The Department utilizes the Candidate Physical Ability Test (CPAT) which provides for a third-party 


agency to conduct candidate physical ability testing utilizing this nationally recognized Test.  The CPAT is 


a legally defensible and legitimate tool for assessing eligibility for employment.  In addition to being 


endorsed by the International Association of Fire Fighters and International Association of Fire Chiefs, 


the test meets validity criteria established by the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, 


the U.S. Department of Justice, and the U.S. Department of Labor.  To ensure all candidates have an 


equal opportunity to succeed, the CPAT includes an orientation and mentoring process that begins 


weeks prior to the actual test.  This process involves an explanation of the test and its physical demands, 


recommendations of training and conditioning drills, and an opportunity to preview and practice the 


exercises.  The CPAT examination process is open to anyone interested in taking the test.  All costs 


associated with the CPAT testing process are bore by the candidate.  The Consultants recommend 


continuing the use of the CPAT.   


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 99 
 
 


National Firefighter Selection Test  


The Fire Department self-administers a standardized test for firefighters, which is the National 


Firefighter Selection Test (NFST).  These tests are deemed to be valid by the third-party test developer. 


This is an entry-level basic skills test, ensuring candidates possess the basic cognitive skills necessary to 


successfully perform the job.  The NFST is a valid, job-related test designed specifically for use in fire 


service, which measures these basic skills: Reading Comprehension, Mathematics and Listening 


Comprehension.  These tests are administered by Department personnel who have been trained to 


proxy the exams, which is important to not create any disparate impacts toward applicants.  The scoring 


of these tests occurs by a third-party human resources-based consulting firm and provides overall scores 


to the Village.  The Consultants recommend continuing the use of the NFST. 


 


Interviewing  


The Department next invites the top candidates to an interview with the Police and Fire Commission 


(PFC).  The Human Resources Director and/or the Fire Chief will also sit in on these interviews.  When 


asked if the PFC has received formal training on interviewing, the Village Officials indicated training is 


offered, but not all members attend.  Significant risk exists in having untrained interviewers participate 


and rate candidate’s due to protected classification questions.  To the untrained participant, a question 


may seem completely harmless and absolutely relevant to a candidate’s abilities to do the job, but in 


reality, the question has the potential for discrimination based on the answer and interviewer biases.  


The PFC interview is currently a pass/fail process.   


 


The Consultant recommends a Human Resource staff member become more involved with the interview 


process to ensure all interviewers be trained in interview techniques and questioning.  In addition, a 


scoring methodology system should be established, and all recruitment documents be retained by 


Human Resources.  This will allow the PFC to rank candidates in lieu of pass/fail.  Public Safety 


Departments come under heavy scrutiny for their testing and hiring practices.  Charges of discrimination 


based a detrimental impact to one or more of the federally protected classes (including gender, race, 


color, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, and in some cases disability) are being lodged against 


government agencies.  Overall, Human Resources should be leading the interview process on behalf of 


the PFC and provide hands on guidance to the PFC throughout the process. 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 100 
 
 


 


Currently, those candidates that do pass this interview process are then give a final review by the Chief 


and Assistant Chief to determine who will be selected for conditional offers of employment, although 


there is no additional interview.  The Consultant recommends the Chief conduct interviews prior to the 


PFC interview, and only forward candidates to the PFC that the Command Staff feel could be hired.  This 


gives the command staff a more active role in the selection process and narrows the pool of candidates 


for the PFC to only those who would be strongly considered.  The PFC’s ranking then guides the Chief on 


who the top-rated candidates are to offer employment to, and the Village can adopt a policy to allow 


the Chief to select from the top three (3) candidates as an example.  This is a much more structured 


approach which gives objectivity to each step in the selection process.  All other candidates can remain 


active applicants for future opportunities over the next year based upon their final ranking with the PFC.    


 


Upon completion of this process, all documents are submitted to Human Resources for proper 


document retention requirements for all candidates.  Human Resources and the Chief communicate any 


concerns that arise that could result in rescinding the offer of employment.    


 


Post-Offer / Background / Pre-Employment Testing  


Upon completion of the interview, the applicant of choice is provided a conditional offer of 


employment, inclusive of a background process and post-offer pre-employment testing (medical exam, 


drug test, and psychological exam).  The Village indicated the medical exam is conducted by an 


occupational health provider and follows the NFPA 1582 standard.  


 


The Village provides an additional authorization to the candidate for the background process.  This is the 


time when the Village should be requesting copies of any required documents not previously collected 


from the candidate, including driver’s license, or any other license/certification copies required not 


currently on file. 


 


The Village has the results of all these steps sent directly to Human Resources, so all related 


application/interviewing/pre-employment documentation is received, handled, and retained in one (1) 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 101 
 
 


area; and all potential medical information is separate from the hiring authority.  Once all results are 


received, Human Resources and the Chief discuss the outcomes.   


 


Recommendation - Screening, Testing and Interviewing 
• Maintain all application screening processes and documentation.  Priority Level 2 


 


• Utilize a standardized rating system to rank candidates during interviews, including PFC 
interviews.  Priority Level 2 
 


• All personnel who participate in interviews should be trained in interview techniques/legal 
questioning. Priority Level 1 
 


• Human Resources should lead the interview process with the PFC. Priority Level 2 
 


• Command staff should interview candidates prior to PFC interviews, to narrow the candidates for 
the PFC to serious candidates only.  Priority Level 3. 


 


Applicant Communication 


Human Resources should be responsible for ensuring all applicants are notified of their status during the 


application process.  Any communication is not currently handled through HR should be changed as 


soon as possible.  The previously discussed ATS allows the applicant to be notified via the System if there 


is a change to the status of their application, and email notifications can be sent quickly (and copies 


retained) if the applicant is not being considered for a posted position and/or will not be moving further 


in the hiring process after an interview.   


 


Offer Letter  


Applicants currently receive a written conditional offer of employment jointly between HR and the Fire 


Chief.  This letter lays out the terms and conditions of the final steps in the process, but also includes 


ongoing requirements by the Village.  The letter could be re-organized to clearly lay out the final steps 


needed for employment, with a clear statement that identifies failure to complete/pass any one of these 


steps will result in the conditional offer being rescinded.  The second part of the letter can then 


incorporate other requirements upon hire, such as ongoing licensing requirements, reimbursement etc. 


which is acknowledged by the candidate. 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 102 
 
 


Recovery of Expenses 


The Village’s conditional offer of employment identifies that any employee who leaves in the first three 


(3) years has the right to recover all or part of the training/education costs with permissive language.  In 


addition, the Village indicates the candidate shall be responsible to reimburse the Village for initial hiring 


expenses, including the medical examination, drug test, psychological exam, and protective gear.   


 


The Village is recommended to develop a policy to objectively outline the costs which may be bore by an 


employee within the first three (3) years.  The Village puts a considerable financial investment into new 


employees, so the desire to be reimbursed certain expenses is appropriate.  However, there is not a 


clear objective measure on how that will occur, or under what circumstances.  In this situation, the 


Village should consider if this is an item that prevents final candidates from accepting positions, or if 


there could be an impact in the future.  It would not be unreasonable for the Village to develop a pro-


rated formula over three (3) years, so as an employee continues with the Village, it’s repayment, over 


time, is less.  For example, an employee who completes probation may only need to reimburse 75%, and 


a two-year employee may only have to reimburse 50%.   


 


Additionally, the pre-employment examinations can be costly to an organization, but are tools for the 


Village to determine best fit, which should reduce future employment liability cost.  Typically, these 


records are not viewable to an employee upon hire.  Although the Consultants are uncertain if this has 


ever been challenged in Wisconsin, one would be concerned that examinations that are ultimately 


reimbursed (paid for) by the employee for would include having access to records they do not normally 


have access to, since they paid for it.  The Village is recommended to discontinue seeking 


reimbursement for examinations used in the hiring process and focus only on 


training/education/protective gear that cannot be reused. 


 


Recommendation - Applicant Communication 
• HR should be the Department communicating with applicants during the interview/hiring 


process, and when applications are no longer being considered.   Templates should be developed 
within the Applicant Tracking System. Priority Level 3 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 103 
 
 


• Amend the template offer letter to clearly identify when the conditional offer many be rescinded 
and separate from other requirements to maintain upon hire.  Priority Level 2 
 


• Develop a written prorated calculation to recover employee tuition/education/gear 
reimbursements expenses in the first three (3) years. Priority Level 2 


 


Part-Time Personnel 


Part-time personnel provide flexibility to address peak time staffing needs, replace full time personnel 


who are off, or vacancies.  Part-time personnel can be scheduled to work varying time slots depending 


on need.  Part-time personnel, however, are normally held to the maximum of 212 hours in a 28-day 


period as required under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) because part-time employees exceeding 


this threshold are due overtime pay.   


 


Since part-time personnel are considered part of the regular staffing, most departments require them to 


have the same basic qualifications/education as a full-time employee.  Many organizations utilize the 


exact same testing and hiring process as for full-time and hold candidates to the same standards for 


appointment.  These positions often become the training and development ground for future full-time 


positions. 


 


Recruiting and retaining part-time fire/EMS, is an ever-increasing challenge throughout our country.  


Without question, it is more difficult to recruit and retain part-time fire/EMS today than ever before, 


and Pleasant Prairie is no exception to this challenge.  The management of the organization is a very 


time-consuming job, not to mention the high degree of leadership skills required.  But most of all, the 


requirement and commitment to training by the employee may be too great for a part-time role. 


 


The number one reason communities embrace volunteer/part-time firefighting organizations is 


economics.  Community leaders are faced with maintaining or increasing public safety services while 


there is increasing competition for available revenue.  Thus, for Pleasant Prairie, part-time personnel 


need to be a vital part of the organization.  However, the nationwide decline in numbers of part-time 


members leads one to believe that the recruitment efforts are insufficient or that the department is not 


doing a good job “selling” itself or may not be viewed as a flexible employer to accommodate those who 


are only available part-time. 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 104 
 
 


 


Currently the Village is doing very little to encourage part-time staffing.  The Department is not currently 


hiring for part-time openings, when there could be considerations to expand the number of part-time 


staff on the roster.  The Department should make a concerted effort to increase its part-time 


recruitment activities.  The Department also needs to re-evaluate its part-time training program to be 


more flexible during initial training, which is currently, 8-hour days for 16 weeks.  This current training 


program is something most part-time staff are likely unable to fulfill, as they may not have the means to 


take time away from their primary job to complete this requirement.  In addition, the Village has put 


additional requirements on fire/EMS that is simply limiting themselves.  Currently, the Village prohibits 


their fire/EMS personnel from working the same or similar positions for another organization due to the 


presumption of cancer under worker’s compensation coverage.  In addition, this is contradictory to the 


Ethics and Conduct Policy, which states employees may hold outside jobs as long as they meet 


performance standards of their job with the Village.  


 


In order for the Village to build its part-time staffing, the Village will need to consider the following: 


• Develop an ongoing targeted part-time recruitment strategy; 


 
• Develop evening and weekend training opportunities to introduce flexible scheduling into part 


time training. Priority Level 2  
 


• Eliminate any restrictions/perceptions from area Full Time Firefighters working in Pleasant 
Prairie as Part Time members.  


 


Recommendation - Part-time Personnel 
• Develop a targeted recruitment plan for part-time fire/EMS opportunities.  Priority Level 2 


 


• Develop evening and weekend training opportunities to introduce flexible scheduling into 
part time training.  Priority Level 2 
 


• Allow secondary employment in fire/EMS. Priority Level 2 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 105 
 
 


Compensation  


Fair Labor Standards Act 


In order to understand the compensation and overtime rules for the Department, one must first take a 


step back and understand the definition of an employee and the types of employees allowed under the 


Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).  The Fair Labor Standards Act is the federal law passed in 1938 to 


regulate minimum wages, overtime pay, equal pay, and child labor standards in employment.  In 2004, 


the federal regulations were amended with clarifications to the federal exemptions to the overtime 


provisions as well as clarifications with municipal employees.  Federal overtime laws apply to: 


• Businesses whose employees produce or handle goods for interstate commerce; 


• Businesses with gross annual sales of more than $500,000; and 


• Certain other businesses, including hospitals, nursing homes, schools and government agencies.  


 


Based on this definition the Village would follow the federal FLSA guidelines.  This section delineates the 


regulations of the FLSA as it applies to all forms of employment currently present within the 


Department, including Paid-On-Call.  Thus, how the individuals are classified and how they are 


compensated will be the determining factors in the Village’s obligations under the FLSA.  When Federal 


and State FLSA regulations conflict, the ruling is based on what is most beneficial for the employee.   


Furthermore, additional clarification will be made as to what constitutes an exempt (salaried) employee 


from a non-exempt (hourly) employee and the pay implications. 


 


What is an employee? 


What is an employee?  The definition of an employee under FLSA is an individual who performs services 


for the “employer.”  If an individual is not an employee, he or she is not covered by the minimum wage, 


overtime, recordkeeping, and other provisions of the FLSA.   


 


Volunteers 


The FLSA provides a specific exemption for individuals who volunteer services to public agencies.  The 


FLSA, however, exempts public employers from paying minimum wage and overtime to individuals who 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 106 
 
 


qualify as “volunteer” – individuals motivated to contribute service for civic, charitable, or humanitarian 


reasons.  An individual who performs services for a public agency qualifies as a volunteer, if: 


• The individual receives no compensation, or is paid expenses, reasonable benefits, or a nominal 
fee to perform the services for which the individual volunteered; and 
 


• Such services are not the same type of services for which the individual is employed to perform 
for the same public agency. 


 


If an individual meets the above criteria for volunteer status, he or she will not be considered an 


employee covered by FLSA minimum wage and overtime provisions.  A public employer can pay a 


nominal fee to a volunteer; the fee must not be a substitute for wages and must not be tied to 


productivity.  Thus, a Volunteer in a municipal environment, performing public safety responsibilities, 


and who does NOT receive compensation that is tied to productivity, such as an hourly wage, would also 


be exempt from the minimum wage requirements.  Based on this, no position in Pleasant Prairie 


qualifies as a volunteer. 


 


Paid-On-Call 


Individuals who receive some sort of compensation or nominal fee will have their employment status 


based upon how the fee is distributed.  Two types of compensation are considered to be nominal fees 


by the Department of Labor (DOL) and continue to exempt the employee from the Fair Labor Standards 


Act – Pay per call, or a monthly/annual stipend.  Pay per call, whether the person responds from their 


home or place of employment or is scheduled for hours at the Fire Station (paid-on-premise), has 


compensation paid to the individual when responding to an emergency call.  The amount of 


compensation may not be tied to productivity and may not vary on time spent on the activity.  The 


Department of Labor’s regulations specify that the payment of a nominal amount on a per-call basis to 


paid-on-call is acceptable so long as the compensation is tied to the paid-on-call’s sacrifice rather than 


productivity-based compensation.  (DOL, Wage and Hour Division Opinion Letter, August 7, 2006.) 


 


However, the Department of Labor has determined that payment to paid-on-call personnel on a per-


hour basis destroys the bona fide volunteer/paid-on-call status and creates an employment relationship.  


This type of payment is akin to hourly wages based on productivity.  (DOL, Wage and Hour Division 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 107 
 
 


Opinion Letter July 7, 1999.)  Based on this, the Paid-On-Call personnel are classified as employees, and 


subject to FLSA, including overtime, and minimum wages laws. 


 


This is a classification that is sometimes interchangeable with that of part-time, which are employees 


compensated on an hourly bass, routinely have a schedule, and have a maximum number of hours to 


work to stay under benefit threshold purposes.  This is currently occurring at the Village of Pleasant 


Prairie.  The Village currently has three (3) job codes, each with their own salary range.  They are as 


follows: 


   


Table 16: Employee Classifications 


GRADE/RANK DESCRIPTION NUMBER OF 


STEPS 


SALARY RANGE  


PT30 Paid On Call 6 $10.20 - $16.53 


PT31 Part Time Fire 5 $  8.48 - $16.53 


PT59 POC/PT Fire 4 $13.80 - $21.23 


 


All part-time personnel are currently listed as POC/PT Fire in Grade PT59.  The Village is recommended 


to adjust PT59 to reflect its more accurate description of part-time and eliminate POC terminology going 


forward to avoid any confusion.   


  


Compression 


The Consultants did not perform a compensation Study and thus, did not compare the wages to those of 


similar fire departments in the area.  However, in reviewing salary information provided by the Village, a 


couple of issues struck the Consultants.   


 


Compression is when salaries of job classifications of a higher rank or authority are paid less than 


positions of a lower rank or authority.  When this occurs, it stifles an individual’s willingness to promote 


as it often results in reduction in pay.  It is not uncommon for this type of compression to occur when 


the Village addresses the non-union wages during the budget process, and the union wages during 


contract negotiations, which may not occur simultaneously.  The most significant concern identified are 


some supervisory positions that are paid less than, or very close to subordinate positions.  In reviewing 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 108 
 
 


the Salary Schedule, there may be an insufficient spread between the ranks, in addition to the amount 


of overtime worked, which is causing compression between all ranks.  In 2018, the Department had an 


individual annual overtime amount that maxed at $26,692.  Although it is understood public safety will 


incur overtime, most salary schedules are not able to sufficiently address this level of overtime, nor is 


this level of overtime common, so the Village is recommended to review its internal practices and 


contract language to reduce and/or spread some of the overtime among other members of the 


Department. 


 


FLSA Work Period 


FLSA overtime requirements for public safety employees differ from other employees, because a 


specified number of work hours is needed within the FLSA work period before the FLSA rate can be 


applied to overtime pay; this provision is commonly referred to as the 7(k) exemption.  The law allows 


the employer (municipality) to choose a pay cycle from seven (7) to twenty-eight (28) days as illustrated 


in the Table below, for specific fire (and police) positions:  


 


Table 17: FLSA 207K Exception Work Period Chart 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 109 
 
 


 


Each covered employer is required to establish a written work period in which it calculates 


compensation.  The Consultants were not able to locate a written policy on its work period for the Fire 


Department, although the Consultants learned during the onsite visit the Department uses the standard 


40-hour provision for the purposes of overtime calculation, unless the position is covered by the 


Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), in which a 27-day cycle is used.  The Village can amend the work 


period for part-time positions (assuming all positions participate in dual role in fire service, and upon 


completion of training) if it desires.  Regardless, the Village is recommended to develop a written policy 


outlining the FLSA Work Periods for the Fire Department for incorporation into the Village’s Employee 


Handbook.   


 


Overtime Calculations 


Per the Fair Labor Standards Act, all renumeration for employment paid to, or on behalf of, the 


employee must be calculated into the overtime rate, unless it is a regular rate exception, and regardless 


of collective bargaining.  Each of these special pays should be reviewed by the Village to ensure they are 


included into the calculation of regular rate for the purposes of FLSA overtime.   


 


Recommendation - Compensation/FLSA 
• Adjust the Classification of Paid-On-Call and Part-Time to Part-Time only on the salary schedule 


and other Village documents.  Priority Level 2. 
 


• Develop a written policy to clarify work periods for the Fire Department.  
Priority Level 1 
 


• Review Special Pays to ensure it is properly calculated into the regular rate for FLSA compliance. 
Priority Level 1 


 


Payroll Processing and Recordkeeping 


Each organization is required to maintain recordkeeping requirements for all employees, including 


Village personnel.  The Wage and Hour Division provides the following as a list of the basic records an 


employer must maintain: 


• Employee’s full name and social security number 


• Address, including zip code 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 110 
 
 


• Birth date, if younger than 19 


• Sex and occupation 


• Time and date of week when employee’s workweek/work period begins 


• Hours worked each day 


• Total hours worked each workweek 


• Basis on which employees’ wages are paid  


• Regular hourly pay rate 


• Total straight time earnings 


• Total overtime earnings for the pay cycle 


• Additions/deductions from wages 


• Total wages paid each pay period 


• Date of payment and the pay period covered by the payment 


 


All payroll records must be maintained for at least three (3) years.  Records on which wage 


computations are based should be retained for two (2) years (i.e., timecards, wage rate tables, records 


of deductions from wages, etc.).  (Wage and Hour Fact Sheet #21: Recordkeeping Requirements under 


the Fair Labor Standards Act). 


 


From discussions with the Command Staff, the Lieutenants are responsible for entering activity logs on 


who is on duty into the RMS, and it is entered separately into the Village software used for payroll 


processing, but the timekeeping process does not require the employee to sign for the accuracy of the 


records.  The Village is recommended to update its’ process to ensure the employee is providing their 


time in/time out each day, time off codes etc. which can then be verified by an Officer.  Long term, the 


Village should engage with IT to determine if the software systems can transfer data from one system to 


another, reducing data entry time, and human error often associated with this practice. 


 


Recommendation - Payroll Processing and Recordkeeping 
• Implement requirement of employee completion of timecards. Priority Level 3 


 


• Determine if software capabilities may transfer payroll data from one system to another to 
eliminated dual entries.  Priority Level 4 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 111 
 
 


Orientation (On-boarding) 


The orientation process is as important as the interview process in terms of the impressions an 


organization makes on a new hire.  An engaging orientation process that is clearly laid out and 


documented for the new employee will be smoother and more productive than informal processes and 


sets a standard of expectation.  An effective orientation process will cover the culture and history of the 


Department, polices, performance expectations, job requirements, communication expectations, issuing 


gear, and much more.  


  


A written comprehensive orientation checklist will help ensure consistent training and documentation of 


the training process, especially if assigned trainers vary.  This will also ensure time sensitive items, such 


as I-9 documents that have mandatory timelines for completion are met within legal timeframes.  


Orientation processes should include payroll information, scheduling, gear/equipment assignment, a 


copy of all policy/procedures, introduction to other personnel, introduction to physical location, 


introduction to equipment, location of resource materials, sit down time with the Chief, and other items 


specific to the Department. 


    


The Fire Department provided the orientation outline they use during an employee’s first week; 


although, the document is more of a schedule of activities than an identified list of specific topics.  The 


HR document is also designed as an internal checklist.  The Consultants were not able to locate specific 


orientation documents that outline the information covered, and employee 


signature/acknowledgments.  It is recommended this topic be discussed between the Chief and HR on 


what items need to be covered either as an overall organization (HR) or via the Fire Department.  


Orientation documents are then recommended to be created or updated accordingly, with employee 


acknowledgements required for both.   


 


Recommendation – Onboarding 
• Develop a new employee orientation checklist for the Fire Department and Human Resources to 


ensure all paperwork, benefits, guiding policies, and Village and Department information is 
consistently provided and documented.  Ensure this includes an employee 
signature/acknowledgement. Priority Level 2 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 112 
 
 


Job Descriptions 


Job descriptions are useful communication tools to explain to employees what tasks an employer 


expects them to perform.  Job descriptions should also address performance standards.  Without these 


tools, employees may not perform as expected.  Job descriptions also identify the education, skill, and 


ability necessary for a position.  Minimum qualifications assist in screening for recruitment and 


promotional purposes and provide employees with a guide of what will be needed to attain higher 


ranking positions they may be interested in obtaining in the future.  


 


Job descriptions are also an important part of the application process – in which the applicant signs off 


that they are capable of performing the functions of the position.  The job descriptions should also 


delineate responsibilities– not only operational skills, but also management and leadership skills 


required for the positions.  These job descriptions should be utilized not only in the hiring process, but 


also the promotional process. 


 


Job descriptions do currently exist for the Department.  The Village does not typically update these 


documents until there is a vacancy, so some documents are a couple years old.  The Department, in 


cooperation with Human Resources, should review and update job descriptions annually, and changes 


are to be communicated to all personnel, as an example, during the annual performance evaluation 


process.  Human Resources should hold the master document for all job descriptions, so any revisions 


are not official until finalized through Human Resources. 


 


Recommendation - Job Descriptions 
• The Fire Department and Human Resources Department should ensure all job descriptions are 


updated on an annual basis and shared with employees during evaluation meetings.  Priority 
Level 2 


 


Performance Evaluations 


Traditional employee performance reviews by definition is a process that uses predetermined standards 


(i.e. job description) to evaluate the performance of an employee over a designated and established 


time period.  The goal is for the employee’s supervisor to provide a review, constructive feedback, and 


meaningful information on areas of needed improvement and to establish goals.  Unfortunately, too 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 113 
 
 


often, performance evaluations have no clear purpose, and supervisors are going through the motions.  


The evaluations and the process are then seen as a formality that accomplishes little or nothing in the 


way of true feedback.  Several management studies have concluded that evaluations conducted once a 


year are too infrequent and that the annual evaluation process is too formal to be effective.  


 


In today’s work environment, however, an employee’s evaluation should be specific to inform and guide 


the employee in the performance of his/her duties.  Performance evaluations is one of the key 


processes that, when effectively carried out, provides a climate conducive to performance excellence 


and personal growth, helps employees know their contributions are recognized and acknowledged, and 


provides guidance for career and professional development.   


 


Employees typically desire honest and regular feedback.  As a result, an effective performance 


management system should include regular communication between a supervisor and employee to 


ensure that an employee’s performance in all areas are reinforced and supported; identify and leverage 


opportunities to utilize the employee’s greatest strengths, and address performance deficiencies and 


expectations immediately.  In addition, effective performance management systems incorporate goals 


that align with the strategic plan/vision of the organization so the employee sees the value in the role 


they provide to the organization;  and provides an opportunity to discuss career and professional 


development opportunities which can also benefit the department for effective succession planning. 


 


Currently the Fire Department provides an annual evaluation process for non-represented full time only.  


The Department indicated they not only evaluate performance but discuss and document goals.  Part 


time are not evaluated, and Village meets with union personnel as needed for performance related 


concerns as they occur, although the Lieutenants are in the same CBA with lower rank personnel.    


 


The current standardized form allows for five (5) job specific responsibilities, nine (9) general 


competency areas, and goals.  Each area can be rated 1-5.  The form does not formally incorporate 


career planning, nor does it include the option for an employee’s self-assessment.  Although the 


Department is satisfied with the tool, the Village should introduce a career planning/education/training 


section; and discuss the value of creating a self-assessment component to the process.  The Department 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 114 
 
 


should also begin evaluations for both part-time and union personnel, at least annually, although more 


performance management models are meeting more formally periodically throughout the year for 


ongoing feedback.  With that said, only the Chief and the Assistant Chief positions should have the 


responsibility of formal performance management, as Lieutenants are part of the same collective 


bargaining unit.  Lieutenants have the ability to train, direct the work of others, and provide immediate 


correction as needed, but must then forward all information to the Command Staff for possible further 


action. 


 


Recommendation - Performance Evaluations 
• Conduct annual performance evaluations on all positions. Priority Level 2 


 


• Incorporate a career planning/training/education section and self-assessment component to the 
evaluation process. Priority Level 4 


 


Promotion 


Currently the Department uses a multi-person panel interview process for promotions.  Although an 


interview is important for the selection of personnel, an interview does not normally provide a total 


picture of each candidate’s strength and weaknesses.     


 


The Consultants suggest the inclusion of a testing process called an Assessment Center for all 


promotional opportunities, unless outlined otherwise by the CBA.  An Assessment Center is a process 


that places the candidate in a testing environment that provides a high degree of reliability and insight 


into his/her supervisory, leadership, management, and/or operational potential by testing skills and 


ability, rather than just knowledge.  The candidate participates in a series of exercises designed to 


simulate his/her competency to perform a particular job.  


 


The Assessment Center process allows the Assessors to observe the candidate’s thought process, 


organizational skills, leadership ability, stress tolerance, analytical skills, influence, delegation ability, 


decisiveness, sensitivity and/or empathy, communication techniques (both verbal and non-verbal), 


ability to function as a team member, and his/her ethics.  In addition, assessment center testing can also 


be utilized to show a candidate’s ability to command.   


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 115 
 
 


The Department would then develop a promotional eligibility list.  Normally, the Chief can anticipate a 


future opening and conduct a testing process well in advance of a potential opening, which is beneficial 


not only to the employees but also the Department.  The promotional eligibility list is good for two (2) 


years.  The Human Resources Department should maintain all scores, rankings, and lists on behalf of the 


Department. 


 


An eligibility list can also serve as a management tool to assist in the career development of an 


employee.  Individuals who wish to test for a promotion should be developing the skills needed for the 


next level of position, and this discussion can be facilitated in the performance evaluation process.   


Individuals on the list should be able to “act” in the next rank in the absence of the supervisor, thus 


gaining on-the-job experience prior to assuming the promotional rank.  Further, this allows 


administration a chance to see how the employee performs when placed in the position.  These 


assignments are considered temporary, and it is recommended that either Village policy delineate the 


maximum length of time a person may serve in this capacity.  The purpose is for the employee to gain 


experience and try out the position, as well as minimize overtime in bringing individuals in to fill the 


spot.  This is not intended to fill a position on a regular basis with an individual with lower pay.   


 


Discipline 


Currently, the Village follows a standardized disciplinary process involving Command Staff and HR, union 


representation, and standardized forms.  The Department relies on Human Resources to navigate this 


issue, when it occurs.  The Village’s Disciplinary Policy is also outlined in the Employee Handbook.  


Because this is a topic of employment relations that can have significant impact to an organization, it is 


recommended all Command Staff have basic training in this area, which will be covered in a later 


section.   


 


Recommendation – Promotion 
• Incorporate an Assessment Center into the Fire Department promotional process.  Priority Level 


4 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 116 
 
 


HR/Management Training 


Training is an investment in not only employees, but to the entire organization.  Training opportunities 


not only teach a skill, but it is also a means of meeting regulatory or legal requirements.  Employment 


litigation is often a result of actions or statements of a manager/administration, simply because they are 


not trained with how to address various situations in the workplace.  It is important that employees in 


management/administration positions have sufficient “tools” in their toolboxes to address these issues 


in a manner that minimizes liabilities to an organization.  Topics of interest may vary from new 


supervisor topics: coaching, conflict resolution, performance management and documentation; to HR 


topics: employment law and compliance like FMLA, ADA, Harassment, Civil Rights etc.  The more 


educated supervisors are in these areas, the more effective they are in their roles, and the less likely 


they are to respond improperly to a personnel issue that could put the Village in a vulnerable defense 


position.   


 


The Village is recommended to establish a regular schedule of training topics for its command staff 


positions, but this may also benefit the entire Village.  Those topics should incorporate management 


topics, employment law and compliance topics, but could also expand to other areas the Village may 


deem critical for managers such as budgeting and strategic planning.  Employees who are not trained 


may not understand the legality behind certain statements or actions, which makes this a liability for the 


Village.  Therefore, it is recommended all manager/director positions receive basic training on 


employment law, interviewing, performance management, and discipline.  The HR Department could 


develop these training topics in house, or the Village could utilize outside sources for these topics.  Every 


Command Staff member should be required to attend a pre-determined number of trainings each year. 


 


The following is a training program example: 


1. Develop or outsource an employment law training program for all management personnel to 


include the topics of sexual harassment, discrimination, FMLA, ADA, and the First Amendment 


with public employees.  Require all management personnel to attend/view this training on an 


annual basis for legal updates. 


2. Develop a training program for the Village with two (2) tracks: 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 117 
 
 


a. Supervisory Management Track- basic employment law topics as previously identified, 


performance management, workplace documentation, conducting investigations, labor 


relations, resolution dispute, motivating employees, diversity training, effective 


communication, having difficult conversations, goal setting, team building, etc.  


Although the employment law topics should be updated annually, all other topics may 


rotate and evolve over time.  Future topics can be submitted to HR for 


consideration/development.  These topics may be open to employees who wish to be 


promoted in the future and can be used for effective succession planning. 


b. Village Administrative Processes Track (topics specific to the Village’s administrative 


processes)- budget development and monitoring, recruitment process, requesting a 


new position/position reclassification, records management, in-house software, etc. 


 


Recommendation - HR/Management Training 
• Develop a village wide management training program inclusive of supervisory topics, human 


resource topics, and administrative processes.  Priority Level 4 
 


Personnel Policies 


Personnel Policy Manuals/Handbooks are a summary of information about an organization that will 


often include administrative procedures and employment related policies.  This document covers basic 


topics such as expectations of conduct, selection and promotional processes, hours of work, discipline, 


benefits (if applicable), separation, and standard employment policy topics such as harassment.   


 


The Village has a comprehensive Employee Handbook, revised in 2017, so the Village is applauded for 


keeping this tool up to date with law changes and workplace best practices.  The Employee Handbook, 


however, does not identify what employees are covered by the Handbook.  It is presumed all items 


silent in the CBA will defer to the Employee Handbook for interpretation, but this is recommended to be 


clarified in an introductory statement within the Employee Handbook.   


 


Operational policy should be determined by the fire/EMS subject matter experts but guiding personnel 


related policies should be determined by human resource subject matter experts, who recommend 


policy for the entire organization, which is the Village.  A department’s personnel related policies should 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 118 
 
 


only supplement the Village’s policies, if necessary.  Village policy should always supersede unless 


otherwise specified in the Handbook.  A statement of conflicting policies should be included in the 


Village Handbook, so this is clear to employees.  


 


The following policy topics are recommended for development by the Village as it related to fire/EMS, 


but may have organization wide impacts: 


• Modified duty accommodation for both workers compensation and non-workers compensation 


• Fitness for Duty 


• Breast Feeding Accommodations 


• Use of Social Media 


• Employee Assistance 


• Recovery of tuition/education/training/gear 


 


Recommendation - Personnel Policies  
• Update the Village’s Employee Handbook to sate the Villages’ policy shall be used for issues not 


identified in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.  Priority Level 2 
 


• Update the Village’s Employee Handbook to state the Villages’ policy supersedes all department 
policies, if conflicting.  Priority Level 2 
 


• Develop policy for modified duty accommodation for both workers compensation and non-
workers compensation; Fitness for Duty; Use of Social Media; Employee Assistance; and Recovery 
of tuition/education/training/gear.  Priority Level 2 
 


• Develop policy for Breast Feeding Accommodations.  Priority Level 1 
 
 


Personnel Records 


Personnel records have three (3) major functions in an organization.  They provide a memory or recall to 


administration and employees; they offer documentation of events for use in resolving questions or 


human resources problems; and they provide data for research, planning, problem solving, and decision-


making. 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 119 
 
 


While federal, state, and local laws require that certain employee information be maintained, certain 


basic records should also be retained to avoid errors of memory and provide information for making 


management and human resources decisions. 


 


It is understood by the Consultants that all personnel related documents are maintained with the HR 


Department, with the exception of training certifications and training records.  The Fire Department 


does not have a retention policy in place to provide guidance on retention or destruction of these 


documents, which should be developed.   


 


Based on discussions with the Human Resources Director, the Village is likely effectively separating 


records (in their custody), into different files, as required with various laws.  For example, organizations 


must differentiate between employee information and medical information and maintain these 


documents in separate files.  Contents of personnel files vary by organization, but most human 


resources professionals accept some practices as standard.  The following provides a non-inclusive list of 


standard items, and where they should be maintained: 


 


Table 18: Employee File Example 


MAIN EMPLOYEE FILE 


Acknowledgement of employee handbook 


Acknowledgement of policies/policy revisions 


Application Materials 


Certifications, licences, transcripts, etc. 


Official performance documentation (memos, letters, discipline, recognition, etc.) 


Offer/promotion/transfer letter(s) 


Orientation checklist 


Performance appraisals 


Status Change documentation (change of address, position etc.) 


Termination checklist 


Training requests (with approval and/or denial documentation) 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 120 
 
 


Table 19: Payroll File Example 


SEPARATE PAYROLL FILE 


COBRA and other mandatory benefits notices 


Direct deposit authorizations 


Group benefit enrollment forms (health insurance or other forms with medical information must be 


placed in medical file) 


Miscellaneous deductions, garnishment orders, etc. 


New Hire verification 


Retirement system calculations/benefits 


W-4 form 


 


Table 20: Medical File Example 


SEPARATE MEDICAL FILE – MANDATORY SEPARATION  


FMLA documentation or other medical leave 


Medical/Psychological pre-employment exams 


Non-CDL drug and/or alcohol screening (CDL screening mandates its own file) 


Other medical tests results 


Sick verification notes  


Vaccine records and/or declination form 


Worker’s compensation information (doctor reports, letters, etc.) 


 


Table 21: Separation Best Practice Example 


SUBJECT FILES – MANDATORY SEPARATION OR BEST PRACTICE SEPARATION 


CDL/DOT drug and alcohol tests (maintain together for auditing purposes) 


Immigration Control Form I-9 (maintain together for auditing purposes)  


Investigation notes or reports 


Litigation documents 


Worker’s compensation claims 


 


Recommendation - Personnel Records 
• Develop a retention and destruction policy for Fire Department training records if not housed in 


HR.  Priority Level 2 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 121 
 
 


Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 


The Village does not currently have a formal Employee Assistance Program (EAP) although the 


Department does mental health resources provided by the Professional Fire Fighters of Wisconsin as 


well as a Department chaplain if needed.  Given the fire/EMS personnel continuously put their lives in 


jeopardy and respond to stressors most citizens don’t experience, ensuring they have support is critical, 


and the Department genuinely cares for the wellbeing of its personnel. 


  


EAP is a service that should be provided by the employer, with access for fire/EMS and law enforcement 


at a minimum.  There are multiple service model programs available from third party vendors that 


provide robust EAP programs, inclusive of traditional EAP, local events/programs for 


employees/dependents, publications/newsletters, coaching etc.  These programs can offer 24/7 


assistance via telephone, and its services include mental health support to budget management support, 


because sometimes life stressors outside work have an impact at work as well.  Some services have a 


specific focus for public safety, which may prove beneficial to the Village.  This is a service the Village is 


recommended to consider for its employees and family members. 


 


Recommendation - Employee Assistance  
• Search and contract for a confidential Third-Party Vendor to provide EAP services. This 


recommendation is consistent with the recommendation for the Village to provide an EAP to 
address suicide prevention. Priority Level 1.  


 
  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 122 
 
 


Training 


The personnel of the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department are highly trained in all areas of fire and 


emergency medical services.  The Fire Chief reports that all personnel must be trained/certified to 


respond to all types of hazards that may present within the village.  He further noted; the required 


training is more than surrounding departments require.  Below is the list of required State Certifications 


required by the Department and the hours needed to achieve the certification.  


 


Table 22: PPFD Full-Time Minimum Training Requirements 


Fulltime Requirements for State Certifications Hours Needed 


    
Firefighter I   96 hrs. 


Firefighter II   42 hrs. 


Driver Operator-Pumper  66 hrs. 


Driver Operator-Aerial   36 hrs. 


Hazardous Materials Operations  16 hrs. 


Hazardous Materials Technician  40 hrs. 


Technical Rescue Awareness  4 hrs. 


Rope Operations   40 hrs. 


Confined Space Operations  40 hrs. 


Trench Operations   40 hrs. 


Structural Collapse Operations  40 hrs. 


NREMT-P   10 months 


    
NOTE: All Fulltime personnel are Paramedics no EMT's  


 


Table 23: EMT/Paramedic Minimum Training Requirements 


PT/POC Requirements for State Certification Hours Needed 


  
Firefighter I 96 hrs. 


Firefighter II 42 hrs. 


EMT-B 12 weeks 


Technical Rescue Awareness 4 hrs. 


   
PT/POC-Three Paramedics and four EMT's  


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 123 
 
 


Continuing education is very important to ensuring the safety and efficiency of the Fire Department 


personnel.  The following training hours were logged for the Fire Department personnel: 


 


Table 24: 2016 PPFD Training Records 


2016   


Full time training hours 5,523 263 average per person 


Part time training hours 1106 158 average per person  


 


Table 25: 2017 PPFD Training Records 


2017   


Full time training hours 6376 206 average per person 


Part time training hours 801 114 average per person  


 


Table 26: 2018 PPFD Training Records 


2018   


Full time training hours 7475 277 average per person 


Part time training hours 992 141 average per person 
 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 124 
 
 


Pleasant Prairie Fire Station Facilities 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department covers the villages 33.33 square miles and a small area 


under contract which totals about .66 of a square mile totaling a coverage area of 34 square miles. The 


department covers this area for Fire, Rescue, and EMS to the paramedic level. The department also 


participates in both Auto Aid and Mutual Aid both in Wisconsin and Illinois. The Pleasant Prairie Fire & 


Rescue Department covers this response area out of two fire stations, and they are anticipating the 


need for a third fire station. All fire stations are owned by the village. 


 


Fire Station #1 


Figure 17: Fire Statin #1 - 3801 Springbrook Road 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire Station # 


1 is located at 3801 Springbrook 


Road, Pleasant Prairie WS. 53158. 


The station was built in 2015 and 


occupied in 2016. The station is a 


one-story station with a mezzanine 


equaling 1,834 square feet. The 


mezzanine contains mechanical  


equipment for the station, some  


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Apparatus Floor 


The apparatus floor is 6,624 square feet. The associated rooms with the apparatus floor that come off 


the apparatus floor are 2,136 square feet totaling 8,670 square feet. The associated rooms for the 


station storage, and a physical fitness area. The station is non-combustible construction. The building 


is fully sprinklered and has a full fire alarm system that is monitored by an off- site alarm company. The 


station has a backup emergency electrical generator that covers 100% of the electrical needs of the 


station. The generator is powered by a diesel engine and has a 250-gallon supply of diesel fuel.  The 


generator is run weekly and the fuel is checked at that time and whenever it is used, the tank is refilled 


whenever the fuel gets below 2/3 full. The fire station is 17,609 square feet in size. The station is 


Americans with Disabilities compliant and has equal facilities for both men and women.  


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 125 
 
 


apparatus floor include 3 turnout clothing areas, EMS supply and storage, a washroom, gear laundry 


room, workshop, fire supply and storage, outdoor yard Storage equipment, SCBA (self-contained 


breathing apparatus) and air compressor, air cascade, and approved filling station. The compressor’s 


intake was pipe to the outside air. The compressor had all appropriate paperwork for the compressor 


and the required air sample testing. At the time of inspection (April 2019) the air bottles were coming up 


for the required Department of transportation Hydro testing. Aladdin Fire Protection Company was 


scheduled in mid-May to hydro test all the SCBA bottles.  Aladdin Fire Protection Co. N7990 Miles Rd. 


Porterfield, Wisconsin 54159, Phone 800-732-0645. 


 


Recommendation - Station 1 Apparatus Floor 
• There should be an eyewash station somewhere on the apparatus area. It should have proper 


signage indicating its location. Priority Level 1 
 


The apparatus assigned to the station is as follows: 


5602 Assistant Chiefs Car 


5611-front line pumper/tender 


5614 reserve pumper/tender 


5615 reserve pumper tender 


5641 front line ambulance 


5652 squad special teams converted ambulance 


 5653 ice rescue/utility pick up, 


5671 Brush truck  


5655 Department ATV and transporting trailer 


5657 Zodiac boat with a 40 hp outboard engine and transport trailer 


Special teams Wells Cargo trailer 


Hazmat trailer owned by the County 


Antique Pirsch fire engine  


 The station apparatus floor has 4 overhead panel doors front and back in a drive through style that are 


16 feet high and 14 feet wide. However, the station does not utilize the drive through capabilities due to 


the amount of equipment stored here. The doors are controlled both by wall mounted switches and 


vehicle remotes. The apparatus floor is heated with radiant heat. The water is drained through a 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 126 
 
 


number of small 4” drains and a large 2-foot sewer in the middle of the truck floor. 


 


The station is equipped with a Plymovent exhaust removal system. The Department is looking to 


upgrade the system in the next several months because the exhaust hoses are getting to hot and are 


expensive to be replacing.  They also have a ventilation system that detects when toxic gases are 


present which then activates a forced air replenishment system removing the air and replacing with 


outside air.  


 


Living quarters 


The living quarters are 7,105 square feet in size and consist of the following rooms; 3 individual use 


unisex washrooms with showers, a kitchen, a day room, a radio watch room, an Assistant Chiefs Office, a 


vestibule, two (2) storage areas, a classroom/ conference room, two (2)  public washrooms without 


showers, an electrical room. There is also a dormitory area with 8 bedrooms (consisting of a bed with 3 


lockers and a desk) with one of the bedrooms being converted into a temporary Lieutenants office. The 


quarters are heated through hot water heat and air conditioned through an air handler on the roof. 


  


Fire Station 2 


Figure 18: Fire Station #2 - 8044- 88th Avenue 


Fire Station # 2 is the 


headquarters station for the 


department. Station #2 is 


located at 8044  88th Avenue, 


Pleasant Prairie WS. 53158 


The station was built in 1974 


as a public safety building. The 


police moved out to a new 


facility in 1995 and this station 


was remodeled in 1999. The 


station is a two-story  


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 127 
 
 


noncombustible building with a partial basement. The building is fully sprinklered and has a full fire 


alarm system that are monitored by an off-sight alarm company, (Emergency 24) a radio-controlled 


system. 


 


The station has a backup electrical generator that only supplies about 40% of the needed electrical 


power of the station. The generator is a converted diesel-powered generator to natural gas. 


 


Recommendation – Station 2  
• Install an electrical back- up generator at station 2 that can supply 100% the needs of the 


station.  Priority Level 3. 


 
• There should be an eyewash station somewhere on the apparatus area. It should have proper 


signage indicating its location. Priority Level 1 
 
 


The station is 9,054 square feet in size. The station does not appear to be Americans with Disabilities act 


compliant however may be under some of the exemptions for older buildings. 


 


Administration 


The administration area includes; a receptionist/administrative Assistant desk, an area for file cabinet 


storage, a vestibule/ waiting area, a radio watch desk, a Chiefs office, an Assistant Chiefs office, a 


training classroom, and two (2) small washrooms. The administration area is 1,851 square feet. 


Living Quarters 


The living quarters are split between the first-floor rear, the second floor and a physical fitness area in 


the partial basement. The kitchen and day room, and a pantry are at the rear of the first floor next to 


the EMS stock and storage, and a unisex washroom with shower. The second floor has two open bunk 


rooms and two single use washrooms with showers. There is only one stairway to the second floor but a 


wall ladder and door to the apparatus floor were added as a secondary means of egress. 


  
 
 
 
 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 128 
 
 


  
Figure 19: Escape door & ladder from 2nd floor 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


Recommendation – Station 2 Living Quarters 
• The escape door with a ten to twelve foot drop off to the apparatus floor, with a metal ladder 


attached to the wall could be a safety hazard for employees sleeping in the living quarters of the 
station.  There should be some safety measures (door open alarm) to prevent people not fully 
awake from opening an unsecured door and falling to the apparatus floor if dazed or sleep 
walking. Priority Level 2 
 


The second-floor bunk rooms and 2 washrooms are 987 square feet. The total living area is 3,703 square 


feet. The area is heated and cooled by gas forced air. 


 


Apparatus Floor 


The apparatus floor is 3,500 square feet in size. This includes the hose tower. There is an eye washing 


station on the apparatus floor by the ladder to the bunk rooms.  


 


The apparatus assigned to this station is as follows: 


5600 Fire Chiefs car  


5603 Assistant Chiefs car  


5654 utility pick up 


5672 brush truck  


5612 Pumper /Tender first line  


5642 first line ambulance  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 129 
 
 


5643 reserve ambulance  


5632 100 ‘Quint Tower Ladder platform  


 


The apparatus floor has three bays of drive through design but not used that way due to the amount of 


equipment. There are four overhead panel doors. The first drive through bay door has front and back 


doors that are 14’ high by 14’ wide. The second drive through bay doors are 14’ high and 24’ wide. The 


doors are operated by both wall mounted switches and vehicle remotes. The Apparatus Floor is heated 


by radiant heat. The water is drained off the floor by trench drains and 1 two-foot sewer. 


 


The station is equipped with a Plymovent exhaust removal system. The Department is looking to 


upgrade the system in the next several months because the exhaust hoses are getting to hot and are 


expensive to be replacing. They also have a ventilation system that detects toxic gases, once they are 


detected a forced air replenishment system operates removing the air and replacing with outside air. 


The fire department administration believes that when the new station 3 is built it would be prudent to 


remodel this station.  


Recommendation – Station #2 Remodel 
• Before remodeling, a needs assessment should be performed by an architect. The assessment 


would include gathering input from the fire administration and members concerning needs and 
requirements for future needs. The architect should provide layout options for review. Priority 
Level 4 
 


• If Fire Station #2 is to be remodeled it should be compliant with the Americans with Disability Act 
and all other building, fire and life safety codes. Priority Level 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 130 
 
 


Location Of A Third Fire Station 


Figure 20: Proposed site for Station #3 on RecPlex property 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie has considered 


building a third fire station for over a decade. 


Over this time, call volume has increased and 


the demand for the additional fire station has 


increased. The village has property located on 


the grounds of the RecPlex which has been 


proposed for the third fire station. This 


location is intended to serve the west side of 


the village and provide support for the other  


two fire stations. Further consideration for the new fire station facility would be relocating the 


administration offices from the current Station 2 location.  


 


Fire Station 3 – Located on the RecPlex Property  


The figure below illustrates what a four-minute response zone would look like on a Wednesday at 3:00 


PM. It demonstrates how a third fire station (located on the grounds of the RecPlex) would impact the 


response area to the west side of the village. It is important to note that there is no overlap of the 


response zone for the current two stations nor for the future three fire station response zone.  


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 131 
 
 


Figure 21: Recommended location for Fire Station #3 on the RecPlex Property 


 


 


Fire Station 3 – Alternate Located at 11509 Old Green Bay Road 


The Fire Chief has reported a second location was suggested to locate the third fire station on or near 


11509 Green Bay Road. The figure below illustrates the approximate location and travel times to some 


key areas within the village. This location has longer response times to the west side of the village than 


the recommended location on the RecPlex property.  


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 132 
 
 


Figure 22: Proposed third fire station location on Green Bay Road 


 
Recommendation – Third Fire Station Location  


• The Village should proceed with building a third fire station on the Prairie Springs Park. The data 
supports the addition of the third fire station to ensure all areas of the village are equally served 
by the fire department. Priority Level 2. 
 


• The administrative offices for the fire department should be relocated to Station 1. By vacating 
the existing administration offices at Fire Station 2, it would allow for the needed space for the 
firefighters living quarters. Priority Level 2 


 


• Before approving the architects plans for the new fire station, a needs assessment should be 
performed by an architect. The assessment would include gathering input from the 
administration and members concerning the future needs and requirements for the station. The 
architect should provide layout options for review after completing the needs assessment. 
Priority Level 4 
 


• When Fire Station #3 is built it should be compliant with the Americans with Disability Act and all 
other building, fire and life safety codes. Priority Level 4 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 133 
 
 


Apparatus 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department apparatus appears to be compliant with the NFPA 1900 


standard series as to when the vehicle was manufactured. All the apparatus appears to have a full 


complement of equipment as outlined in the ISO and NFPA required equipment lists. What the Village 


and Department is lacking is a formal apparatus replacement program.  


 


The following chart shows where the department apparatus is assigned and specific information about 


the vehicles contained in it.  


 


Table 27: PPFD Apparatus Details  
Apparatus Manufacturer Apparatus Type Year Mileage Hours Pump Tank


Station 1
5602 Assistant Chief Car Chevy Tahoe Command 2018 9,129 n/a n/a n/a


5653 pick up Ford F250 Utility 2016 23,692 n/a n/a n/a


5671 brush trk. Ford F350 Brush Truck 2011 11,918 n/a 245 220


5655 Polaris UTV-Utility 2014 n/a n/a 50 85


5655A Flattrail UTV Trailer 2,014 n/a n/a n/a n/a


5657 Boat Zodiac W/ 40 hrs Rescue Boat 2011 n/a n/a n/a n/a


5657A Trail X Boat Trailer 2011 n/a n/a n/a n/a


Special Teams Wells Cargo Teams Trailer 2013 n/a n/a n/a n/a


County Trailer Owned by county Housed Sta. 1


Antique Pirch Pub. Ed Engine 1935 n/a n/a n/a n/a


5611 Pump/Tender Pierce 1st Line Pumper Tender 2005 51,594 4,755 1,750 2,000


5614 Pump/Tender Pierce Reserve Pumper/Tender 1996 76,932 7,039 1,750 1,500


5615 Pump/Tender Pierce Reserve Pumper/Tender 1994 73,856 6,956 1,750 1,500


5641 Ambulance FordF550/Horton Medic 1st Line 2019 6,492 460 n/a n/a


5652 Squad Conv.International Amb. Special teams squad 2000 108,037 10,031 n/a n/a


5652A International Ambulance High School Referb Project 2008 118,565 8,920 n/a n/a


Station 2


5600 Chiefs Car Chevy Tahoe Command 2015 49,069 n/a n/a n/a


5603 Assistant Chief Car Chevy Tahoe Command 2018 9,391 n/a n/a n/a


5654 Pick Up Ford F250 Utility 2018 7,464 n/a n/a n/a


5672 Brush Truck Ford F350 Brush Truck 2011 16,261 n/a 200 180


5612 Pump/Tender Pierce 1st Line Pumper Tender 2010 41,919 4,154 1,750 1,750


5642 Ambulance Ford/Horton Medic 1st Line 2016 32,811 3,114 n/a n/a


5643 Ambulance Medtech International Medic Reserve 2010 118,809 8,049 n/a n/a


5632 Platform Quint E-One 100' Tower Ladder 2017 10,372 1,039 2,000 300  


The Apparatus maintenance program is overseen by a shift Lieutenant who in turn reports to the Fire 


Chief.  When a problem with a vehicle is detected the company officer enters it into a software program 


called Lad-Tec. The software is an internet-based program to notify all appropriate personnel of the 


problem.  In addition, the company officer notifies the Lieutenant in charge of maintenance and the on-


duty chief.  If the problem concerns safety or could further damage the vehicle it is taken out of service.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 134 
 
 


This includes placing it out of service in the CAD system, noting it in the daily log and placing an out of 


service notification on the steering wheel. If the problem is not able to be resolved by the maintenance 


officer, it is sent out to Mayer Repair services to be repaired. Mayer Repair is located at 14000 Leetsbir 


Road, Sturtevant, Wisconsin 53126. Mayer Repair has certified Emergency Vehicle Technicians (EVT) 


capable of making all types of repairs. Mayer also performs the preventative maintenance on the 


department’s vehicles except for the ladder truck. The ladder truck repairs, and preventative 


maintenance is done by technicians from Fire Safety USA which is located out of 3253 19th Street 


Northwest, Rochester MN. 55901. 


 


All annual pump tests are done by Fire Safety USA. All annual ladder testing (ground ladders and aerial 


main) is done by UL Laboratories located out of 333 Pfingsten Road, Northbrook IL. 60062. All 


paperwork concerning the repairs is kept by the vendor and the fire department maintenance officer. 


The maintenance officer scans the documents and files a copy in the departments records management 


system (Firehouse Software). All information concerning the vehicles purchase, build order, preventive 


maintenance, repairs and any other related paperwork is kept for the life of the vehicle.  


 


Good vehicle records are essential especially if there is an accident, injury or death involving an 


apparatus. In such a case, it is essential to have complete documentation on all problems, detailed work 


done, parts used, cost, and diagnoses made, this over the life of the vehicle.  In the case of the Insurance 


Service Office, Fire Service Rating Schedule all annual testing documentation must be kept for 10 years 


even if the apparatus has been replaced with a new vehicle. 


 


Portable tools are maintained in house whenever possible, or they are sent to Highway C Service.  


Highway C Service is located at 13325 Wilmot Road, Kenosha Wisconsin 53142.  All the chains from the 


chain saws are sharpened through Eastern Fire Equipment Services. Eastern Fire Equipment Services is 


located out of 440 Oak Street, Lemoyne Pa.17043. 


 


The fuel for the vehicles is obtained from the village facility and is available 24 hours a day. There are 


provisions for fuel delivery if needed by Wilkommern Fuel Company. 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 135 
 
 


Apparatus condition 


The apparatus appears to be in good condition and stocked with the tools and equipment listed by NFPA 


1901 and the Insurance Service Office 2013 Fire Suppression Rating Schedule. Everything appears to be 


in good functioning condition. Both Front line pumper/Tenders carry extrication equipment along with 


the Tower Ladder. 


 


Odometers vs. Engine Hour Meters 


An hour meter is a gauge or instrument that tracks and records overall elapsed time that the engine is 


actually running and is normally displayed in hours and tenths of hours.  The table “Apparatus/Vehicle 


Inventory” lists the apparatus/vehicles that have both odometers and engine hour meters.   


Odometers and engine hour gauges are used to track the running time of the vehicle/engine. It is 


important to track the mileage and running hours to ensure proper maintenance is performed as 


recommended by the manufacturer.  Preventive maintenance typically involves replacing, changing, 


checking parts, belts, filters, oil, lubrication or running condition in engines, motors, blowers, and fans, 


to name a few.   


Fire suppression vehicles, ambulances, and police cars may all have significantly higher running times 


compared to mileage.  Fire suppression vehicles can be running for hours at the scene of an emergency 


without clocking a single mile.  The same is true with ambulances who’s on-scene idle time or time at 


the hospital dropping off a patient will significantly increase the running hours without adding additional 


miles. If maintenance is performed on these vehicles based on odometer readings only, engine life may 


be affected. Maintenance personnel understand the wear issues surrounding a vehicle’s engine hour 


time compared to road miles; and therefore, Village decision makers should not base replacement 


needs on apparatus/vehicle appearance and mileage but consider all factors including engine hours. 


 


Sufficiency of Apparatus 


Sufficiency of apparatus can be considered in two divergent ways: the amount of apparatus and its 


capability.  The consultants have observed fire departments that have an abundance of apparatus, often 


resulting in apparatus that is rarely, if ever, deployed; or, more apparatus than the department is able to 


staff.  In other instances, departments are under-equipped and/or the apparatus is lacking the tools 


required to perform tasks on the emergency scene. The apparatus and equipment are appropriate for 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 136 
 
 


the department and satisfy both NFPA 1901, and the Insurance Service Office 2013 Fire Suppression 


Rating Schedule. 


 


Apparatus Replacement 


Fire apparatus, like all types of mechanical devices, have a finite life.  How long that life may be depends 


on many factors, such as mileage, engine hours, quality of the preventative maintenance program, 


technology advancements, quality of the driver training program, rule enforcement, quality of the 


original builder and components, availability of parts, and custom or commercial chassis, ability of the 


governing body to generate funding, and general appearance. 


 


Over the years, the NFPA has attempted to define life expectancy of apparatus with little success. The 


2016 edition of NFPA 1901 recommends fire departments evaluate whether to retain fire apparatus in 


first-line service for more than 15 years as a result of safety considerations.  


 
Annex D, titled Guidelines for First Line and Reserve Fire Apparatus due to changes in 
NFPA 1901, especially relating to safety, fire departments should seriously consider 
keeping fire apparatus more than 15 years in first-line service. It is recommended that 
apparatus more than 15 years old that have been properly maintained and that are still 
in serviceable condition be placed in reserve status; be upgraded in accordance with 
NFPA 1912; and incorporate as many features as possible of the current fire apparatus 
standard (section D.3). Apparatus that were not manufactured to the applicable NFPA 
fire apparatus standard or that are over 25 years old should be replaced. 


 


Another significant factor in equipment replacement as outlined in the NFPA Standard, is the rapidly 


changing area of technology, much of which is directly related to firefighter safety.  Based on this factor, 


apparatus technology becomes an issue when considering replacement.  NFPA recommends apparatus 


older than 15 years should be considered for reserve status only if these NFPA standards have been 


followed: required maintenance of the vehicle being adequately maintained, and the overall condition 


of the vehicle has been determined to be safe.  Apparatus that were not manufactured to the applicable 


NFPA Fire Apparatus Standard or that are over 25 years old should be replaced.  


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 137 
 
 


Table 28: NFPA Vehicle Replacement Schedule 


Type of Apparatus Recommended in service years


Pumper 15 Years with 5 years reserve


Pumper/Tender 15 Years with 5 years reserve


Rescue Squad 10 years


Brush Truck As Needed


Aerial/Platform 25 Years


Ambulance 10 Years/Rechassis and retitle Every other cycle


Trailers As Needed


Boat As Needed


UTV As Needed


Cars/ Pick Ups As Needed  


 


Summary of Vehicles Needing Replacement 


Station #1 has two (2) vehicles that are overdue for replacement (5614 & 5615) and one (1) additional 


vehicle (5611) that should be replaced next year. It is important to know that typically it takes a year to 


design, bid/approve purchase, and build fire apparatus. Purchasing of demo or stock units may be an 


option upon availability but does not allow for custom features.  All three of the vehicles needing 


replacement are equipped with large water tanks for use in non-hydrant areas. Since the village now 


provides over 90% of the area with fire hydrants there is not the necessity it once had to have a 


replacement vehicle built with a large water tank.  


 


Future vehicle replacement consideration by the village should examine the needs of the community 


and applicable standards of service including the Insurance Services Office. This would include a second 


ladder truck to ensure the village always has one in service. The second ladder truck does not need to be 


as large/expensive as the current ladder/tower. A single axle quint fire truck would be recommended for 


the vehicle. By design a quint ladder truck contains a pump, water tank, full complement of hose and 


ground ladders and a mounted aerial ladder on top of the vehicle. The quint design makes the vehicle 


very versatile and maneuverable.  


 


The village should consider replacing reserve ambulance (5643) next year. It would be prudent for the 


fire department to explore the process of replacing the chassis of its ambulance instead of full 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 138 
 
 


replacement as a cost saving measure. It is only recommended to replace the chassis once on an 


ambulance.  


 


Table 29: PPFD Vehicles Per NFPA Replacement Schedule 


5653 pick up Utility 2016 As Needed


5657 Brush Truck Brush Truck 2011 As Needed


5655 UTV UTV Utility 2014 As Needed


5655A UtV Trailer Trailer 2014 As Needed


5657 Boat Boat / 40 hrs engine 2,011 As Needed


5657A Trailer Trailer 2011 As Needed


Special teams Trailer 2013 As Needed


County Trailer N/A N/A N/A


Antique Pub Ed Engine 1935 N/A


5611Pumper/Tender 1st line pumper/Tender 2005 2020 + 5 yrs reserve


5614Pumper/Tender Reserve Pumper/Tender 1996 Overdue


5615Pumper/Tender Reserve Pumper/Tender 1994 Overdue


5641 Ambulance Medic 1st Line 2019 2029 Rechassis


5652 Squad Special Teams Squad 2000 Remove from service


5652A High School Project 2008 Replacement for squad


Station 2


5600 Chiefs Car Command 2015 As Needed


5603 Assistant Chief Car Command 2018 As Needed


5654 Pick Up Utility 2018 As Needed


5672 Brush Truck Brush Truck 2011 As Needed


5612Pumper/Tender 1st line pumper/Tender 2010 2025


5642 Ambulance 1st line Medic 2016 2026 Rechassis


5643 Ambulance Reserve Medic 2010 Rechassis 2020


5632 100' Platform Aerial Quint 2017 2042  


 


Recommendation – Vehicle Replacement 
• Replace two of the three Pumper/tenders at Station #1. Consideration of one the vehicles to be a 


quint ladder truck and the other with an engine/squad design to carry special rescue (hazmat, 
trench, high angle and below grade rescue equipment).  Priority Level 1 
 


• Working with the village administration and finance department develop a vehicle replacement 
schedule. Ensure funding for future vehicle purchases are provided in the village reserves. 
Priority level 2 
 


• Replace the reserve ambulance thus allowing the new vehicle to be front line and an older 
ambulance to move into the reserve category. Priority Level 2  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 139 
 
 


 


Financial  


Fiscal Analysis  


This section will analyze the financial position of the Village of Pleasant Prairie providing a detailed 


analysis of revenues and expenses including the operating and capital budgets of the Pleasant Prairie 


Fire & Rescue Department.  The information and data utilized in this analysis includes: 


• Village of Pleasant Prairie Financial Statements Including Independent Auditor’s Report as of and 
for the Year Ended December 31, 2018; 


 


• Village of Pleasant Prairie 2019 General Government Budgets; 
            


• 2017, 2018 and 2019 Government Budget Presentations; 
 


• 2018 General Capital Fund dated 4/12/2019; 
 


• Village Documents Consisting of; Fixed Asset Capitalization/Amortization Policy, Fund Balance 
Policy, Investment Policy, Purchase Card Process, Purchasing Policy; 
 


• Fire and Rescue Protection- Ambulance Service Rates; and 
 


• Fire and Rescue Protection- Fees for Recovery of Costs. 
 


The Village of Pleasant Prairie’s budget supports the day-to-day operations of the Village. The annual 


budget year for the Village of Pleasant Prairie is January 1st to December 31st.  This year’s Village budget, 


referred to as the 2019 budget, is for the time period of January 1, 2019, to December 31, 2019. The 


Village’s budget is comprised of three types of funds consisting of: 


 


• Governmental Funds- The Village’s basic service is included in this fund including the Fire 
Department. 
  


• Propriety Funds- Fee for service are included in this fund and the Village operates these funds like 
a business. 
 


• Fiduciary Funds- The Village acts as a trustee for collection of all property taxes within the Village 
for other taxing districts. This fund is not included in the Village’s governmental wide financial 
statements because these assets cannot be used to finance operations. 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 140 
 
 


The Village closed the 2018 budget in a strong financial position and remains rated AA2 by Moody’s 


Investor Service.  The general fund balance increased by $1.2 million to 7.5 million which is 47% of the 


2018 operating budget.  The Village’s general government operating fund for fiscal year 2019 is 


proposed at a $1,093,822 use of fund balance reserves with revenues budgeted at $17,439,180 and 


expenses budgeted at $18,533,002.  The Village has up to date financial policies with strong oversight 


and appropriate purchasing controls in place. 


 


Fire and Ambulance Fund Revenues 


The Fire Department’s 2019 operating budget revenues are budgeted at $828,303, operating expenses 


at $4,076,799 and capital expenses of $1,561,483.  The fire and ambulance revenues account for five 


revenue accounts within the Village’s general revenue budget.  The purpose of these revenues is to help 


offset the cost of providing service and emergency responses.  


 


Table 30: Fiscal Year 2019 Fire Department Budget Revenues 


Revenues Actual FY 16 Actual FY 17 Actual FY 18 Budget FY 19 


Fire Insurance Dues $103,983 $122,591 $121,270 $122,590 


Wisconsin EMS Grant $4,199 $4,201 $4,216 $4,201 


Fire Dept. Permits $119,443 $120,166 $131,721 $117,710 


Fire Recovery $60,088 $45,334 $41,265 $39,500 


Ambulance Billing $520,946 $538,008 $454,017 $544,302 


Total Fire Revenue $808,659 $830,300 $752,490 $828,303 


 


The Fire Department’s fiscal year 2019 total budgeted revenues of $808,659 is $75,813 more than fiscal 


year 2018 actual revenues; however, is right in line with fiscal year actual revenues for 2017 and 2016. A 


look at the individual revenue lines aid in explaining that the ambulance billing revenue line was off over 


$90 thousand in 2018 however the revenue line item was budgeted using historical trend lines.  The 


remaining four revenue lines are budgeted relative flat year over year.  


The Village has ordinances allowing for the fire recovery and ambulance billing revenue lines to be 


collected.  A review of the Village’s Municipal Code Chapter 180 Fire and Rescue Protection: Section 15, 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 141 
 
 


Ambulance Service Rates and Section 24, Fee for Recovery of Costs reveals that both sections have fee 


schedules written into the codes. 


 


Table 31: Current Ambulance Service fee Schedule 


Description  Resident Rate Nonresident Rate 


Basic Life Support $1,000 $1,200 


Mileage, Loaded Miles $15 $15 


Basic Life Support Non-Transport $1,000 $1,200 


Advanced Life Support $1,000 $1,200 


Mileage, Loaded Miles $15 $15 


Advanced Life Support Non-Transport $1,000 $1,200 


Advanced Life Support Intercept Fee $1,000 $1,200 


 
Table 32: Current Fire Recovery Fee Schedule 


Description  Charge Per Hour 


Pumper/Tanker $400 


Engine $300 


Ladder Truck $350 


Tanker $300 


Grass Fire truck $150 


Command Car $100 


Ambulance $200 


Personnel, Special Equipment and Disposal Actual Cost 


Administration Charge 5% 


 


Recommendation - Fire Revenue  
• A fee study should be completed bringing the ambulance billing and fire recovery fee 


schedules up to date.  Priority Level 4 
 


• An automatic cost escalator tied to CPI (Consumer Price Index) should be included in both fee 
ordinances keeping the fee schedule current without annual studies needing to be 
completed. Priority Level 4 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 142 
 
 


Fire Operating Expenditures 


The Fire Department’s operating budget consists of 56-line items that are rolled up in six categories 


including; salaries, fringe benefits, other salaries and benefits, contracted services, material & supplies 


and other expenses.  The 2019 budget is a 9% increase over 2018 actuals with 87.6% of the budget 


allocated for salaries and benefits.  The three year look back shows that the 2019 budget is right in line 


with historical spending and the line items that are driving the budget up such as health care are right in 


line with industry trends. 


 


Table 33: Fiscal Year 2019 Fire Department Operations Budgeted Expenditures 


Expenditures Budget FY 19 Actual FY 18 Actual FY 17 Actual FY 16 


Salaries $2,494,729 $2,282,700 $2,229,911 $2,085,115 


Fringe Benefits $1,076,865 $956,408 $883,549 $853,311 


Other Salaries and Benefits $11,150 $1,214 $1,987 $4,753 


Contracted Services $293,251 $264,047 $248,134 $282,957 


Materials & Supplies $166,804 $165,852 $138,978 $111,281 


Other Expenses $34,000 $40,985 $66,068 $59,745 


Total Fund Expenditures $4,076,799 $3,711,205 $3,568,626 $3,397,161 


 


Fire Department Capital Budget 


The 2019 fiscal year budget has $726,010 in capital expenditures.  Over the past three budget cycles the 


Fire Department’s capital budget has fluctuated greatly from $86,861 to $1,303,544.  The budget 


documents delineate capital purchases above and below $50,000.  The below $50,000 capital budgeted 


items are one time purchased items that if included in the operating budget would cause fluctuations 


year over year.  The over $50,000 capital items include vehicles, building projects and expensive one-


time equipment purchases.  It is of note that in 2018 and 2019 budget cycles the Fire Department will be 


purchasing an ambulance.  This back to back purchase sends a signal that an apparatus replacement 


program needs to be established or updated with life cycles allowing like type purchases to be made at 


appropriate incremental time cycles.  Additionally, having a solid long term established capital plan for 


buildings and equipment will allow for smoothing of the capital budget year over year.  The current 


funding sources for fire capital projects of using the levy and borrowing should be subsidized by grants. 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 143 
 
 


Many of the equipment purchases included in the capital budgets are high Priority Level items in the 


federal government’s fire and public safety grant programs and thus grants should be used to offset the 


costs whenever possible.  Additionally, the budgeted costs of the rescue pumper and ambulances are 


flagged for being on the high end for these apparatus types.  Group purchasing and/or a generic well 


written specifications meeting the Department’s needs will create a competitive bidding environment 


helping drive apparatus purchase costs down. 


 
Table 34: Three Year Fire Department Budgeted Capital 


Project Name Budget FY 19 Budget FY 18 Budget FY 17 


LED Lighting $13,500   


SCBA Hydro Test $2,600   


Staffing Study $30,000   


Ambulance $309,581 $307,103  


Radios $195,329   


CMD Post Comm. $175,000   


Automobile  $48,570  


4 Door Pickup  $39,302  


Concrete Approaches  $20,184  


Rescue Pumper  $888,385  


Protective Clothing   $49,086 


Radios and Pagers   $27,275 


Rescue Task Force PPE   $10,500 


Annual Total  $726,010 $1,303,544 $86,861 


 


Recommendation - Fire Capital Expenditure  
• Long range capital plans for apparatus, buildings and equipment should be established or 


updated taking into account life cycles to guard against spikes in capital expenditures. 
Priority Level 4 
 


• A program to research and apply for any and all grants in alignment with the Fire 
Department’s planning documents needs to be established.  Priority Level 4 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 144 
 
 


• Multiple item equipment currently being budgeted for as one-time capital items should be 
assessed for suitability to be included in the Fire Department’s operating line item budget as 
an ongoing standardized replacement cycle versus large one-time purchases. Priority Level 4 


 


Fire Service Health and Safety 


Firefighter Life Safety Initiatives 


The 16 Firefighter Life Safety Initiatives are a result of a summit in 2004 with all the major fire service 


constituencies.  At the summit, the National Fallen Firefighters Foundation was tasked with 


promulgating the Initiatives throughout the fire service and developing material to support their 


implementation.  Since then, the Initiatives have informed the emerging safety culture in the US fire 


service and become the foundation for fire departments and EMS organizations who have a desire to 


ensure that their firefighters and medics return home safely after every shift.  


Below is a list of the 16 Life Safety Initiatives:  


1. Define and advocate the need for a cultural change within the fire service relating to safety; 
incorporating leadership, management, supervision, accountability and personal responsibility.   


2. Enhance the personal and organizational accountability for health and safety throughout the 
fire service.   


3. Focus greater attention on the integration of risk management with incident management at 
all levels, including strategic, tactical, and planning responsibilities.   


4. All firefighters must be empowered to stop unsafe practices.   


5. Develop and implement national standards for training, qualifications, and certification 
(including regular recertification) that are equally applicable to all firefighters based on the 
duties they are expected to perform.   


6. Develop and implement national medical and physical fitness standards that are equally 
applicable to all firefighters, based on the duties they are expected to perform.   


7. Create a national research agenda and data collection system that relates to the initiatives.   


8. Utilize available technology wherever it can produce higher levels of health and safety.  


9. Thoroughly investigate all firefighter fatalities, injuries, and near misses.   







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 145 
 
 


10. Grant programs should support the implementation of safe practices and/or mandate safe 
practices as an eligibility requirement.   


11. National standards for emergency response policies and procedures should be developed 
and championed.   


12. National protocols for response to violent incidents should be developed and championed.   


13. Firefighters and their families must have access to counseling and psychological support.   


14. Public education must receive more resources and be championed as a critical fire and life 
safety program.   


15. Advocacy must be strengthened for the enforcement of codes and the installation of home 
fire sprinklers.   


16. Safety must be a primary consideration in the design of apparatus and equipment.   


 


National Fallen Fire Fighters - Courage to Be Safe Program 


The National Fallen Firefighters Foundation developed the Courage to be Safe program.  The course is 


designed to change the culture of accepting the loss of firefighters as a normal occurrence. 


The program focuses on the need for firefighters and officers to change fundamental attitudes and 


behaviors in order to prevent line of duty deaths.  The central theme promotes the courage to do the 


right thing in order to protect yourself and other firefighters and ensure that “Everyone Goes Home” at 


the end of the day. 


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 146 
 
 


Firefighter Cancers 


Figure 23: Source Firefighter Cancer Support Network 


Firefighting continues to be a 


dangerous profession, and a growing 


body of research and data shows that 


contributions that job-related 


exposures have in chronic illnesses, 


such as cancer and heart diseases. 


The National Institute for 


Occupational safety and Health 


(NIOSH) recently undertook two large 


studies focused on cancer and 


concluded that firefighters face a 


nine (9) percent increase in cancer 


diagnosis, and a fourteen (14) percent increase in cancer-related deaths, compared to the general 


population in U.S. 


 


Numerous studies have shown that firefighters are at increased risk of many types of cancer.  The 


Firefighter Cancer Support Network released a white paper in 2013 on cancer in the fire service and 


what firefighters can do to prevent it.  The paper included 11 immediate actions you can take to protect 


yourself against cancer.  


 


Firefighter Cancer Support Network: 11 Immediate Actions to Protect Against Cancer 


1. Use SCBA from initial attack to finish of overhaul. (Not wearing SCBA in both active and post-fire 
environments is the most dangerous voluntary activity in the fire service today.) 
  


2. Do gross field decon of PPE to remove as much soot and particulates as possible. 
 


3. Use Wet-Nap or baby wipes to remove as much soot as possible from head, neck, jaw, throat, 
underarms and hands immediately and while still on the scene. 
 


4. Change your clothes and wash them immediately after a fire. 
 


5. Shower thoroughly after a fire. 



http://www.firefightercancersupport.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/Taking-Action-against-Cancer-in-the-Fire-Service.pdf

http://www.nvfc.org/files/documents/safetyhealth/FCSN-immediate-actions-against-cancer.pdf





 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 147 
 
 


 
6. Clean your PPE, gloves, hood and helmet immediately after a fire. 


 
7. Do not take contaminated clothes or PPE home or store it in your vehicle. 


 
8. Decon fire apparatus interior after fires. 


 
9. Keep bunker gear out of living and sleeping quarters. 


 
10. Stop using tobacco products. 


 
11. Use sunscreen or sun block. 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire Chief is proud of the Department’s efforts to aggressively address the growing 


firefighter cancer concerns.  He reports that his Department utilizes the suggested 11 cancer prevention 


steps.  


Recommendation – Cancer Prevention  
• Thoroughly cleaning turnout gear is an important step in removing cancer causing carcinogens 


from the firefighters Personal Protective Clothing.  All fire stations should have a gear 
washer/extractor so the firefighter’s turnout gear and uniforms may be cleaned as soon after 
they become contaminated.  Priority Level 1 
 


•  Having two sets of firefighter turnout gear is an important step in preventing the firefighters 
from wearing contaminated personal protective clothing.  A second set of turnout gear allows 
the firefighters to continue to go on calls after being in a toxic atmosphere. Priority Level 2. 
 


Firefighter Suicides  


First responders, including policemen and firefighters, are more likely to die from suicide than in the line 


of duty, according to a new study.  In 2017, the Ruderman Family Foundation reported at least 103 


firefighters and 140 police officers took their own lives, compared to the 93 firefighters and 129 police 


officers who died in the line of duty.  The mental health study cited PTSD and depression stemming from 


exposure to trauma as factors that contributed to the higher-than-usual suicide rates. 


 
"First responders are heroes who run towards danger every day in order to save the lives of 
others. They are also human beings, and their work exerts a toll on their mental health," said Jay 
Ruderman, President of the Ruderman Family Foundation. 


 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 148 
 
 


The paper also highlights barriers that block first responders' access to mental health services, including 


the shame and stigma surrounding mental health within professions that celebrate bravery and 


toughness. 


As the awareness concerning behavior health for firefighters continues to emerge there are many 


networking groups forming to help first responders.  They include programs from the International 


Association of Fire Chiefs, International Association of Fire Fighters, and the Firefighter behavioral 


Health alliance amongst many others.  


 


Recommendation – Suicide Prevention  
• The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department should have access to a confidential Employee 


Assistance Program (EAP).  The program should be provided to assist the firefighters with 
emotional and, stressful situations.   Priority Level 1 
 


• The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department should train Peer Support Members who could 
help other members in need of help. This should include spouses/significant others of 
department members. Priority Level 1 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 149 
 
 


 


Previous Consultant Report Follow Up 


Review of the BSB Consulting Report from 9/7/2011.  


 In 2011, The Village Administrator commissioned Dr. Barbara S. Blumenfeld to do an 


“assessment/analysis” in response “to a number of issues concerning the Village’s Fire & Rescue 


Department”.   


The issues of greatest significance from the BSB Consulting Report are noted below:  


The issues of Greatest significance are: 


• Staffing levels- including recruitment and retention 


• Frequency of call backs/time spent working 


• Poor Communications 


• Lack of Respect/leadership 


• Lack of Teamwork 


• Disorganization 


• Type and consistency of training 


• Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’S) 


• An Environment that does not accept change and embrace new ideas 


• Inconsistent disciplinary action 


• Other (uniforms/communal meals) 


 


The staffing issue was an important issue in 2011 as it continues to be in 2019.  Shortly after the 


adoption of the report by Dr. Blumenfeld, the Village Board authorized hiring an additional seven (7) 


full-time personnel.  The additional personnel were for six (6) new positions and one vacant authorized 


position.  The report outlined the shortage of personnel for the Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 


Department as it related to some surrounding departments (City of South Milwaukee, Village of 


Greendale, Village of Caledonia).  


 


The Fire Department took on new leadership after the report which was a recommendation in the 


report.  The new Fire Chief continued to address the issues outlined in the report by Dr Blumenfeld.  The 


remaining issues outlined in the report have either been addressed or are an ongoing effort to 


complete.  


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 150 
 
 


Summary of Recommendations  


Pleasant Prairie - Recommendation Priority 


Priority Objective Recommendation 


1 Cancer Prevention 


Thoroughly cleaning turnout gear is an important step in 
removing cancer causing carcinogens from the firefighters 
Personal Protective Clothing.  All fire stations should have a gear 
washer/extractor so the firefighter’s turnout gear and uniforms 
may be cleaned as soon after they become contaminated.   


1 Compensation FLSA 
Develop a written policy to clarify work periods for the Fire 
Department. 


1 Compensation FLSA 
Review Special Pays to ensure it is properly calculated into the 
regular rate for FLSA compliance. 


1 Dispatch (PSAP) 


The Village should assess the need for its secondary PSAP 
inasmuch as it delays notification of emergency responses by the 
fire department and consider having Kenosha County PSAP 
dispatch for Pleasant Prairie.  


1 Employee Assistance 


Search and contract for a confidential Third-Party Vendor to 
provide EAP services. This recommendation is consistent with the 
recommendation for the Village to provide an EAP to address 
suicide prevention.  


1 Emergency Activity 
Mutual aid calls both received and given need to be categorized 
as such in Firehouse™ software, and agreements with neighboring 
departments developed.  


1 Fire Based EMS 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department should continue to 
provide fire-based EMS to the community.  If this 
recommendation is cost challenging, consideration could be given 
to the utilization of contractual EMS personnel within the 
department to offset the cost of full-time wages and benefits. 


1 Part-time Employees 
The Consultants recommend that the fire department leadership 
make recruitment and retention of Part-Time members as a high 
priority.  


1 Personnel Policies Develop policy for Breast Feeding Accommodations. 


1 Recruitment 
Remove the U.S. Citizenship question from the employment 
application.   


1 Recruitment 
Do not require a copy of the Driver’s License until the candidate is 
going through the background process.   


1 Staffing 


The Consultants recommend increasing the minimum staffing at 
Station 1 and Station 2 to five (5) personnel which would increase 
the ability to serve the community with more staffed apparatus.  
Each station should have three personnel on a fire suppression 
vehicle (engine or tower/ladder) and two (2) personnel on an 
ambulance.  


1 Station #1 
There should be an eyewash station somewhere on the apparatus 
area. It should have proper signage indicating its location.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 151 
 
 


Pleasant Prairie - Recommendation Priority 


Priority Objective Recommendation 


1 Station #2 
There should be an eyewash station somewhere on the apparatus 
area. It should have proper signage indicating its location.  


1 Suicide Prevention 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department should have 
access to a confidential Employee Assistance Program (EAP).  The 
program should be provided to assist the firefighters with 
emotional and, stressful situations.    


1 Suicide Prevention 


The Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department should train Peer 
Support Members who could help other members in need of help. 
This should include spouses/significant others of department 
members.  


1 Testing/Interviewing 
All personnel who participate in interviews should be trained in 
interview techniques/legal questioning.  


1 Vehicle Replacement 


Replace two of the three Pumper/tenders at Station #1. 
Consideration of one the vehicles to be a quint ladder truck and 
the other with an engine/squad design to carry special rescue 
(hazmat, trench, high angle and below grade rescue equipment).   


2 
Applicant 


Communication 


Amend the template offer letter to clearly identify when the 
conditional offer many be rescinded and separate from other 
requirements to maintain upon hire. 


2 
Applicant 


Communication 


Develop a written prorated calculation to recover employee 
tuition/education/gear reimbursements expenses in the first three 
(3) years. 


2 Cancer Prevention 


 Having two sets of firefighter turnout gear is an important step in 
preventing the firefighters from wearing contaminated personal 
protective clothing.  A second set of turnout gear allows the 
firefighters to continue to go on calls after being in a toxic 
atmosphere.  


2 Compensation FLSA 
Adjust the Classification of Paid-On-Call and Part-Time to Part-
Time only on the salary schedule and other Village documents.   


2 Emergency Activity 


Simultaneous (overlapping) emergency incidents numbers should 
continually be assessed and when the total percentage of 
simultaneous to total calls reaches and maintains an average of 
20%, additional staffing resources should be discussed.  


2 Job Descriptions 
The Fire Department and Human Resources Department should 
ensure all job descriptions are updated on an annual basis and 
shared with employees during evaluation meetings. 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 152 
 
 


2 National Standard 


The Fire Department should not adopt NFPA 1710.  Adoption 
would include the adoption of all OSHA, DSPS and NFPA standards 
by reference.  However, a plan should be developed to meet as 
many standards as possible in the future. 


2 Onboarding 


Develop a new employee orientation checklist for the Fire 
Department and Human Resources to ensure all paperwork, 
benefits, guiding policies, and Village and Department 
information is consistently provided and documented.  Ensure this 
includes an employee signature/acknowledgement.  


2 Part-time Employees 


Review and implement new rules for Part Time Firefighters, while 
recognizing further requirements may diminish available Part-
Time applicants or current members and should be reassessed by 
the department’s leadership.  


2 Part-time Personnel 
Develop a targeted recruitment plan for part-time fire/EMS 
opportunities. 


2 Part-time Personnel 
Develop evening and weekend training opportunities to introduce 
flexible scheduling into part time training.   


2 Part-time Personnel Allow secondary employment in fire/EMS.  


2 
Performance 
Evaluations 


Conduct annual performance evaluations on all positions.  


2 Personnel Policies 
Update the Village’s Employee Handbook to sate the Villages’ 
policy shall be used for issues not identified in the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement.   


2 Personnel Policies 
Update the Village’s Employee Handbook to state the Villages’ 
policy supersedes all department policies, if conflicting.   


2 Personnel Policies 


Develop policy for modified duty accommodation for both 
workers compensation and non-workers compensation; Fitness 
for Duty; Use of Social Media; Employee Assistance; and Recovery 
of tuition/education/training/gear.   


2 Personnel Records 
Develop a retention and destruction policy for Fire Department 
training records if not housed in HR.   


2 Recruitment 
HR should screen all applicants for minimum qualification and 
maintain all documentation.  


2 Recruitment 
Remove the requirement to provide proof of automobile 
insurance from the employment application. 


2 Recruitment Remove the CDL questions from the employment application.   


2 Staffing 
The Village should consider how to staff a future fire station and 
the costs attributed along with it prior to building it.  


2 Staffing 
The collection of data (consistent with the CPSE Standards of 
Coverage) should be utilized for future consideration of additional 
personnel and fire stations. 


2 Staffing 


The staffing for the proposed new fire station should be a 
minimum of three (3) personnel.  The staff should jump between 
an ambulance and a fire suppression vehicle depending on the call 
they are dispatched to.  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 153 
 
 


2 Station #2 


The escape door with a ten to twelve foot drop off to the 
apparatus floor, with a metal ladder attached to the wall could be 
a safety hazard for employees sleeping in the living quarters of 
the station.  There should be some safety measures (door open 
alarm) to prevent people not fully awake from opening an 
unsecured door and falling to the apparatus floor if dazed or sleep 
walking.  


2 Station #3 


The Village should proceed with building a third fire station on the 
Prairie Springs Park. The data supports the addition of the third 
fire station to ensure all areas of the village are equally served by 
the fire department.  


2 Station #3 


The administrative offices for the fire department should be 
relocated to Station 1. By vacating the existing administration 
offices at Fire Station 2, it would allow for the needed space for 
the firefighters living quarters.  


2 Testing/Interviewing Maintain all application screening processes and documentation.   


2 Testing/Interviewing 
Utilize a standardized rating system to rank candidates during 
interviews, including PFC interviews.   


2 Testing/Interviewing Human Resources should lead the interview process with the PFC. 


2 Vehicle Replacement 
Working with the village administration and finance department 
develop a vehicle replacement schedule. Ensure funding for future 
vehicle purchases are provided in the village reserves.  


2 Vehicle Replacement 
Replace the reserve ambulance thus allowing the new vehicle to 
be front line and an older ambulance to move into the reserve 
category.  


3 
Applicant 


Communication 


HR should be the Department communicating with applicants 
during the interview/hiring process, and when applications are no 
longer being considered.   Templates should be developed within 
the Applicant Tracking System.  


3 Payroll/Recordkeeping Implement requirement of employee completion of timecards. 


3 Recruitment 
Develop a targeted recruitment plan for fire/EMS employment 
opportunities.   


3 Station #2 
Install an electrical back- up generator at station 2 that can 
supply 100% the needs of the station. 


3 Testing/Interviewing 
Command staff should interview candidates prior to PFC 
interviews, to narrow the candidates for the PFC to serious 
candidates only.   


4 Capital Expenditure 
Long range capital plans for apparatus, buildings and equipment 
should be established or updated taking into account life cycles to 
guard against spikes in capital expenditures.  


4 Capital Expenditure 
A program to research and apply for any and all grants in 
alignment with the Fire Department’s planning documents needs 
to be established.   







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 154 
 
 


4 Capital Expenditure 


Multiple item equipment currently being budgeted for as one-
time capital items should be assessed for suitability to be included 
in the Fire Department’s operating line item budget as an ongoing 
standardized replacement cycle versus large one-time purchases.  


4 Fire Revenue 
A fee study should be completed bringing the ambulance billing 
and fire recovery fee schedules up to date.   


4 Fire Revenue 
An automatic cost escalator tied to CPI (Consumer Price Index) 
should be included in both fee ordinances keeping the fee 
schedule current without annual studies needing to be completed.  


4 
HR/Management 


Training 


Develop a village wide management training program inclusive of 
supervisory topics, human resource topics, and administrative 
processes.   


4 National Standard 
The Fire Department should start collecting data as suggested in 
the CPSE Self-Study Guide.  After good data has been collected for 
three years, they should seek international accreditation (CPSE).   


4 Payroll/Recordkeeping 
Determine if software capabilities may transfer payroll data from 
one system to another to eliminated dual entries.   


4 
Performance 
Evaluations 


Incorporate a career planning/training/education section and 
self-assessment component to the evaluation process.  


4 Promotion 
Incorporate an Assessment Center into the Fire Department 
promotional process. 


4 Station #2 


Before remodeling, a needs assessment should be performed by 
an architect. The assessment would include gathering input from 
the fire administration and members concerning needs and 
requirements for future needs. The architect should provide 
layout options for review.  


4 Station #2 
If Fire Station #2 is to be remodeled it should be compliant with 
the Americans with Disability Act and all other building, fire and 
life safety codes.  


4 Station #3 


Before approving the architects plans for the new fire station, a 
needs assessment should be performed by an architect. The 
assessment would include gathering input from the 
administration and members concerning the future needs and 
requirements for the station. The architect should provide layout 
options for review after completing the needs assessment.  


4 Station #3 
When Fire Station #3 is built it should be compliant with the 
Americans with Disability Act and all other building, fire and life 
safety codes.  


5 Emergency Activity 


Although the analysis of data by time of day, day of the week, and 
incident by month did not indicate a different staffing 
methodology, it could definitely indicate service trends – 
information valuable for strategic planning and budget purposes.  


 


  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 155 
 
 


Appendix A – Data Request 


-Fire/EMS Component 


Show each year data separately i.e. 2016, 2017, and 2018 – do not group years together 


We request data in an electronic format on a flash drive or disk 


If an area does not apply simply indicate NA 


Do not send this information.  Once collected we will meet with you on site to review it. 


Call if you have any questions – especially before conducting hand counts  


 


• General Information 


• Overview of the department 


• History 


• Overview of the area protected 


• District 


• City/Village 


• Population – Residents of Protection Area 


• In-flux or Out-flux of Daytime Population 


• Department’s Strategic Plan 
 


• Response District –  


• Map of Coverage Area  


• Map of the District 


• Map of Area of Concern for Relocation of Station 


• Map of Contiguous Surrounding Area Showing Department Stations Locations 


• Total Square Miles Protected  


• Square Miles of Hydrant Area  


• Square Miles of Non-Hydrant Area  
 


• Personnel Management/Human Resources 


• Current Roster of Members  


• Personnel (information needed for all employees) 


• List of members (sworn and non-sworn) 


• Hire date 


• Age or date of birth 


• Organizational Chart 


• # of Career  


• # of Paid On Call 


• # of Paid On Premise 


• # of Volunteers  


• # of Other Employees (Include civilian) 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 156 
 
 


• Rank Structure (Number of Employees in Each Category)  


• # of days at maximum daily staffing 


• # of days at minimum daily staffing  


• Current salary of each employee (name, rank, salary) 


• Spreadsheet – name, rank, current salary, 


• (if possible, a spreadsheet with the benefit breakout -health, pension, taxes, etc. for 
fiscal year of the study) 


• Labor agreement  


• Department’s By-Laws (if corporation) 


• Police & Fire Commission or Civil Service Regulations 


• Employee Policy & Procedure Manual (prefer electronic version) 


• Promotional Process – including forms utilized 


• History of Turnover (All Employees Last 3 Years – Include Reason and/or Exit Interview 
Data) 


• Recruiting/Retention Programs 


• Hiring Process (all forms) 


• Application 


• Hiring packet 


• Reference questions 


• Interview questions 


• Etc.  


• Grievances/Discipline Issues 


• Performance Evaluation process and forms 


• Last year’s overtime by employee – include rank 


• FLSA pay cycle (if not in contract) 


• SOG/SOP Manual – prefer electronic copy – (sure to include HR policy section) 


• Department Employee’s Handbook 


• New employee Orientation Process – (packet and/or forms)  
 


• The Department  


• Department SOG’s 


• Department Rules & Regulations 


• Annual Reports – Last 3 Years 


• Current ISO Rating 


• Provide complete ISO document 


• Last ISO On-Site Evaluation (copy of point distribution sheet) 


• Last On Site Evaluation 


• Accreditations  


• Others 
 


• Emergency Activities –  


• Total calls last ten years (no breakdown just total calls per year) 
 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 157 
 
 


• Last 3 Years (All Sub-Sections) 


NFIRS Series Nature of Call Calls 2016 Calls 2017 Calls 2018  


100  Fires     


200 Overpressure/Explosion     


300 Rescue/EMS     


400 Hazardous Conditions     


500 Service Calls     


600 Good Intent Calls     


700 False Alarm/False Calls     


800 Severe Weather     


900 Special Incidents     


 Total Calls    


• # Of Emergency Responses  


• NFIRS) Type of Responses: For each of the 3 years 


• EMS Responses # of:  


• 1st Responder  


• ALS 


• BLS 


• Non-emergency Transports/Transfers, etc.  


• Incidents by Time of Day 


• Incidents by Day of the Week 


• Incidents by Month 


• Calls Breakdown by Area (City, District, Town, Etc.)  


• Distribution by Shift 


• Distribution by Station 


• Response Times: (include documentation from dispatch) 


• Notification time 


• Turnout time 


• Drive time 


• Mitigation time  


• Mutual Aid – Auto Responses (Given & Received) – With Whom? – Copy(ies) of Written 
Agreement 


• Simultaneous (Overlapping) Call Data 
 


• Dispatch (PSAP) 


• Who provides dispatch 


• Location (address) of dispatch center 


• Cost 


• Dispatch data – time from receiving call to FD notification 


• A data printout showing CAD verification times - from call received until agency 
is dispatched.  CAD shows minutes and seconds.    


• Who answers 9-1-1 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 158 
 
 


• Who answers cellular 9-1-1 


• # of Employees 


• # of Shifts 


• Staffing per Shift (minimum & maximum) 


• EMD Program 


• Dispatchers/Call Taker Certifications 
 


• Fire Station(s) – include mailing address for each station – include City & Zip 


• Current Facilities 


• # Of Stations – Street Address 


• Square Footage – (Floor Plans for each if available) 


• Age 


• Future Facility Plans/Needs Documents  
 


• Apparatus & Equipment –  


• Type of Apparatus (I.E. Engine, Ambulance, Utility, Truck – Include Manufacturer) 


• Apparatus department ID number 


• Pump & Tank sizes 


• Mileage 


• Engine Hour Reading (if appropriate) 


• Vehicle VIN Number 


• Age of Apparatus 


• Manufacturer  


• Replacement Schedule 


• Apparatus maintenance records 


• Internal 


• External  


• Special Teams Apparatus 


• Specialized Equipment: Haz Mat, Water Rescue, Etc. 


• Radio, Type and Frequencies 


• Computers (Number of, Type, Age, Replacement Plan) 


• In Apparatus? 


• Software Programs 
 


• Training 


• Training Records (Last 3 years) for each member 


• Training schedule 


• Training hours per month per employee 


• Training Curriculum & Lesson Plan 


• Instructors qualifications 


• Training Manual  


• Certifications Categories (state)  







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 159 
 
 


• Special Teams – certifications  


• All current employees’ certification level 
 


• Fire Prevention –  


• Number of inspectable occupancies  


• History of Inspections & Re-Inspections (Last 3 Years) 


• Identification of Codes Adopted 
 


• Safety Education 


• Public Safety Education Programs 


• Public Safety Education Data (Last 3 Years) 
 


• Fiscal 


• Past three years of audited year financial statement 


• Current year audited financials  


• Past three years’ budget 


• Operating – include all revenue and expenses 


• Capital - include all revenue and expenses 


• Financial policies and procedures 


• Purchasing policies 


• Equipment or Capital reserve fund ledger 


• Overtime records 


• Ambulance information –  


• Ambulance revenue current year and two previous years 


• Ambulance billing contract 


• Copy of ambulance rates charged and authority for those rates i.e. ordinance  


• Identification of all accounts for the department 


• Account details for each of the above accounts – last three years 
 


• Revenue 


• List of grants applied for and/or received for current year and two previous years 


• List 2% fire dues received current year and two previous years 


• List and explanation of any other department revenue received i.e. inspections fees, 
permit fee, etc.  


• Other information needed: 


• Equalized Assessed Valuation (EAV) if multiple communities for all 
 


• Resource Hospital 


• Project Medical Director contact information 


• Involvement level with resource hospital 


• Breakdown of where patients are transported (3-year period) 







 
 


McGrath Consulting Group, Inc.  Page 160 
 
 


 
Any Additional Information Deemed Important 
 
Revised: March 2019 
 


 







1 


Consider approval of the request of Haribo of America Manufacturing, LLC for a one (1) year time 


extension of the Master Conceptual Plan for their proposed Corporate Campus to be located at 


the northwest corner of Goldbear Drive and 122nd Avenue within the Prairie Highlands Corporate 


Park. 


 


Recommendation: Village staff recommends that the Village Board approve a one (1) year time 


extension of the Master Conceptual Plan subject to the comments and conditions of the Village 


Staff Report of October 7, 2019. 


 







2 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF OCTOBER 7, 2019 


Consider approval of the request of Haribo of America Manufacturing, LLC for a one (1) year time 


extension of the Master Conceptual Plan for their proposed Corporate Campus to be located at 


the northwest corner of Goldbear Drive and 122nd Avenue within the Prairie Highlands Corporate 


Park. 


On May 7, 2018 the Village Board conditionally approved a Master Conceptual Plan for the 


proposed Haribo of America Manufacturing, LLC (“Haribo”) development of a new 136.8 acre 


corporate campus on the property located at the northwest corner of Goldbear Drive and 122nd 


Avenue pursuant to the attached approval letter dated May29, 2018.   


Pursuant to said approval letter the Master Conceptual Plan approval is valid for a period of 18 


months (until November 7, 2019).  Prior to the expiration of the required Site and Operational 


Plans and related documents which satisfy the conditions of the Master Conceptual Plan approval 


shall be submitted and considered by the Plan Commission and Village Board.  [Note:  The Plan 


Commission has conditionally approved Preliminary Site and Operational Plans for the first phase 


of the development on May 20, 2019.] 


At this time Haribo is requesting approval of a 1-year time extension (until November 7, 2020) to 


submit Final Site and Operational Plans and to allow the Village to complete its grading activities 


and public infrastructure in Prairie Highland Corporate Park on the Haribo site in order to officially 


turnover the prepared land to Haribo.  The turnover of the prepared land will allow Haribo to 


begin construction upon weather permitting and development permitting and the requirements 


being satisfied.  During this time, and over the winter months, Haribo will continue to capture and 


implement unique U.S. requirements, as well as learning from other Haribo facilities around the 


world, insuring they bring best practices to the facility in Pleasant Prairie and set themselves up 


to produce top-quality products for customers in the United States. 


Village staff recommends approval of the 1-year time extension (until November 7, 


2020) subject to compliance with the attached May 29, 2018 letter of approval   


DEV1801-006 



































































A


B


C


E


F
G


H
D


I


Height Zones


A Gate House approx. 30 ft


B Warehouse / High-bay Buildings approx. 150 ft


C Utility Buildings approx. 20 ft


D Production Buildings approx. 120 ft


E Museum, Daycare, Shop and Fitness Buildings approx. 50 ft


F Gate House approx. 30 ft


G Central Administration Offices approx. 85 ft


H Parking Structure approx. 66 ft


I Chimneys approx. TBD


099


099


1b02/29/201802/29/2018


1b 02/29/2018 Adaption of heights for the respective height zones.



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text

EXHIBIT A



pherrick

Typewritten Text







pherrick

Typewritten Text

EXHIBIT B



pherrick

Typewritten Text



pherrick

Typewritten Text







Village of Bristol, Kenosha County, Wisconsin


Copyright © and (P) 1988–2012 Microsoft Corporation and/or its suppliers. All rights reserved. http://www.microsoft.com/streets /
Certain mapping and direction data © 2012 NAVTEQ. All rights reserved. The Data for areas of Canada includes information taken with permission from Canadian authorities, including: ©
Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer for Ontario. NAVTEQ and NAVTEQ ON BOARD are trademarks of NAVTEQ. ©  2012 Tele Atlas North America, Inc. All rights 
reserved. Tele Atlas and Tele Atlas North America are trademarks of Tele Atlas, Inc. © 2012 by Applied Geographic Solutions. Al l rights reserved. Portions © Copyright 2012 by Woodall 
Publications Corp. All ri ghts reserved.


 


Off-Site Development


LEGEND 


Study Area Intersection 


Proposed Development Site


Proposed 
Development 


Site


 
EXHIBIT 1-1


PROJECT LOCATION MAP


PRAIRIE HIGHLANDS DEVELOPMENT
PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN


Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin


0 mi 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1 1.2


Proposed Development Site


See Exhibit 1-2C for 
Off-Site 


Development
East of IH 41/94 


N


NOT TO SCALE


Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin


2128; 1-8-2018







©
 C


O
P


Y
R


IG
H


T
 2


0
17REVISIONS SHEET


PE
G 


JO
B 


N
o.


PE
G 


PM


ST
AR


T 
D


AT
E


SC
AL


E


PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    


w
w


w
.
p


i
n


n
a


c
l
e


-
e


n
g


r
.
c


o
m


WISCONSIN OFFICE:
15850 W. BLUEMOUND ROAD


BROOKFIELD, WI 53005
(262) 754-8888


ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING


PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER


CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE


w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m


Z:\PROJECTS\2017\897.00-WI\CAD\EXHIBITS\2018-03-29 897.00-WI ROADWAY PLAN OVERVIEW.DWG


PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI


89
7.


00
-W


I


A
R


A


03
-2


9-
18


  


11"
 =


 2
50


'


ROADWAY PLAN
OVERVIEW


FO
R


 R
EV


IE
W


 O
N


LY


PRAIRIE HIGHLANDS
CORPORATE PARK


1" = 250'0 500'


HARIBO


INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN
OVERVIEW


WATER TOWER


HARIBO


INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN
OVERVIEW


WATER TOWER


AURORA







P
E


N
D


IN
G


 A
P


P
R


O
V


A
L 


- 
N


O
T 


FO
R


 C
O


N
S


TR
U


C
TI


O
N


PROJ. MGR.:


DRAWN BY:


DATE:


SCALE:


SHEET


PROJ. ASSOC.:


D
A


TE
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
R


A
W


N
 B


Y


TM


P
R


O
JE


C
T 


LA
N


D
 C


A
M


P
U


S


P
LE


A
S


A
N


T 
P


R
A


IR
IE


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


S
A


N
IT


A
R


Y
 S


E
W


E
R


 L
A


Y
O


U
T 


A
LT


E
R


N
A


TE
 1







!


!


!!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!


!
!


! ! ! !


!
!!


!
!


!


!


!


!


!
!


!!


!!


!


!


!
!


!


!


!


! !


!


!


!


731


724.5


714.9


686.4


733.8


687.7


708.5


721.5725.8


745.3


734.1 736.3 729.3


725.5 724.7


693.5


721.5


719.5


719.8720.5 724.1


727.6


721.5
719.5


719.5


709.6


715.5


725.2


717.5
711.5


707.5


717.5


710.3
711.5 709.5


700.6


725.8


732.2


731.5
735.8


727.7


721.3


729.7


734.4


729.2


734.5
728.5


736.8734.7


738.5


728.3


726.5


727.5732.3
726.8


724.4


726.5


737.6


729.8


726.2


724.8


737.4


719.4


722.2
702.5


704.5


695.3


755.3


752.1


729.5


745.5742.2 734.5 734.3
734.5


726.8


722.5


724.5


722.9
734.5


736.5


735.5
736.5


740.5


733.6
734.5


774.6


746.5750.5


714.3


678.5719.5


716.8


677.3
679.4


675.5


718.5


716.5 716.5


714.5


685.5


684.5 678.5


676.3


717.5 705.5


688.3


725.5


720.5


725.5


688.5


737.4


725.5


718.3


679.5678.5
679.6


676.4


681.3
704.5


719.5


721.5
717.5


719.5


734.5


735.5


732.3


736.5733.5


733.5
731.5 705.4


683.5726.5


721.5
722.2


733.5


727.5
729.5


737.4


738.4


748.7


733.5


733.1


739.1
706.5


680.27


688.52


709.28


740.25


726.88


730.51720.46


725.68


730.21 697.35


719.47


691.96


680.36


679.73


680.32


685.69


716.24


744.22


714.27


722.34754.24


680.35


680.63


721.67


692.48


712.63
724.36


728.54726.78


713.25


699.19


692.36


701.63710.71


724.43


722.93


723.26
722.67


720.75
719.86720.18


735.31


744.56744.67


672.55
676.43


675.65


696.51


693.75


713.49


716.54


718.32
725.87


728.42
723.25


726.46


726.59


730.37
729.72


729.74
742.75


741.49745.24


743.64


743.23
744.38


748.22
748.56 742.55


739.58
736.26


733.26


734.94


734.18 734.62


720.49723.48


731.75


728.27


730.24


720.32


729.36
730.25


729.31
726.52


725.52


728.41


725.14


726.36 681.34


699.91


691.53


685.74


721.73
722.67723.41


718.48


724.31


718.43


725.33720.78


722.24


720.55


720.63
720.29


723.43


720.33
717.76


721.81


718.57


718.61


719.48


722.56


721.36


721.66


723.31


724.53
722.37


715.54


714.55
718.21


725.61


725.64
726.44


723.28
719.71


726.15
724.36


730.41


737.45


727.37
729.72


726.49


717.58
717.72 720.26


720.27723.27


728.94


722.25


718.27


717.18


714.84720.36


721.25 714.27


713.71
717.25


717.57


716.61
720.53


712.31


717.27
719.35


722.78


719.51


717.64


712.28


711.29


718.51


714.38


717.51


708.71


715.35714.71
711.53


712.27
710.48


720.27 712.48
711.65


712.61
708.79


709.39


686.29


694.96


688.49
692.38


693.86


679.65679.83


679.23


681.39
679.78 709.54693.45


686.64
689.35


696.51692.48


689.44697.15694.32


704.45699.58
704.74


711.52


703.27


717.54
718.15


720.52


719.49


721.38


705.75


709.49
716.73


717.49


714.51


728.51


726.36714.33


710.77
710.51


714.23


717.38
716.41


716.76
709.75


726.45


713.61


717.44


724.75


709.62


711.61


711.51


715.75
719.84


715.65


718.36


708.29
704.56


711.73


712.45
713.21


708.57


713.56
697.21


692.73


701.81


705.58


707.12


699.48
701.63703.54


696.36


683.74702.18


710.45


697.42


700.46701.39


717.23


711.46


722.39


710.48
713.73709.54


710.73


722.45


722.55 727.84


726.24


716.52


721.81


720.73
720.52


727.71


727.29


728.46


719.68


730.72726.49


727.49737.69737.51


735.51734.57


735.35


740.47
750.27


734.41


725.78


724.28 730.22 725.31


733.27
717.25


718.24717.44
728.52


724.43


716.28


716.63


728.34


730.64


717.48


726.66


729.66


721.76


725.77


722.05


719.81


720.25


722.26718.57


722.78


721.58


724.27


729.65


727.73
728.36
732.22


728.54
730.55


719.64


722.51
725.31


702.84


734.27


725.55


722.46


724.43


725.44


730.15


723.23


728.23
729.49


738.23


737.33
735.37725.23


724.89730.49
729.28


731.31
730.23


724.61
731.67


736.83


730.71


728.39


727.69


726.22


718.51
724.21


728.28


736.47


737.52


727.96


730.51
725.55


724.91
725.22


740.37


736.44


720.62


719.65
718.61 718.48


718.26


710.23
711.39


706.51


707.63


680.81


679.48


692.55


699.37


683.73
686.72


685.24


684.49 683.79


684.31


682.57


683.47


681.47


687.71


701.51


703.48


733.59


736.26732.52


732.33


744.44


746.08


758.48744.55
738.49


733.31


744.87


731.65
735.54


745.24 741.63


744.44
737.46733.69


732.64 736.28


735.35


742.18 765.52
739.62


746.31


735.18


740.29


730.66


738.23


740.64
745.41


745.43
740.48


738.76


741.27


734.56


734.23
742.47


742.31


736.42735.34


735.51
734.49


734.76


737.39


741.36
740.44


728.77


735.52
734.53


735.64
736.27


739.32


734.47


728.35734.48


735.31
738.21


735.58


737.27


729.86 725.42


716.47


727.51


727.51
728.23


726.81


725.51


725.26
723.19


725.22


710.22


722.59


730.15


733.65


736.51


731.73


734.75
735.26 737.18


734.44


734.23
733.76


733.49


736.57


733.55


733.82


736.56


733.74
733.66


744.48


746.65


743.24
736.69


738.58


738.53
737.22738.29


750.26
766.88


735.78


735.52


743.83


740.31


747.45
746.32


740.19
739.72


760.85
747.42


743.75


754.47


755.45


742.77


747.27754.36 743.24


740.88


736.56


737.34736.51


737.78736.62
742.47


675.74


675.31
676.42695.46


678.15
676.49


707.59719.67


718.74


717.49


720.18


683.31 678.45
678.25


677.28


697.22


673.74
683.76


679.56
679.14


677.19


682.25


675.22
674.62


675.49676.51


675.54
675.52676.29


675.44


675.57


682.42695.28


686.71
709.46


719.35


706.71


713.53


717.49


714.29
715.75
713.64


719.13719.64


717.36


715.58


717.29 684.55


682.49


679.23
680.17


679.39


676.43


675.37
679.43


675.27


675.14


675.46
675.58


675.74
676.42


675.49


674.44


674.66
674.73 676.51


675.74
682.51


711.27706.67717.56717.23


721.23


725.35


721.72


719.48
717.54


712.75
694.42 700.54


699.21


675.63 676.73


714.41
715.12


719.31


712.49
714.47


703.56 710.38
709.77


723.82


690.88723.46


715.77


722.19
721.79


728.71


723.55


728.67
730.85


678.68
689.05734.33


729.51


675.46


676.85
677.24677.69


738.46


675.36


674.18


731.53


731.57


724.23


725.12
723.47


703.41
713.31


707.49
708.45


697.64 691.26


678.64


680.44 679.22
679.24


678.67
676.39


676.59677.42


675.65675.35


674.56


675.37


679.46681.72


687.81


706.25


713.76712.21


724.72
730.54


723.62


727.28


720.36


713.48
721.52


722.52


719.61


723.23


720.54
711.52


721.43
718.51


718.77


724.46


720.72


717.51


729.72


733.71


722.39
731.11


732.39


734.29


730.75


730.49


734.24


735.14


740.67 739.36
741.63


739.57


732.41


733.27


734.49


735.51


736.61 703.34


696.83


682.53


673.64


674.29


674.31


676.44
676.48


673.58


675.67
677.79676.26


685.58


685.51
686.14


703.92730.48
728.65


735.18
730.55


727.43


722.49


730.65
725.51


732.45


730.37739.24


736.36
737.62


736.58


741.53


739.24


737.54


741.14 742.29


741.18
743.57


740.82


729.52


734.48
734.57


726.65


722.49


725.42


733.48


728.25


729.78
730.31


729.29


734.32


734.47


727.68
728.48


727.64


734.36


725.52
738.65


736.68


734.22


729.55


725.72
719.27


731.31


728.66
730.66


721.63


713.37


711


71
6


717


71
5


714


71
3


712


710 709


70
8


707


706


705


70
4


703


70
2


701


700


69
9


698


697696


695


694


693


692


691


690


689


718


71
9


688


72
0


72
1


72
2


72
3


687


72
5


72
4


72
6


72
7


72
8


729730
731


732


686
685


68
4


733


734


68
3


68
2


681


68
0


74
3


744 735


745


746


74
7


73
6


748


74
9 73


7


738


679


739


67
8


740


676


741


67
7


67
5


742


75
3


752


67
4


75
1


75
0


754


75
5


756


75
7


763


765


76
6


76
7


69
5


746


736


74
3


718


688


728


682


73
6


703


693


693


73
3


682


732
735


739


682


732


727


69
7


73
0


727


735


736


74
6


708


73
8


727


681


73
8


72
9


684


724


681


69
6


70
7


734


719


721


722


724


68
7


71
1


682


67
768


6


720


72
1


735
689


723


70
4


69
0


723


73
6


716


735


702


72
4


68
4


72
7


720


745


711


711


733


717


716


730


710


72
0


682


718
68


6


717


70
9


718


717


71
9


725


67
9


72
4


745


736


682


727


712


721


733
734


721


714


723


721


68
4


678


72
9


739


71
9


686


684


727


71
8


717


741


718


684


72
1


69
9


74
9


713


740


720


708


736


720


723


715


674


729


736


715


731


708


738


68
3


714


729


725


733


725


722


740


679


72
2


73
3


73
5


69
6


730


725


73
3


674
73


4


71
4


742


722


713


72
8


68
0


68
3


725


709


732


728


715


731


731


68
1


703
72


3


730


739


740


737


73
4


706


743


731


71
3


716


742


744


719


688


726


709


737


68
7


68
6


68
2


682


727


8


8


8
8


8


8


8


8


8


8


8


I-94
  


104TH ST


136
T


H
 A


V
E


WILMOT RD


I-9
4 


 


±
0 660330 Feet


666


crossing
@ 708
san @ 700


696


1,359 ft


690.5
(MANHARD)
Can this be
raised?







P
E


N
D


IN
G


 A
P


P
R


O
V


A
L 


- 
N


O
T 


FO
R


 C
O


N
S


TR
U


C
TI


O
N


PROJ. MGR.:


DRAWN BY:


DATE:


SCALE:


SHEET


PROJ. ASSOC.:


D
A


TE
R


E
V


IS
IO


N
S


D
R


A
W


N
 B


Y


TM


P
R


O
JE


C
T 


LA
N


D
 C


A
M


P
U


S


P
LE


A
S


A
N


T 
P


R
A


IR
IE


, W
IS


C
O


N
S


IN


S
A


N
IT


A
R


Y
 S


E
W


E
R


 L
A


Y
O


U
T 


A
LT


E
R


N
A


TE
 2







1 inch = 341 feet


DISCLAIMER  This ma p is neither a lega lly recorded  map nor a survey an d is not intended to be used as one.  This draw ing  is a compilation of records, data an d information loca ted in var iou s state, county and mun icip al offices 
and other sources affecting the area shown and  is to be used for refe rence purpose s only.  Kenosha County is not resp onsible for a ny inaccuracie s herein con tained .  If discrep ancies are fo und, please  conta ct Kenosha County.


¨


128th Avenue south of CTH C


Date Printed: 4/14/2018


Legend
Street Centerlines
Right-of-Ways
Water Features
Parcels
Certified Survey Maps
Condominiums
Subdivisions
Municipal Boundaries


KENOSHA COUNTY 
INTERACTIVE MAPPING











©
 C


O
P


Y
R


IG
H


T
 2


01
7


REVISIONS SHEET


P
E
G


 
J
O


B
 
N


o
.


P
E
G


 
P
M


S
T
A
R


T
 
D


A
T
E


S
C
A
L
E


PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    


w
w


w
.
p


i
n


n
a


c
l
e


-
e


n
g


r
.
c


o
m


WISCONSIN OFFICE:
15850 W. BLUEMOUND ROAD


BROOKFIELD, WI 53005
(262) 754-8888


ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING


PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER


CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE


w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m


PLEASANT PRAIRIE


8
9


7
.
0


0
-
W


I


M
C


3
/
1


/
2


0
1


8


1


A
L
T
E
R


N
A


T
I
V


E
 
1


1


1
'
'
=


8
0


'


ALTERNATIVE 1


E
X


H
I
B


I
T


PRAIRIE HIGHLANDS


1" = 60'0 120'







TYPICAL TRENCH SIZE


NORMAL GROUND LEVEL


TYPICAL EXISTING CLAY DRAIN
TILE PIPELINE SECTION


TYPICAL EXISTING DRAIN TILE
INVESTIGATION SLIT TRENCH


RIGID PIPE TO CLAY DRAIN TILE
"INSERT TYPE ADAPTER"


HAND TAMP EXCAVATED MATERIAL
TO GRADELINE OF EXISTING TILE
REPAIR SECTION


PLACE CHIPPED TRENCH WALL MATERIAL AROUND
AND 6" ABOVE PIPE TO CREATE PROTECTION ZONE.


BACKFILL INVESTIGATION TRENCH WITH
EXCAVATED FILL, MOUND  TO ALLOW FOR
NATURAL SETTLEMENT.
DO NO COMPACT


HAND CUT CONNECTION SHELF, ALLOW MIN. 6"
ORIGINAL GROUND FOR RIGID PIPE AND INSERT
CONNECTION SUPPORT


INSTALL SOLID WALL POLYETHYLENE DUAL
WALL TYPE RIGID PIPE SECTION,
(SPRINGFIELD DUAL WALL OR EQUAL)


LATERAL AT PROPERTY INGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY INGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY INGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY INGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY EGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY INGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY INGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY INGRESS
MAINLINE AT PROPERTY EGRESS
LATERAL NEAR PROPERTY INGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY EGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY EGRESS
MAINLINE AT PROPERTY INGRESS
LATERAL AT PROPERTY INGRESS
MAINLINE AT PROPERTY EGRESS
MAINLINE AT PROPERTY EGRESS
MAINLINE AT PROPERTY EGRESS
MAINLINE AT PROPERTY EGRESS
MAINLINE NEAR END
MAINLINE NEAR END
MAINLINE NEAR DISCHARGE


ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO FLOW, DOWNSTREAM ABANDONED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY


34"
23"
18"
---
47"
22"
---
---
47"
50"
---
34"
37"
---
45"
41"
22"
25"
---
31"
---
---
37"
---
26"
---
---
34"
26"
---
---
---
34"
40"
47"
45"
---
34"
64"
54"
46"
---
37"
33"
39"
19"
32"


CLEAN
CLEAN
10%
---
CLEAN
FULL
---
---
CLEAN
CLEAN
---
SLIGHT
20%
---
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
30%
---
CLEAN
---
---
CLEAN
---
CLEAN
---
---
20%
CLEAN
---
---
---
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
5%
---
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
---
40%
CLEAN
CLEAN
FLOODED
10%


25%
FLOODED
NONE
---
10%
NONE
---
---
NONE
20%
---
FLOODED
FLOODED
---
10%
NONE
NONE
NONE
---
10%
---
---
20%
---
10%
---
---
SLIGHT
NONE
---
---
---
NONE
NONE
NONE
10%
---
SLIGHT
20%
10%
SLIGHT
---
NONE
FLOODED
SLIGHT
NONE
50%


POLY./ FAIR
CLAY / GOOD
POLY./ FAIR
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CMP POOR
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / FAIR
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CONC./ GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
POLY./ FAIR
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / POOR
CLAY / GOOD


5"
3"
4"
---
6"
8"
---
---
6"
6"
---
4"
4"
---
6"
6"
3"
3"
---
3"
---
---
4"
---
3"
---
---
4"
3"
---
---
---
4"
6"
5"
4"
---
1.5"
5"
5"
4"
---
3"
8"
6"
3"
5"


4A1
4B1
4B2
4C
4D1
4E1
4F
4G
4H1
4I1
4J
4K1
4L1
4M
4N1
4O1
4O2
4O3
4P
4Q1
4R
4S
4T1
4U
4V1
4W
4X
4Y1
4Z1
5A
5B
5C
5D1
5E1
5F1
5G1
5H
5I1
5J1
5K1
5L1
5M
5N1
5O1
5O2
5P1
5P2


ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
SILT RESTRICTED / PARTIAL CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
RESTRICTED FLOW AND SURCHARGED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
NO DRAIN TILE LOCATED
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY
ACTIVE FLOW RATE AND CAPACITY


45"
20"
52"
49"
47"
42"
44"
58"
47"
42"
53"
32"
41"
35"
44"
63"
45"
42"
35"
53"
37"


95%
CLEAN
SLIGHT
CLEAN
20%
25%
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
10%
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
20%
CLEAN
CLEAN
20%
CLEAN
10%


SLIGHT
NONE
NONE
90%
FLOODED
FLOODED
NONE
SLIGHT
SLIGHT
50%
20%
10%
NONE
NONE
20%
SLIGHT
40%
5%
FLOODED
SLIGHT
FLOODED


CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
POLY./ GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CONC./ GOOD
POLY./ GOOD
POLY./ FAIR
CLAY / GOOD
POLY./ FAIR


3"
4"
4"
4"
3"
3"
3"
3"
6"
5"
6"
3"
6"
3"
4"
4"
6"
4"
8"
6"
8"


1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21


R


50"
77"
22"
41"
40"
46"
--*-
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
21"
---
24"
24"
51"
---
---
41"
28"
34"
---
28"
48"
36"
31"
---
---
41"
---
40"
---
---
46"
---
---
---
---
33"
33"
37"
---
36"
---
---
---
46"
---
24"
37"
51"
32"
30"
33"
---
---
---
---
28"
---
---
---
53"
---
---
---
---
---
41"
38"
40"
43"
36"
46"
34"
37"
48"
32"
---
30"
32"


SLIGHT
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
95%
5%
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
CLEAN
---
CLEAN
5%
CLEAN
---
---
CLEAN
CLEAN
5%
---
CLEAN
20%
80%
CLEAN
---
---
20%
---
SLIGHT
---
---
CLEAN
---
---
---
---
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
---
CLEAN
---
---
---
CLEAN
---
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
80%
10%
CLEAN
---
---
---
---
CLEAN
---
---
---
20%
---
---
---
---
---
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
CLEAN
10%
10%
CLEAN
SLIGHT
---
SLIGHT
SLIGHT


NONE
90%
NONE
20%
SLIGHT
40%
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
15%
---
25%
NONE
3%
---
---
50%
NONE
15%
---
NONE
60%
NONE
10%
---
---
10%
---
FLOODED
---
---
5%
---
---
---
---
10%
10%
10%
---
40%
---
---
---
SLIGHT
---
20%
15%
SLIGHT
SLIGHT
NONE
NONE
---
---
---
---
SLIGHT
---
---
---
FLOODED
---
---
---
---
---
40%
FLOODED
SLIGHT
10%
NONE
25%
50%
FLOODED
10%
SLIGHT
---
SLIGHT
NONE


CLAY / GOOD
POLY./ GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
POLY./ GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CONC./ GOOD
CONC./ GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CONC./ FAIR
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
POLY./ GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CONC./ GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
NO DRAIN TILE
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
CLAY / GOOD
POLY./ GOOD
POLY. / POOR
POLY. / POOR
POLY./ FAIR
POLY. / FAIR
NO DRAIN TILE
POLY. / FAIR
POLY./ FAIR


4"
4"
4"
3"
3"
5"
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
---
3"
---
3"
5"
3"
---
---
4"
3"
3"
---
3"
5"
3"
5"
---
---
4"
---
3"
---
---
4"
---
---
---
---
4"
4"
4"
---
6"
---
---
---
4"
---
3"
5"
3"
3"
3"
4"
---
---
---
---
4"
---
---
---
3"
---
---
---
---
---
8"
3"
5"
6"
5"
5"
4"
4"
4"
4"
---
4"
4"


A1
A2
B1
C1
D1
E1
F
G
H
I
J
K
L
M
N
O1
P
Q1
R1
S1
T
U
V1
W1
X1
Y
Z1
2A1
2A2
2B1
2C
2D
2E1
2F
2G1
2H
2I1
2J1
2K
2L
2M
2N
2O1
2P1
2Q1
2R
21
2T
2U
2V
2W1
2X
2Y1
2Z
3A1
3B1
3B2
3B3
3C
3D
3E
3F
3G1
3H
3I
3J
3K1
3L
3M
3N
3O
3P
3Q1
3Q2
3R1
3S1
3S2
3T1
3U1
3U2
3V1
3W1
3X
3Y1
3Z1


SHEET NO. 3


SHEET NO. 2


COPYRIGHT              2017, BY HUDDLESTON LAND DRAINAGE COMPANYC


M1


<<<FLOW<<<


EN
D


EN
D


ALL EXISTING AGRICULTURAL DRAIN TILES LOCATED DURING THIS INVESTIGATION SURVEY
HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED ON THIS PLAN  AND FIELD STAKED AT < 50' INTERVALS, IN SOME
OCCASIONS CERTAIN EXISTING LOCAL DRAIN TILE SECTIONS MAY BE SPECULATED AND
CONSIDERED AS AN ASSUMED ROUTE WHICH SHALL BE DELINEATED ON THIS PLAN.
ALL EXISTING DRAIN TILES DAMAGED DURING THE INVESTIGATION PROCESS SHALL BE
REPAIRED TO THEIR ORIGINAL STATE IN ACCORDANCE WITH NATURAL RESOURCE
CONSERVATION SERVICE STANDARDS FOR DRAIN TILE INSTALLATION AND REPAIR.
(HUDDLESTON DRAINAGE (62A) TYPICAL STANDARD "A")
ALL EXISTING DRAIN TILE LOCATION DIMENSIONS HAVE BEEN SURVEYED BY AGRICULTURAL
GRADE GPS SURVEY SYSTEMS AND INCLUDE SUB METER ACCURACY, ALL LOCATIONS
PERTINENT TO FINAL DESIGN SHALL BE VERIFIED BY THE PROJECT SURVEYOR.
THIS DRAIN TILE INVESTIGATION REPORT IS INTENDED TO IDENTIFY EXISTING DRAIN TILE
MAINLINE SYSTEMS ONLY WITH ADDITIONAL PRIORITY ON DRAIN TILES WHICH MAY SERVICE
THE UPLAND PROPERTY OF OTHERS OR WITH MUTUAL DRAINAGE STATUS.
THIS DRAIN TILE INVESTIGATION REPORT SHALL BE FILED WITH HUDDLESTON DRAINAGE
LAND DRAINAGE CO., AND WILL BE REPRODUCED AND DISBURSED ONLY BY PERMISSION
OF THE CONTRACT PRINCIPALS.


.


R 
E 


V 
I S


 I 
O 


N
 S


Anniversary



1976 20171ST4 Know what's


R


DIG NUMBER


M:\1 HUDDMAC ACTIVE FILES\1 AUTOCAD DRAWINGS\ACTIVE CADD\30-00-00@PINNACLE PRAIRIE HIGHLANDS\30-00-00HPr4.dwg, 8/8/2017 11:25:34 AM, Tom, DWG To PDF.pc3, ARCH full bleed D (36.00 x 24.00 Inches), 1:200







  
 


9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 


 


Office of the Village Engineer 
Matthew J. Fineour, P.E.     MEMORANDUM 


 
TO:  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner / Zoning Administrator 


 
FROM:  Matthew Fineour, P.E.,Village Engineer 
 
  SUBJ:  Haribo of America – Concept Plan 
    
 DATE:  March 12, 2018 
 
 
Peggy, 
 
The Engineering Department has reviewed the submitted concept plans for the above referenced 
project.  Based on our review, we have the following comments listed below and as noted on the 
attached plan mark- up sheets.  Refer to both this memo and the plan mark-up sheets for all 
engineering comments.  
 


1. See comments on attached mark-up plan sheets.   
 


a. Only plan sheets with comments are included. 
b. Comments that apply to multiple locations are not repeated for every occurrence. 


 
General Plan Comments 


 
2. The aerial photo site representations do match the concept plans.  Rectify discrepancies. 


 
3. Provide a preliminary utility layout plan for on-site sewer, water, and storm water facilities for 


initial review and comments.   
 


a. The concept plans seem to have contradictory information as to where on-site water 
and sanitary sewer will connect to the public system. 
 


b. The on-site sanitary sewer shall be designed to minimize connection points to the 
public sewer system.  Eliminate designs of laterals going through the outlot 
designated for the storm water management basins. 


 
c. 128th Avenue is at a higher elevation than the building pads by approximately 10-


feet.  The site sanitary sewer connection will need to be routed down gradient to 
Goldbear Drive.  The Village will provide preliminary sewer plans for reference.  


 
d. Sampling manhole(s) are required and shall meet the requirements of Chapter 405 of 


the Village ordinance.  Show proposed location(s) in the preliminary utility layout 
plan. 


 
4. Provide information as to what is proposed at the utility connection area as shown on the 


concept plan.  Why is a drive connection to 128th Avenue needed at this location?  The drive 
connection shall be avoided at this location, unless actually warranted.  What are the 50-foot 
high structures at this location? 







P a g e  | 2 
Memo – Harib – Concept Plan 
March 12, 2018 


 


9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796    
PleasantPrairieOnline.com 


 


 
5. The maximum width of a private drive to the WisDOT’s West Frontage Road is 35-feet.  A 


discussion of providing dedicated right-of-way for a public road entrance will need occur if 
the drive is proposed to be wider than 35-feet. 
 


6. The Village will need to complete the corporate park Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) and submit 
for WisDOT’s approval, including Haribo’s proposed layout of eliminating / relocating the 
existing public road access point to the north for the trucking entrance.  The Village is 
currently working through the DOT TIA process. 
 


7. Additional information is required as to the intent, use, logistics, and restoration of the 
proposed temporary gravel areas. 


 
a. The proposed extent of the gravel appears unnecessary, expensive, and 


problematic.  It is unclear as to how these areas will be used, managed, restored, or 
what is going to happen with all the gravel during site development phasing.   
Provide detailed information as to the need and use of the extensive gravel area and 
the logistics of grading, site construction, gravel areas associated with development 
phasing, and land restoration of areas within green space areas.   


 
8. The site plan will need to consider overall site grading requirements and elevation changes, 


which may affect placement of structures or other site related items.  For example, there will 
be a grade change from 128th Avenue to the building pad areas.  This may affect the 
proposed parking garage and/or drive entrances.  A preliminary site development grading 
plan shall be prepared for the development. 


   
OTHER COMMENTS 


 
9. Detailed site civil engineering plans shall be prepared and submitted which include the 


following: 
 


a. Site grading and erosion control plans. 
b. Site utility plans for sanitary sewer, water, and storm water infrastructure. 
c. Landscaping plan. 
d. Site lighting plan. 
e. Details. 


 
10. The design engineer shall refer to Chapter 405 – Design Standards and Construction 


Specifications for civil requirements and Village standard details. 
 


11. Several design coordination efforts (roadway, land leveling, etc.) are ongoing.  This 
memorandum does not cover issues or efforts that are ongoing that are beyond the concept 
plan review for the site. 


 
The engineering plans have been reviewed for conformance with generally accepted engineering 
practices and Village policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the design engineer is 
responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of plans and supplemental data and for their 
compliance with all state and local codes, ordinances, and procedures.  Modifications to the plans, 
etc. may be required should errors or changed conditions be found at a future date and detailed 
engineering plans are prepared and reviewed. 
 
*** 







VILLAGE


VOPP ENG REVIEW
PLAN-MARK UP
MARCH 12, 2018







Prairie Highlands-Haribo 
Phase 1 Perspective looking northwest


WHAT IS THIS...PLANS
SHOW FUTURE
MULTISTORY CAR
PARK BUT NOTHING
FOR PHASE 1


CONCEPT PLANS DO NOT SHOW THIS DRIVE IN
PHASE 1 - COORDINATE WITH FIRE
DEPARTMENT REGARDING FIRE ACCESS DRIVE
REQUIRMENTS FOR BUILDOUT AND
DEVELOPMENT PHASES-  RECTIFY ALL
DESCREPANCIES BETWEEN PLANS AND
DEPICTION


SOUTH ROAD
(GOLDBEAR DRIVE)
WILL BE A BOULEVARD







+119 Employee + visitor parking


341 Employee + visitor parking


120 Employee parking


Trailer yard
12 Truck parking


HARIBO Park


Waste water
Fresh water


Power supply
Gas


Shop
Fitness
Kindergarten
MuseumCentral Administration


Truck scale


Loading yard


Expansion area
Phase 2


Expansion area
Phase 3


Expansion area
Phase 4


Expansion area
Phase 2


30.00
 [9.14]


35.00
 [10.67]


Heliport


35.00
 [10.67]


24
.00


 [7
.32


]


712,00


720,00


45.00
 [13.72]


45
.00


 [1
3.7


2]


690,00


701,00


700,00 700,00


706,00


710,00


710,00


702,00


700,00


710,00


710,00


710,00


710,00


35.00
 [10.67]


35.00
 [10.67]


30.00
 [9.14]


50
.00


 [1
5.2


4]


35
.00


 [1
0.6


7]


80
.24


[24
.46


]


Buffer warehouse


High-bay
warehouse
Phase 2


Expansion area
warehouse


2


±0,00 = 710,00


7


Gate 1


Gate 2
3


1


±0,00 = 710,00±0,00 = 710,00


1


±0,00 = 710,00


Administration /
Cafeteria


1


Production areaBoilerhouse


±0,00 = 710,00


4


5


6


8


Sprinkler


9


710,00


10


±0,00 = 710,00


12


Multistorey
car park


11


20.00
 [6.10]


20.00
 [6.10]


60.01
[18.29]


32
.50


 [9
.91


]
82


.00
[24


.99
]


32
.50


 [9
.91


]
65


.00
[19


.81
]


35
.00


 [1
0.6


7]
15


5.0
0


[47
.24


]


62
.27


[18
.98


]


35
.00


 [1
0.6


7]
61


.55
 [1


8.7
6]


V
IL


LA
G


E
 O


F 
B


R
IS


TO
L


VILLAGE OF BRISTOL


V
IL


LA
G


E
 O


F 
P


LE
A


S
A


N
T 


P
R


A
IR


IE


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE


V
IL


LA
G


E
 O


F 
B


R
IS


TO
L


V
IL


LA
G


E
 O


F 
P


LE
A


S
A


N
T 


P
R


A
IR


IE


10
' U


TI
LI


TY
 P


O
LE


 E
A


S
E


M
E


N
T 


P
E


R
 D


O
C


. N
O


. 2
69


32
2


GOLDBEAR DRIVE


12
8TH


 A
VE


N
U


E


CTH "C" (WILMOT ROAD)


WATER
TOWER


OUTLOT 1
OF CSM 2849
FOR STORMWATER
FACILITIES


I-
94


1" = 200'0 400'


PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP                                    15850 W. BLUEMOUND ROAD | SUITE 210 | BROOKFIELD, WI 53005 | WWW.PINNACLE-ENGR.COM                                              PLAN | DESIGN | DELIVER                PEG JOB#


Z:\PROJECTS\2017\897.00-WI\CAD\EXHIBITS\2018-02-22 MASTER CONCEPTUAL PLAN_SITE PLAN.DWG
897.00-WI


PRAIRIE HIGHLANDS - HARIBO  CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 02-22-2018


CLARIFY NEED FOR
CONNECTION; STRUCUTURE(S)
AND INTENT


68 ft


MAX 35-FEET
OR NEED
PUBLIC ROAD
DEDICATION


VILLAGE TO COMPLETE THE
TIA FOR CORPORATE PARK
AND SUBMIT FOR WISDOT
APPROVAL FOR RELOCATING
WEST FRONTAG ROAD
ACCESS POINT


WHAT DOES THE
"GREEN" REPRESENT
FOR THIS DRIVE? 
CHECK TO ENSURE
THAT THIS MEETS FIRE
DEPT REQUIREMENTS


SANITARY SEWER WILL NEED TO BE
ROUTED SOUTH TO GOLDBEAR DRIVE
DUE TO ELEVATION DIFFERENCE
BETWEEN 128TH AVE AND BUILDING
ELEVATIONS.


SITE GRADING AND
ROADWAY ELEVATION
WILL NEED TO BE
CONSIDERED ALONG
THE ENTIRE WEST
PROPERTY BOUNDARY.


IS THIS ENTRANCE GATED?  PROVIDE
INFORMATION AND DETAIL OF THE
GATE TYPE.  IS THE CAR PARK FOR
EMPLOYEES? VISITORS?  HOW DOES
ONE GET FROM THE CAR PARK TO
THE BUILDINGS?


PROVIDE A
DETAIL OF THE
PROPOSED
FENCE TYPE


ALTERNATIVE PLACEMENT
OF THE HELIPAD SHALL BE
CONSIDERED AND
DISCUSSED


PROVIDE
DETAIL OF
FENCE TYPE
AROUND
HELIPORT


FIRE LANES NEED TO
BE 30-FEET WIDE
MINIMUM


FITNESS MUST BE FOR
EMPLOYEES ONLY. 
CONFIRM INTENT.







PROVIDE PRELIMINARY
UTILITY LAYOUT
PLAN....THIS DOES NOT
APPEAR DESIRABLE


DESIGN WILL NEED TO TAKE
INTERNAL LOOPING AND
FIRE HYDRANT SPACING
INTO ACCOUNT


HARIBO TO
COORDINATE WITH
WE-ENERGIES


PROVIDE INFORMATION...IS THIS IN
A BUILDING?  THIS WILL NEED TO
BE DISCUSSED WITH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT


HARIBO TO
COORDINATE WITH
WE-ENERGIES


HARIBO TO COORDINATE WITH
RESPECTIVE PRIVATE UTILITY
SERVICE COMPANIES.







FURTHER INFORMATION,
CLARIFICATION, AND DISCUSSION IS
REQUIRED REGARDING THIS PLAN


CLARIFY...SOD OR
SEED?  BY WHO?







A


B


C


D


E


FG


H


Height Zones


A approx.  30’


B approx.  170’


C approx.  50’


D approx.  100’


E approx.  85’


F approx.  30’


G approx.  85’


H approx.  66’


I TBD (Chinmeys)


I


Building Area Heights


099


MA-LA-099


WHAT IS THE ITEM C
STRUCTURE?


WHAT IS THIS?


ALOT OF THESE HEIGHTS
SEEM HIGH...CLARIFY IF
THIS IS THE ACTUAL
HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES







 


 


8044 88th Avenue  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  Phone 262.694.8027  Fax 262.697.1901  PleasantPrairieOnline.com 


 


Office of the  
Chief of Fire & Rescue  
Craig Roepke  


 


VILLAGE STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 


 
TO:  Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 


FROM:  Craig Roepke, Chief Fire & Rescue 


CC:  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner, Community Development 


SUBJECT: Fire Department review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Permit/Trakit#: DEV1801-006 


DATE:  March 16, 2018 


 


These are initial comments for the Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo received for the manufacturing complex 
located at the Northeast side of the Prairie Highlands corporate park. 


The Fire & Rescue department have the following comments regarding the above project. 


1. Clarify the area indicating Waste, Fresh Water and utility services. Is this an access into the property from 
the cul-de-sac location on the West? Please define this area’s use. 


2. All entrances into the complex (Gate #1, #2, and West center or future) shall have the ability for the 
department to access if not supervised or staffed. 


3. Request to open a discussion for use of Heliport for area aeromedical helicopter service for medical airlift 
incidents within the area from surrounding fire agencies. 


4. As specific information is developed for the project, the fire department will have additional comments. 


5. All main roadways, fire lanes, and the access road to the Heliport shall be 30 feet wide. 


6. Hydrant and utility details along with road width dimensioning are not shown and will be required for 
future review in updated revisions. 


7. Review Village Ordinance 180-11 for regarding hard surface fire department access. 


8. Review Village Ordinance 180-16 for hydrant spacing and fire loop requirements. 


9. Public Safety Radio coverage systems will likely be required due to the density and composition of the 
buildings. 


10. Fire Department overall comments are attached to this document. Many comments below will require 
further detail, but are being provided in advance to provide early opportunities for discussion and 
clarification. 


  







Review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Page 2 of 9 


 


 
Distribution of Comments: the person who obtains the building permit to all contractors and subcontractors affected by 
this document shall distribute copies of these comments. This document outlines critical times and deadlines. All recipients 
of this document must become familiar with the contents. 


IT IS CRITICAL THAT ALL CONTRACTORS SPECIFICALLY FIRE SPRINKLER & ALARM DESIGNERS AND INSTALLERS RECEIVE 
AND UNDERSTAND THE CONTENT OF THIS DOCUMENT. 


Compliance: A letter shall be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department prior to receiving a building permit, stating that 
the project will comply with all requirements addressed within this document. 


Conflicts: In the event a conflict in code(s) is identified, or a conflict with the insurance carrier criteria occurs, the 
more stringent shall apply.  In the event this conflicts with any codes adopted by the State of Wisconsin, the owner 
must petition the State directly for a variance.  The Owner must demonstrate that they will provide materials or 
design equivalent to the code or that they will exceed the code when petitioning the State of Wisconsin and/or the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie where applicable. 


Fire Safety System Plans:  such as fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans, will need to be submitted to the State of 
Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services and also to this fire department for review. No 
installation of any fire protection system is allowed until a satisfactory review is obtained from both departments.  


FIRE ALARM AND SPRINKLER PLANS ARE A SEPARATE SUBMITTAL TO THE FIRE DEPARTMENT. 
DUE TO CONSTRUCTION AND TIME CONSTAINTS FIRE PROTECTION SUBMITTALS MAY AND ARE TYPICALLY 


BROKEN INTO AN UNDERGROUND SUBMITTAL AND AN ABOVE GROUND SUBMITTAL. 
INFORMATION REGARDING PLAN SUBMITTAL CAN BE FOUND AT 


http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/services/fireandrescue/ForContractors.asp 


Pre-Construction Meeting:  A pre-construction meeting may take place with the general contractor, the fire 
protection contractor, the Fire and Rescue Department, Village staff, and any other sub-contractor prior to the 
start of any project construction. 


1. Site Access: 
a. Access shall be provided around the perimeter of the site for Fire Department apparatus, and must 


comply with the State of Wisconsin and the International Building Code, 2009 edition.  


b. A minimum wall-to-wall turning radius of 45’-0” shall be allowed for apparatus movement.   


c. All entrances from public streets, as well as road and driveways around the proposed building shall be a 
minimum of 30 feet wide. 


d. All roadways and fire lanes must be unobstructed and not used any part as a parking area for automobiles, 
semi-trucks or trailers. Fire lanes shall comprise of a hard and maintainable surface. 


e. All exterior exit pathways as well as access to the Fire Pump room shall have a hard surface, leading to a 
hard surface. This includes all exit doors from the facility. These pathways shall be maintained and accessible 
at all times. 


f. An exterior personnel door shall be located in close proximity to each fire sprinkler riser. 


g. There shall be Knox padlocks or Knox key switches on all gates on site.  The Fire & Rescue Department 
will review the proper placement and operation of the Knox system locks. 


2. Gates / Barriers: Any gates or barriers that are employed or installed on a private roadway or access shall 
have a minimum width clearance of fourteen (14) feet. Gates or barriers that are locked must have the ability 
for the AHJ to remove, unlock or disable the securing mechanism to open or raise the gate or barrier. Any 
barrier or gate that raises vertically at a pivot point to allow for passage must provide for at least 90 degrees of 
clearance from the ground to the bottom of the gate or barrier. Gates or barriers that raise vertically shall 
have a minimum vertical clearance of 13’6”. There shall be a manufacture endorsed mechanism or process to 
secure the gate or barrier in the open position without utilizing personnel to maintain an open condition. The 
gate or barrier access on premise shall be readily identifiable to the AHJ.  


3. Combination Water Sizing Confirmation: The owner shall provide a letter from the sprinkler designer affirming that 
the combination water main is sized appropriately for both domestic use and fire sprinkler protection demand. This 



http://www.pleasantprairieonline.com/services/fireandrescue/ForContractors.asp





Review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Page 3 of 9 


 


will typically include the designer’s license stamp on the document. 


4. Required Licenses:  A Wisconsin licensed fire protection contractor and/or sprinkler fitter must install any and all 
dedicated fire protection underground fire mains and aboveground fire protection.  Periodic inspections of the job 
site will be made by fire inspectors to assure compliance. 


5. Insurance Carrier: The Owner of this project shall submit to the insurance carrier for review the plans for both 
underground water distribution and fire protection prior to construction. The Fire & Rescue Department shall receive 
a copy of the comments when plans are submitted for review. 


6. Review and Comments: the Fire Department will review and comment on the following areas outlined below. 


 A. Site and Operational Permits 


1. Site accessibility (Plans provided do not specific clearances or distances) 


2. Fire Pump Location  


3. Pumper Pad  


4. Fire hydrant spacing 


 B. Conditional Use and Operational  
1. Standpipe outlet locations . 
2. Fire alarm pull stations  
3. Emergency and Exit Lighting  
4. Fire extinguishers 


7. Plan Review, Permits and Fees 


a. The plans for the fire protection underground, aboveground and fire alarm system shall be submitted 
for review a minimum of four (4) weeks before installation is scheduled to begin. 


b. The Village will use an independent fire safety consultant for review of all fire protection plans 
submitted. 


c. An approved review must be completed before any permits will be issued and before construction 
can begin. 


d. A submittal is not considered permitted or an approved plan. 


e. Acquiring WI State approved plans is not acceptable to bypass the AHJ permit process. 


8. Permit fees: must be paid at time of submission for review. Work cannot begin until all permits have been issued. A 
typical review turnaround is four weeks 


The following fees and permits are generated directly from the Fire & Rescue Department. 


a. Bulk water Usage 
b. Fire Protection Plans for Underground and Aboveground 
c. Fire Alarm System Plans 
d. Kitchen Hood Systems Plans 
NOTE: Permits are required from the Fire & Rescue Department for the installation of water main in addition to any 
permits required by other Village of Pleasant Prairie Departments. 


9. Occupancy: 


a. All fire and life safety requirements must be in place and operational prior to any building being occupied. 


b. No occupancy inspections shall be scheduled until all life-safety systems are complete. 


c. Key life safety systems include: Fire sprinkler system, Fire alarm system, Fire extinguishers, Emergency 
Lighting, and any additional requirements determined by both the Fire Department and the Village Building 
inspection department. 


d. AEDs as required are in place. 


10. Hazardous Occupancies: Should there be identified hazard occupancies with this project, the Fire & Rescue 
Department will need more than the typical four week time period to review potential Hazardous 
Occupancies. The owner must contact the Fire & Rescue Department as soon as possible to begin the review 







Review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Page 4 of 9 


 


process. 


11. Exterior Doors: All outside doors must have access to the interior. Such as a lock and handle provided at each door.  


12. AED: The owner may be required to acquire and install one or more public access Automatic External 
Defibrillator (AED) onsite for employee and public use in the event of a sudden cardiac arrest. It is suggested 
that during the construction phase that a location(s) be identified so that options for recessed cabinets may be 
determined. 


13. Storage:  Maximum height, width and aisle ways and egress pathways must be maintained and will be 
enforced.  The same concerns apply to the storage of quantities of combustibles (plastics and cardboard) and 
other storage of flammable liquids or chemicals must also be properly identified, placarded and stored. 


14. Elevators:  


a. If applicable, must comply with Village of Pleasant Prairie Ordinance 180-20, including acceptable 
minimum size and emergency notification. 


b. Review the proper sizing requirements with the fire department early in the planning process. 


15. Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall identify the area within the building that can be used as a “severe 
weather shelter” or “safe haven” during severe weather such as a tornado. That area will be identified with 
signage. 


16. Door Numbering: Each exterior door shall be sequentially numbered. 


a. Shall consist of a 4” reflective number in a color that is contrasting to the door color. 


b. Numbering shall be in an increasing sequence and located in the upper right-hand portion of the 
door. 


c. The starting numbering point shall be determined in the field and approved by the AHJ. 


17. On Premise Secure Key System:  Knox Company Rapid Entry System, “Knox Boxes” shall be provided for the 
building. The Knox Boxes shall be Model 4400. Two sets of all keys (Master, fire alarm pull station, 
annunciator, elevator, etc.) shall be placed within the box, as well as a copy of the pre-fire plan.   


18. Fire Extinguishers:  Shall meet NFPA 10 (Portable Fire Extinguishers) for the specific use of the building and be 
in sufficient number.  Final approval, of fire extinguisher locations and quantity, will not be given until 
occupancy is taken, to see how a tenant furnishes the space.  The company providing the fire extinguishers 
shall submit a letter to the Fire and Rescue Department stating the locations and size of the extinguishers are 
in compliance with NFPA 10. 


19. Emergency and Exit Lighting:  Exit and Emergency Lighting shall be provided and shall have battery backup. 
Combination units are acceptable and recommended.  An Emergency Generator eliminates the need for 
battery backup.  These circuits shall be clearly labeled.  


20. Sprinkler System:  The building is to be equipped with an “automatic fire sprinkler system”.  The systems shall 
be designed and constructed to the current printed edition of NFPA 13, Automatic Fire Sprinklers and the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie Ordinance 180-16, Automatic Fire Sprinklers. Confirm NFPA edition with the Fire 
Department prior to system design. 


21. The following information as applicable, must be submitted with the sprinkler plans for review: 


 


Building height Number of stories/floors Mezzanines Elevators 


Hazard class Commodity Class Exterior storage Fire protection 


 
22. Fire Hydrants:  Fire hydrants shall meet the Village of Pleasant Prairie hydrant specification.  Fire hydrants 


shall be spaced no more than 350 feet apart around the perimeter of the building, per Village Ordinance §180-
16.   As many hydrants as possible shall be supplied directly by municipal water.  The distance from the 
finished grade line to the lowest discharge shall be no less than 18 inches and no more than 23 inches. 


23. Fire Protection Loop: A fire protection (hydrant) loop shall be required as part of the overall fire protection 







Review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Page 5 of 9 


 


systems as outlined in §180-16(K)(5).  


24. Fire Hydrant Acceptance: This project will include the installation of water mains for domestic and fire 
protection use. Prior to the fire sprinkler system connection to any new water mains (including water mains, 
fire hydrants, laterals leading to the building and risers) must be hydrostatically tested flushed according to 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) code standard 24 and witnessed by the Fire Chief or designee.  


25. Fire hydrant / water main flushing: can be disruptive to the job site and requires significant coordination of all 
sub-contractors by the General Contractor. Nonetheless flushing is an essential part of assuring public safety.  
The General Contractor is highly encouraged to coordinate the flushing of all new water mains, fire hydrants, 
laterals leading to the building and risers with both the sub-contractors responsible, the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie Engineering Department, Fire & Rescue Department and the Water Utility Department, prior to seeking 
a ‘clean water sample’ on this site.  


26. Pumper Pad:   


a. A municipally fed fire hydrant and fire department connection (FDC) combination is defined to be a 
“pumper pad”. 


b. The FDC shall comprise of a 30 degree angled 5” Storz connection unless otherwise approved by the 
fire department in writing. 


c. Both the hydrant and FDC shall between 18” and 23” above finished grade as a pair. 


d. There shall be dedicated space for a fire engine to have unobstructed access to the pumper pad. 


e. Both the Fire Department Sprinkler connection and the fire hydrant shall be installed remote from 
the building and located a minimum distance from the building equal to the highest wall. Any 
variances shall be approved by the AHJ in writing. 


f. The pumper pad shall be free of vegetation, plant, shrubs, or other obstructions at least 5 feet on 
each side. 


g. The fire hydrant shall be located no more than five (5) feet from the roadway and the Fire 
Department sprinkler connection shall be placed no more than five (5) feet from the fire hydrant. 


h. The Fire Department connection shall be constructed along with an underground drain with access 
for inspection. 


i. The area around the pumper pad shall be comprised of a hard surface such as asphalt or concrete. 


j. The pumper pad area shall have some form of posted signage or painted pavement designation 
indicating no parking or obstructions in that area. 


k. Refer to the Village specification drawing for the pumper pad design. 


27. Bollards:   


a. Shall be placed near fire hydrants, remote post indicator valves (PIV) and Fire Department 
connection(s) that are subject to damage. 


b. Bollards shall be six (6) inches in diameter. Bollards shall not obstruct charged fire hoses. 


c. It is recommended that the Fire Department approve the location of the bollard(s) before final 
placement is made.  


28. Standpipes: 


a. The building shall be equipped with standpipes that shall consist of 2-½ inch NST valve, capable of 
delivering 250 GPM, at 75 PSI measured at the standpipe valve.   


b. Where required, standpipes shall be wet and placed adjacent to all exterior exit doors, same side as 
the door handle/knob. Village Ordinance 180.16 (I). 


c. No 1-1/2” cap reductions are required. 


29. Pump Room / Riser Room Door:  







Review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Page 6 of 9 


 


a. The exterior door that accesses either the fire pump or riser room shall be labeled in the following 
manner outlined below 


i. At the center upper 1/3 of the door, utilizing 4” reflective RED or WHITE block lettering 
contrasting to the door color, with the following title. 


ii. “FIRE PUMP ROOM” or “FIRE RISER ROOM”, respective for the type of existing room. 


b. This door shall have a Knox-Box installed adjacent to the door. The specific location heights and 
details are documented in the “Fire Department – Appendix A” attachment. 


30. MSDS / SDS Station:  


a. Within the pump or riser room locate a (SDS) Safety Data Sheet Station in a conspicuous and 
accessible location. The station shall be labelled so to be readily identified. 


b. Products used for maintenance, production or stored within the facility shall have their SDS 
information located at this SDS station. 


c. The SDS information shall be organized in such manner that access to product information is intuitive. 


d. The contents of the SDS station shall be updated and/or reviewed at least annually by the building 
owner or active tenant. A dated record log shall be kept with the SDS station indicating such review. 


31. Strobe Light: 


a. All strobe lights required below shall meet Village specifications as found in section 180-16(m) of the 
Sprinkler Ordinance.  The lens color shall be RED. 


b. A strobe light and 10” dome bell shall be provided, visible from the pumper pad to indicate a 
waterflow alarm condition. 


c. If the building has a fire pump, an additional strobe light shall be required and installed adjacent to 
the waterflow alarm and activated when the fire pump is running. 


d. Both notification devices above (b & c) shall be labeled appropriately as “WATERFLOW” and “PUMP 
RUN” below the respective devices. 


e. A strobe light shall be provided and installed vertically at each riser location on the exterior of the 
building. No bell or signage is required. In instances where two or more risers are located at one 
location, only one exterior strobe is required. The strobe shall activate on any one riser waterflow. 


f. A separate “Appendix A” document is available to provide visual detail supporting the above 
requirements. 


32. Fire Alarm System:  There shall be a full function remote annunciator installed.  Utilizing a fire pull station, 
sprinkler water flow, or any other fire detection device that maybe installed in this building shall activate the 
internal fire alarm system. The systems shall be designed and constructed to the current printed edition of 
NFPA 72. Confirm NFPA edition with the Fire Department prior to system design 


a. Manual Fire Alarm Pull Stations:  Shall be located at a minimum, immediately adjacent to each 
exterior door. Any additional exterior doors will be required to meet this requirement. The pull 
station shall not be placed in the area of the door, but immediately adjacent to the door jamb. 


b. Pull Stations and Audiovisual Alarms:  Shall be installed per ADA requirements. 


c. Smoke and Heat Detection:  Shall be installed as required. 


d. Tamper Switches:  Tamper switches shall be placed on all sprinkler valves and be identified on the 
annunciator panel. 


e. PIV & Exterior Valves: shall be monitored by the Fire Alarm system. 


f. Strobe & Bell: Strobe light and Bell devices shall be identified and documented on the submitted Fire 
Alarm plan submittal. It is understood that typically this work is completed by the electrical 
contractor and not part of the alarm plan per say.  


g. Duct Detectors: Duct detectors shall be programmed as a Supervisory Alarm, not as an alarm 







Review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Page 7 of 9 


 


condition. 


h. Fire Alarm Plans Location:  There shall be a designated location for a set of as-built fire alarm plans 
near the FACP per NFPA 72.   


i. FACP Nomenclature: Confirmation of nomenclature shall be discussed between the Fire Department 
and the fire alarm program technician prior to any inspections. 


j. Initiating Devices Labeling: All initiating devices e.g.: pull stations, smoke detectors, tampers, etc 
shall be labeled with the FA device number that matches the system nomenclature programmed. The 
font/letters shall be at least 14pt and of such size that they are visible based on accessibility to the 
device. (e.g.: ceiling initiating devices may require a larger font size) 


k. Annunciator Panel:  Shall be addressable.  The annunciator panel type shall be approved by the Fire 
and Rescue Department. The panel shall identify a fire sprinkler water flow by riser, and the specific 
locations of the fire alarm pull stations and any other fire detection devices that may be installed in 
this building. 


l. Transmission of Fire Alarms.  The method of transmission to central station must be approved by the 
Fire & Rescue Department.  (e.g. RF Radio, cellular, VOIP, or other approved technologies allowed by 
code.) 


m. FACP Main Panel: There will be one main fire alarm panel within a building. The system will not be 
split into two or multiple fire alarm panels interconnected together. (Example: West wing is one 
panel, East wing is a different panel) 


n. Fire Alarm Map: An “as-is” drawing of the fire alarm system shall be provided and posted in the riser 
or pump room of the building. The drawing shall have at minimum, the initiating device numbers, 
locations, and door numbering scheme on the posted drawing. Size of the drawing to be discussed 
with the fire department. 


o. Central Station:  The Fire Alarm Control Panel shall transmit all fire alarm, tamper, trouble and 
supervisory signals to a central station that is certified by Underwriters Laboratories (UL) and/or 
Factory Mutual (FM) and approved by the Fire & Rescue Department. The owner shall provide such 
documentation for approval. It is recommended that the owner consult with the Fire & Rescue 
Department prior to signing any contracts with the Central station. 


Fire:   Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
Medical:   Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
Phone numbers 
Emergency:   (262) 694-1402 
Non-emergency:  (262) 694-7105 
Business:  (262) 694-8027 


 


33. All Hazards Notification System:  Should the owner or tenant plan on the installation of an in-building all hazards 
notification system (fire, weather, active threat, etc), the fire department must be made aware and the system must 
meet all NFPA 72 requirements. 


 


34. Public Safety Radio Coverage: Provide for adequate radio coverage to public safety service workers, including but not 
limited to firefighters, and law enforcement officers. For purpose of this section, adequate radio coverage shall 
include all of the following: 


 
a) a minimum signal strength of -101 dBm available in 95% of the area of each floor of the building when 


transmitted from the Public Safety Radio Communications System: and 
 


b) A minimum signal strength of -101 dBm received at the Public Safety Radio Communications System when 
transmitted from 95% of the area of each floor of the building, via portable radio with public safety 
microphone. 
 


c) Channel Performance Criterion (CPC):  CPC is the minimum performance level in a faded channel, per TSB-
88, clause 4.2.  TSB-88 is a “Telecommunications Systems Bulletin” published by the TIA, 







Review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Page 8 of 9 


 


Telecommunications Industry Association.  The performance level is rated using “Delivered Audio 
Quality”.  Industry standard DAQ definitions are shown in Table 1. 
 


d) DAQ level of three (3) is the minimum performance level which shall be attainable by public safety radio 
systems in 95% of the area of each floor of a building, via portable radio with public safety microphone 


 
Table 1 - Delivered Audio Quality Definitions 
 


DAQ Delivered 
Audio Quality 


Subjective Performance Description 


1 Unusable, speech present but unreadable. 


2 
Understandable with considerable effort. Frequent repetition due 
to noise / distortion. 


3 
Speech understandable with slight effort.  Occasional repetition 
required due to noise / distortion. 


3.5 
Speech understandable with repetition only rarely required.  Some 
noise / distortion. 


4 Speech easily understood.  Occasional noise / distortion. 


4.5 Speech easily understood.  Infrequent noise / distortion. 


5 Speech easily understood. 


 
e) The frequency range which must be supported shall be 151.0000 to 160.0000 MHz, in both digital and 


analog signals. 
 
Testing Procedures: 


A. Initial Tests.  Public safety employees or their designees will perform initial tests.  A Certificate of 
Occupancy shall not be issued to any new structure if the building fails to comply with this section.  


B. Annual Tests.  Fire Department personnel in conjunction with inspection procedures will conduct 
annual tests. 


 
Amplification Systems Allowed 
1. Buildings and structures which cannot independently support the required level of radio coverage shall be 


equipped with any of the following in order to achieve the required adequate radio coverage: a radiating 
cable system or an internal multiple antenna system with or without FCC type accepted signal booster 
amplifiers as needed. The installation of equipment as indicated above cannot be detrimental to the 
operation of the Public Safety Radio System.  


 
2. In the event that a signal booster is employed it shall meet the following minimum requirements: 


a. be fully encased within a dust resistant case; 
b. be contained in a National Electrical Manufacturer’s Association (NEMA) 4-type waterproof cabinet; 
c. battery systems used for the emergency power source shall be contained in a NEMA 4-type 


waterproof cabinet; 
d. the signal booster system and battery system shall be electrically supervised and monitored by a 


supervisory service, or shall sound an audible signal at a constantly attended location; 
e. Have FCC certification prior to installation. 


 
Secondary Power 
Emergency responder radio coverage systems shall be provided with an approved secondary source of power 
conforming to NFPA 72. The secondary power supply shall be capable of operating the emergency responder 
radio coverage system for a period of at least twenty-four (24) hours. When primary power is lost, the power 
supply to the emergency responder radio coverage system shall automatically transfer to the secondary 
power supply. 
 
Field Testing 







Review of Master Conceptual Plan - Haribo 


Page 9 of 9 


 


Fire Department personnel, after providing reasonable notice to the owner or their representative, shall have 
the right to enter onto the property to conduct field-testing to be certain the required level of radio coverage 
is present. 
 


35. Final Inspection:  The General Contractor shall provide the following documentation at the time the Final 
Inspection takes place and before a building occupancy certificate will be issued. 


a. The fire protection contractor shall provide the owner with a letter (upon completion of the sprinkler 
work) stating the sprinkler system, or portion thereof, is “100% operational and built according to the 
design”, Village Ordinance, 180-16 N if modifications are made to the system. 


b. The fire alarm contractor shall provide the owner with a letter (upon completion of the fire alarm work) 
stating the fire alarm system, or portion thereof, is “100% operational and built according to the design” if 
modifications are made to the system. 


c. Copy of contract with fire alarm central monitoring station. 


d. Copy of UL and/or FM certificate(s) for the fire alarm central monitoring station. 


e. Copies of the fire protection underground flushing documents. 


f. Copies of the underground and fire sprinkler hydrostatic test certificates. 


g. Copies of the fire sprinkler operational test certificates. 


h. Copies of the fire alarm test documents. 


i. Copies of other test documents such as, hood/duct, smoke, etc… 


j. The Pleasant Prairie Fire and Rescue Department shall have all information needed for our pre-fire plan 
prior to occupancy. 


k. Provide in electronic format (USB, CD, etc) all Floor plans and fire protection plans for the building in an 
as-built condition. 


l. Maps of the fire alarm and fire sprinkler system shall be placed in the fire pump room, near the fire alarm control 
panel; the maps shall be hung on the wall, with a waterproof covering and accessible to firefighters wearing 
bulky clothes and equipment. 


m. AED is in place at such time that the occupancy inspection is conducted. 


n. A copy of the Emergency Plan must be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department before occupancy. 


 







9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.925.6722    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com


Office of the Building Inspection Superintendent 
Sandro Perez


Village Staff Memorandum


To:               Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director


From:          Sandro Perez, Building Inspection Superintendent


Subject:       Haribo


Date:            March 19, 2018


1. Building Inspection Department information:
Hours:  Mon-Fri, 8am-5pm.
Phone# 262-694-9304
Email: buildinginspection@plprairiewi.com


2. Permit applications can be found online at pleasantprairieonline.com 


3. Inspections are performed Mon- Fri 9am-4pm except electrical inspections; those are only Tue 
& Thu mornings. 48hr notice is required to schedule an inspection. Please note you must call 
and speak with a Building Inspection Department representative a voicemail or email will not 
constitute an inspection please plan accordingly. Final occupancy inspections require 
coordination with multiple departments and staff members there for a minimum of 72 hour 
notice is required. Any re-inspection fees due must be paid prior to scheduling a re-inspection.


4. All contractors requiring permits shall not commence work until permit issuance.


5. We are currently inspecting to the 2009 IBC, IEBC, IMC, IECC, IFGC, 2003 ANSI A117.1, 
2011 NEC and WI. Plumbing code SPS 381-386.


6. Please submit all applicable plans (Building, HVAC, Fire Suppression, Fire Detection, 
Conveyance, Plumbing, etc.) to the state for review (DSPS). Please be aware state plumbing 
plan review has a long lead time, plan accordingly. 


7. Building Inspection Department will not issue permits until we receive the applicable state 
approval letter and plans. 


8. All state approved drawing must be available at job site for inspector review during 
inspections.


9. Please submit emergency egress lighting plan and energy compliance worksheets form SBD 
10512 to Building Inspection Department prior to issuance of building permit. 


10. Fire alarm systems require two permits from both the Fire Department and Building Inspection 
Department.



mailto:buildinginspection@plprairiewi.com





9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.925.6722    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com


11. Any building fire protection loop and combination water main will require approval by the Fire 
Department prior to issuance of exterior plumbing permit. 


12. Fire alarm systems and fire protection loops will require inspections by both the Fire 
Department and Building Inspection Department.


13. Any tradesmen requiring state license will be “carded” on the jobsite for compliance.


14. All equipment must be “LISTED” by a nationally recognized testing laboratory.


15. All equipment, materials, etc. must be rated for the environment in which they will be used.


16. Please contact me with any questions on permitting and/or plan submittal.


17. Provide adequate ADA accessible parking and locate per 2009 IBC.



















 


HARIBO OF AMERICA, INC. 
9500 Bryn Mawr Ave, Suite #700, Rosemont, Illinois 60018 
Telephone: (847) 260-0580  Toll-free: 1-800-638-2327  Fax: (847) 260-0598 
http://www.haribo.com  Email: info-us@haribo.com 


September 9, 2019 


 


VIA E-MAIL AND U.S. MAIL 


 


Village of Pleasant Prairie  


Attn. Ms. Jean Werbie-Harris 


Community Development Director 


9915 39th Avenue 


Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158  


 


RE:   Master Conceptual Plan for the Development of the Haribo of America Manufacturing, LLC 


Parcel, located at the southwest corner of 120th Avenue (West Frontage Road) and CTH C 


(Wilmont Road) Approved May 7, 2018 


Dear Ms. Werbie-Harris: 


Haribo of America Manufacturing, LLC (“Haribo”) is kindly requesting an extension of the Master Conceptual 


Plan that was approved by the Village of Pleasant Prairie (Village) Board on May 7, 2018, to and through 


November 7, 2020.   


The extension and adjustment in time will allow the Village of Pleasant Prairie to complete its grading activities 


in order to officially turnover the prepared land to Haribo.  The turnover of the prepared land will allow Haribo 


to begin construction upon weather permitting and development permitting requirements being satisfied.  


During this time, and over the winter months, Haribo will continue to capture and implement unique U.S. 


requirements, as well as learning from other Haribo facilities around the world, insuring that we bring best 


practices to our facility in Pleasant Prairie and set ourselves up to produce top-quality products for customers 


in the United States.  


We would appreciate you presenting our request to and before the Village of Pleasant Prairie Plan Commission, 


and upon approval thereof, to the Village of Pleasant Prairie (Village) Board as necessary for approval.   Please 


provide a copy of the authorizing Ordinance/Resolution upon the same being issued.   


Please contact me if you have any question or if further assistance is needed in the interim. 


Very truly yours, 


Haribo of America Manufacturing, LLC 



http://www.haribo.com/





MEMORANDUM 


To:        Village Board 


From:   Nathan R. Thiel 


Date:    October 7, 2019 


Re:        Consider award of contract to RINKA for Master Planning and Sub-
Consultant Services, and Master Developer Services for the Village Green 
Center (“VGC”) Mixed-Use Development 


 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6721 • Fax 262.694.4734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 


 


Office of the Village Administrator 


BACKGROUND 
 
Earlier this year, the citizen engagement Community Collaboration committee, known as Designing Downtown Pleasant Prairie, 
worked together for 7 months (January – July 2019), volunteering more than 1,500 hours, to create a wide variety of 
development recommendations for the VGC, a new downtown destination development on 180 plus acres.   
This group of dedicated volunteers identified opportunities, researched ideas, and developed concepts for housing options, 
commercial district, park and recreation amenities, and public and civic facilities. Other areas of focus included environment-
friendly solutions, project marketing, and the downtown’s aesthetics, character, branding and themes.  
The Village chose to use a new engagement process designed to let the community drive all aspects of the project’s concept 
development allowing interested citizens to directly influence ongoing VGC development activities undertaken by the Village.  
 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) TIMELINE 
 
RFQ #19-01: To begin PHASE 2 of the VGC planning process, the Village solicited statements of qualifications from 
development professionals (real estate developers, architects, master planners, engineers, etc.) to lead in the Master Planning & 
Master Developer roles in the planning and development of the approximate 188 acre VGC site.  


 July 1, 2019 - RFQ Released and sent to 40+ selected firms 
 August 9, 2019 - RFQ Due Date, received 2 responses from BEAR Development (Kenosha) & RINKA (Milwaukee) 
 Sept. 4, 2019 - Village Staff and a 4 Member Community Collaboration (“CC”) subcommittee interviewed BEAR 


Development & RINKA 
 Sept. 19, 2019 - Village Staff and CC participants agree to proceed with RINKA. CC participants felt confident with 


RINKA’s approach, process and network.  
 
FEE FOR SERVICES (for Master Planning and Sub-Consultant Services) 
 
Visioning & Programming      $12,500 
Concept Master Planning      $40,000 
Concept Master Planning – Civil Site Analysis   $5,000 
Schematic Master Planning     $65,000 
Schematic Master Planning – Civil Infrastructure Development $25,000 
PD Documentation      $60,000 
Master Developer Services     $50,000 
TOTAL        $257,500 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Village Board award the contract for Master Planning and Sub-Consultant Services, and Master 
Developer Services for the Village Green Center Mixed-Use Development to RINKA for $257,500. 







 


 
 
 


CONTRACT        
 
 
Date: September 16, 2019 
Updated: September 25, 2019 (all major changes tracked as bold italic) 


 
 
Attn: Nathan Thiel, Village Administrator 
Village of Pleasant Prairie (The Client) 
9915 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Email: nthiel@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
Phone: 262-925-6721 
 
 
RE: Village Green Center Mixed-Use Development 
 RINKA Project Number:  190701 
 
 
Dear Nathan, 
 
We are very pleased to provide you with this contract for Master Planning and Master Developer Services for the Village 
Green Center (VGC) Mixed-Use Development project in Pleasant Prairie. Below you will find our understanding of the 
project scope and services. 
 
 
SCOPE OF PROJECT 
 
The Scope for Village Green Center (VGC) Mixed-Use Development (the Project) generally includes: 
 


 Development of a planned mixed-use center for the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a community of over 21,000 
people located approximately halfway between Chicago and Milwaukee on the shores of Lake Michigan. 


 The project area covers several parcels, area totaling approximately 188 acres, centered on the intersection 
of Highway 165 & 39th Avenue in Pleasant Prairie, WI.  Of the 188 acres, approximately 121 acres are currently 
undeveloped, 42 acres are developed, and the remaining 25 acres are in right-of-way.  The Village owns 
approximately 96 acres, and the balance of remaining parcels included in the project area are privately owned. 


 Refer to Exhibit B for location information, and Exhibit C for list and map of included parcels. 
 The project area includes wetlands that will need to be considered in the master plan configuration. 
 The project area contains several different zoning designations, ranging from agricultural to community 


business to single-family residential.  Through the scope of this project, a Planned Development (PD) zoning 
designation will be formed to shape the VGC.  


 The VGC will transform the site to be a dynamic, walkable, mixed-use “downtown” project that will serve as a 
focal point for the Village, responsive to the aspects explored by the Community Collaboration committee. 


 The project is envisioned to include programmed uses such as: 
o Active/Connected Streetscapes 
o Low-Rise (2-5 stories) Mixed Use / Local Retail Focus 
o Low-Rise (2-5 stories) Multi-Family 
o Natural Greenscapes 
o Programmed Activity Spaces 
o High Quality Food and Beverage 
o Community Engagement Programming 
o Non-intrusive Parking/ Alternative Transportation 


 Refer to Exhibit A – The Village Green Vision & Precedent examples for further description of the project 
vision. 


 
 
 
 
 







Village Green Center  -  #190701  -  Page 2 of 5 


 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Scope of Services includes Master Planning and Sub-Consultant Services, and Master Developer Services, as 
described below: 
 


 Visioning & Programming, generally including: 
o Conduct a kick-off meeting with the Client’s representatives (Leadership, staff, VGC Steering 


Committee) to summarize and confirm community-led visioning activities completed to date, and gain 
additional Village feedback to solidify the design parameters. 


o Develop the Project Guiding Principles and Goals with the group above  
o Develop a draft Program with the group above (list of required features, sizes, adjacencies, etc.) 
o Create a Project Guiding Principles / Goals / Programming document that outlines the above for use 


in the Concept Master Planning phase. 
 


 Concept Draft Master Planning and Civil Site Analysis, generally including: 
o 2 – 3  design review meetings with the VGC Steering Committee during the Concept phase  
o Bi-weekly design & logistics meetings, in person or via webex, with the Client’s municipal 


representatives (Administrator, Planning Dept, and/or others as deemed appropriate by the Client) 
o Color diagrams of the site to demonstrate the major design concepts of the development Concept 


Design 
o Subconsultant Services: Preliminary civil site analysis 


 Review available property data and assess opportunities and constraints. 
 Evaluate data to determine areas of special significance that would affect development 


options such as wetlands, protected areas, etc. 
 Coordinate to provide design team feedback on conceptual layouts.  


o The final design review meeting in the Concept Phase will be a presentation of the Conceptual Draft 
Master Plan and Project Guiding Principles and Goals to the Client, VGC Steering Committee, and 
general public to solicit feedback and create the basis for the Schematic Master Planning phase.  
This presentation will be in the form of an open house. 
 


 Schematic Master Planning and Infrastructure Development, and Final Master Plan, generally including: 
o Master Planning that develops the planning concepts established in the Concept Draft Master Plan 


phase. 
o Incorporate Market Analysis data. 
o 3D digital master site plan and conceptual architectural renderings and animation. 
o Development summary documenting building identification, use, square footage, parking, 


recommended FAR, etc. 
o Bi-weekly design & logistics meetings, in person or via webex, with the Client’s municipal 


representatives (Administrator, Planning Dept, and/or others as deemed appropriate by the Client) 
o 2-3 design review meetings with the Client and VGC Steering Committee. 


 Solicit feedback from Village Planning & Zoning personnel, Engineering, Land Owners, and 
VGC Steering Committee. 


o Development of presentation package for Client approval and marketing of project. 
o Presentation of Final Master Plan to the Client, VGC Steering Committee and general public.  This 


presentation will be in the form of an open house. 
o Subconsultant Services: Schematic level civil engineering, generally including: 


 Recommendation of storm water handling strategy & best practices. 
 Conceptual design and sizing of infrastructure such as water and wastewater services, 


roads, and storm water systems. 
 Modeling of general site topography and grading 
 Produce a construction cost estimate for infrastructure and civil site scopes to inform TIF 


budgeting process. 
o Design scope revisions requested after the issuance of the Final Master Plan will be an additional 


service 
 


 Planned Development (PD) Document: Authorship of the PD or similar planning guide to include, but not be 
limited to the following guideline categories: 


o General development plan 
o Building design guidelines 
o Building types 
o Best management practices 
o Signage guidelines and design intent 







Village Green Center  -  #190701  -  Page 3 of 5 


 


o Streetscape guidelines and design intent 
o Meetings: Attend monthly PD draft document review meetings with the Client through the duration of 


the PD phase.  This monthly meeting will be coordinated to coincide with the monthly Master 
Development meeting indicated below. 


 
 Sub-Consultant Design Services 


o Sub-Consultants included in this contract are limited to the following services: 
 Civil Engineering (Schematic master planning and best practices planning only, no detailed 


engineering) 
 Landscape Architecture (Schematic master planning and best practices planning only, no 


detailed landscape design) 
o The following Sub-Consultant design services are not included in the contract scope: 


 Detailed Civil Engineering / Landscape Design 
 Structural Engineering 
 Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, and Fire Protection Engineering 
 Historic Preservation / Federal Historic Tax Credit Consultant 
 Market Study Consultation 
 If deemed necessary, fee proposals for scopes indicated herein as “not included” will be 


solicited from qualified Sub-Consultants and a project team will be selected by RINKA upon 
review and mutual approval by the Client. Sub-Consultant fees will be in addition to the fees 
listed in this contract and subject to RINKA Standard Terms and Conditions for reimbursable 
expenses. 


 
 Master Developer Services: Provide development consulting services, generally including: 


o Provide market context to the overall development vision, analyzing market opportunity and financial 
feasibility. 


o Identify the appropriate mix, arrangement, and programming of uses to create economically viable 
and compelling development opportunities.  


o Balance constructability considerations with the aesthetic design goals to create realistically 
achievable opportunities that support the vision of the community. 


o Identify incentive financing opportunities 
o Solicit input from brokerage community, commercial developers, multi-family developers, and office 


developers. 
o Collaborate and leverage relationships with individual developers to create buy-in and excitement for 


Village Green Center opportunities.  
o Conduct a monthly Master Development meeting 


 
 Future Project Phases: Upon completion of the Concept and Schematic Master Site Planning Phases, RINKA 


will develop a detailed plan, schedule, and fee for future Project design phases (not included in the current 
Project scope), generally including:  


o Design Development (DD): Design Development of Site Plan 
o Construction Documents (CD): Construction Documentation of Site Plan 
o Construction Administration (CA): Administer the contract documents through the course of bidding 


and construction.   
 


 Exclusions / Additional Services: The following items are specifically excluded from the project scope and may 
be provided as additional services as requested by the Client. Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 


o Engineering or any other Sub-Consultant services not described as included in the scope above 
o 3D models for use by anyone other than RINKA for generating digital imagery 
o Project cost of work estimations/budgets, other than conceptual infrastructure pricing described 


herein 
o Value engineering revisions after design approval 
o Additional meetings and presentations in excess of the quantity listed in scope of services. 
o LEED, Focus on Energy, or other sustainable design program coordination and submittals 
o Geotechnical engineering or reports 
o Market Study reports 
o Cultural or historic resource reports 
o Environmental investigations, reports, or remediation 
o Site survey (in CAD format) or revisions to the existing site survey 


 
 
  







Village Green Center  -  #190701  -  Page 4 of 5 


 


FEE FOR SERVICES 
 
The fee for Master Planning and Sub-Consultant Services for the above described Scope of Project and Services will 
be as indicated below: 
 


 Visioning & Programming:     $12,500 
 Concept Master Planning:     $40,000 
 Concept Master Planning – Civil Site Analysis:    $5,000 
 Schematic Master Planning:    $65,000 
 Schematic Master Planning – Civil Infrastructure Development: $25,000 
 PD Documentation:     $60,000 


 
The fee for Master Developer Services for the above described Scope of Project and Services will be as indicated 
below: 
 


 Master Developer Services:    $50,000 
 
 
Refer to attached RINKA Standard Terms and Conditions for additional information. 
 
 
PRELIMINARY PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
The Project will be completed in a mutually agreed upon schedule commencing with a fully executed contract.  The 
Village Green Center phase durations are anticipated to be: 
 


 Visioning & Programming:      2-3 weeks 
o 1 kick-off meeting 


 
 Concept Master Planning / Civil Site Analysis:  6-8 weeks 


o 2-3 design review meetings with the Client and VGC Steering Committee 
o Bi-weekly design/logistics meetings with municipal staff 
o 1 open house presentation to the Client, VGC Steering Committee, and general public 


 
 Schematic Master Planning / Infrastructure Development: 10-12 weeks 


o 2-3 design review meetings with the Client and VGC Steering Committee 
o 1 open house presentation to the Client, VGC Steering Committee, and general public 


 
 PD Documentation:     12-16 weeks, concurrent to Schematic Plan 
 Master Developer Services:     Concurrent to scopes above 


o Meetings as coordinated, needed, and mutually agreed upon with the Client to facilitate 
developer/brokerage interest 


 
Note: Project durations beyond the above noted timeframes may result in additional services. 
 
 
REIMBURSABLES, ADDITIONAL SERVICES & OTHER PROVISIONS 
 
Refer to the attached RINKA Standard Terms and Conditions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Village Green Center  -  #190701  -  Page 5 of 5 


 


 
 
APPROVAL 
 
This contract will supersede and nullify all previous signed and unsigned agreements for this project. If this contract 
meets with your approval, please sign and return one copy at your earliest convenience.  Work on this project will begin 
immediately upon receipt of the signed contract. Without client approval, this contract is null and void after 30 days 
unless otherwise validated by RINKA. 
 
If we have not received the countersigned contract before we are requested to begin our services, or you do not 
otherwise object to our contract in writing prior to our beginning work, we will proceed according to the contract, 
including its terms and conditions, and assume that it is acceptable to you. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to collaborate and help create a vibrant, destination center for Pleasant Prairie! 
 
 
Kindest Regards, 
 
 
 
Steve Morales 
partner 


 
phone 414 431 8101 
mobile   414 364.4115 
email   smorales@RINKA.com 


 
 
ACCEPTANCE 


 
Authorized Representative for Village of Pleasant Prairie: 


Attn Nathan Thiel, Village Administrator 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
ATTACHMENTS 


 


 RINKA – Standard Terms and Conditions 
 RINKA: 2019 Hourly Rate Schedule 
 Exhibit A – The Village Green Vision & Precedent examples 
 Exhibit B – Project Area Overview 
 Exhibit C – List of Included Parcels & Assessed Values 


 
 


   


Signature  Date 
   


Print Name   


 


Title 


 


Company Name 







 


 
 
 


RINKA – Standard Terms and Conditions 
• Ownership of Documents: All documents produced by RINKA Inc. (“RINKA”) under this agreement are instruments of service of 


RINKA and shall remain property of RINKA and may not be used by the Client for any other purpose without the prior written consent 
of RINKA. All information, graphics, and drawings produced will remain the intellectual and material property of RINKA Inc and will 
be afforded all ownership rights and copyright protections. 


• Access to the Site: Unless otherwise stated, RINKA will have access to the site for activities necessary for the performance of the 
services. RINKA will take reasonable precautions to minimize damage due to these activities, but has not included in the fee the 
cost of restoration of any resulting damage and will not be responsible for such costs. 


• Retainer/Billing/Payment:  The Client agrees to pay RINKA for all services performed and all costs incurred.  Prior to the provision 
of services, the Client shall deposit the non-refundable retainer to RINKA as outlined in the “Fee for Services” section of this 
document.  Invoices for services by RINKA shall be submitted, at RINKA’s option, either upon completion of such services or on a 
semimonthly basis.  If any invoice is not paid within 15 days of due date, RINKA, without waving any claim or right against the Client, 
and without liability whatsoever to the Client, may suspend or terminate the performance of services.   Accounts unpaid 30 days 
after due date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.5% (or the maximum legal rate) on the unpaid balance.  In the event 
any portion of the account remains unpaid 60 days after the billing, RINKA may institute collection action and the Client shall pay all 
costs of collection, including reasonable attorney’s fees.  RINKA retains the right to assert lien rights for any unpaid accounts.  All 
fees quoted do not include any local, state or federal sales tax.  All applicable sales tax, current or future, will be charged in addition 
to quoted services. 


• Indemnification:  The Client shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless RINKA and waive any claims 
against RINKA, his or her officers, directors, employees, agents and subconsultants, from and against all damages, liability and 
cost, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, arising out of or in any way connected with the performance of services 
under this Agreement, excepting only those damages, liabilities or costs attributable to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of 
RINKA. 


• Information for the Sole Use and Benefit of the Client:  All opinions and conclusions of RINKA, whether written or oral, and any 
plans, specifications or other documents and services provided by RINKA are for the sole use and benefit of the Client and are not 
to be provided to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of RINKA. 


• Certifications, Guarantees and Warranties:  RINKA shall not be required to execute any document that would result in RINKA 
certifying, guaranteeing or warranting the existence of any conditions.  


• Limitation of Liability:  In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the Client and RINKA, the 
risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, RINKA’s total liability to the Client 
for any and all injuries, damages, losses, expenses or claim expenses arising out of this Agreement from any cause or causes, shall 
not exceed the amount of the total fee due RINKA as described in the section of this Agreement labeled “fee”.  Such causes include, 
but are not limited to, RINKA’s negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or breach of warranty. 


• Dispute Resolution:  Any claims or dispute between the Client and RINKA arising out of the services to be provided by RINKA or 
out of this Agreement shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation.  The Client and RINKA agree to include a similar mediation 
agreement with all contractors, subconsultants, subcontractors, suppliers and fabricators, providing for mediation as the primary 
method for dispute resolution among all parties. 


• NOTICE OF LIEN RIGHTS:  AS REQUIRED BY THE WISCONSIN CONSTRUCTION LIEN LAW, 
CLAIMANT HEREBY NOTIFIES OWNER THAT PERSONS OR COMPANIES PERFORMING, 
FURNISHING, OR PROCURING LABOR, SERVICES, MATERIALS, PLANS, OR 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION ON OWNER'S LAND MAY HAVE LIEN RIGHTS 
ON OWNER'S LAND AND BUILDINGS IF NOT PAID.  THOSE ENTITLED TO LIEN RIGHTS, IN 
ADDITION TO THE UNDERSIGNED CLAIMANT, ARE THOSE WHO CONTRACT DIRECTLY 
WITH THE OWNER OR THOSE WHO GIVE THE OWNER NOTICE WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER 
THEY FIRST PERFORM, FURNISH, OR PROCURE LABOR, SERVICES, MATERIALS, PLANS 
OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION.  ACCORDINGLY, OWNER PROBABLY 
WILL RECEIVE NOTICES FROM THOSE WHO PERFORM, FURNISH, OR PROCURE LABOR, 
SERVICES, MATERIALS, PLANS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, AND 
SHOULD GIVE A COPY OF EACH NOTICE RECEIVED TO THE MORTGAGE LENDER, IF ANY.  
CLAIMANT AGREES TO COOPERATE WITH THE OWNER AND THE OWNER'S LENDER, IF 
ANY, TO SEE THAT ALL POTENTIAL LIEN CLAIMANTS ARE DULY PAID. 


• Termination of Service: This agreement may be terminated at any time by either party at their convenience and without cause 
upon giving the other party not less than seven (7) calendar days’ written notice.  In the event of termination for any reason 
whatsoever, the client shall pay RINKA for all services rendered up through the date of the written termination notice. 


• Additional Services: 
o Additional architectural services beyond the scope identified are to be provided on an hourly basis based on the standard 


company billing rates. 
o Services by outside consultants beyond that expressed herein are available at a fee stipulated by the consultant. 


• Reimbursables: In addition to our fees for architectural services, reimbursable expenses will be charged to the client for, but not 
limited to, prints/plots, reprographics, project related municipal fees, computer media, travel, long distance telephone, postage and 
handling, facsimiles, etc.  If needed and approved by the client, engineering or sub-consultant services will be billed the cost of the 
invoice plus 10% for coordination services. All reimbursable expenses and vendor coordination will be billed at cost plus 10% unless 
otherwise noted. 
 







RINKA – Standard Terms and Conditions  -  Page 2 of 2 


 


• Construction Documents: 
o The Client acknowledges that the Construction Documents are intended to convey design intent and may represent 


imperfect data. Such deficiencies will be corrected when identified. The Client shall promptly report to RINKA any defects 
or suspected defects in the Construction Documents of which the Client becomes aware, so that RINKA may take 
measures to minimize the consequences of such a defect. The Client further agrees to impose a similar notification 
requirement on all contractors in its Client/Contractor contract and shall require all subcontracts at any level to contain a 
like requirement. 


o The Client and RINKA acknowledge that in order to construct the work, the Contractor will provide additional information, 
including shop drawings, product data, samples and other similar submittals, which RINKA will review in accordance with 
Construction Phase Services. 


• Construction Phase Services: 
o RINKA shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, 


sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the work, nor shall RINKA be 
responsible for the contractor’s failure to perform the work in accordance with the requirements of the construction 
documents. RINKA shall not have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the 
contractor or of any other persons or entities performing portions of the work. 


o RINKA shall not be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the 
work. 


o RINKA may authorize minor changes in the work that are consistent with the intent of the construction documents and 
do not involve an adjustment in the contract sum or an extension of the contract time 


o RINKA will review Contractor submittals (shop drawings, product data, samples and other similar submittals) only with 
respect to conformance with information given on the submittals and the design concept expressed in the Construction 
Documents. RINKA will not review the submittals for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other 
details such as dimensions and quantities, all of which are the Contractor’s responsibility. RINKA shall not be responsible 
for approval of submittals containing any deviations from the Construction Documents not brought to the attention of 
RINKA in writing by the Contractor prior to approval. RINKA’s review shall be conducted with reasonable promptness 
while allowing sufficient time in RINKA’s judgment to permit adequate review. 


• Responsibilities of the Client: 
o The Client shall provide information in a timely manner regarding requirements for and limitations on the project. 
o The Client shall establish and periodically update the budget for the project. The Client shall notify RINKA of significant 


increases or decreases the project budget, and RINKA and the Client will thereafter agree to a corresponding change in 
the project’s scope and/or quality. 


o The Client shall appoint a representative authorized to act on behalf of the project. The project representative shall render 
decisions and approve RINKA’s submittals in a timely manner to avoid delays in the project schedule and to achieve 
orderly, sequential progress of RINKA’s services. 


o The Client shall furnish a site survey with the appropriate level of information required to complete the project, if required 
by the project scope. The site survey will be delivered for use on the project in electronic (CAD) format. 


o The Client shall furnish the services of geotechnical engineers, if required by the project scope. 
o The Client shall furnish tests, inspections, and reports required by law or by the construction documents. 
o The Client shall provide prompt notice to RINKA if the Client becomes aware of any fault or defect in the project. 
o The Client shall endeavor to communicate with the contractor or RINKA’s consultants through RINKA about matters 


arising out of or relating to the construction documents. The Client shall promptly notify RINKA of any direct 
communications with other parties that may affect RINKA’s services. 


o The Client shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by RINKA. RINKA shall be 
entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information furnished by the Client and/or the Client’s 
consultants. RINKA shall not be responsible for a Client’s directive or substitution made without RINKA’s approval. 


• Hazardous Materials: RINKA shall have no responsibility for the discovery, presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure 
of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any form at the project site. 


• Promotional Materials: RINKA shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the project 
among the RINKA’s promotional and professional materials. RINKA shall be given reasonable access to the completed project to 
make such representation; however, RINKA’s materials shall not include the Client’s confidential or proprietary information if the 
Client has previously advised RINKA in writing of the specific information considered by the Client to be confidential or proprietary. 
The Client shall provide professional credit to RINKA in the Client’s promotional materials for the project. 


• Suspension of the Work: If the Client suspends work on the project for more than 30 cumulative days and subsequently requests 
RINKA to resume project work, RINKA shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of the work. 
RINKA’s fees for the remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 


• Standard of Care: In providing services under this agreement, RINKA shall perform in a manner consistent with that degree of care 
and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances at the same time 
and in the same or similar locality. 


• Value Engineering: RINKA will state in writing to the Client any objections to construction cost reduction strategies (value 
engineering) considered for the project along with the reasons for objecting. If the Client, in spite of RINKA’s objections, requires 
the incorporation of changes in the Construction Documents, the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to waive all 
claims against the RINKA and to indemnify and hold harmless RINKA from any damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs of defense, which arise in connection with or as a result of the incorporation of such design changes 
required by the Client. 


• Accessibility: The Client acknowledges that the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Fair Housing Act (FHA) 
and other federal, state and local accessibility laws, rules, codes, ordinances and regulations will be subject to various and possibly 
contradictory interpretations. RINKA, therefore, will use its reasonable professional efforts and judgment to interpret applicable 
accessibility requirements in effect as of the date of submission to building authorities as they apply to the project. RINKA, however, 
cannot and does not warrant or guarantee that the Client’s project will comply with all possible interpretations of the accessibility 
requirements and/or the requirements of other federal, state and local laws, rules, codes, ordinances and regulations as they apply 
to the project, and RINKA shall, accordingly, not have any liability to the Client in connection with same. 







 


 
 
 
Revised: 8/28/2019 
 
 
 
RINKA: 2019 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 
 
 
Title     Code  Rate 
 
Partner     PR  $195 - $280 
Senior Vice President   SVP  $150 - $170 
Vice President    VP  $145 
 
Senior Project Architect   SPA  $140 
Senior Architect, Project Manager  SAPM  $140 
Senior Project Designer   SPD  $140 
Senior Project Delivery Manager  SPDM  $125 
Senior Project Manager   SPM  $125 
Senior Interior Designer   SID  $125 
 
Project Architect II   PA2  $115 
Architect, Project Manager II  APM1  $115 
Project Designer II   PD2  $110 
Project Delivery Manager II  PDM1  $110 
Project Manager II   PM2  $110 
Interior Design Project Manager II  IDM2  $110 
 
Project Architect I    PA1  $100 
Architect, Project Manager I  APM1  $100 
Project Designer I    PD1  $  95 
Project Delivery Manager I   PDM1  $  95 
Project Manager I    PM1  $  95 
Interior Design Project Manager I  IDM1  $  95 
 
Design Professional II   DP2  $  90 
Interior Designer II   ID2  $  90 
 
Design Professional I   DP1  $  85 
Interior Designer I    ID1  $  85 
 
Designer II    D2  $  80 
Designer I    D1  $  75 
 
Design Intern    DI1  $  55 
 
Support Staff/Administrative  SS  $  55 
 
 
Note: all above rates are for services only and do not include project related reimbursable expenses. 
 
 
END OF DOCUMENT 







Our vision for the Village Green Center would be rooted both in the goals established in the VGC RFQ 
and in the collective presentation ideas observed at the July 25th event at the Pleasant Prairie City Hall. 
All potential development uses would be explored through our design process and would filter through 
the eight major categories listed below with a focus on placemaking.


The character and function of the Village Green Center would focus on the passionate and thoughtful 
items raised by the Community Collaboration committee.  Specifically, the intent would be to create a 
destinational, authentic, and active environment that would encourage local and outside development 
of varied uses.  Unique and community-enhancing concepts would explore a public market, art-plex, 
and Pleasant Prairie authentic type retail opportunities.  The rich history of Pleasant Prairie and the 
local existing landscape would balance the forward-thinking flexible planning strategies to create an 
authentic, amenity rich environment for current residents and visitors as well as future generations.  A 
timeless design is key to this once in a lifetime opportunity.


1. Active / Connected Streetscapes: Pedestrian focused, safe, activity encouraging 
network of clear wayfinding across the site for all methods conveyance.


2. Low-Rise Mixed Use / Local Retail Focus: Appropriately dense mixed use planning 
that promotes locally sensitive and nationally desired retail and commercial activity at the ground 
level while providing density through multi-family or office above.


3. Low-Rise Multi-family: Multi-family planning that promotes an inclusive and varied 
approach to residential development.  Planning could include, but not be limited to, apartments, 
condominiums, townhouses, independent living, or many others.


4. Natural Greenscapes: Pedestrian focused, bicycle accommodating, and multi-seasonal 
planning that could include trails for hiking, walking paths, bike trails, or recreational spaces in 
naturally occurring and curated greenspaces.


5. Programmed Activity Areas: Public enhancing, community supported spaces for 
programmed activities such as an amphitheater, ice skating rink, physical fitness zones, outdoor 
markets, maker spaces, etc. 


6. High Quality Food and Beverage: Local and regional restaurant planning that accounts 
for restaurateur interests while providing social spaces like a beer garden, outdoor dining areas, 
and uniquely amenitized spaces that make for memorable dining and libation experiences.


7. Community Engagement Programming: Civic or community based planning for the 
cultural celebration of the community through art, public services, or community gathering.


8. Non-intrusive Parking / Alternative Transportation Considerations: Multi-
modal planning that considers current parking requirements and transportation options, but builds in 
flexible modification strategies to adequately adjust for future transportation changes and trends. 


THE VILLAGE GREEN VISION


60


EXHIBIT A







2. Low-Rise Mixed Use /  Local Retail Focus1. Active / Connected Streetscapes


5. Programmed Activity Areas 6. High Quality Food & Beverage


4. Natural Greenscapes


8. Alternative Transporation Considerations


3. Low-Rise Multi-family


7. Community Engagement Programming


04
: T


H
E 


VI
LL


AG
E 


GR
EE


N
 V


IS
IO


N


62


EXHIBIT A







44


03
: P


RO
JE


CT
 E


XP
ER


IE
N


CEDrexel Town Square is a master 
development plan that created a 
new downtown center in Oak Creek, 
Wisconsin.  


DREXEL TOWN SQUARE
Oak Creek, WI


SIZE
LAND USE
SERVICES


BUDGET
FINANCING
DATES
REFERENCE


85 Acres
34% Retail; 60% Residential; 6% Civic
Masterplanning, Architecture + Interior 
Design
Overall: Withheld; Infrastructure: $23m
City of Oak Creek / Private Investment
Jan 2013 - Oct 2015
Steve Scaffidi; ocscaffidi@gmail.com


Reminiscent of a traditional downtown, the new development 
includes a new Main Street, Oak Creek’s first, with a new City Hall 
and Library on a the town square, surrounded by retail stores, 
restaurants, shops, businesses and apartments. RINKA was 
involved in the project from multiple aspects, including a pedestrian 
oriented streetscape design, design for all of the public spaces, 
and the Town Center design which serves as the heart of the new 
downtown. In conjunction with many project partners, RINKA led 
the masterplanning design for the 85-acre site while establishing a 
design vision for all buildings within the core Main Street district. 


AWARDS
2019 American Society of Landscape Architects 
    Wisconsin Chapter-Merit Award
2016 Milwaukee Business Journal Real Estate Award  - 
     Vision Achievement


EXHIBIT A







46


03
: P


RO
JE


CT
 E


XP
ER


IE
N


CEMASTERPLANNING


RIVERSIDE NORTH 


MILWAUKEE BUCKS DEER DISTRICT 


LOCATION
SIZE
LAND USE
SERVICES
BUDGET
FINANCING
DATES
REFERENCE


RINKA was chosen to lead the masterplanning and visioning 
for a vibrant new community and neighborhood oriented 
mixed-use development. 


LaCrosse, WI
50 Acres
23% Retail; 57% Multi-family; 20% Civic
Masterplanning
TBD
City of LaCrosse / Private Investment
Ongoing
Jason Gilman, gilmanj@cityoflacrosse.org


RIVERSIDE NORTH DEVELOPMENT


AWARDS
2018 Milwaukee Business Journal Real Estate 
    Award - 84South Development - Best Public/
    Private Partnership
2016 Milwaukee Business Journal Real 
    Estate Award - Drexel Town Square - Vision 
    Achievement


RIVER 1 DEVELOPMENT 


LOCATION
SIZE
LAND USE
SERVICES


BUDGET
FINANCING
DATES
REFERENCE


RIVER 1 is a first-class mixed-use waterfront development 
situated on a bend of the Kinnickinnic River in Milwaukee’s 
Harbor District.


Milwaukee, WI
6 Acres
22% Multi-family; 62% Office; 16% Retail
Masterplanning, Architecture + Interior 
Design
$150m
Private Investment
May 2017 - Aug 2020 (est.)
David Stegeman; Dstegema@michels.us


RIVER 1 DEVELOPMENT ADDITIONAL MASTERPLANS
Deer District
Oconomowoc
Bayside
Creekside Crossing
84South
The Lokal @ 84South
Brixmor Spring Mall Redevelopment
Regency Mall Redevelopment
Kenosha 
Mukwonago
Cudahy Redevelopment
Waukesha
Rapids Drive Redevelopment


THE LOKAL @ 84SOUTHRIVER 1 DEVELOPMENT 


EXHIBIT A







48


03
: P


RO
JE


CT
 E


XP
ER


IE
N


CE


GOOD CITY BREWING COMPANYMECCA SPORTS BAR + GRILL


THE BEER GARDEN @ THE DEER DISTRICT CAFE CENTRAAL


DEER DISTRICT RESTAURANTS 
+ OTHER HOSPITALITY


An arthouse Belgium Beer Café, 
Milwaukee’s ultimate sports viewing 
destination, an up-scale Chicago 
steakhouse, a reinterpretation of a 
1970’s Milwaukee icon, a motorcycle-
inspired café, and a vibrant Cali-Mex 
dining atmosphere outline some of the 
exciting retail and restaurant projects 
that RINKA has completed. 


SIZE
SERVICES
DATES
REFERENCE


300,000+ SF
Architecture + Interior Design
Ongoing
Provided Upon Request


CAFE HOLLANDER - BROOKFIELD


CAFE HOLLANDER - MEQUON


The importance of dynamic gathering places is evident in our 
commitment to understand and design for the best customer 
experience, as well as in our meticulous attention to the details. 
The success of these establishments is achieved through an 
understanding and flexibility to match our client’s needs with their 
vision. Multiple client groups have been encouraged to open second, 
third and fourth locations across the state of Wisconsin because 
of the success of their pilot restaurants. RINKA acts as an integral 
member of each client group in order to deliver projects which 
become landmarks in the neighborhoods that surround them. 


AWARDS
2019 Milwaukee Business Journal Real Estate Award - 
    The 42
2017 WCREW Vision Award - Fuel Cafe
2016 WCREW People’s Choice Award - Good City Brewing 
2014 WCREW Vision Award - Pizza Man
2014 Milwaukee Business Journal Real Estate Award - 
    Pizza Man
2014 Mayor’s Design Award - Pizza Man
2012 AIA Merit Award - Horny Goat
2012 Mayor’s Design Award - Cafe Benelux
2012 ASID Bronze Award - Cafe Benelux
2011 Mayor’s Design Award - Horny Goat 
2010 Cream of the Cream City Award - Brick 3


EXHIBIT A







50


03
: P


RO
JE


CT
 E


XP
ER


IE
N


CE


EMERALD ROWPARTERRE @ EMERALD ROW


THE CONTOUR


MIXED-USE / MULTI-FAMILY
Various Cities, WI


RINKA holds a diverse mixed-use/
multi-family portfolio ranging from 
a 5-story building located in an 
industrial neighborhood, to a 4-story 
building designed to evoke a series of 
townhomes, to a 44-story apartment 
building on Lake Michigan.


SIZE
SERVICES
DATES
REFERENCE


3,000+ Residential Units Designed + Built
Architecture + Interior Design
Ongoing
Provided Upon Request


FORGE + FLARE


THE QUIN


People spend an average of 75% of their time indoors, with 
the majority of that time at their place of residence. While living 
options are ever increasing, RINKA works to create unique living 
experiences that are sought after in the community. Projects 
completed exist in very different areas, serving very different 
demographics with great success. These mixed-use and multi/
family projects succeed through an understanding and flexibility to 
match our client’s needs with their vision. RINKA applies a unique 
understanding of the neighborhoods these projects are built in and 
a forward thinking vision of how the project will integrate into its 
surrounding context with adaptability for future change.


AWARDS
2019 AIA-Merit Award - The Quin
2019 Milwaukee Business Journal Real Estate Award - 
    The Quin
2019 Mayor’s Design Award - The Quin
2016 Daily Reporter Top Projects - Emerald Row


EXHIBIT A







52


03
: P


RO
JE


CT
 E


XP
ER


IE
N


CE


OAK CREEK LAKE VISTA PARK + BLUFF SHELTERS


DREXEL TOWN SQUARE


DREXEL TOWN SQUARE 


PARKS + PUBLIC SPACES


AWARDS
2019 AIA-Merit Award - Oak Creek Lake Vista Park
2019 Milwaukee Business Journal Real Estate Award - 
    Oak Creek Lake Vista Park
2016 Milwaukee Business Journal Real Estate Award - 
    Drexel Town Square
2015 InBusiness Design-Best New Retail Development - 
    Haymarket Square Park
2015 Milwaukee Business Journal Real Estate Award - 
    Haymarket Square Park


LOCATION
SIZE
LAND USE
SERVICES


BUDGET
FINANCING
DATES
REFERENCE


The Lake Vista Implementation Project Community Park + 
Playground is the first part of a larger, more comprehensive 
vision for 250-acres along 1.9 miles of lakefront property in 
Oak Creek, WI.


Oak Creek, WI
35 Acres
100% Civic
Masterplanning, Architecture + Interior 
Design
Withheld
City of Oak Creek
Feb 2015 - June 2018
Mike Simmons; msimmons@oakcreekwi.org


OAK CREEK LAKE VISTA PARK


LAKEFRONT GATEWAY PLAZA


HAYMARKET SQUARE PARK


LOCATION
SIZE
LAND USE
SERVICES
BUDGET
FINANCING


DATES
REFERENCE


Lakefront Gateway plaza is intended to connect downtown 
Milwaukee with its physical and historical context; to unify 
the culturally rich surroundings of the site; and to create an 
iconic place of celebration for the city.  


Milwaukee, WI
1.5 Acres
100% Civic
Masterplanning + Architecture
TBD
City of Milwaukee, Milwaukee County,  
State of WI + Private Investment
Oct 2015 - Ongoing
Greg Patin; greg.patin@milwaukee.gov


LAKEFRONT GATEWAY PLAZA ADDITIONAL PARKS + PUBLIC SPACES
Drexel Town Square Plaza
Riverside North Complex
Riverside North Beer Garden
Brown Deer Park + Beer Garden
Deer District Plaza + Connector
The Beer Garden @ The Deer District
Haymarket Square Park


EXHIBIT A







EXHIBIT BProject Area Overview







EXHIBIT B







EXHIBIT C


List of Included Parcels & Assessed Values







EXHIBIT C







1 i
nc


h =
 80


1 f
ee


t


DI
SC


LA
IM


ER
  T


his
 m


ap
 is


 ne
ith


er
 a 


leg
all


y r
ec


ord
ed


 m
ap


 no
r a


 su
rv


ey
 an


d i
s n


ot 
int


en
de


d 
to 


be
 us


ed
 as


 on
e. 


 Th
is 


dra
wi


ng
 is


 a 
co


mp
ila


tio
n o


f r
ec


ord
s, 


da
ta 


an
d i


nfo
rm


ati
on


 lo
ca


ted
 in


 va
rio


us
 st


ate
, c


ou
nty


 an
d m


un
icip


al 
off


ice
s 


an
d o


the
r s


ou
rc


es
 af


fec
tin


g t
he


 ar
ea


 sh
ow


n a
nd


 is
 to


 be
 us


ed
 fo


r r
efe


ren
ce


 pu
rp


os
es


 on
ly.


  K
en


os
ha


 C
ou


nty
 is


 no
t r


es
po


ns
ibl


e f
or 


an
y i


na
cc


ura
cie


s h
er


ein
 co


nt
ain


ed
.  I


f d
isc


rep
an


cie
s a


re 
fo


un
d, 


ple
as


e 
co


nta
ct 


Ke
no


sh
a C


ou
nty


.


¨


    
 


Da
te 


Pr
int


ed
: 9


/16
/20


19


Le
ge


nd Str
ee


t C
en


ter
lin


es
Rig


ht-
of-


Wa
ys


Wa
ter


 Fe
atu


res
Pa


rce
ls


Ce
rtif


ied
 S


urv
ey


 M
ap


s
Co


nd
om


ini
um


s
Su


bd
ivis


ion
s


Mu
nic


ipa
l B


ou
nd


ari
es


Lo
ts


KE
NO


SH
A 


CO
UN


TY
 


IN
TE


RA
CT


IV
E 


MA
PP


IN
G


pr
oj


ec
t a


re
a


18
8 


ac
re


s 
to


ta
l


EXHIBIT C







MEMORANDUM 
To:        Village President and Trustees 


From:   Nathan R. Thiel 


Date:    October 7, 2019 


Re:        PSA Amendment 2 - Bristol 68 Acre   
 


 


9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6721 • Fax 262.694.4734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 
 


Office of the Village Administrator 


As you are aware, in October of 2018, the Village and HSA Acquisitions Inc. executed a Purchase and Sale Agreement 
(PSA) for 68 acres the Village owns in the Village of Bristol. The original agreement was amended in June of this year to 
extend the due diligence period until October 15 of this year. There remain three open items: 


1. PSC approvals for extension of retail water to the Bristol Utility District 5.  
2. An agreement between Bristol, Kenosha County, and developer on intersection improvements to CTY C and U 
3. Execution of a Developers Agreement between Bristol and HSA. 


With exception of potentially the first item, these items will not be resolved by the October 15th deadline. HSA has asked 
for another extension in the due diligence period until November 29th, 2019.     







1 


SECOND AMENDMENT 
TO AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL ESTATE 


THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE 
OF REAL ESTATE (this "Amendment") is made as of October _____, 2019, by and 
between HSA ACQUISITIONS, INC., an Illinois corporation (“Purchaser”), and VILLAGE 
OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (“Seller”). 


RECITALS: 


A. Seller and Purchaser have entered into a certain Agreement for Purchase and Sale 
of Real Estate dated as of October 18, 2018 (the “Original Contract”), as amended by a First 
Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate dated as of June 11, 2019 (the 
“First Amendment”, and the Original Contract as amended by the First Amendment is referred to 
herein as the “Contract”), whereby Seller has agreed to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser has 
agreed to buy from Seller, land in the Village of Bristol, Kenosha County, Wisconsin more 
specifically described in the Contract.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have 
the meanings given to such terms in the Contract. 


B. Seller and Purchaser desire to amend the Contract to extend the Review Period 
through November 29, 2019. 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, Seller and Purchaser hereby agree as follows: 


AGREEMENTS: 


1. In the first sentence of Section 3.2 of the Contract (which Section 3.2 is set forth
in Paragraph 2 of the First Amendment), the date “October 15, 2019” is hereby deleted and the 
date “November 29, 2019” is hereby substituted and inserted in its place.  By virtue of this 
modification, the Review Period shall end at 5:00 P.M. (Chicago time) on November 29, 2019. 


2. To the extent there is any conflict between the terms of the Contract and the terms
contained in this Amendment, the terms contained in this Amendment shall govern and control.  
In all other respects, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain unmodified and in full 
force and effect.  This Amendment shall be incorporated into and made a part of the Contract. 
This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be an 
original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.  The parties agree that if 
the signature(s) of Purchaser or Seller on this Amendment is not an original but is a digital, 
mechanical, or electronic reproduction (such as, but not limited to, a photocopy, fax, email, PDF, 
Adobe image, jpeg, telegram, telex or telecopy), then such digital, mechanical or electronic 
reproduction shall be as enforceable, valid and binding as, and the legal equivalent to, an 
authentic and traditional ink-on-paper original wet signature penned manually by its signatory. 


[no further text on this page—signature page follows]







 


[Signature Page to Second Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate] 
  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the 
date first above written. 


 
 SELLER: 
  


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, a 
Wisconsin municipal corporation 
 
 
By:_______________________________________  
Name:  John P. Steinbrink  
Title:    Village President 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________________  
Name:  Jane C. Snell 
Title:    Village Clerk 
 
 
PURCHASER: 
 
HSA ACQUISITIONS, INC., an Illinois 
corporation 
 
 
By: ______________________________________  
Name: ____________________________________  
Title: _____________________________________  
 







VILLAGE BOARD RESOLUTION #19-35 


 
ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS RE: PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM, 


AND PUBLIC SHARED-USE PATH FOR THE GATEWAY AT LAKEVIEW CORPORATE 


PARK, PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN AS LEGALLY DESCRIBED BELOW 


 
Legal Description: 


 


Parcel 13 of Certified Survey Map No. 1628, and being part of the NW ¼, the SW ¼ and the SE ¼ of 


the SW ¼ of Section 19, Township 1 North, Range 22 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, in the 


Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin. Tax Key No. 92-4-122-193-0166.  Parcel 12 


of Certified Survey Map No. 1628, being a redivision of CSM No. 1463 and lands in the SE ¼, SW ¼ 


and NW ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 19, Town 1 North, Range 22 East, Village of Pleasant Prairie, 


Kenosha County, Wisconsin. Tax Key No. 92-4-122-193-0161.  Lot 1 CSM #2667 DOC #1614259 


formerly known as Lot 1 CSM #2612 DOC #1544951 PT NW ¼ Sec. 19 T1 R22. Tax Key No. 92-4-


122-192-0302. Parcel 22 CSM #2177 DOC #1177143 PT NW ¼ & NE ¼ of SW ¼ SEC 19 T1 R22 


Tax Key No. 92-4-122-193-0125. 


 
WHEREAS, on July 30, 2018, a Memorandum of Development Agreement between the 


Village and Wispark LLC, was duly recorded as Document No. 1825343 at the Kenosha County 


Register of Deeds Office; and 


 
WHEREAS, The Gateway at Lakeview Corporate Park as referenced in the Agreement the 


Developer dedicated, given, granted and conveyed, to the Village, certain right-of-way affecting the 


properties and certain areas included in the Development for the public sanitary sewer system and 


shared-use path improvements. These dedications are described on the approved The Gateway at 


Lakeview Corporate Park, which is a part of said Agreement; and 


 
WHEREAS, all public improvements such as but not limited to public sanitary sewer 


system and shared-use path improvements have been completed, inspected and record information 


received. 
 


NOW THEREFORE, on the 7th day of October 2019 the Village of Pleasant Prairie Board 


of Trustees hereby accepts the public sanitary sewer system and shared-use path improvements 


associated with The Gateway at Lakeview Corporate Park developed by Wispark, LLC as specified 


in said Agreement. 


 


Passed and adopted this 7th day of October, 2019. 


 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


________________________________ 


Name:  John P. Steinbrink Sr. 


Title:  Village President 


ATTEST: 


 


___________________________ 


Name:  Jane C. Snell 


Title:  Village Clerk 
 







RESOLUTION #19-37 
 


RESOLUTION APPROVING NEW 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FEES  


 
WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, in order to provide 


garbage, recycling, leaf collection, residential recycling center, and hazardous waste collection 
services to the residents of the Village of Pleasant Prairie; and, 


 
WHEREAS, the 2019 Budget includes $365,925 operating cost for curbside recycling 


collection and because of the recyclable processing increased cost not in our control, the 2019 
projection is $459,500, an increase of $93,575 and,  
 


WHEREAS, the adoption of the 2019 Solid Waste Utility Budget approved a $1 per 
month increase in the monthly billing for all residents effective during 2019 when water and 
sewer rates changes are implemented and,  


 
WHEREAS, the sewer and water rates are now being implemented in October, 2019 and 


recycling processing costs are projected be another $100,000 greater in 2020 compared to 2019 
and, 


 
WHEREAS, a $2 increase per month for solid waste/recycling collection fee is being 


recommended effective October 1, 2019, and,  
 
WHEREAS, the user charges for residents are as follows:  


Type 2019 (Current) 2019 Recommended 
Unlimited collection $17.50 $19.50 
Automated collection $16.50 $18.50 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village Board of the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie hereby approves the $2 per month fee increase, effective October 1, 2019. 
 
Passed and adopted this 7th day of October, 2019. 


 
 


__________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink, President 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 


Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk 







 


ORDINANCE NO. 19-37 
ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 292-15 


OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE  
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 
KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN  


RELATING TO AMOUNT OF SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 
 


BE IT ORDAINED AND ESTABLISHED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin that Chapter 292 Section 15 of the Municipal Code 
be amended as follows: 


§ 292-15 Cost of service; change of collection option  


A. A. Solid waste/recycling collection.  Rates shall be made by Resolution and approved by 
the Village Board. 


(1) Residents who chose unlimited collection: $17.50 per month.  
(2) (Reserved)  
(3) Residents who chose automated collection: $16.50 per month.  


B. Dumpster rental: $6 per cubic yard per month.  
C. B. Change of collection option. Existing residents will be allowed to change their 


collection option once per year. The Public Works Department must receive an option 
change notification by September 15 of each year for a billing change date effective 
October 1.  


D. C. Unoccupied dwelling. All residents must pay a monthly collection fee even if the 
residential dwelling is unoccupied. 


Passed and adopted this 7th day of October, 2019. 


      VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


      ___________________________________ 
      John P. Steinbrink, President 
ATTEST: 


 
__________________________________ 
Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk 


Posted: ___________ 


 


 







MINUTES 
VILLAGE BOARD 


Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 - 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 


 
A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on September 16, 2019.  Meeting called 
to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, Mike 
Pollocoff, Dave Klimisch and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Nathan Thiel, Village Administrator, Tom 
Shircel, Assistant Village Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director; Dave 
Smetana, Chief of Police; Craig Roepke, Chief of Fire & Rescue; Matt Fineour, Village Engineer; Kathy 
Goessl, Finance Director; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Carol Willke, Human Resources 
Director; Dan Honore', IT Director; Craig Anderson, Recreation Director and Jane C. Snell, Village 
Clerk.  Four citizens attended the meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Jane Snell: 
 


Mr. President, there were no signups this evening. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Anyone wishing to speak under citizens’ comments?  Hearing none I’ll close citizens’ comments. 
 
5. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT - None 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


The first item being Item A and B, a motion to take those together? 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


So moved. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 2 
 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


KLIMISCH MOVED TO CONSIDER NEW BUSINESS ITEMS A & B AT THIS TIME; 
SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 


A. Receive Plan Commission recommendations and consider approval of Ordinance 
#19-30 a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to amend the Village 2035 Land Use 
Plan Map 9.9 to correct and change the 100-year floodplain on property located at 
12100 Uline Place. 


 
B. Receive Plan Commission recommendations and consider approval of Ordinances 


#19-31 and #19-32 a Zoning Map and Text Amendments relating to the floodplain 
boundary adjustment and rezone property located at 12100 Uline Place. 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, we have three ordinances on the agenda tonight, 
Ordinance Numbers 19-30, 19-31 and 19-32.  All three of them relate to Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments and Zoning Map and Text Amendments.  And these are for the Uline H2 
headquarters office.  Specifically, on August 17, 2015, the Board had approved a resolution 
related to a floodplain boundary adjustment.  And this was to remove 23,519 cubic yards of soil 
from the Des Plaines River 100-year floodplain and to create 4,963 cubic yards of floodplain to 
compensate for the area being filled.  And this was for the construction of an office building and 
site improvements on a 28 acre site for the Uline headquarters, again the office building identified 
as H2.  It’s located at 12100 Uline Place. 


 
In accordance with the resolution, upon completion of the floodplain boundary adjustment, an as 
built survey and calculations were submitted to FEMA to verify compliance with the design 
plans.  On March 21, 2019, FEMA approved and issued a letter of map revision known as 
LOMR, Case Number 18-05-1772P.  And it was effective as of August 9, 2019.  In accordance 
with Resolution 15-27, upon approval of the floodplain boundary adjustment, petitioner needed to 
file an application to correct and amend the 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Plan Map 9.9, the 
Zoning Ordinance and the Zoning Map to reflect the amended floodplain.  This was a matter that 
came before our Village Plan Commission at its last meeting.  There was a public hearing held on 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 3 
 
 


all of the items.  And the request is to have the Village Board consider approval of all three of 
these ordinance amendments at this time. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Mr. President, I move that we adopt Ordinance 19-30 as presented and recommended by the Plan 
Commission. 


 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Hearing none, a roll call vote has been 
requested. 


 
Jane Snell: 
 


Mike Pollocoff? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Aye. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Aye. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Aye. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion carries. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 4 
 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE ORDINANCE #19-30 A COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENT TO AMEND THE VILLAGE 2035 LAND USE PLAN MAP 9.9 TO 
CORRECT AND CHANGE THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
12100 ULINE PLACE; SECONDED BY KECKLER; ROLL CALL VOTE – STEINBIRNK – 
YES; KUMORKIEWICZ – YES; SERPE – YES; KLIMISCH – YES; KECKLER – YES; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


John, I would move approval of Ordinances 19-31 and 19-32. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second for Ordinance 19-31 and 19-32.  Further discussion?  Those in 
favor? 


 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motions carry.   
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE ORDINANCES #19-31 AND #19-32 A ZONING MAP 
AND TEXT AMENDMENTS RELATING TO THE FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT 
AND REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 12100 ULINE PLACE; SECONDED BY 
KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


That brings us to Items C and D to take those together?  A motion? 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Move to add them together. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Second. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 5 
 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Those in favor? 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 


KECKLER MOVED TO CONSIDER NEW BUSINESS ITEMS A & B AT THIS TIME; 
SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 C. Receive Plan Commission recommendations and consider approval of an updated 


Master Conceptual Plan for the continued development of Main Street Market 
development located at the northeast corner of STH 31 and STH 165 


 
 D. Receive Plan Commission recommendations and consider approval of a Certified 


Survey Map to subdivide land within the Main Street Market development located 
at the northeast corner of STH 31 and STH 165. 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, these items are related and discussed at the same time, 
however separate actions are required.  The Main Street Market commercial development is 
located at the northeast corner of Highway 31 or Green Bay Road and Highway 165 which is 
104th Street.  It’s being developed by Main Street Development, LLC, also referred to by most of 
us as Bear Development.  The Village has been working with the developer on this project for the 
past several years.  At this time, the owner is proposing to update his Master Development Plan to 
identify the location of a next user in their development and to create a Certified Survey Map. 


 
For this particular development, there have been a number of Village previous approvals that 
have gone through the approval process, public hearings before the Plan Commission and then 
final action by the Board.  Some of those included a Master Conceptual Plan, a Neighborhood 
Plan Amendment, a project plan for TID 6 for Main Street Market public infrastructure, the Main 
Street Market Planned Unit Development Ordinance, a Certified Survey Map, a Development 
Agreement, a Memorandum of Understanding, and then Final Site and Operational Plans for their 
first user that was approved on the site. 


 
Work is currently ongoing on an environmental assessment document, and this is in response to 
the preparation of their Transportation Economic Assistant Grant or TEA Grant that’s being 
considered by the Wisconsin DOT.  As shown on the slide, the Master Conceptual Plan identifies 
Buildings A through I.  And they vary from commercial buildings, medical office buildings, 
multi-tenant buildings, retail buildings as well as a gasoline station and a C-store which is 
building I.   
 
As part of the request this evening they are looking to revise and update their Master Conceptual 
Plan for Main Street Market.  This update specifically looks ad preliminary civil plans and 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 6 
 
 


specifically the building placement and parking and driveway lot revisions for a proposed Kwik 
Trip gas station and convenience store.  And this would be located north and east of the Froedtert 
South Medical Office Building, and this is instead of north of Main Street.  We’ve been working 
for the last several months with the Wisconsin DOT in order to put together final plans for the 
infrastructure in the periphery of the site as well as going through the site with that Main Street.  
And so at this time we’re almost at 95 percent, 99 percent of the plan completion.  Just have a few 
minor things to finalize before the project can be bidded out. 


 
But based on that information and the information in talking to some of the retailers, the one 
retailer in particular, a service user, Kwik Trip, had requested not to be located north of Main 
Street but rather just to be located north of 102nd Street.  There’s a star that identifies precisely 
where they would be located on the site. Kwik Trip would also be required to go through the full 
Site and Operation Plan, Conditional Use Permit process in order to be approved for this location. 


 
There were some notes that we discussed as part of the public hearing at the Plan Commission 
meeting.  We identified for Kwik Trip that this would not be a 24 hour location.  We’ve identified 
what type of vehicles could be getting their gas and convenience groceries at this location, that 
there would be no semi trucks, semi truck cabs, trailers or tractor trailers or large trucks.  And 
they would not be able to idle, fuel or park at this gas station site.  We also identified that because 
-- and we knew this from the very beginning that there is residential to the east, that we would be 
taking special precautions and taking a look at the various things from lighting to signage, the 
heights of the buildings, the height of the canopy, a number of things as outlined in the staff 
memorandum to make sure that this would not cause or disturb the residential properties lying to 
the east. 


 
As part of this development request, a Certified Survey Map was prepared by Main Street 
Market.  And as shown on the slide Lot 5 would be the location where Kwik Trip would be 
located.  And Outlot 1 is where the stormwater retention basin is.  And then the two other lots, 6 
and 7, one is located west of the lot 5 Kwik Trip lot site, and one north of Main Street.  Again, 
both of those could possibly be further subdivided. 


 
As I mentioned, there’s a number of Main Street Market public roadway improvements which we 
are finalizing.  And our engineers have gone through significant detail on those plans with their 
consultants and putting things together.  We have identified and they are dedicating the required 
right of way on the west side of Old Green Bay Road.  They’ve acquired two homes on the south 
side of 165 for the future reconstruction.  There still needs to be some additional right of way 
acquired on the east side of Old Green Bay Road.  And I think Matt will be talking about that 
more later this evening. 


 
Some of the other things that had come up at Plan Commission was where signals would be 
located for this development.  And signal modifications or new signals are planned to be installed 
at 165 and Old Green Bay Road and Jelly Belly Lane and Green Bay.  So with that this just goes 
on to talk about some of the other slides, shows some of the other public roadway improvements 
in that area.  So with that I would like to recommend approval of the Master Conceptual Plan for 
the Main Street Market Development and its related modifications subject to the comments and 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 7 
 
 


conditions as outlined in the staff memorandum, as well as approval of the Certified Survey Map 
that would subdivide the property. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Chief Smetana, I don’t want to put you on the spot.  Whenever there’s traffic enforcement on 31 
north of Highway 165, do we have any ideas of some of the speeds that are taking place for 
northbound traffic? 


 
Chief Smetana: 
 


For the most part it’s a 45 mile an hour zone.  I’ve stopped vehicles up there at 55, 60, and that’s 
been recently.  And I’m not the main one stopping vehicles. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I understand.  DOT is going to allow us to put the signals in when it’s warranted, and I hope it 
doesn’t take a death that forces us to put those signals in.  I just see that there’s a potential for 
some dangerous crossings for southbound turning east onto 102nd Street of Jelly Belly Lane or 
whatever we’re going to call it, Main Street. 


 
Chief Smetana: 
 


From the Jelly Belly Lane and the entrance to the Meijer facility, and there are semis coming out 
of there turning and going northbound, we haven’t experienced crashes with that type of activity.  
And we haven’t experienced it down at the Jelly Belly entrance either. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I hope that continues. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


I think there’s enough separation in vehicle traffic at this point.  Obviously if you come out, 
because when I leave week I kind of cross Highway 31 and go northbound, and that’s if I’m 
fighting the green light or the traffic coming northbound it just takes some patience to be able to 
do that.  As long as people are patient I think they can kind of cross safely.  Lights would help. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


All right, thanks, Dave. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 8 
 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


I’ve got a question.  How does this re-designation of Building D affect the rest of the buildings?  
Are they still designated in the same capacity.  I know they’re tentative. 


 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 


So if you look to the west of the Kwik Trip site, they have still identified a Building E and F.  
And E and F certainly could be a retail building, either of them could be retail buildings, or one 
could be retail and one could be restaurant.  It’s still flexible at this point.  Building G they still 
have identified it as it could be a grocery store, or it could be some other type of use at that 
location.  Obviously it won’t have that particular shape, but it’s much smaller.  At the time I don’t 
think that they anticipated that that much right of way was going to be needed for Main Street or 
for Old Green Bay Road.  And now that we’ve got the final engineering put together for 
stormwater management, that pond is significantly larger, so it kind of started to shrink that 
northern Building G. 


 
With respect to very far northern building we had at one point shown two buildings there, H and 
I, a retail building and a gas station.  Again, that shrunk considerably with the right of way being 
dedicated from Old Green Bay Road as well as the additional right of way being dedicated for 
Main Street.  So that turns out to be only one commercial building up there instead of two.  So 
things have had to move and tweaked based on additional right of way that needs to be dedicated. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I’d move approval of the Certified Survey Map. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I’m sorry, John, I took that out of -- Item C is approval of the Master Conceptual Plan. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 9 
 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE UPDATED MASTER CONCEPTUAL PLAN FOR 


THE CONTINUED DEVELOPMENT OF MAIN STREET MARKET DEVELOPMENT 
LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF STH 31 AND STH 165; SECONDED BY 
KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Now I’d move approval of the Certified Survey Map. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 


John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP TO SUBDIVIDE LAND 
WITHIN THE MAIN STREET MARKET DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF STH 31 AND STH 165; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 E. Consider approval of a Relocation Order for the purpose of roadway improvements 


for the Old Green Bay Road and STH165.  
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a continuation of the Main Street Market project 
for the roadway improvements, the Old Green Bay Road and 165 roadway improvements.  The 
developer is dedicating right of way along their development side and also purchase two 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 10 
 
 


properties by 165 by the corner there.  As part of the overall development, agreement, the Village 
was going to acquire the additional parcels required for the right of way acquisition for the 
roadway improvements.   


 
Old Green Bay Road and 165 improvements are being completed by Bear Development as part of 
the Main Street Market.  Construction in the improvements require additional right of way and 
temporary limited easements to be acquired from six different parcels.  The roadway 
improvements and acquisitions are part of the approved Main Street Market development plan 
and part of the Tax Increment District #6.  A relocation order has been prepared for the necessary 
acquisitions to be approved by the Village Board after which the relocation order will be filed 
with the Kenosha County Clerk per State Statutes 32.05(1).  Upon approval and filing of the 
relocation order, Village staff will proceed with the eminent domain process for the acquisitions. 


 
And on the slide that you have there those are the six parcels that are involved in the acquisition.  
Most of the acquisitions are strip takings along the right of way.  Roughly I’d say they average 
between 20 feet and going down to zero at the north.  So the widest portion is about 20 feet.  The 
average width of right of way expansion is about 15 feet.  And then we have temporary limited 
easements adjacent to those for grading improvements or sloped grading.  So those are the six 
parcels that we need right of way from the relocation order starts that eminent domain process. 


 
The next steps would be to actually get appraisals and go through the negotiation process.  
Eminent domain takes approximately six months to complete from start to finish.  So it is 
recommended that the Village Board authorize the relocation order and approve the acquisition 
plat showing the last interest to be acquired and the filing with the Kenosha County Clerk.  If 
there’s any questions I’d be happy to answer them. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Mr. President, this is probably one of those indications where at some point you’d like to try and 
negotiate these.  But you can see parcels B, C and D are owners associations.  We can’t deal 
individually with each individual unit owner.  And if there wasn’t a structure for the acquisition 
to take place you’d probably be -- the community would be left with the position of having to 
have a vote of the owners for any independent negotiations.  Where this vehicle allows us to deal 
with the association in total for just this acquisition.  Now I don’t think it can be completed any 
other way to be honest with you.  So I move to approve the relocation order as presented for Main 
Street Market roadway. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Is that a second? 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 11 
 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second, yes. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE THE RELOCATION ORDER FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE OLD GREEN BAY ROAD AND 
STH165; SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 F. Consider award of contract to The Highland Group for real estate appraisal and 


acquisition services for the Old Green Bay Road and STH 165 roadway 
improvements. 


 
Matt Fineour: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, the Village requested from the Highland Group for 
appraisal and acquisition services for the project which we were just discussing there, the land 
acquisition and in accordance with the state eminent domain laws.  The Highland Group is a real 
estate consulting company specializing in eminent domain and acquisition in Wisconsin.  The 
Village has utilized their service on previous projects and has been pleased with their work. 


 
Again, as Mr. Pollocoff was stating, this acquisition is a little bit on the difficult side because we 
do have condominium associations involved which require a process that everybody who owns a 
unit in there has a interest in that land.  You’ll find attached the appraisal and acquisition service 
proposal for the real estate acquisitions of the six parcels for the project.  And it is recommended 
that the Village Board approve the acquisition proposal from the Highland Group for a lump sum 
of $30,600. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I agree with everything Matt said.  But based on my experience with the Highland Group I think 
that the difficulties we could encounter on this as well as potential variations on an appraisal I’d 
like to table this one and see if -- has anybody else submitted a proposal? 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 12 
 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


No.  Actually I reached out to the Highland Group because I’ve dealt with them many times in 
the past.  They know this process inside and out.  So you can get variations on appraisals 
depending on how they’re done.  Usually the DOT process regulates how those appraisals are 
done.  We would get those appraisals.  We would have Rocco essentially review it and determine 
whether that was an accurate or good price for the land.  So I was comfortable with the Highland 
Group myself, but if you’d like another proposal we can certainly reach out to somebody else. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Well, if the Board is not going to -- I know we’re probably on a tighter time frame, but do we 
have time to table this for a month? 


 
Matt Fineour: 
 


Right now, again, this is kind of a six month process.  We’re primarily on the back end of the 
time line if we want to get this land acquisition in hand by let’s say next April.  So a month is 
probably -- I don’t think the developer is going to want a month delay in it because then we’re 
talking about entering construction next May or June.  The earlier that we get the land acquired 
because not only do they have the roadway construction, but they do have ahead of that roadway 
construction utility relocates are necessary which require this acquisition as well for this land. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Mike, if I can just interject, just to remind you that this is going to be borne on the TID.  This 
isn’t going to be a Village cost. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I don’t have a problem with the regulatory compliance portion of Highland Group.  But I guess in 
two of the appraisals we’ve had with the person that does their appraisals we’ve had to come back 
in and -- 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Clean it up. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


-- clean it up or settle it up because you’re always butting up against that the appraisal is 15 
percent lower than what their competing appraisal is.  And the Village ends up paying for all the 
legal work.  And that’s my concern is that we really don’t want somebody -- I’m not concerned 
that somebody is going to have too high a price on the appraisal.  I’m more concerned that the 
appraisal is truly in tune with what the market is.  And I know a couple that we did up here on 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 13 
 
 


39th Avenue and 165 we ran into issues with that.  So even though it’s the Highland Group, I’d 
like to see if we could within the next couple weeks before the next agenda look at an appraiser 
who they’ll sign on to with.  And that appraiser may be more expensive than the one you’re 
recommending.  But I think at the end of the day [inaudible] process. 


 
Matt Fineour: 
 


I will tell you, Mike, that the appraiser that they used for 39th Avenue and some of the other ones 
they’re no longer using.  So they are using a different appraiser group than the ones that they’ve 
used in the past. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Okay, who are they using? 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


I did ask that question from them and they did give me the name.  I did not write it down here.  
But it is not the same.  They’re a different group. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


That’s my concern. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Is your concern that this is going to be in excess of $30,000 ultimately? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


No, I’m not concerned about that at all.  What I’m concerned about is -- and I think maybe that’s 
one of the reasons they’re using a different appraiser is that the appraisal came in on the bottom 
end which you would think would be nice.  But realistically you end up getting in this trap where 
not only you’re paying for the additional whatever piece of land you’re going to buy or the strip 
or whatever, you end up paying for the attorney on top of it because your original appraisal was 
so low.  It’s got to be more rational to the market and they haven’t been.   


 
In some respect I would say that would be the responsibility of Highland to kind of ferret if that 
appraisal was truly market.  But that’s my concern.  But then you’re also caught -- I mean you’re 
working on this time frame, but realistically you get into the position where you condemn the 
property, but you don’t know what you’re going to pay for it even after you’re started working on 
it.  And the attorneys, there’s no incentive for an attorney for the property owner to keep their 
expenses down because the Village is paying for it. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 14 
 
 
 


Well, I guess I think that the feeling that you’ve expressed and one thing that Matt and I can do is 
basically monitor and make sure that the Highland Group is selecting an appraiser that’s going to 
give them a more accurate read.  Whether we go to another group or not the concern is still the 
same, right?  I mean we’re going to want to make sure that the appraisal is comparative to market 
so that we’re going a second time and paying the legal fees on top of it.  Matt, it appears that you 
were concerned about this, and that’s the reason you were asking the Highland Group who their 
appraiser was? 


 
Matt Fineour: 
 


Yeah, I did know that they had switched the person who prepares their appraisals.  So I did ask 
the question. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Is it the firm out of Eau Claire? 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


I’ve got it on my computer, I didn’t write it down.  But it’s different than what they’ve used in the 
past. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


I wish I could remember now, too, because this firm I worked with when I was in Mauston I 
remember you mentioning the firm, and I don’t want to put it in the record and be completely 
wrong.  


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Well, maybe if I can -- 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Can we verify, can you make it conditional upon us verifying? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Yeah.  I’m okay approving this be done subject to staff assuring that a competent appraiser.  I 
don’t want to say these guys are incompetent.  But someone who has a good track record on 
keeping the Village out of a situation that we’re concerned about. 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 15 
 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Does Bear Development have any input on appraisal choice here? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


No. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


None? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Well, I’m sure we’ll listen to them, but at the end of the day it’s really up to the Board. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


In the contract is there any liability with the Highland Group if the appraisal comes in not close to 
market? 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


No.  I really don’t know of any of those firms that do assume that liability.  Even the appraiser is 
going to say, well, my best judgment is.  They kind of walk this line between an attorney 
representing an owner who is going to shoot for the moon and the government on one end that’s 
trying to keep the cost down.  And so if you get beyond that 15 percent the only people that are 
going to lose in that is going to be the government because they’re going to pay for everything at 
that point.   


 
So we don’t want to go shooting for the moon either, but we want to make sure that our appraiser 
is really looking at current acquisitions, in this case it would be commercial areas, so that we have 
a real defensible case when we came in there and not one that’s going to be based on a rural 
acquisition in a rural area which somebody could conceivably say that’s what we use in this area.  
But it’s not rural, it’s not going to be rural for long.  It’s just one of those things where it will eat 
us alive down the road if it’s not right.  But I have faith in Matt and the Village Administrator to 
make sure that’s cranked up right.  So I would approve it and give them their discretion. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


And we understand this concern.  I wish I could remember.  I’m pretty certain because I 
remember you telling me the name and I was like, oh.  So we’ll confirm, we’ll stay on top of it 
and move forward. 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 16 
 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I knew there was something else I wanted to talk to you about earlier. 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


I would have gotten the name the. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Did you make a motion to approve? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Yeah, I made a motion to approve it and authorize the administrator and the engineer to select 
another appraiser. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I’ll second that. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE AWARD OF CONTRACT TO THE HIGHLAND 
GROUP FOR REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL AND ACQUISITION SERVICES FOR THE OLD 
GREEN BAY ROAD AND STH 165 ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS; SECONDED BY SERPE; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 G. Consider approval of Preliminary Resolution #19-29 declaring intent to exercise 


special assessment police powers in connection with construction of a public water 
main extension along 120th Avenue and CTH ML (Stateline 94). 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 17 
 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a public watermain extension along the East 
Frontage Road or 122nd Avenue and County ML.  It’s being completed by Stateline 94 as part of 
the Stateline 94 industrial park development.  As you can see from the map the service to the 
development will be connected to the existing watermain on the north side by the Double Tree 
Hotel.   It will be extended south to ML which approximately 6,600 feet.  And then it will be 
extended east along ML approximately another 1,600 feet which kind of encompasses the overall 
development. 


 
A right of recovery and funding agreement between the Village and developer entered into with 
the cost over and above that portion of the cost property chargeable to the developer may be 
subsequently recovered by the Village and returned to the developer referred to as a right of 
recovery.  A right of recovery is an assessment on benefitted properties.  The preliminary 
resolution presented tonight declares the intent to exercise special assessment police powers in 
connection with the construction of the public watermain.   


 
Upon adoption of the preliminary resolution, the Village Engineer will prepare a special 
assessment report computing the assessment amount levied to the benefitted properties.  The 
assessment report will include the final plans for the watermain improvements, the cost of the 
improvements, the assessment method and rate calculation, and a schedule of proposed 
assessments against each parcel benefitted by the improvements.  Once the engineer’s report is 
complete, a public hearing will then be scheduled regarding the project assessments. 


 
Again, this is just a preliminary resolution starting this process.  The watermain is being 
constructed by Stateline 94 and will benefit the properties kind of shown in red which are 
properties that will essentially be assessed or have a right of recovery from the developer.  If 
there’s any questions I’d be happy to answer them. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Move approval of Resolution 19-29. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second for approval?  Any questions, further discussion?  Those in 
favor? 


 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 18 
 
 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION #19-29 DECLARING 
INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POLICE POWERS IN CONNECTION 
WITH CONSTRUCTION OF A PUBLIC WATER MAIN EXTENSION ALONG 120TH 
AVENUE AND CTH ML (STATELINE 94); SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 
5-0. 


 
 H. Consider approval of Preliminary Resolution #19-31 declaring intent to exercise 


special assessment police powers in connection with storm water improvements 
within the Chateau Eau Plaines Subdivision. 


Matt Fineour: 
 


Mr. President and members of the Board, this has been kind of a longstanding issue and project 
regarding stormwater in the Chateau Eau Plaines area.  The Chateau Eau Plaines subdivision is 
located in the western portion of the Village just east of I-94 and south of Highway 50.  The 
subdivision was platted in the 1970s with the first phase constructed around 1977.  The first phase 
of the subdivision was constructed with a rural road design which relies on roadside ditches and 
culverts to convey runoff to the west or to the Kilbourn Road ditch.  The second phase of the 
subdivision was not constructed and would need to be designed to meet current stormwater 
design requirements, the second phase being kind of the undeveloped portion north of 79th Street.  
It was platted but never developed. 


 
The existing roadside ditches are relatively flat which results in a history of drainage issues and 
complaints.  In addition to the flat ditches sump pumps are very active in the area causing 
nuisance conditions.  Many residents have taken it upon themselves to place drains or other 
homemade structures in the ditches to try to get water to drain.  A storm sewer system 
improvements was designed by the Village in the early 1990s in this area to alleviate drainage 
problems, although at that time the project didn’t move forward.  There was not enough support 
for the project. 


 
In 2011 the Village applied for a community block grant for flood assistance due to storms in 
2008 and 2009 which, again, affected the subdivision.  Those storms in 2008 and 2009 really 
brought this storm problem in this neighborhood back up to light.  Although the Village was 
awarded a grant, it did not include the Chateau Subdivision.  The awarded grant actually helped 
out in the south Kenosha subdivision area.  In addition to applying for the grant, the Village 
undertook a drainage study in 2011 to re-evaluate the subdivision drainage.   


 
As part of the drainage study the Village performed a residential survey about the stormwater 
flooding issues.  The survey asked residents if they had basement backups or flooding through 
basement windows, asked them the number of flooding incidents and what cost they incurred as a 
result of the flooding.  The survey results showed that flooding was a major problem on the north 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 19 
 
 


side of 79th Street with most homes impacted by flooding at least once and several homes 
impacted by flooding from storms with much less intensity than what we would normally have as 
a 100-year storm event.  The study also identified that sump pump discharges and flat roadside 
ditches were creating artificial wetlands which consisted of dense vegetation which reduced flow 
within the ditches and resulted in kind of a recirculation of sump pump discharge water. 


 
The stormwater drainage improvements proposed at the present time is designed to help alleviate 
the flooding, protect properties from damage and provide drainage for sump pump discharge and 
provide a reliable drainage system for the residential subdivision.  Upon on the map you’ll see the 
subdivision.  The red lines represent kind of the storm sewer alignment or where storm sewer 
would be proposed on being placed within that subdivision.  Each home that wants a storm sewer 
would have a sump lateral that they could connect into.   


 
This preliminary resolution, again, presented tonight just declares the intent to exercise special 
assessment police powers in connection with the construction of the stormwater improvements.  
Upon adoption of the preliminary resolution, the Village Engineer will prepare a special 
assessment report computing the assessment amount levied to the benefitted properties.  The 
assessment report will include final plans for the stormwater improvements, the cost of the 
improvements, the assessment method and rate calculation, a schedule of proposed assessment 
against each parcel benefitted by the improvements.  Once the engineer’s report is complete, a 
public hearing will be scheduled regarding the project and the schedule of assessments. 
And you’ll note for this project outlined in green is the preliminary assessment area.  There’s 
approximately about 200 parcels within that project limits.  So once the assessment schedule is 
prepared all these properties will be notified of the public hearing.  And once the public hearing is 
done we’ll present the entire project, the assessment, how it was calculated and so forth and 
discuss whether the Board would like to move forward and do these special assessments for this 
project.  If there’s any questions I’d be happy to answer them. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I’ve got a question.  I talked initially with the administrator and engineer about being able to look 
at some alternatives in the assessment schedule.  And I’m wondering if on the notice to residents 
in order to give the engineer some time we’ve got, I’m trying to think, by the time we adopt this 
there’s a -- do you remember if there’s a window in time from the time we adopt this until when 
we set the hearing? 


 
Matt Fineour: 
 


There is not a window of time.  We can pass the preliminary resolution, and then there’s not a 
designated time between the preliminary and final.  So we have a couple months or whatever. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


One thing that we were -- so we had talked about -- so there are two ways that we can go forward.  
We could set the public hearing after we get the final and set the special assessment based on the 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 20 
 
 


actual contract with the firm or the contractor that’s actually doing the work.  Or we could base it 
on engineer estimates.  At this point in time just given timing and planning we wanted to make 
sure that it was relevant in the public side given the wet fall that we’ve already had.  I’m sure 
there’s no doubt that there is some need for stormwater improvement to go through.  So our 
preference is not to wait too long because sometimes we forget, how readily we forget the impact.   


 
But other than that I now that, Mike, you had approached us as far as looking at other alternatives 
as far as how to execute the special assessment, and those things are things that we can look into.  
I know that right now preliminarily we’ve discussed making sure that it’s equitable given that 
some properties are impacted less than other properties.  But, again, we can evaluate that.  Are we 
setting the public hearing tonight?  I apologize if I missed that. 


 
Matt Fineour: 
 


No, we’re not setting the public hearing tonight.  So we’re just basically authorizing the intent to 
levy a special assessment.  And then what I would do is move forward with preparing an 
engineer’s report which would basically give a method of the assessment for the public hearing. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


With the anticipated size of this project there’s going to be a lot of questions.  I think it’s going to 
be pretty well attended because, like you said, a lot of people are going to be assessed that feel 
they’re not a part of the flooding when in essence they are.  Do you think it would be advisable to 
schedule a special meeting just for this purpose alone because of its potential size? 


 
Matt Fineour: 
 


My opinion would be yes.  I mean I think there will be quite a few people that show up.  I think 
there will be a lot of discussion.  I think you’ll see both people that may be favorable to the 
project and people who aren’t, who live on top of a hill or something like that.  So I think it will 
be a long public hearing. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


And one other thing, a topic that will come up and a policy that we’ll discuss is I believe that the 
current policy of the Village has been that this type of project would be 100 percent assessed.  
When this project was first implemented or first conceived or first thought about, it was the 
50/50.  And so those are things that will need to be considered and evaluated.  And my hope 
would be that as the public reviews and sees the importance of this project understands that the 
Village’s intent here is not to just put another charge on them but really to try to solve a problem 
that should have been solved at the time of the development. 


 
Clearly hope springs eternal in that regard.  But, anyways, we can definitely evaluate or we can 
definitely put this as a special meeting and address some of the thought processes so that as we 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 21 
 
 


present to the residents they can fully understand the scope and the benefit that they’ll receive 
through this project. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I fully believe something has to be done there.  In fact, I went by this weekend to see just how 
much water there was. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


I did, too. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


But with that being said I had indicated there’s a couple different alternatives in how we approach 
this assessment.  I just want to make sure the staff has time to get those together and then set the 
meeting date after that’s done.  So I’d move to adopt Resolution 19-31, resolution to exercise 
special police powers for the construction of the stormwater improvement in Chateau. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


I agree that it’s been a problem forever.  And the engineering staff has put together several 
different ideas and plans so I second it with a question. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion? 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


How do you see the discharge into the Des Plaines?  If the river is rising, if it hits the discharge 
pipe how do you see that working? 


 
Matt Fineour: 


Actually when you look at the map, if you see the blue on the map is the 100-year floodplain.  So 
you’ll see how the blue kind of, although the green line kind of covers it a little bit, it actually 
extends back through the backyards through there and goes back into that wetlands through there.  
So that is the 100-year floodplain.  That floodplain is not going to change.  So at a 100 year level 
you’ll still have inundation within that wetlands.  But really the main problem in a lot of this area 
is that wetlands has a hard time draining because it can’t get across the street so you get major 
backups in there.   


 
This pipe was kind of like an auxiliary pipe.  The existing drainage system out there is all going 
to remain.  But this is going to capture a lot of that drainage and get it towards the Kilbourn ditch 
so you don’t have standing water, you don’t have the longstanding ponding by some of these 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 22 
 
 


areas.  It will drain it down quicker.  A lot of those sump pumps then will be able to discharge 
into the pipe so it actually kind of helps drain that groundwater just enough to where you’re not 
recycling that water all the time.  So if your electricity goes out your sump pump is going to stop 
working to begin with.  But this is going to get it so your sump pump might not be continuously 
working.  It will start draining stuff out a little bit better. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Will the proximity of the pipe be in the ditch then on the one side? 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


The pipe majority-wise it hugs the south side of 79th Street.  Portions of it are in the ditch.  Most 
of it is along the edge of the roadway.  There’s other utilities that are in there so it kind of varies a 
little bit. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


So anywhere it crosses 79th or 107th that will be a cut in the road then? 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


Correct, yup.  And one of the things that the storm sewer system will do is where you see kind of 
the large blue area where the wetland area is that crosses 79th Street there, that will actually be 
connected into that storm sewer system.  So the majority of that area will be drained through the 
storm versus then going through some backyard on the south side of the roadway. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I think it’s important to recognize, as Matt indicated, you look at the 100-year floodplain, and 
I’ve seen two major events that have far exceeded the 100-year event.  I mean that happens.  
What that means is it’s not water rushing down to the river that’s causing the flooding.  The river 
is moving back up the road.  And I’ve seen water standing at 112th where the entire road was 
covered, and you couldn’t see 115th Street because it was under water as well as the river moved 
out of its banks.  When that happens nothing is going to work.  All across the Village there’s 
areas where if it’s close to the 100-year floodplain and you have a storm that exceeds it that’s 
going to happen.  And nobody is going to be able to pay for a design that would take care of that.     


 
But there’s too many storms where we have flooding.  And as Matt indicated you get the 
residents and the Village get whipsawed in this routine where you get so much water that’s in the 
ditches, it can’t get out, sump pumps can’t keep up, either burn up and then the basement starts 
flooding and then the water goes down the sanitary sewer.  Or the other problem we have out 
there, and maybe this is a good time to bring this up with We Energies is we’ve had a lot of 
electrical outages out there.  So if the power goes out then nobody’s sump pump is working and it 
just builds up.  And, again, all that water goes back into the sanitary sewer and the floor drains 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 23 
 
 


when it can’t get pumped out.  So it’s an awful situation for everybody.  That’s why I think it’s 
important to get it resolved.  It’s a more complicated area.  I think had that development occurred 
ten years later it would have looked a lot different than it did but that didn’t happen. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Will there be any sump pump connections to the pipe, or they will strictly remain the same as the 
ditch? 


 
Matt Fineour: 
 


Each property that fronts the storm sewer will have a sump lateral, so we’ll be connecting the 
sump pumps to the storm sewer system so they’ll have a direct connection to the -- 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


So that would be on the south side? 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


On both sides.  It will be on both sides of the roadway.  So the people on the north side of 79th 
Street will also have a lateral to their house.  The ditches will remain.  There will still be roadside 
ditches there for drainage.  But it will be less wet.  Your sump pumps won’t -- 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


So the laterals -- 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


They’ll be bored or open cut across the roadway for each lot. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


So that’s more cuts. 
 
Matt Fineour: 
 


Yeah.  It’s anticipated that after this is done the road would be under the road repaving program 
to repave it. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


How long ago did we do that road? 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 24 
 
 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 


An awful long time ago. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


It’s been a long time? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Technically speaking. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


I guess it’s fine then.  Further comment or question?  Hearing none, we had a motion and a 
second.  Those in favor? 


 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION #19-31 
DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POLICE POWERS IN 
CONNECTION WITH STORM WATER IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE CHATEAU EAU 
PLAINES SUBDIVISION; SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 I. Consider approval of Resolution #19-34 and Ordinance #19-36 regarding Sewer 


Service Charges. 
 
Kathy Goessl: 
 


Mr. President and Village Board, I’m here tonight with a recommended sewer rate decrease.  We 
hired Baker Tilly back last summer to evaluate and recommend updated sewer rates, and also to 
help us to file our application with the Wisconsin Public Service Commission for a water rate 
analysis.  These rate evaluations were necessary at this time because our customer base since our 
last sewer rate increase of 2015 and our water rate increase of 2012 has changed.  The basic 
premise of the sewer utility evaluation is to be able to cover the cost, operating cost and any debt 
service which currently we only have one debt service payment left in the sewer utility.  And in 
addition to design the rates equitably so it covers the costs associated with each particular 
customer base. 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 25 
 
 


So Baker Tilly recommended a sewer rate decrease for all our customers.  The new sewer rates 
are detailed in Resolution 19-34.  And the sewer rate decrease will be in coordination with our 
water rate increase.  We had a public hearing on September 10th with the Public Service 
Commission.  And it takes about two to three weeks to get an effective date of our water rate until 
they approve our actual water rate and give us an order.  We’re hoping for the order to come at 
the end of this month or a little before so that we can use our first meter reading date in October 
which right now is set for October 1st to be our effective date.  So basically October would be 
first, and then they read the meters during October, and then November 1st would be our first 
time that we charge out for flat fees as well as user-type fees. 


 
We also have an additional dollar increase which was approved in the budget process last year 
that we’re waiting for the change in sewer and water to implement it along with it.  Up on the 
overhead is our proposed rates.  And I put the water rates and the sewer rates up there for five 
different categories of customers.  And you can see our small residential customers will have a 
slight increase of 40 cents when they combine their water bill and their sewer bill together.  This 
does not take into consider the dollar increase per month for the garbage. 


 
Average residential will actually see a decrease of $3.14.  When you combine the two industrial 
and commercial also will see a decrease.  We have a little bit of an increase in industrial and 
public authority when you combine the two rates together, when you get to the larger volumes of 
15 million and [inaudible] of 750,000.  So I am recommending this to be approved and be 
effective along with the water rates that were brought to the Public Service Commission last 
Tuesday, September 10th. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I’d move approval of Resolution 19-34. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second for adoption of Resolution 19-34.  Further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 26 
 
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION #19-34 REGARDING SEWER SERVICE 
CHARGES; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Move approval of 19-36. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second for adoption of Ordinance 19-36.  Further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


KLIMISCH MOVED TO APPROVE ORDINANCE #19-36 REGARDING SEWER 
SERVICE CHARGES; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 J. Consider approval of Resolution #19-30 approving the filing of a civil complaint 


against manufacturers and distributors of prescription opiates. 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Village Board President and Trustees, recently the District Attorney Gravely presented to the 
Village Board regarding efforts made by the county and partnering agencies to address the opioid 
epidemic.  The Village of Pleasant Prairie, of course, is not isolated from the impact of opioids 
principally in connection with emergency services and court processes.  Currently there’s 
litigation being pursued against opioid manufacturers.  You may have noticed recently regarding 
Purdue Pharma reaching some settlements, anyways, against opioid manufacturers and 
distributors to help combat the epidemic at both the state and federal level. 


 
The City of Kenosha brought this litigation to my attention, and while there are several law firms 
that may represent municipalities on opioid issues, I provided material from the law firm, it’s a 
long name,  Levin, Papantonio, Thomas, Mitchell, Rafferty & Proctor, PA.  This firm currently 
represents a significant number of municipalities in a federal court case in Ohio.  By entering into 
an agreement with them, they would file a claim on our behalf at the federal level.  We would be 
required to gather and provide minimal information requested to legitimize the claim.  We would 
then be included in the settlement process currently underway. 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 27 
 
 
 


Given the state of the current case, the likelihood we would need to develop a significant case is 
negligible at this time.  With the exception of the firm retaining 25 percent of any recoveries 
there’s no cost to the Village.  In other words there’s minimal risk.  There’s also, though, no 
guarantee or definitive amount the Village will recover.  Any recovery will be determined during 
the settlement proceedings.  Should the Village elect tonight to make a claim, the Village would 
be afforded an opportunity to vote with the group to accept the settlement or not. 


 
The Village’s participation in my personal opinion is more about the Village affirming the reality 
of the opioid epidemic and less about recovery of cost impacts.  If recovery were more of a 
concern, the Village might be better off pursuing other alternatives.  I wanted to make the Board 
aware of this option and entertain the consideration to file a claim.  And so at this time I’d 
entertain your thoughts and answer any questions you might have. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


If there was a settlement and funds were received, where would those funds be directed? 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


That is a wonderful question.  So the Village would have the opportunity to look at those areas.  
My personal opinion is that we would want to direct those efforts towards services that were most 
impacted so primarily public safety. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Considering today’s news that Purdue was funneling up to a billion dollars into personal 
accounts, it just tells you the amount of profit and greed that has taken over the reality of some of 
these companies.  I agree with Nathan with this 100 percent.  You’re losing 60,000 and some 
people a year through overdoses.  And it’s just unacceptable.  And hopefully this will snowball 
into something bigger and put an end to this thing. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I think it’s a good proactive move.  Nobody really knows how this is going to end up, but if we 
do nothing, nothing is going to happen for the Village other than the hope that we get caught up 
in some other settlement, whether it be one at the county or the state or some other future 
development.  I know we’ve had problems in the Village, and I know it’s been a tax on service.  
It happens everywhere.  Pleasant Prairie isn’t free from impacts on it.  I make a motion to 
authorize participation in the litigation pursuant to Resolution 19-30. 


 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 28 
 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
POLLOCOFF MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION #19-30 APPROVING THE 


FILING OF A CIVIL COMPLAINT AGAINST MANUFACTURERS AND DISTRIBUTORS OF 
PRESCRIPTION OPIATES; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 K. Consider approval of Resolution 19-32 and Ordinance #19-34 amending Chapter 98 


as it relates to the meeting time of the Village Board. 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


So this a fairly simple item.  Before the Board is a change to the Village Ordinance deleting the 
specific reference to meeting times.  It’s not necessary to reference it per ordinance.  The Village 
ordinance will continue to set scheduled days for a meeting.  In connection with this modification 
to the ordinance Village staff is requesting consideration to change meeting times by resolution 5 
p.m. rather than 6 p.m.  I know that this is somewhat a conversation within the Board.   I know 
that from a staffing standpoint there’s interest only for efficiency sake with right after work.   


 
The feeling is that residents have demonstrated that they’re able to make a 5 p.m. especially 
during the Village Green participation.  And also for contractors and developers and so forth that 
usually are the ones that are most likely to attend the meetings, we felt that the 5 p.m. early start 
time would be beneficial.  We also do understand that there’s some concern that when complaints 
arise that’s when people might complain about the time frame, whether it be at 6 or whether it be 
at 5.  But from our standpoint it hasn’t been a significant issue, and we’re hopeful that it won’t be 
a significant issue at 5 p.m.  So that’s the purpose for bringing it to the Board. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


I support this.  We have to take into consideration our staff that’s here from 7:30 in the morning 
until sometime 8:30, 9:00 at night.  If somebody has something that has to be heard by the Village 
Board or the Plan Commission and they maybe can’t get here by 5:00, we can put that item on the 
back end of the agenda.  That will give them a chance to be heard later.  Or even if it’s a short 
meeting and they can’t make it, we can even recess for 15 minutes until they get here to give their 
testimony.  So there’s all kinds of things that we can do to take care of the complaints of the 
citizenry, and I think this is a good move.  I’d move approval. 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 29 
 
 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


I’d second it. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I have a question. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Discussion, Mike? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I really can’t support this resolution.  And I know it makes for a long day for staff.  I just think 
there might be some other ways to mitigate that.  But I really -- if you take a look at who we’re 
doing this for, I mean the purpose of the meeting isn’t for the staff, it’s for the citizens.  And six 
o’clock seems to be -- some people if they’re coming from Chicago six still might be, or if 
they’re coming from the northern suburbs it still might be a tough time for them to make it here.  
And we have a lot of residents that work south of the border.  Or even work in town and they get 
off at five and they’re going to run over here.  So I think it’s just one of those things that the 
reason for acting on the things we act on or the work that we’ve done or get it ready that’s a lot of 
work.   


 
But at the end of the day we’re here to do it before the public in the eyes of the public so they can 
see what it is, and I think it should remain that way.  I know over time we’ve had meetings -- over 
my career here we’ve had meetings that started at 8, 7:30, 6:30.  I think even one of the 
commissions was going at 4:30 at times.  And the earlier for the employees I know it’s better to 
have it right after work or shortly thereafter.  But, again, I think that the purpose of the public 
meeting is for the public, it’s not for the employees.  So I can’t support this Resolution 19-32. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


The change in time would affect all commissions also then? 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


So the next item basically we’re proposing changing the time for the Park Commission and the 
Plan Commission as well.  The thought process was to keep those meetings all at the same time 
so we have some consistency.  But, again, I’m aware of the concern as far as making it available 
for the public.  Again, that’s part of the reason for changing and modifying it to be by resolution 
so that should in the future there need to be a change it’s easily modified rather than by ordinance 
and then making it very difficult.  Or it’s not difficult, it’s just a little bit more cumbersome to go 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 30 
 
 


through the process.  And then also it’s costly, too, because when you make a modification to the 
ordinance it costs us something to change the code. 


 
Kris Keckler: 
 


I’ll be honest, I was torn a little bit on this one.  In my day job for our meetings we start at seven 
which makes for even a longer day.  That’s usually with a disagreeable board.  And I know both 
arguments as far as what would be most amenable to the staff and all the wonderful efforts that 
they put forward, and then Mike’s recent arguments about his stance that this is really for the 
purpose of educating and allowing the public to interact with the governing body of which we 
oversee.  And the notion that it was tried, has that been looked at, like a trial period to see if 
there’s any disagreements, has that come up in any of the discussion? 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


No, I mean we can always try it.  And, again, by resolution that was the purpose of changing it by 
resolution so that if it doesn’t work out, if we do receive complaints it’s something that we can 
modify.  I mean the other alternative, too, to consider, and if it would be preferable that we take 
this conversation and kind of discuss amongst the Board, well, we’re supposed to do it in open 
meeting, but I mean you understand what I’m saying.   


 
It doesn’t have to be 5 p.m.  It could be 5:30.  I mean, heaven forbid, you could change it to 
modify it to eight if you feel that that time would be better for the public or seven.  I know staff 
are going, no, don’t do that.  But I think in general I think the change in the ordinance is 
appropriate.  And then it’s just a matter of us deciding what we feel comfortable with the time.  I 
realize I don’t like to bring items that there isn’t a feeling of one way or another where there’s 
kind of split.  But it is a question at hand, and it’s a fairly easy issue to discuss and debate. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Would this be worth putting on our website for questioning of the citizens? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Open Village Hall you mean? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Open Village, yeah. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


So tabling 19-32 but still moving ahead with the ordinance? 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 31 
 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Putting it out like a survey, a public survey. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


And see what the results are -- 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Table just 19-32 and then still pass the Ordinance 19-34. 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Yeah, we can do that. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


But we have to remove the motion and the second. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


So then if we pass the ordinance the time stays until we change it by resolution? 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Yeah.  I mean basically it would be a decision today, yeah.  Or you could modify the resolution to 
say that it’s 6 p.m., and then we can do a survey and we’d bring another resolution to you in the 
future and it would be -- I mean it would be the same steps. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Why would we modify it to 6 p.m., we’re already there? 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Well, I’m saying that the resolution that you have you’d just say tonight so that the ordinance is 
valid.  You would make a resolution that it would be 6 p.m. right now, and then we’d bring a 
resolution in the future that would change it to an alternative time. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


We just can’t table this for a couple months? 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 32 
 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


We could do that, too. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Remove the motion. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


We’d need to remove the motion. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Yeah, I’ll remove my motion. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


I’ll remove my second. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Motion to table Resolution 19-32. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Any further discussion?   
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


For those of us that have been here a while we’ve been early, we’ve been late, and we always 
seem to do that to satisfy the public which as Mike said that’s our job.  But unfortunately when I 
look out in the audience, one, two, the rest is staff people.  And unfortunately that’s what we see 
every night unless there’s a public hearing on something that is affecting a neighborhood or 
something else.  So I guess we look at it.  If we were earlier and we have the public hearing it 
affects a lot of people getting off at five.  Maybe we set a public hearing at 6:00 instead of at 
5:00. 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 33 
 
 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Right.  I mean just like the example tonight where we’re going to most likely have a special 
meeting for a public hearing for the Chateau Eau Plaines, the stormwater, there’s nothing 
preventing us from setting that time at a later time. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Because that’s where the complaints are going to come is when you have something that affects 
somebody and they feel that we’re doing everything in our power to make it impossible for them 
to be here. 


 
Nathan Thiel: 
 


Right. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


All right, we have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE RESOLUTION #19-32; SECONDED BY KLIMISCH 
BUT AFTER FURTHER DISCUSSION SERPE MOVED TO REMOVED HIS MOTION TO 
APPROVE RESOLUTION #19-32; SECONDED REMOVED BY KLIMISCH. 
 


KECKLER MOVED TO TABLE RESOLUTION #19-32; SECOND BY POLLOCOFF; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Move to table Ordinance 19-34. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Second. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 34 
 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


KLIMISCH MOVED TO TABLE ORDINANCE #19-34; SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 L. Consider approval of Resolution #19-33 and Ordinance #19-35 amending Chapter 


18 as it relates to the meeting time of the Plan Commission, Park Commission and 
Zoning Board of Appeals. 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Move to table Resolution 19-33. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second for tabling of Resolution 19-33.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO TABLE RESOLUTION #19-33 AS IT RELATES TO THE 
MEETING TIME OF THE PLAN COMMISSION, PARK COMMISSION AND ZONING 
BOARD OF APPEALS; SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 35 
 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Move to table 19-35. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second to table Ordinance 19-35 amending Chapter 18.  Any further discussion?  
Those in favor? 


 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


KLIMISCH MOVED TO TABLE ORDINANCE #19-35 AMENDING CHAPTER 18 AS 
IT RELATES TO THE MEETING TIME OF THE PLAN COMMISSION, PARK COMMISSION 
AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 7. Consent Agenda 
 


1) Ordinance #19 33 a Zoning Amendment to amend the Breeze Terrace 
Apartments Plan Unit Development Ordinance. 


2) Easement to We Energies within Outlot 1 CSM 2849 relating to Prairie 
Highland Corporate Park 


3) The Cottages at Village Green Letter of Credit Reduction No. 8 
4) The Vista at Creekside Letter of Credit Reduction No. 1 
5) The Kings Cove Letter of Credit Renewal 
6) Wisconsin Marathon Agreement  
7) Minutes of Meetings - August 19, 2019 and August 26, 2019 


 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Move approval of Consent Agenda Items 1 through 7. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 36 
 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED FOR APPROVAL ITEMS 1 THROUGH 7 UNDER CONSENT 
AGENDA; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
8. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


I’d congratulate the Police Department on the results of a study or survey saying that we’re the -- 
are the 32nd best or 32nd worst?  I think we’re 32nd best.  That number doesn’t happen in a 
vacuum.  As you indicated to me one time that this is a sea of trouble surrounding the community, 
and it takes a lot of work to keep the community safe. 


 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Right.  And all that data is taken right out of the Uniform Crime Report.  So there’s very little 
magic that can be done with those numbers.  In our history we’ve been as high as 48 on that list 
and as low as we are right now.  We were at 31, I’m hoping to move up that list.  Obviously the 
lower your number the safer your community is judged to have been during the previous year.  So 
stats make this list.  So if crime stays down in a certain year we’ll tend to move up.  And we’re 
doing everything we can.  Obviously we’ve got a supportive Board, we’ve got a great 
community, great citizens we serve.  So that’s all a big help. 


 
Dave Klimisch: 
 


Was this across the state? 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Yeah, so it was across the state, jurisdictions of 20,000 or more.  So it went from -- they ranked 
from number 1 down to I think it was number 81. 


 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 37 
 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Kenosha, just not to cast any shade on it, but do you remember what Kenosha’s number was? 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


I believe they were 71.  Racine was 80, Milwaukee was 81.  There’s some real challenges in 
those communities.  But the Assistant Village Administrator, Tom Shircel, brought up when I 
presented this study was that we are really have a lot of challenges.  We’re very close to a larger 
community.  We’re very close to the border which can cause some real problems crime-wise.  
We’ve got interstate running through our jurisdiction.  We’ve got an abundance of retail and kind 
of high value targets for criminals and thieves.  And despite that we’re still coming in at 31.  So 
while I’m not thrilled with the number I’m proud of the work that’s gone into getting us to that 
point by the officers and staff. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


If you’ve ever had the opportunity to ride with the police in our community at night, and I did for 
many years as an auxiliary officer, we should be very thankful of the guys we have out there 
protecting us and working for us every day and night.  Because when you have Sheridan Road, 
31, 39th, the interstate, and it’s a main traffic area between the south and the north and not the 
best people drive up through there at night.  So we want to make sure they don’t stop in our 
community. 


 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


Move it along, move it along. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


That’s right. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


I agree, we’ve got a great crew. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Thank you, Chief. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 


Thank you. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 38 
 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Other Village Board comments? 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


We have Safety Day, is that Saturday? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Saturday. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Right, a safety plug for the -- 
 
Chief Roepke: 
 


So Safety Day, this Saturday the 21st, 10 to 2.  We expect to have a pretty good crowd based on 
some social media postings and responses.  Ben Childers, our primary cook, is gearing up to feed 
almost 750.  So we look to have a lot of people.  The only unknown right now is the weather.  But 
hopefully that will all fall into place. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


What does the menu look like? 
 
Chief Roepke: 
 


The menu is similar as last year, Culver’s Custard.  Costco and Festival Foods were super 
generous as well as Niagara as well.  So hot dogs and chips and maybe the custard. 


 
John Steinbrink: 
 


So food prepared as only firemen can prepare it, correct? 
 
Chief Roepke: 
 


As only Ben Childers can prepare it which is different than firemen.  He does a very nice job. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 


He does prairie dogs, he doesn’t do hot dogs. 
 







Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
Meeting Minutes – September 16, 2019 
Page | 39 
 
 
Chief Roepke: 
 


Yup, so it looks to be a great day.  So, thanks. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


A shout out to the public works department with a week of almost ten inches of rain coming 
down in short intervals.  These guys did a great job on keeping our roads clear, marking our 
roads, dealing with high water and angry residents.  As Mike said that 100-year flood mark I 
think we’ve surpassed that many times this year.  You guys a great job. 


 
John Steinbrink, Jr.: 
 


I’ll pass that along.  Thank you. 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 


Move to adjourn. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 


Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Motion and a second for adjournment.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 


Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 


Opposed?  So carries. 
 


SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY KECKLER; 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0 AND THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 7:32 P.M. 
 







 
 
 
September 26, 2019 
 
 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Attn: Vesna Savic 
9915 39th Ave 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
 
Program: League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance 
Our Insured: Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Date of loss: 9/10/2019 
Our Claim # WM000301740263 
Claimant: Rosalyn Knoth 
  5213 79th St. 
  Kenosha, WI 53142  
 
 
Dear Ms. Savic, 
 
Statewide Services, Inc. administers the claims for the League of Wisconsin Municipalities 
Mutual Insurance which insures the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  We are in receipt of the  
claim submitted by Ms. Knoth for damage to her vehicle as a result of the above-referenced  
collision with the Village’s 2002 Sterling vactor truck. 
 
We have reviewed the matter and recommend that the Village of Pleasant Prairie deny 
this claim pursuant to the Wisconsin statute for disallowance of claim 893.80(lg). The 
disallowance will shorten the statute of limitations period to six (6) months.  
 
Our denial is based on the fact that the investigation revealed that the claimant vehicle 
was at least majority responsible for the accident.  
 
Please submit the disallowance directly to the claimant at the above address.  The 
disallowance should be sent certified or registered mail and must be received by the 
claimant within 120 days after you receive Notice of Claim. Please send a copy of the 
disallowance to Statewide Services Inc. Claims. 
 
 
 
 







 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Sarah Bourgeois 
Claims Rep. I 
Statewide Services Inc. 
PO Box 5555 
Madison, WI 53705-0555 
608-828-5439 Phone 
800-854-1537 Fax 
sbourgeois@statewidesvcs.com 
 
 
CC:  Rick Kalscheuer 
 





		October 7, 2019 Village Board Agenda

		4.  Resolution #19-36 Mason Kiernan

		7A.  McGrath Consulting Group - Fire & Rescue Department Review and Assessment

		7A.  McGrath Consulting Group - Fire & Rescue Department Review and Assessment



		7B.  Haribo of American MFG 1-Year Extension of Master Conceptual Plan

		2018-05-29 Conceptual Plan Approval Letter

		Letter

		1-Ord 18-17 Haribo PUD

		2-TIA-Intersections

		3-Prairie Highlands infrastructure

		4-128th Ave right of way

		5-Haribo wetland Fill Ma

		6-Village Wetland Fill-Road Alignment

		7-Draing Tile Map

		8-2018-03-12 Eng Review Comments

		9-2018-03-16 Fire Dept review comments

		10-2018-03-19 Building Inspection Review Comments

		11-Warranty Deed



		Request



		7C.  Rinka Contract for Village Green Center Mixed-Use Development

		RINKA Contract - Master Planning VGC



		7D.  HSA Acquisitions Inc 2nd Amendment to the Purchase Sale Agreement

		Second Amendment to PSA v1

		A. Seller and Purchaser have entered into a certain Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate dated as of October 18, 2018 (the “Original Contract”), as amended by a First Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate dated as of Ju...

		A. Seller and Purchaser have entered into a certain Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate dated as of October 18, 2018 (the “Original Contract”), as amended by a First Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate dated as of Ju...

		B. Seller and Purchaser desire to amend the Contract to extend the Review Period through November 29, 2019.

		B. Seller and Purchaser desire to amend the Contract to extend the Review Period through November 29, 2019.

		2. To the extent there is any conflict between the terms of the Contract and the terms contained in this Amendment, the terms contained in this Amendment shall govern and control.  In all other respects, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall ...

		2. To the extent there is any conflict between the terms of the Contract and the terms contained in this Amendment, the terms contained in this Amendment shall govern and control.  In all other respects, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall ...







		7E.  Resolution #19-35 -Acceptance of Public Improvements The Gateway at Lakeview Corporate Park

		7F.  Resolution #19-37 and Ordinance #19-37 related to Solid Waste Collection Fees

		Ordinance #19-37 Amend Chapter 292-15 Solid Waste Fees



		8.  Consent Agenda - September 16, 2019 Village Board Minutes

		8.  Consent Agenda - Disallowance of Claim for Rosalyn Knoth








